
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 
Audit Committee 

 
Wednesday, 22 June 2011 

6.00 pm 
Pittville Room, Municipal Offices, Promenade 

 
Membership 

Councillors: Bernard Fisher, Rowena Hay, Robin MacDonald, Paul Massey 
(Vice-Chair), Andrew Wall (Chairman) and Paul Wheeldon 

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the 
meeting 
 

Agenda  
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 

3. MINUTES 
23 March 2011 
 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
These must be received no later than 10am on Wednesday 
15 June 
 

 

5. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
Report of the Director of Resources 
 

(Pages 7 - 22) 

6. THE BRIBERY ACT 2010 
Report of the Policy Officer 
 

(Pages 23 - 26) 

7. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 
Report of the Audit Partnership Manager 
 

(Pages 27 - 40) 

8. INTERIM AUDIT REPORT 2011/12 
Report of KPMG 
 

(Pages 41 - 64) 

9. AUDIT FEE LETTER 2011-2012 
Report of KPMG 
 

(Pages 65 - 70) 



 
2 
 

10. DCLG CONSULTATION 
Report of the Audit Partnership Manager 
 

(Pages 71 - 148) 

11. COMMISSIONING - UPDATE ON CURRENT 
COMMISSIONING EXERCISES 
Discussion paper of the Director of Commissioning 
 

(Pages 149 - 154) 

12. WORK PROGRAMME 
 

(Pages 155 - 156) 
13. ANY OTHER ITEM THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES TO BE 

URGENT AND REQUIRES A DECISION 
 

 

14. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
21 September 2011 
 

 

 Briefing Notes (for information only) 
1. Corporate Risk Register  
2. Corporate Governance Group 
3. GO Shared Services  

 

 

 
Contact Officer:  Saira Malin, Democracy Officer, 01242 775153 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 June 2011. 
 

Audit Committee 
 

Wednesday, 23rd March, 2011 
6.03  - 7.20 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors:  Bernard Fisher, Rowena Hay, Robin MacDonald, Paul Massey 
(Vice-Chair, in the Chair) and Paul Wheeldon 

Also in attendance:  Sara Freckleton (Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer), Jane 
Griffiths (Assistant Chief Executive), Councillor Colin Hay 
(Cabinet Member Corporate Services), Rob Milford (Audit 
Partnership Manager), Ian Pennington (KPMG) and Mark 
Sheldon (Chief Finance Officer) 

 
 

Minutes 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
Councillor Wall had given apologies.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
None declared.  
 

3. MINUTES 
 The minutes of the last meeting had been circulated with the agenda.  
 
The Chairman suggested that the last bullet point on page 2 of the minutes was 
rather vague and that it should specifically refer to the risk threshold for asset 
and property transactions which the committee thought may be too low.  
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that the amended minutes of the meeting held on the 12 
January 2011 be agreed and signed as an accurate record.  
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
None received.  
 

5. PUBLIC INTEREST REPORT ACTION PLAN 
The Borough Solicitor introduced the report as circulated with the agenda, 
which she was presenting on behalf of the Chief Executive. 
 
All recommendations of KPMG and the Working Group had been fully 
completed or implemented with the exception of three actions set out in 
Appendix 1, which were in part but not yet fully completed. 
 
The KPMG recommendation 8 (centralised log of decisions) had been delayed 
by the implementation of the new committee management system in the first 

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



 
 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 June 2011. 

instance and research was ongoing into how or indeed whether, the system 
could be used to track decisions.   
The implementation of risk management training, KPMG recommendation 16 
had been delayed due to the Council’s budget situation but was due for 
completion by the end of September.   
 
In relation to the recommendations of the Working Group, members were 
informed that a revised Employee Code of Conduct had recently been approved 
by the Standards Committee.  With regards to deputies, this would be 
addressed in the constitution as part of the full review scheduled for later in the 
year.  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive elaborated on the decision tracking issue.  The 
Committee Management system allowed for monitoring of decisions taken, 
these were logged and summarised on the website.  The issue however, was 
that many decisions comprised numerous recommendations and as such it was 
not yet apparent how to track progress of individual items.  Officers, having 
looked at how other authorities used the same system (Modern.Gov) had 
identified that none were actually tracking decisions to completion and rather 
than implement a time consuming alternative, research was ongoing.  In time 
the intranet function of the system would be launched, allowing Officers outside 
of Democratic Services to logon to the system and mark a decision as 
complete.   
 
She also confirmed that the e-learning package had been uploaded at the latter 
end of last week and was currently being tested, upon completion of which it 
would be available to Officers.  The two stage implementation (Officers first and 
then Members) was in an effort to ensure its effectiveness but given the small 
number of members requiring the training, they could be included in the initial 
stage.  
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously  
 
RESOLVED that having reviewed progress against the actions, a further 
review be scheduled for the meeting on the 21 September 2011. 
 

6. REVISED RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS AND POLICY 
 The Assistant Chief Executive introduced the report as circulated with the 
agenda.  The slightly amended policy reflected changes to structure as well as 
KPMG recommendations and it was intended to reflect practice, clearly 
demonstrating how risk and escalation was managed by the Council.  
 
Subject to any comment by the committee, which would be included in the 
covering report, the policy would go to Cabinet on the 19 April for approval.   
 
There was discussion about whether the policy needed to acknowledge the 
envisaged changes that may arise from commissioning, however, Officers 
including the KPMG Auditor, felt that this should not alter the way in which risk 
was managed by the Council and nor would the risk necessarily transfer to a 
third party.  (E.g. CBH risks were owned by the relevant Assistant Director but 
the responsibility of managing that risk lay with CBH).  The suggestion was that, 
like the Corporate Strategy, which clearly separated where delivery of an 
outcome was not the responsibility of CBC, the Risk Register should do the 

Page 2



 
 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 June 2011. 

same.  Officers agreed that they would review the policy to ensure that it 
reflected fully the council’s commitment to commissioning. 
 
A fundamental issue in the view of the Chairman was the definition of risk 
outlined in the policy.  He felt that it should be aligned with the international 
standards (ISO3100 and IEC 73) so as to use the same terminology as other 
organisations.   
 
Officers were asked to track changes to policies in the future and where the 
documents were substantial to make them available to members as soon as 
possible. 
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously  
 
RESOLVED that having considered the revised policy and process the 
feedback of the Audit Committee be included in the covering report to 
Cabinet on the 19 April 2011.  
 

7. COMMISSIONING AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
The Assistant Chief Executive introduced the paper as circulated with the 
agenda, which had been produced at the request of the committee at their last 
meeting.  The paper set out some initial thoughts about the role of the audit 
committee and wider governance issues in view of the council’s move to 
become a commissioning council. 
 
In response to concerns raised by members, the Assistant Chief Executive 
explained that were the decision taken to for example, establish a trust to 
deliver a particular service, the trust would be entitled to decide against using 
the council’s governance model.  This has been raised as a possible issue and 
discussions were ongoing about whether this could be incorporated into the 
service level agreement.   
 
The KPMG Auditor highlighted paragraph 4.4 of the paper which referred to the 
suggestion that independent members appointed to the audit committee could 
offer a degree of challenge in the commissioning process.  Current information 
from the Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) proposed 
a move to mandatory audit committees with a majority of independent members 
and an independent Chairman, these would not necessarily have to be auditors 
and/or accountants and would have a broad range of skills.  This would offer a 
plc feel to the council in a step towards a time when they needed to appoint 
independent auditors of their choice.  The DCLG were of the belief that politics 
interfered with good governance, though this was not a view shared by the 
KPMG Auditor. The proposals had not yet been released for consultation and 
his advice was that when it was, the committee should review it and submit a 
formal response. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive indicated that depending on the timescales for 
responding to the consultation paper it may be appropriate to establish a 
working group in order to review and respond to the consultation as necessary.  
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services confirmed that he had attended each 
of the overview and scrutiny committees to gauge views on future member 
involvement.  The approach was very fluid at the moment as each area would 

Page 3



 
 
 
 

 

 
- 4 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 June 2011. 

be slightly different and this called for a set of principles rather than a rigid 
process, though admittedly this did pose an issue from an audit perspective.  
He urged members to give feedback.   
 
A table was being drafted that set out the various delivery models and the risks 
associated with them, this would be very useful for members and would be 
completed and circulated soon.   
 
The Chairman felt that there were clearly two strands to the audit committee’s 
involvement, the initial commissioning of services, establishing governance 
arrangements and once complete, monitoring the service.  
 
The committee requested an update at their next meeting on the two reviews 
currently being undertaken prior to the reports on the strategic direction for 
these areas being presented to cabinet.  This would enable the audit committee 
to understand the governance arrangement options which are being considered 
and satisfy themselves that the risks and opportunities are being fully 
addressed within the process. 
  

8. VALUE FOR MONEY AUDIT PLAN 
Ian Pennington, the KPMG Auditor introduced the report as circulated with the 
agenda.  At the last meeting he had outlined the 2011-12 Audit Plan and had 
alluded to the new approach to local value for money work.  The formerly rigid 
approach set by the government had been simplified in response to the 
changing financial environment and there would be no scored judgements, the 
conclusion would be pass or fail.   
 
The new approach was structured under two themes; 
 
1. The organisation has proper arrangements in place for securing financial 
resilience. 

2. The organisation has proper arrangements for challenging how it 
secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  

 
The report offered an overview of the VFM audit approach and the Auditor had 
nothing further to add.  
 
Members welcomed the simplification and noted the VFM audit plan.   
 

9. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
The Audit Partnership Manager introduced the report as circulated with the 
agenda.  The Audit Partnership followed a risk based approach and recognised 
the need to coordinate resources across the partnership and the report set out 
how this was being undertaken.   
 
Appendix A, the Annual Audit Plan 2011-12 outlined the audit schedule and 
would supplement future monitoring reports.  The first column detailed support 
for the external audit work and core undertakings for assurance purposes and 
the other columns were risk based, more flexible and could change as the year 
progressed. 
 

Page 4



 
 
 
 

 

 
- 5 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 June 2011. 

The Go Programme posed significant risk hence the two separate entries and 
coincided with other core functions on which it impacted, payroll, debtors, etc 
and this dovetailed with the Go Programme plan.  
 
The plan represented his assessment of risk at the present time and there was 
an element of contingency for issues that may arise.  
 
The following responses were given by the Audit Partnership Manager in 
response to questions from members of the committee; 
 
• In relation to risk based audits a meeting would be organised with the 
responsible manager to discuss what risks there were and how they 
were being managed.  The partnership would then provide assurances 
based on the management of those risks.  

• The plan, though large, fit the operational resources with some 
contingency and he was confident that it was deliverable.   

• 37 days of 500 were contingency and more was available across the 
partnership if required.  

 
Members of the committee suggested that the presentation of the Annual 
Audit Plan could be amended to include details of the risks origin, progress 
and target outcome(s).   
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services suggested that it would also be 
useful to highlight an item on the Corporate Risk Register as being 
scheduled on the Internal Audit Plan.  Officers agreed to incorporate this 
into the risk policy and process. 
 
The Chairman agreed with the suggestion that a copy of the Corporate Risk 
Register be available at future meetings of the committee but advised that it 
was not a standing item on the agenda.  
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Plan for 2011-12 be approved.  

 
10. WORK PROGRAMME 

The Chairman referred members to the work plan as circulated with the agenda.  
 
Officers advised that the Review of the Annual Statement of Accounts which 
had been scheduled for June could now be deferred to the September meeting.  
This was as a result of changes which negated the requirement for the 
committee to review the draft Statement of Accounts prior to them having been 
audited.   
 
In relation to the commissioning process members of the Audit Committee 
needed to be satisfied with the governance arrangements and comfortable that 
risks were being properly assessed and managed.  The Assistant Chief 
Executive queried what value the committee would be able to add in the initial 
stages but agreed that ongoing updates would be provided in order that 
members could build confidence and knowledge of the process.  
 

Page 5



 
 
 
 

 

 
- 6 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 June 2011. 

Following changes to the management structure effective from the 1 April this 
would be the last meeting for the Assistant Chief Executive in her role as the 
Lead Officer for the Audit Committee.  The Chairman thanked her for her 
support and welcomed the Senior Finance Officer as her successor.  
 

11. ANY OTHER ITEM THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND 
REQUIRES A DECISION 
There were no urgent items for discussion.  
 

12. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting was scheduled for the 22 June 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Massey  
Chairman 

 

Page 6



   
$g2jz0i4w.doc Page 1 of 3 Last updated 10 June 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Audit Committee – 22 June 2011 
Annual Governance Statement 

 
Accountable member Councillor Colin Hay, Cabinet member corporate services 
Accountable officer Mark Sheldon, Director of Resources 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy and Business Improvement 

Ward(s) affected None 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary The council has a statutory duty to prepare an Annual Governance 

Statement (AGS) (appendix 1) to be approved as part of the annual 
statement of accounts.  
The annual governance statement indicates how the council is 
complying with the code of corporate governance including the 
internal control arrangements and management of risk.   
The audit committee need to satisfy themselves that the AGS fairly 
reflects the arrangements within the council and that the suggested 
action plan will address the significant governance issues identified by 
the review. 
 

Recommendations 1. The audit committee approve the annual governance statement 
and recommend it is adopted as part of the statement of 
accounts, and 

2. recommend to the leader and Chief Executive officer that they 
sign the annual governance statement, and 

3. request an update report in December on progress against the 
actions. 

 
Financial implications none arising from this report 

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, mark.sheldon               
@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264123 

Legal implications There are no direct legal implications arising from this report 

Contact officer:  Shirin Wotherspoon,  
Email  shirin.wotherspoon@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel. no;  01684 272017 

Agenda Item 5
Page 7



   
$g2jz0i4w.doc Page 2 of 3 Last updated 10 June 2011 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

The governance arrangements help to ensure that any human resources 
issues/risks are identified and addressed, there are no specific additional 
human resources issues arising from this report.  
Contact officer: Amanda Attfield,  
amanda.attfield@cheltenham.gov.uk,  01242 264186 

Key risks None arising out of this report 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Good governance helps to deliver the councils aspirations to be an 
excellent, efficient and sustainable council. It also ensures that risks are 
identified and managed to protect its assets and workforce. 

 
Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 

 
1. Background 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 regulation 4(2) requires council’s to conduct 

an annual review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control including the arrangements 
for the management of risk. 

1.2 Each March, assurance statements and evidence tables are issued to the Directors for 
completion.  The evidence tables act as internal control checklists which confirm/review the 
existence and adequacy of governance and control arrangements, and any significant absence 
of, or weakness in, the control.   The areas covered by the checklist are not exhaustive and any 
other significant weaknesses must be reported in the Certificate of Assurance. Directors have the 
responsibility for the completion of the Certificates, which are signed off by them.  

1.3 Once complete, the evidence tables and the Certificates are reviewed by the Director of 
Resources, Head of Internal Audit and Policy Officer (Governance) to identify any governance or 
control improvements which should be included in the action plan for the forthcoming year.  They 
also draw on evidence from internal and external audit reports, and other relevant evidence.  The 
annual governance statement is considered by the Senior Leadership Team and the corporate 
governance group before it is submitted to this committee ahead of its consideration by Council 
(29th September) for approval as part of the Statement of Accounts.   

1.4 The process has identified a number of control issues, and these are highlighted in the annual 
governance statement.  Officers will work with the respective Directors to produce an action plan 
with key milestones which address these issues.  The corporate governance group will monitor 
progress and will report back to the audit committee. 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The Annual Governance Statement will form part of the audited statement of accounts which will 

be formally approved by the Audit Committee on 21st September 2011 and the outcome of the 
audit of the accounts and the audit committee meeting will be verbally reported to council 29th 
September 2011. Suggestions for the action plan are sought to ensure that all of the Significant 
Issues have been identified 

 

Page 8



   
$g2jz0i4w.doc Page 3 of 3 Last updated 10 June 2011 
 

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 None 
4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 The results of the annual assurance review have been considered by the Senior Leadership 

Team and the corporate governance group. 
5. Performance management – monitoring and review 
5.1 A monitoring report will be brought to Audit Committee in January 2012. 

Report author Contact officer: Bryan Parsons, bryan.parsons               
@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264189 

Appendices 1. Annual Governance Statement 
Background information None 
 

Page 9



Page 10
This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Annual Governance Statement 2010 - 2011 
Scope of responsibility 
 

1. Cheltenham Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  Cheltenham Borough Council also has a duty under 
the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
2. In discharging this overall responsibility, Cheltenham Borough Council is 

responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its 
affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and the management of 
risk. 

 
3. Cheltenham Borough Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate 

Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA / SOLACE 
Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.  

 
4. You can download a copy of the Local Code of Corporate Governance (pdf)  

or a copy can be obtained from the Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire GL50 9SA 

 
5. This statement explains how Cheltenham Borough Council has complied with 

the code and also meets the requirements of regulation 4(3) and (4) of The 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 in relation to the publication of 
an Annual Governance Statement. 

 
The purpose of the Governance Framework 

6. The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture 
and values, by which the authority is directed and controlled and its activities 
through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community.  It 
enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and 
to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, 
cost-effective services. 

 
7. The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is 

designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of 
internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and 
prioritise risks to the achievement of Cheltenham Borough Council’s policies, 
aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and 
the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively 
and economically. 

 
8. The governance framework, which was revised and approved by the Audit 

Committee in January 2010 and approved by Council March 2010. It has been 
in place for the year ended 31 March 2011 and up to the date of approval of the 
annual report and statement of accounts. 

 
 

Page 11



 

The Governance Framework 
 

9. The code of governance identifies a number of principles that underpin the 
effective governance of the council, and these have been used when assessing 
the adequacy of its governance arrangements.  The main elements that 
contribute to these arrangements are set out below: 

 
Principle 1 - Focusing on the purpose of the Council and on outcomes for 
the community including citizens and service users and creating and 
implementing a vision for the local area. 

 
10. The council agreed in March 2010 a 5 year Corporate Strategy (2010 -15) that 

included an action plan for the 2010-11 which clearly articulates how the 
council will deliver better outcomes for the community either directly or in 
partnership. This was based on the sustainable community strategy – a 
document which was drawn up following extensive public consultation 
(Cheltenham 20:20) on key issues and priorities for the town and which sets out 
a long term vision for Cheltenham. The action plan also took on board advice 
and comment from the Improvement and Development Agency following a peer 
review. 

 
11. The Corporate Strategy is updated on an annual basis to reflect new priorities 

and any issues which have arisen since it was approved to provide a clear work 
programme based on priorities for the council. This document is approved by 
council. Monitoring reports are considered by the senior leadership team and 
taken to meetings of the overview and scrutiny committees to ensure that the 
council’s objectives are progressing as planned.   

 
12. The Cabinet agrees a Medium Term Financial Strategy which is in line with the 

priorities as set out in the council’s business plan and identifies any expenditure 
which may need to be incurred to meet new legislation or changes in service 
provision.  In order to address year on year budget shortfalls, efficency savings 
and new or improved income, the council has described within its Medium Term 
Financial Strategy how it will broadly achieve the budget gap target while 
keeping council tax at a reasonable level.  Each year the council looks to areas 
where it can make its efficiency savings, budget cuts or additional income, 
which will not impact on its ability to deliver in priority areas. 

   
13. The budget monitoring during 2010-11 predicted a £2.4m budget shortfall for 

2011-12 because of expected central government cutbacks and reduced 
income. To address this shortfall a series of 21 consultation events and citizen 
panels were undertaken at a number of venues across the borough. These 
events involved staff, elected members, members of the public and community 
groups to decide which services could be protected, reduced or stopped. The 
results were used by officers and elected members to help formulate a 
prioritised budget.  

 
14. The council has a well established web site with many services online, 

including a “report it” tool which was used 591 times during the year to tell us 
about issues of concern. We also took steps to improve the interactive nature of 
the website by developing systems that allow improved access to council 
services and information. 

 
15. The council makes significant use of the local media including face book, twitter 

and You Tube in order to get across key messages and to receive feedback, 

Page 12



 

staff and members are also made aware of issues that have been discussed in 
the media through monthly briefings.  

 
16. The council has been working with the police and county council on a 

neighbourhood-based approach to helping local residents tackle and resolve 
local problems. There are 14 neighbourhoods in Cheltenham with coordination 
groups that meet every 3 months to agree local priorities, councillors and 
officers take part in the group meetings to help co-ordinate agreed courses of 
action.  

   
17. The Government cancelled the Place survey in the October 2010 as part of its 

agenda to decentralise government controls.  The council continues to 
undertake service specific user surveys as well as using customer feedback 
from its corporate complaints and comments system to improve service quality. 
It also makes use of other sources of information and needs analysis from 
national, regional and county organisations to formulate its own priorities.  

 
18. The leader and chief executive of the council sit on the Cheltenham Strategic 

Partnership (CSP) which supports the delivery of the sustainable community 
strategy.  Cabinet members sit on the six thematic partnerships which support 
the CSP in the delivery of the vision and each partnership has a part-time 
partnership officer.  The council also supports partnership work at a county 
level to ensure that the vision and aspirations of Cheltenham are supported 
through Leadership Gloucestershire. The CSP has an agreed work plan which 
is published on its website that identifies its priorities and the progress being 
made. 

 
19. The Cheltenham Strategic Partnership and its thematic partnerships have 

agreed governance arrangements, including terms of reference, membership 
and identification of partnership risk. Partnership structures are currently being 
reviewed and new governance arrangements will be brought forward. 

 
20. Members of Executive Board have each agreed to take a lead on one of the 

thematic partnerships, and along with the relevant Cabinet member are able to 
ensure that the council’s views are fully represented at partnership meetings. 

 
 

Principle 2 - Members and officers working together to achieve a common 
purpose with clearly defined functions and roles. 

 
21. The council’s constitution defines and documents the roles and responsibilities 

of the executive, non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear 
delegation arrangements and protocols for effective communication.   The 
Cabinet has executive powers and make decisions within the overall policy 
framework (5 year Corporate Strategy and budget) as set by the council. 

 
22. There are three overview and scrutiny committees which hold the Cabinet to 

account and assist with policy formulation.  The council has two committees 
which deal with governance, internal control and ethical arrangements, (Audit 
Committee and Standards Committee), as well as a Staff and Support Services 
Committee which dealt with employee related matters until it was discontinued 
on the 15th February 2011.  In addition there are two quasi judicial committees 
which deal with licensing and planning.  The council’s constitution is approved 
by council, and is subject to periodic review. 

 

Page 13



 

23. Having considered the KPMG Public Interest Report relating to the Council’s 
decision-making process for the Council’s High Court Action against its former 
Managing Director, the Council approved an Action Plan to respond to the 
recommendations in the report.  The Action Plan has been monitored on a 
quarterly basis by the Audit Committee.  A number of requirements of the 
Action Plan led to amendments to the Council’s Constitution which, following 
consideration of a report by a Working Group of Members (Constitution 
Working Group), were approved by the Council in December 2010.  One of the 
changes to the Constitution is that the Staff and Support Services Committee 
was discontinued with effect from the 15th February 2011.  A comprehensive 
review of the Constitution is underway and is due to be completed in October 
2011. 

 
24. The council’s Audit Committee meets four times per year and its terms of 

reference are set out in the council’s constitution.  The council’s external 
auditors have access to the committee, and the committee also has 
responsibility for overseeing the risk management process.  A review of the 
Risk Management Policy took place in March 2011 to ensure that it reflected 
the changes brought about by the Senior Officer restructure, the 
recommendations within the Public Interest Report and amendments to the 
Corporate Risk Register template.  The Audit Committee also receive routine 
information papers on the work of the Corporate Governance Group which 
monitors Significant Issues arising from the Annual Governance Statement.  

 
25. The Council has a Chief Executive who is the Head of Paid Service as defined 

within the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. The Chief Executive co-
ordinates the Councils activities, including its management structure, the 
number of staff employed and their salary grades.  

 
26. The council has also appointed a monitoring officer (to ensure decisions comply 

with legislation and that the council has robust procedures in place to prevent 
maladministration) and a section 151 officer (to ensure that the council’s 
financial arrangements are sound), these are both statutory appointments. 

 
27. The Senior Leadership Team provides guidance and advice to Members on 

policy options and implications. All reports identify options, the financial, legal 
and HR implications, any risks associated with the matter, as well as how it 
addresses priorities within the Corporate Strategy.  

 
28. The council has an internal audit function which reports to the council’s audit 

committee.  During 2009/10 the council agreed to the establishment of an audit 
partnership with Cotswold District Council, with a shared audit management 
post.  The new arrangements have resulted in a more resilient audit service 
and the ability to create trainee posts which may assist with succession 
planning.  

 
29. The council has external inspection and audit undertaken by KPMG the 

external auditors appointed by the Audit Commission and their annual 
management letter is presented to Members.   

 
30. In September 2010 KPMG published its report to those charged with 

governance (ISA 260) where they confirmed that the wording of the 2009/10 
Annual Governance Statement accords with their understanding.  They also 
concluded that the council had made proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

 

Page 14



 

31. The Corporate Governance Group chaired by the Chief Executive reviews the 
effectiveness of the council’s internal controls and reports the results to the 
Audit Committee.  The council has a treasury management panel with cross 
party support from Members that oversees the council’s treasury management 
strategy and an asset management working group that oversees the way in 
which the council manages it property assets. 

 
32. The council’s policies are easily accessible to employees and Members on the 

intranet and runs update/briefing seminars as appropriate. 
 
 

Principle 3 - Promoting the values of the Council and demonstrating the 
values of good governance through behaviour. 

 
33. In 2004 the council adopted a series of nine values that underpin everything it 

does these are promoted to staff and Members on the intranet. 
 

34. The code of corporate governance was reviewed during 2009 and a revised 
code adopted by council in January 2010.  This code clearly sets the 
aspirations of the council in ensuring that there are effective governance 
arrangements.   

 
35. All Members and officers are subject to a member and officer code of conduct, 

and periodically training sessions are held.  Both Members and officers must 
declare interests and a register of interests is maintained.  The council’s 
monitoring officer and standards committee are responsible for ensuring that 
reported breaches of the code are investigated appropriately. 

 
36. The Chief Executive and other members of the Senior Leadership Team 

routinely promote good governance messages too employees and Members 
through the employee blog and Twitter.  

 
37. Members of staff are encouraged to shadow the Chief Executive to promote 

their understanding of the wider aspects of the councils work. They are then 
given the opportunity to be a guest on the Chief Executives blog to provide their 
views on the experience to other staff.  

 
38. The council has a complaints process and quarterly reports analysing the 

nature and type of complaint are considered by the senior leadership team. 
 
39. There is a competency framework for its employees who are assessed through 

the annual appraisal process and these competencies reflect the core values of 
the council which underpin good governance arrangements. 

 
 

Principle 4 - Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject 
to effective scrutiny and managing risk. 
 

40. In December 2010 the Council considered its obligation to adopt new executive 
arrangements; either a new style strong leader and cabinet model or a directly 
elected Mayor and cabinet model. Following a period of public consultation and 
a debate at full Council it was decided that a new style strong leader and 
cabinet model be adopted to take effect from May 2012. As the council already 
operates executive style arrangements the main differences with the new 

Page 15



 

model are that the leader is appointed for a 4 year term (but may be removed 
earlier by Council) and the leader must appoint a deputy leader.  
 

41. The leader can delegate their executive functions to members of the Cabinet or 
to officers and this is set out in the council’s constitution.  All meetings of 
Cabinet are held in public, agendas are published in advance and the minutes 
of the meetings are available on the council’s web site or for public view in 
libraries and the council offices.  Decisions made by the Cabinet must be in 
accordance with the policy framework which is approved by council.   

 
42. Arrangements are in place for other council committees with published agendas 

and minutes.  For all meetings of the council the public are able to ask 
questions (with advance notice). 

 
43. There are three overview and scrutiny committees which hold the Cabinet to 

account and have (subject to criteria) the ability to call in decisions of the 
Cabinet. 

 
44. In March 2010 the Council agreed a 5 year Corporate Strategy (2010-2015) 

alongside an action plan for 2010-11.  The senior leadership team has 
collective ownership in ensuring that the Corporate Strategy and it’s supporting 
actions are monitored and delivered. 

 
45. The council has a performance monitoring system which provides up to date 

information as to how the council is performing against a number of 
performance measures and milestones including those set out in the corporate 
strategy and action plan. The use of this system was reviewed in 2010 and new 
more informative quarterly reports were presented to the Senior Leadership 
Team and overview and scrutiny committees.  

 
46. The council also prioritises expenditure based on need and provides scrutiny 

and Cabinet with quarterly budget monitoring reports.  The council has an 
appraisal process where all employees are set objectives for the coming year 
which meet the business plan priorities.   

 
47. The council approves the council’s standing orders, financial rules and scheme 

of delegation and these are periodically reviewed to ensure that they are still 
relevant and appropriate.  The staff and support services committee played an 
important role in reviewing the council’s constitution ensuring that changes are 
considered in greater detail ahead of their consideration by council.  The 
council has a risk management policy which was revised and approved by the 
audit committee in March 2011 and clearly identifies roles and responsibilities 
for both Members and staff.   

 
48. The senior leadership team is responsible for the management of Corporate 

risks. The corporate risk register which includes the risk, mitigating actions and 
responsible officers is updated and reported to them on a monthly basis. These 
risks are also reported to Economy and Business Improvement overview and 
scrutiny committee and the Cabinet. Divisional risks are the responsibility of 
Directors and individual service managers. Any divisional risk that has 
corporate implications and scores 16 or over is escalated to the senior 
leadership team for consideration.  

 
49. During 2009/10 the Council received a public interest report from its auditors in 

relation to the decision making process on a legal case.  The report was 
considered by the council including a number of recommendations; an action 

Page 16



 

plan was developed to address the issues raised. Progress reports on 
implementing the recommendations reported to Audit Committee throughout 
the year and published on the council’s website. 

 
50. The council has a whistle blowing policy which was revised in July 2010 and an 

anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy.  These documents are available on the 
council web site, and accessible to Members and employees from the intranet 
site.   

 
51. The Office of Surveillance Commissioners carried out an inspection of the 

council’s procedures for complying with the requirements of RIPA during April 
2010. The report made a number of recommendations which were addressed 
at the Economy and Business Improvement Overview & Scrutiny Committee in 
July 2010. Following the report processes were revised and all staff with the 
potential for becoming involved in surveillance or its management attended 
professional training. These powers were not used during 2010-11.  

  
52. The council has an Information Management Group that routinely reviewed 

information management and data protection procedures and processes. 
Internal auditors reviewed the Corporate Governance arrangements following 
the 2009/10 assurance check which led to a number of further improvements to 
the process and reporting protocols. 

 
53. The council’s budget is set annually and agreed by council. Monitoring reports 

are presented to Cabinet and an outturn report and annual statement of 
accounts is approved by the council.  

 
54. The council manages its budgets through cost centre managers who are 

responsible for the day to day management of their income and expenditure in 
line with financial rules.  The council reports how it intends to balance its budget 
when the council approves the budget proposals each February and reports 
progress in the quarterly Budget Monitoring Reports to Cabinet.   

 
Principle 5 - Developing the capacity and capability of Members and 
officers to be effective. 

 
55. There is a People and Organisational Development Strategy that sets out the 

council’s longer term aspirations for member and officer development, together 
with an annual action plan.  There is a member training programme, which is 
supported by both the human resources division and democratic services.  
Generic training needs for Members are identified in consultation with Members 
and group leaders.   All Members have personal learning accounts on the 
council’s Learning Gateway, to log training needs and record training 
undertaken.  

 
56. During the course of the year the council’s external auditors identified the need 

to review the way in which the council delivers training to its Members and this 
has resulted in a greater input from the human resources division, better usage 
of the council’s learning gateway system and proposals for supporting new 
Members following the election (e.g. “buddying” new Members with officers to 
help them orientate themselves into the council). A new on-line risk 
management training module for Members and staff has been developed which 
is available through the learning gateway. 

 
57. Officer training needs are identified through the appraisal process, and the 

Senior Leadership Team and service managers have recently completed a 

Page 17



 

senior leadership development programme, and are trialling use of the 
“balanced scorecard”. The council has adopted a coaching relationship for 
strategic directors, assistant directors, and service managers within the 
organisation.   

 
58. The council has adopted a programme and project management approach to 

its key change programmes and has released capacity for programme and 
project support.  This approach has enabled the better use of resources to 
focus on the key delivery issues. 

 
59. Following the May 2010 elections certain Members were appointed to represent 

the council on outside bodies i.e. companies, charities and unincorporated 
associations. The council’ constitution includes guidance to officers and 
Members who take an active part in these organisations.  This guidance was 
reviewed and updated to reflect best practice and changes to the CBC Code of 
Members’ Conduct.  The Guidance includes a checklist of issues that should be 
considered in the event of being nominated to an outside body. 

 
Principle 6 – Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure 
robust public accountability  
 

60. Council, Cabinet and committee meetings are open to the public with agendas 
and minutes being publicly available.  Members of the public are able to ask 
questions at such meetings.  The council has an adopted equality policy which 
recognises the need to engage with different sections of the community and 
has a community engagement strategy.   

 
61. The council has a complaints and comments system for members of the public.  

There is a three stage complaint system which gives divisions an opportunity to 
resolve a complaint at the first point of contact, but if a complainant is still 
unhappy they are entitled for the matter to be investigated on behalf of the chief 
executive.  Complainants may also refer matters to the local government 
ombudsman for investigation once they have been through the council’s 
complaint system.  

 
62. The council publishes a leaflet with its council tax demands which summarises 

performance and at the end of each financial year also publishes an annual 
report.   

 
63. In July 2010 the council agreed and published guidance and procedures for the 

way in which it deals with petitions from members of the public which may 
include a debate at council or the matter being considered by one of the 
overview and scrutiny committees. 

 
64. The government introduced a legal requirement for reporting remuneration of 

senior employees to increase transparency and accountability in local 
government.  They also made a commitment for all local authorities to publish 
data on its spending on goods and services over £500. The council published 
senior officer remuneration as part of its annual accounts and as of the 31st 
October in line with government guidelines. There are plans to include and 
publish information on contracts and tenders in the next 12 months which will 
be linked to the expenditure data. 

 
Delivery through third parties 

Page 18



 

65. The council delivers its housing management responsibilities through 
Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH) an arms length management organisation 
and wholly owned company of the council. CBH has its own internal control 
procedures and arrangements which are subject to internal and external audit 
as well as independent inspection. Annually, the Internal Audit Partnership 
review the procedures and policies and report on the adequacy of 
arrangements. The company policy is overseen by a board of directors which 
includes tenants and CBH also has an audit committee.  

 
66. A resources committee oversees CBH finances, manages HRA finances and 

reports to the board of directors. The board receives quarterly reports on 
performance. CBH has a service level agreement with the council and the 
management fee and level of service is agreed on an annual basis. Monthly 
monitoring meetings are held to discuss performance. Payroll and payments 
services are administered by CBC on behalf of CBH and the company shares 
the council’s financial ledger system. CBH completes an annual assurance 
certificate to confirm compliance with the agreed governance arrangements. 

 
67. The council is a shareholder of Gloucestershire Airport, which is a company 

limited by shares, and is subject to the requirements set by the companies act. 
There is a board of directors which monitors the company’s performance and is 
responsible for internal control activities. The airport has a commercial director 
and company secretary as well as an airport director. The statutory accounts 
are audited each year by a private firm of accountants, and presented to the 
board and to the shareholders, and are approved at the AGM in September.  
The council’s Director of Resources or designated representative receives 
regular management accounts for the airport, and either he or the strategic 
director attends the monthly airport programme board meetings. The company 
secretary completes an annual assurance certificate to confirm compliance with 
the agreed governance arrangements. 

 
Review of effectiveness  

 
68. Cheltenham Borough Council has responsibility under the local Government 

Act 2011 for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its 
governance framework, including the system of internal control and the 
arrangements for the management of risk. The review of effectiveness is 
informed by the work of the senior managers within the authority who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment, the audit partnership manager’s annual report, and also by 
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and 
inspectorates.   This year it also draws on the public interest report that it 
received from KPMG. 

 
69. The effectiveness of the governance framework draws on evidence from:  

 
- Internal and external audit and inspection  

 
- Statutory officers group  

 
- Financial controls  

 
- Risk and performance management  

 
- Assurance statements from each division  

 

Page 19



 

- Legal standards  
 

- Code of corporate governance  
 

70. The council approved the code of corporate governance and it has established 
a Corporate Governance Group which oversees the review of the effectiveness 
of the code of corporate governance and internal control.   All directors have to 
complete an annual statement of assurance which outlines the key control 
areas to which the division should comply.  

 
71. The Corporate Governance Group reviews the statements to identify common 

themes which need to be reflected in any action plan. Individual Directors are 
expected to take forward any specific control improvements within their own 
service plan.   These certificates along with evidence from other sources such 
as audit letters, internal audit reports, corporate controls and the code of 
corporate governance are reviewed by the Director of Resources, audit 
partnership manager and the policy officer governance who identify governance 
and control issues to be included in the annual governance significant issues 
action plan for the forthcoming year.   

 
72. The audit committee approves the Annual Governance Statement as part of the 

statement of accounts.  The audit committee are then responsible for 
monitoring progress against the actions taken, or proposed, to deal with 
significant governance issues. 

 
73. Although internal control procedures are the responsibility of officers, major 

service issues, budgets and risks are discussed with the relevant Cabinet 
member. There is also a Cabinet member who has responsibility within their 
portfolio for corporate governance, internal audit and risk. Regular briefings are 
held with the Cabinet member so that they are aware of any issues.  

 
 

Significant governance issues  
 

The Senior Leadership Team and the Audit Committee have been advised on the 
implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance framework, 
and an action plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the 
system is in place.  

 
Control issue  
and source 
April 2009-10 

Action  Lead officer  

The new management structure, 
partnership working and 
recommendations from the PIR 
necessitate a revision of the 
Constitution and Financial Rules 

Review ongoing to be reported to 
Council during 2011 

Monitoring 
officer 
 
Director of 
Finance 

Page 20



 

Control issue  
and source 
April 2009-10 

Action  Lead officer  

Planned constitutional and 
Financial rule changes and the 
restructuring of the Senior 
Leadership Team necessitate  a 
review of the Annual Assurance 
process to ensure that it remains 
effective 

Provide a report to SLT by 
September 2011 the proposals 
for the annual assurance review 
for 2011-12 

Director 
Resources 

The current audit of payroll 
highlights that controls could be 
put at risk due to anticipated 
short term resource constraints in 
the payroll team.  
Audit Assurance report 
carried forward from 2010-11 
SIAP 

Payroll resilience is being 
addressed through temporary 
recruitment of expertises as 
required. In addition the GO 
partnership project will address 
resilience issues in the longer 
term. 

Director People 
OD and Change 

The Business Continuity Group 
identified the need for a robust 
test of back-up ICT systems  
 

Upgrade back up systems and 
install new equipment to migrate 
the key business systems.  A 
series of assurance tests are 
planned to take place between 
July and September 2011 

Graham Lewis 
Strategic 
Director 

CBC needs to comply with the 
general equality duty to meet 
new obligations being placed on 
all public sector organisations 
under the Equality Act 2010 and 
ensure that current processes 
are embedded within the 
organisation 

Review and refresh the Equality 
and Diversity processes and the 
Project Initiation Document 
template  

Director of 
Commissioning 
 

Some routine audits have 
identified examples of non 
adherence to the financial rule 
requiring monthly reconciliations 
of systems to the main finance 
system. 
 

In consultation with GO partners, 
review the financial rules to 
determine a whether a more 
appropriate level and frequency 
of reconciliation should be 
considered.  
Review processes undertaken by 
service managers and within the 
future GO shared services. 
 
Target September 2011.  
 

Director 
Resources 

 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the 
need for improvements which were identified in our review of effectiveness, and will 
monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.  
 
Signed: On behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council 

 Chief Executive 
 
 
……………………………………. 
Andrew North 

 

Leader of Council  
 

 
………..................……………… 
Councillor Steve Jordan 

Page 21



Page 22
This page is intentionally left blank



   
$pk1241m0.doc Page 1 of 3 Last updated 13 June 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Audit Committee – 22 June 2011  

The Bribery Act 2010 
 

Accountable member Cabinet Member Corporate Services , Councillor Colin Hay 
Accountable officer Mark Sheldon, Director of Resources 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy and Business Improvement (E&BI) 

Ward(s) affected None 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary The Bribery Act 2010 comes into force 1st July 2011 the main purpose of 

which is to prevent bribery and corruption by commercial organisations.  
Recommendations That the Audit Committee take account of the changes effected by the 

Bribery Act 2010 and the proposals to review and update any 
necessary changes to the Council’s procurement procedures, anti-fraud 
and anti-corruption documents. 

 
Financial implications None arising out of this report 

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon 
Email mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
Tel no;  01242 264123 

Legal implications As contained in the report 
Contact officer: Martin Aylett 
martin.aylett@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel; 01684 295010  

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

Para 3.4 outlines the main HR implications. Employment policy and 
guidance will be reviewed where required, however there are measures in 
place, for example the Code of Conduct has been recently reviewed and 
refreshed and awareness planned. The Council also has an annual 
declaration of interest procedure in place for employees.    
Contact officer: Amanda Attfield   
Email: amanda.attfield@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel. no; 01242 264186 

Agenda Item 6
Page 23



   
$pk1241m0.doc Page 2 of 3 Last updated 13 June 2011 
 

Key risks If the council does not have adequate procedures to prevent bribery and 
corruption then it could lead to ill-informed decisions, increased costs and 
the loss of reputation.   

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The effective prevention and detection of bribery and corruption helps 
protect resources allocated for the councils corporate and community 
objectives. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

There are no specific environmental or climate change implications arising 
from the report. 

 
1. Background 

1.1 The Bribery Act 2010, which overhauls the anti-corruption laws, will come into force 1st July 
2011. It is mainly aimed at commercial organisations but there are some implications for local 
authorities. 

1.2 Councils will be expected to demonstrate they have implemented “adequate procedures” in 
order to prevent bribery. The Ministry of Justice has just published guidance on what steps can 
be taken by organisations to show that they have “adequate procedures” in place. These steps 
include: 

- Carrying out risk assessments to identify and prioritise the risks faced by the organisation  
- Implementing policies to mitigate the risk of bribery  
- Reviewing arrangements with contractors and sub-contractors to ensure that they reflect a 
commitment to anti-bribery measures  

- Communicating anti-bribery policy and procedure across the organisation and arranging 
anti-bribery training, where necessary. 

 

2. What is the the Bribery Act 2010 
2.1 The Bribery Act applies in England and Wales and simplifies the existing law on bribery, 

enabling the courts to deal with it more effectively. 
2.2 The Act creates offences of, amongst others, bribing another person/company/public body or 

accepting a bribe in return for giving an advantage to the briber.  
2.3 Of particular interest to the Council, however, is the offence under section 2 in which a person 

“requests, agrees to receive or accepts” an advantage of some kind in return for improperly 
performing, or allowing the improper performance of, a “function or activity” where that 
function/activity is ether of a public nature or done in the course of a business. 

2.4 In the local authority context, a function or activity will be a “relevant function or activity” for the 
purposes of the Act if it is of a public nature and a person performing it is expected either (a) to 
perform it in good faith, (b) to perform it impartially or (c) the person is in a position of trust by 
virtue of performing it. If the function/activity is caught under one of these tests, then the Act 
states that it will be “improperly performed” if there is a breach of a “relevant expectation”. This 
“expectation” is itself an objective test of what a reasonable person would expect in relation to 
the function/activity. 

2.5 The Act makes it clear that if the bribery offence is committed with the consent/connivance of a 
senior officer of the local authority, then that person is also personally guilty of an offence.  

2.6 Penalties under the Act include fines and/or imprisonment for up to ten years.  
 

Page 24



   
$pk1241m0.doc Page 3 of 3 Last updated 13 June 2011 
 

3. What are the implications for the council? 
3.1 The Council could therefore be guilty of bribery if, for example, it agrees to “fix” a procurement 

evaluation process in the briber’s favour in return for some advantage. It would also be possible 
for the Council to be guilty of bribing a supplier if it offers some sort of advantage to a supplier in 
return for the supplier agreeing to improperly perform an activity connected with the running of 
its business (e.g. bribing the supplier to submit a lower-priced bid than it would otherwise have 
done). 

3.2 The Office of the Government Commerce is likely to publish updated standard clauses on the 
prevention of corruption, which take into account the Act’s provisions and which we will need to 
consider including in our contracts. It will also be necessary to address in our contracts the 
consequences of a supplier being found guilty of a Bribery Act offence. For example, the 
prosecution of a major supplier for negligent failure to prevent bribery is likely to be 
embarrassing to the Council, which may wish to have the option of immediately terminating the 
contract in these circumstances. 

3.3 It establishes among its key provisions distinct general criminal offences for those “offering” and 
those “accepting” bribes.  There is guidance to relevant commercial organisations on a defence 
of having “adequate procedures in place designed to prevent” bribery and there is broad 
agreement that in order to qualify for the defence the Council must be able to demonstrate that 
its procedures work in practice. 

3.4 Policies will need to be reviewed and training needs documented, records of auditing and 
assurance measures will be required, gift and external interests registers must be kept and a 
zero tolerance to bribery and corruption policy publicised both internally and externally to identify 
but a few of the recommended steps. 

3.5 During 2011 officers will be reviewing a number of their policies and procedures as well as 
providing a summery of the Bribery Act and its implications to members and staff through the 
councils intranet. 

4. Reasons for recommendations 
4.1 Audit Committee need to be aware of the new legislation, its effect on the administration of the 

council’s business and what is being done to ensure that there are adequate procedures in place 
to prevent bribery. 

5. Alternative options considered 
5.1 None 
6. Consultation and feedback 
6.1 None 
7. Performance management –monitoring and review 
7.1 None 

Report author Contact officer: Bryan Parsons Policy officer - Governance 
Email; bryan.parsons@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
Tel; 01242 264123 

Appendices None  
 

Page 25



Page 26
This page is intentionally left blank



   
$tj3n5pvj.doc Page 1 of 3 Last updated 13 June 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Audit Committee – 22 June 2011 

Annual Audit Opinion 2010/11 
 

Accountable member Corporate Services - Cllr Colin Hay  
Accountable officer Audit Partnership Manager - Robert Milford  
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy and Business Improvement Overview and Scrutiny 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary The council must ensure that it has sound systems of internal control which 

facilitate the effective management of all the council’s functions.  The work 
undertaken by Audit Cotswolds, the council’s internal audit service, is one of 
the control assurance sources available to the audit committee, the senior 
leadership team and supports the work of the external auditor.  The work is 
also a key component of the council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS), 
which forms part of the statutory accounting statements.  The attached Annual 
Internal Audit Report 2010/11 provides; 

• An overview of the operational arrangements which support the 
continued delivery of an effective internal audit function, 

• A summary of the work undertaken during the year, 
• My internal control opinion for the year, which is primarily based 

on the work of the Section but also considers other control 
assurance sources. 

The Annual Audit Opinion 2010/11 is attachment A 
Recommendations That the Audit Committee accepts the Annual Audit Opinion for 

2010/11 
 
Financial implications  None arising directly from this report. 

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon 
E-mail: mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264123 

Legal implications There are no Legal issues arising directly from this report.  
Contact officer:   Peter Lewis 
E-mail: peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no:  
Main Office, Mon, Wed & Fri 
01684 27 2012 
Branch Office, Tues & Thurs 
01242 26 4216 

Agenda Item 7
Page 27



   
$tj3n5pvj.doc Page 2 of 3 Last updated 13 June 2011 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR issues arising directly from this report.  
Contact officer: Amanda Attfield 
E-mail: amanda.attfield@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264186 

Key risks The delivery of an effective internal audit is a statutory requirement (Audit 
& Accounts Regulations 2011).  The work supports the development and 
maintenance of an appropriate control environment, which is a key factor 
in the effective management of risk.  There are no direct risks in relation to 
this report 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

 The Internal Audit activity helps the Council to achieve its objectives by 
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The Internal Audit service is an independent, objective assurance and 
consulting activity designed to add value and imp-rove the Councils 
operations. 

1. Background 
1.1 Members need to be confident that internal audit activity, along with other assessment processes 

like risk and performance management, helps to ensure that appropriate levels of assurance on 
the overall control environment operate within the council. 

 
1.2 It has always been good practice to produce an Annual Report and Opinion Statement; this is 

now incorporated as part of the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government.  The 
development of the AGS as part of the Annual Statement of Accounts has also increased the 
focus on Internal Audit as a key provider of evidence in respect of the statement and its 
associated action plan.  This report and opinion has been considered as part of the AGS process, 
which follows good practice guidance. 

 
2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 This report summarises the main findings arising from our internal audit work completed within the 

year to 31 March 2011.  The purpose of the report is to support the Statutory Officers and the Audit 
Committee in the delivery and monitoring respectively of effective corporate governance 
arrangements. The report is one element of a wider governance assurance framework and meets 
the annual reporting requirements set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government in the United Kingdom 2006.  The Code advises at paragraph 10.4.2 that the report 
should:  

a) Include an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s control 
environment;  

b) Disclose any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for the qualification;  
c) Present a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, including reliance 
placed on work by other assurance bodies;  

d) Draw attention to any issues the Head of Internal Audit judges particularly relevant to the 
preparation of the Statement on Internal Control*;    

e) Compare the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned and summarise the 
performance of the Internal Audit function against its performance measures and criteria; and  

f) Comment on compliance with these standards and communicate the results of the Internal 
Audit quality assurance programme.   
 

Page 28



   
$tj3n5pvj.doc Page 3 of 3 Last updated 13 June 2011 
 

2.2 The Code of practice also states at paragraph 10.4.1 that:  
 
“The Head of Internal Audit must provide a written report to those charged with governance timed to 
support the Statement on Internal Control*” 

 
Therefore in setting out how it meets the reporting requirements, this report also outlines how the Internal 
Audit function has supported the Council in meeting the requirements of Regulation 4 the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011.  These state that: 

 
“The relevant body is responsible for ensuring that the financial management of the body is adequate 
and effective and that the body has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 
exercise of that body’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.” 
 
“The relevant body must conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control.” 
 

3. The Annual Internal Audit Report 2010/11 (Appendix 1) 
3.1 The Annual Internal Audit Report is attached; it covers the areas outlined in the code of practice 

for annual reporting.  The report touches on aspects of the service and its delivery. It is important 
to note that the internal audit service has been delivered by Audit Cotswolds since November 
2010.  

3.2 The report gives an opinion statement on the control environment which forms part of the 
evidence considered when developing the Council’s AGS.  My opinion in respect of the control 
arrangements for the year 2010/11, based on the activities and systems examined and other 
assessment evidence, is ‘satisfactory’ assurance (the four opinion options being High, 
satisfactory, limited or low assurance). 

3.3 The report comments on the annual review of the effectiveness of internal audit which for 2010/11 
was based on a self assessment against the CIPFA Code of Practice and Audit Partnership Board 
appraisal.  A more in-depth assessment will take place in 2011/12 as part of the consolidation work 
with the three-way partnership.   

4. Changes in the Internal Audit Service 
4.1 The past year has seen the establishment of a new three way partnership between West Oxfordshire, 

Cheltenham and Cotswold Internal Audit Services. This expanded partnership has been operational 
since 1st November 2010 and has seen further improvement in service resilience and knowledge 
base. The service will be looking to consolidate and develop this three way partnership through 
2011/12. This will include further development of programme assurance provision and methodologies 
for the commissioning approach that Cheltenham BC has adopted. This will ensure a sustainable, 
high quality service will continue to be delivered for the Council. 

 

Report author Contact officer:   Robert Milford – 01242 264115 
robert.milford@cheltenham.gov. 

Appendices 1. Annual Audit Opinion 2010/11 
Background information  
 
 

Page 29



Page 30
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Page 1 of 10 

 
 
 
 
 

Audit Cotswolds 

    
‘Working in partnership for a sustainable, high quality service’ 

 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 
Cheltenham Borough Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Audit Opinion 2010/11 
 
 
 

Page 31



Appendix A 

Page 2 of 10 

Introduction 
 
In November 2010 West Oxfordshire District Council joined the Internal Audit partnership that already existed 
between Cotswold District Council and Cheltenham Borough Council. This partnership is now known as ‘Audit 
Cotswolds’ and provides the internal audit services for the Council.  This service is required by statute.  A 
significant part of the modern role of the service is the provision of a broad control evaluation function, by 
either offering or supporting control assurances gained through activities like risk management, performance 
management, complaints systems and external inspection. 
 
Good practice guidance suggests that the Internal Audit Annual Report should include the key areas of; 
• An opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment, 
• A summary of the work from which the opinion is derived, 
• Comment on compliance with the Code of Practice for Internal Audit, 
• A summary of service performance against its performance measures, 
• Detail the internal audit quality assurance process and results. 

This report makes comment on each of these and a number of other matters. 
 
Responsibilities 
 
It is a management responsibility to develop and maintain the internal control framework and to ensure 
compliance with it.  The Audit Committee is responsible for obtaining assurance in respect of the control 
environment operating, part of which comes from the work and opinion of internal audit. 
 
Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment 
 
This Annual Report gives my opinion as the Head of Internal Audit and therefore the officer responsible for 
the delivery of the internal audit function, which includes assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of internal 
control within Cheltenham Borough Council.  My opinion is based on the adequacy of control, noted from a 
selection of risk-based audits carried out during the year and, other advice work on control systems including 
the proactive work of the service as it supports the control arrangements within change projects.  The results 
of any external inspections also inform the opinion. 
 
Throughout the year we have measured the degree of control assurance within the systems or elements of 
systems we have audited or supported by way of control advice.  Overall, it is my opinion that a satisfactory 
assurance level can be given for the controls in place, within the areas where audit activity has taken place, 
to safeguard these systems which in turn support the delivery of the Council’s overall business objectives. 
 
Where operational control issues were raised, these are subject to agreed action plans that mitigate risk or 
the auditors control advice is incorporated within the risk management arrangements for projects and system 
development or change. 
 
A formal opinion statement is included in Appendix A. 
 
The Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
 
The opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the control environment forms part of the evidence supporting the 
Council’s Annual Governance Statement.  The primary basis for this opinion, the work undertaken during the 
year, is detailed within Appendix A.  There are no matters arising from the work during the year that are 
deemed a significant corporate control weakness, apart from the Council’s Payroll system, Enforcement 
Team and Business Continutity.  In these areas, the risks associated with the control issues raised in the 
audit reports are being actively managed by the responsible Service Heads. 
 
Compliance with the Internal Audit Code of Practice 
 
As well as offering an opinion based on the work undertaken during the year, the Annual Report should also 
provide the Senior Management and the Audit Committee with assurance that the internal audit service 
complies with professional internal auditing standards.  
 
It is a requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations that Local Authorities undertake an annual review of 
the effectiveness of its internal audit provision.   

Page 32



Appendix A 

Page 3 of 10 

 
This year due to the implementation of the expanded Audit Partnership occurring midway through the 
financial year, to which this report relates, it was deemed appropriate to rely on two assessment aspects. The 
first was a self assessment reported to Audit Committee in June 2010.  The conclusion of the self assessment 
was that the Code of Practice is being met in all significant areas. The second assessment was conducted by 
the Audit Partnership Board on the 6th May 2011. Positive feedback from the Audit Partnership Board 
identified that they were satisfied with the work delivered to date. A full review against the CIPFA Code will be 
conducted in 2011/12.  
 
Quality Assurance Arrangements and Performance 
 
There is a two stage review process to ensure the quality of the service. The first stage has been briefly 
mentioned above and is in the form of the APB. The APB operates under a Terms of Reference that was 
approved by the Audit Committee on the 30th September 2009. The Terms of Reference clearly identify under 
the section ‘Responsibility’ that there is a requirement for the Partnership Board to monitor performance and 
effectiveness. On the 6th May 2011 the Partnership Board informed the Audit Partnership Manager that they 
were satisfied with the performance of the partnership to date through a formal appraisal. 
 
The second stage relates to specific audit review work. There is a robust quality assurance process is in place 
for all audit review work that includes the following: 
 
• The Audit Partnership Manager is responsible for: 

o Developing an annual risk based plan in consultation with senior management 
o Ensure that the plan remains relevant through the year by realigning to new and emerging 

risks if necessary 
o Escalation of significant audit issues to the appropriate level to ensure risks are appropriately 

mitigated in line with management’s risk appetite 
o Provision of training to audit staff to ensure continual professional development requirements 

are delivered and any specialist areas identified in the plan can be resourced e.g. 
environmental auditing. 

• Principal Auditors within the team are tasked with: 
o Conducting periodic meetings with the auditor during site work, 
o Review and approval of the draft report, 
o Review and assessment of the working file, 
o Agreement of the ‘points forward’, the issues for consideration at next audit review or for the 

next audit plan 
 
Further quality assurance is provided through the use of formal appraisal schemes and other staff based 
codes and programmes.   
 
Effectiveness of Internal Audit 
 
Although the above sections of this report outline compliance with national standards there is no national 
measurement of effectiveness.  Indications are that we provide an effective service, actual measurements 
and evidence is provided through locally driven feedback and comparison through membership of the CIPFA 
benchmarking group, and that management are proactive in audit planning and responsive to 
recommendations and advice.  Although we have an Audit Charter and work to an approved annual plan, 
there is no directing audit strategy at this stage as the service is still embedding the partnership, with the main 
drivers coming from the business case objectives.  However, the Audit Charter and the Annual Plan 
demonstrates what the Council wishes from its internal audit service, for example the relationship or balance 
between financial, governance, and operational assurance, consultancy type work, value for money activity 
and counter fraud work.  The underlying principles in relation to service delivery models and the ‘internal’ 
aspects of an internal audit service remain critical factors now that the service is delivered by a partnership. 
 
The expansion of the audit partnership, and the restructure of the Senior Leadership Team, has resulted in 
the Audit Partnership Manager becoming the Head of Internal Audit for Cheltenham BC. This was originally a 
role delivered by the, as was, Assistant Chief Executive. This has enhanced the independence of Internal 
Audit and enables the Council to comply with CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit (2006) and adopt the 
CIPFA standards for the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010) 
 

Page 33



Appendix A 

Page 4 of 10 

Developing the Internal Audit planning process 
 
The Audit Plan for 2010/11 was developed using a risk based process.  In accordance with professional best 
practice there has been an increasing link between audit activity and the Council’s risk management process 
and several reviews were undertaken on areas identified in risk registers.  Although the audit plan approved 
at the start of the year is the basis for the year’s activities the service needs to be responsive to emerging 
risks.  Examples in 2010/11 of unplanned work include a review of the Enforcement Team.  
 
Resourcing 
 
The service is now delivered by Audit Cotswolds. This partnership has enhanced the resilience and skills 
base of the service. The service through 2010/11 was delivered by a team with the following professional 
institute backgrounds: 
• Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)  
• Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA)  
• Chartered Management Institute (CMI)  
• Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA)  
• Institute of Management Services (IMS)  
• Institute of Accounting Technicians (AAT)  

 
Furthermore there is now a considerable amount of internal audit experience available, many of these gained 
at senior management level and drawn from both the public and private sectors.  In addition to the 
experienced team a new Internal Auditor with an ICT specailism was recruited to the partnership, further 
enhancing the sustainability of the service and covering a specialised auditing role. This post will help to 
provide the Audit Committee with assurance over the ICT systems at the Council, noting that Cheltenham BC 
is hosting the ICT solution for the GO Programme. 
 
A supportive network has developed in recent years between the Internal Audit Sections across the 
Gloucestershire Districts and opportunities for sharing of resource to undertake audit reviews common to 
each District Council has been explored further during the year. We have provided audit resource to the GO 
Programme (an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system for four district authorities and Cheltenham 
Borough Homes Ltd) on behalf of all districts.  We have continued to develop relations with colleagues at the 
Gloucestershire Chief Internal Auditor Group which now includes representation from West Oxfordshire DC. 
 
There is an agreement with the Chief Finance Officer that funding will be made available to engage ‘specialist’ 
audit or ‘professional’ skills should an audit activity demand this, which supports the Code of Practice which 
requires access to such skills if needed. 
 
Training undertaken during the year 
 
Audit work demands a sound understanding of all sectors of the organisation, of professional standards, of 
developing and emerging trends, and of issues both with the profession (including professional requirements 
for continuing professional development (CPD)) and local government for the services provided to the 
Council.  During the year the following training was undertaken: 
 
• Continuing professional development – CIPFA audit training seminars 
• IIA professional update sessions and attendance at the South West region conference 
• Attendance at the CIPFA annual audit conference  
• Two members of the team are on the ‘MSc Audit Management and Consultancy’ which embodies the 

Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors professional qualification. 
 
Looking forward 
 
The past year has seen the establishment of a new three way partnership between West Oxfordshire, 
Cheltenham and Cotswold Internal Audit Services. This expanded partnership has been operational since 1st 
November 2010 and has seen further improvement in service resilience and knowledge base. The service will 
be looking to consolidate and develop this three way partnership through 2011/12. This will include further 
development of programme assurance provision and methodologies for the commissioning approach that 
Cheltenham BC has adopted. This will ensure a sustainable, high quality service will continue to be delivered 
for the Council.  

Page 34



Appendix A 

Page 5 of 10 

 
Conclusion 
 
During the year, Audit Cotswolds delivered a programme of work and responded to emerging issues.  The 
service continues to make a valuable contribution to an improving control environment and culture within the 
Council. 
 
The work, support and advice provided by Audit Cotswolds will be key in relation to the controls and their 
effectiveness in the management of risk as the Council seeks to; meet efficiency targets, reduce its budget, 
review its methods and approach to service delivery levels, embraces new challenges, increase partnership 
working and engages the shared services agenda. 
 
Acknowledgement 

 
We would like to take this opportunity to formally record our thanks for the cooperation and support we have 
received from Members, management and staff during the year. 
 
 
Robert Milford DMS MA PGDip CMIIA MCMI AMS 
 
Audit Partnership Manager & Head of Internal Audit 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council 
 

Page 35



Appendix A 

Page 6 of 10 

 
Appendix A 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
 

Audit Partnership Manager & Head of Internal Audit 
 

Opinion on the effectiveness of the system of Internal Control for the year ended 31 
March 2011 

 
 
Roles and responsibilities 
 
The whole Council is collectively accountable for maintaining a sound system of internal control and is 
responsible for putting in place arrangements for gaining assurance about the effectiveness of that overall 
system. 
 
The Annual Governance Statement (AGS), is an annual statement from the Chief Executive and the Leader 
of the Council, on behalf of the Council, setting out the governance control environment, the review of its 
effectiveness, the control issues and the actions planned to further improve the control environment. 
 
The Council’s control assurance framework should bring together all of the evidence required to support the 
Annual Assurance Statement requirements. 
 
In accordance with CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government, the Head of Internal Audit 
is required to provide an annual opinion, based upon, and limited to, the work performed, on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s control arrangements.  This is achieved through a risk-
based programme of activities, agreed with management and approved by the Audit Committee, which should 
provide a level of assurance across a range of Council activities.  The opinion does not imply that the internal 
audit service has reviewed all risks and controls relating to the Council or the systems it reviews. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
 
The purpose of my annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion is to contribute to the assurances available to the 
Chief Executive and the Council which underpin the Council’s own assessment of the effectiveness of the 
authority’s system of internal control.  This opinion is one component that the Council must take into account 
when completing its Annual Assurance Statement.  
 
My opinion is set out as follows: 
 

1. Overall opinion; 
2. Basis for the opinion; 
3. Commentary. 

 
My overall opinion is that  

 
Satisfactory assurance can be given that there is a generally sound system of internal control, designed 
to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are generally being applied consistently.  Some 
weakness in the design and/or inconsistent application of controls have been identified, recommendations 
made and improvement plans agreed. 

 
The basis for forming my opinion is as follows: 
 

1. An awareness of the design and operation of the processes which underpin the overall control 
framework, and 

 
2. An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from risk-based internal audit assignments, 

contained within internal audit’s risk-based plan that have been reported throughout the year. This 
assessment has taken account of the relative materiality of these areas and management’s progress 
in respect of addressing control weaknesses. 

Page 36



Appendix A 

Page 7 of 10 

 
Additional areas of work that support my opinion; 

 
3. The outcome of other external inspections of internal control systems throughout the year, for 

example the Public Interest Report and the ICT Audit Report provided by KPMG. 
 
The commentary below provides the context for my opinion. 
 
The range of individual opinions arising from risk-based audit assignments, contained within the annual plan 
that have been reported throughout the year. 
 
A table of internal audit work in 2010/11 is detailed in Appendix (i) 
 
The control environment within key financial systems is satisfactory and this assessment is consistent with the 
findings of the External Auditors for a number of years.  There is still scope to improve the arrangements for 
some of the key governance activities examined and these are being actively progressed both through the 
transition to new management arrangements, which is supported by agreed action plans, following internal 
audit reviews.   
 
There were three areas where a ‘Limited Assurance’ opinion was deemed appropriate.    
 
The Payroll system and supporting ICT application were both reviewed in 2009-10. The results of both 
aspects resulted in a ‘Limited Assurance’ opinion. The reviews had looked to the GO Programme and HR 
shared service with Tewkesbury Borough Council to resolve key elements of weakness in the systems. 
However, the shared service with Tewkesbury HR did not proceed and the GO Programme will not be in 
place until April 2012. The payroll resilience issue is being addressed by management but due to the issues 
indentified it has been raised in the Annual Governance Statement process. This is a routine audit area and 
as such will be reviewed again in 2011/12, although ongoing monitoring through the GO Programme will be 
undertaken. 
 
Street Scene Enforcement - We have undertaken a review of Management Controls and Performance 
Effectiveness of the Enforcement Team as requested by the Head of Public Protection.  The exact scope was 
agreed over several meetings as we gained more information about problems and departmental concerns 
that they have encountered. The aim of the function has been a success i.e. bringing so many service 
delivery responsibilities together under one enforcement group is good and some positive feedback has been 
received.  However, an effective control environment was not established early on to control its operations.      
The controls were not in place to make it clear what is expected from the team, in respect of role 
responsibilities and quality of service delivery demanded.  The management control over effective and 
efficient operations, including mileage expense claims, has been generally weak.   Significant improvements 
have recently been made and/or are still to be actioned.   
 
The final area was in relation to ‘Health Check’ audits requested by management. The Health Check is a 
reduced audit designed to test elements of a system within a confined scope. The Health Check reviews 
identified that Business Continuity Plans still required full testing and as such Internal Audit is now actively 
monitoring this area. This is being assessed through two elements firstly through Internal Audit assessments 
of: 1) desk-top testing being undertaken (this did occur in 2010/11) and 2) the full testing element planned for 
later in 2011 prior to the GO ERP system going ‘live’.  
 
Other significant audit activity includes the survey of Risk Management. In November 2009 a review of the 
Risk Management framework at Cheltenham commenced. This review was used to assess the organisation 
against the CIIA scale of maturity [Naïve � Aware � Defined � Managed � Enabled]. This review resulted 
in the initiation of a Senior Leadership Team (SLT) sponsored assessment across the organisation of the 
general awareness of the systems in place in the Council. This work was reinforced, in part, by the Public 
Interest Report published in March 2010 by KPMG (the Council’s external auditors). The results of this survey 
were reported to Audit Committee in September 2010. 
 
In 2010/11 audit monitoring reports were introduced to the Audit Committee. These reports provided details of 
audit activity quarterly through the year. Within these reports details of all full audit reports were provided for 
Audit Committee comment.   
 

Page 37



Appendix A 

Page 8 of 10 

For the some areas identified in the table below no formal assessment in relation to control activity is made, 
but the general observation and advice given as part of this work feeds into my assessment of the overall 
control environment.  Our observations and the acceptance of advice has, I feel, further enhanced the control 
environment. 
 
The assessments reported from other inspection processes  
 
In formulating our overall opinion on internal control, Internal Audit were aware of the work undertaken by 
other sources of assurance, their findings and their conclusions:  
 
• External Audit (KPMG) - various reviews including the Annual Audit Letter 
• External Audit (KPMG) – the Public Interest Report 

 
Other assessments considered 
 
The Certificates of Assurance (control self assessments by management) 
The other control assurance statements and supporting evidence which are considered in the completion of 
the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
 
 
Robert Milford DMS MA PGDip CMIIA MCMI AMS 
 
Audit Partnership Manager & Head of Internal Audit 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council 

Page 38



Appendix A 

Page 9 of 10 

Appendix (i) 
Table of internal audit work in 2010/11 
 
    
AUDIT ACTIVITY / REVIEW AREAS & ASSURANCE LEVELS    
     
The table below provides a summary of the internal audit service activities and assurances gained.    
     

 Audit Activity 
Assurance 
Opinion (if 
relevant) Status Type 

1 Community Investment Grants Satisfactory Final Assurance 
2 Environmental and Sustainability Management Satisfactory Final Assurance 
3 Enforcement Team Review Limited Final Assurance 
4 Procurement Satisfactory Final Assurance 
5 Equal Pay Claims  Deferred  
6 Everyman Theatre   Assurance 
7 Cemetery & Crematorium Satisfactory Final Assurance 
8 Waste collection & recycling   Assurance 
9 Car Parks - follow-up Satisfactory Final Assurance 
10 KPMG Public Interest Report Follow-up Satisfactory Final Assurance 
11 Asset Management  Satisfactory Final Assurance 
12 Civic Pride (Now - Cheltenham Development Task Force) N/A Ongoing Consultancy 
13 Depot Rationalisation N/A Final Assurance 
14 Resource management / capacity (Portfolio Management Project) N/A Ongoing Consultancy 
15 Leisure @ - follow-up N/A  Assurance 
16 Review of CBC to CBH  Deferred  
17 Commissioning N/A Ongoing Consultancy 
18 Gardens Gallery (Health Check) N/A Final Assurance 
19 Building Control shared service  Ongoing Assurance 
20 GO programme assurance (Gateway Reviews) N/A Ongoing Assurance 
21 Human Resources - CBC lead   Cancelled 
22 ICT - review/evaluation of the bid for hosting the GO Programme N/A Final Assurance 
23 Revenues & Benefits inc systems thinking N/A  Consultancy 
24 Customer Services inc TIC/AG&M  Deferred  
25 Petty cash reviews  Deferred  
26 Fraud response plans N/A Final Consultancy 
27 GO Programme Consultancy N/A Ongoing Consultancy 
28 Payroll Limited Final Assurance 
29 General Ledger High Final Assurance 
30 Budgetary Control High Final Assurance 
31 Capital Accounting High Final Assurance 
32 Treasury Management High Final Assurance 
33 IFRS (Health Check) N/A Final Assurance 
34 Creditors Satisfactory Draft Assurance 
35 Benefits Satisfactory Final Assurance 
36 Council Tax High Final Assurance 
37 NNDR High Final Assurance 
38 Sundry Debtors Satisfactory Final Assurance 
39 Cash Receipting Satisfactory Final Assurance 
40 Bank Reconciliation High Final Assurance 
41 AGS review N/A Final Assurance 
42 Performance Management inc data quality Satisfactory Final Assurance 
43 Risk Management - survey N/A Final Assurance 

Page 39



Appendix A 

Page 10 of 10 

44 Governance - Compliance - note new management structures    
45 Change Programme(s) N/A Ongoing Consultancy 
46 Business Continuity Management (Health Check) Limited Final Assurance 
47 Investigations N/A Final  
48 Corporate Governance Group N/A Ongoing Consultancy 
49 Town Hall Box Office Satisfactory Final Assurance 
     
 
 
   
 
End. 

Page 40



In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 
20

10
/1

1

C
h

el
te

n
h

am
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
ci

l

Ju
n

e 
20

11

Agenda Item 8
Page 41



1
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

T
h

e 
co

n
ta

ct
s 

at
 K

P
M

G
 

in
 c

o
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 th
is

 

re
p

o
rt

 a
re

:

Ia
n

 P
en

n
in

g
to

n

D
ire

ct
or

K
P

M
G

 L
LP

 (
U

K
)

T
el

:
02

9 
20

46
 8

08
7

ia
n.

pe
nn

in
gt

on
@

kp
m

g.
co

.u
k

R
ac

h
ae

l T
o

n
ki

n

M
an

ag
er

K
P

M
G

 L
LP

 (
U

K
)

T
el

:
01

17
90

5 
46

54
 

ra
ch

ae
l.t

on
ki

n@
kp

m
g.

co
.u

k

M
eg

an
 L

u
m

sd
ai

n
e

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 M

an
ag

er

K
P

M
G

 L
LP

 (
U

K
)

T
el

:
01

17
 9

05
 4

26
6

m
eg

an
.lu

m
sd

ai
ne

@
kp

m
g.

co
.u

k

P
ag

e

R
ep

o
rt

 s
ec

ti
o

n
s

!
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n
2

!
H

ea
dl

in
es

3

!
F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

4

!
V

F
M

co
nc

lu
si

on
12

!
P

ub
lic

 In
te

re
st

 R
ep

or
t

13

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es

1.
K

ey
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

2.
F

ol
lo

w
-u

p 
of

 p
rio

r 
ye

ar
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns

14 16

T
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 i

s 
ad

d
re

ss
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
an

d
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 f

o
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l. 

W
e 

ta
ke

 n
o

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 a

n
y 

m
em

b
er

 o
f 

st
af

f 
ac

ti
n

g
 i

n
 t

h
ei

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
 

ca
p

ac
it

ie
s,

 o
r 

to
 t

h
ir

d
 p

ar
ti

es
. 

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 h

as
 is

su
ed

 a
 d

o
cu

m
en

t 
en

ti
tl

ed
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it

ed
 B

o
d

ie
s.

 T
h

is
 s

u
m

m
ar

is
es

 
w

h
er

e 
th

e 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

au
d

it
o

rs
 b

eg
in

 a
n

d
 e

n
d

 a
n

d
 w

h
at

 i
s 

ex
p

ec
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

ed
 b

o
d

y.
 W

e 
d

ra
w

 y
o

u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

is
 d

o
cu

m
en

t 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
av

ai
la

b
le

 o
n

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 w

eb
si

te
 a

t 
w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
.g

o
v.

u
k.

E
xt

er
n

al
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
 d

o
 n

o
t 

ac
t 

as
 a

 s
u

b
st

it
u

te
 f

o
r 

th
e 

au
d

it
ed

 b
o

d
y’

s 
o

w
n

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

p
u

tt
in

g
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 p
u

b
lic

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

is
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
ed

 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

la
w

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

er
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s,

 a
n

d
 t

h
at

 p
u

b
lic

 m
o

n
ey

 i
s 

sa
fe

g
u

ar
d

ed
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
er

ly
 a

cc
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r,
 a

n
d

 u
se

d
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
al

ly
, 

ef
fi

ci
en

tl
y 

an
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ly

.

If
 y

o
u

 h
av

e 
an

y 
co

n
ce

rn
s 

o
r 

ar
e 

d
is

sa
ti

sf
ie

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

y 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

, 
in

 t
h

e 
fi

rs
t 

in
st

an
ce

 y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 

Ia
n

 P
en

n
in

g
to

n
, 

th
e 

ap
p

o
in

te
d

 e
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
le

ad
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l, 

w
h

o
 w

ill
 t

ry
 t

o
 r

es
o

lv
e 

yo
u

r 
co

m
p

la
in

t.
 I

f 
yo

u
 a

re
 d

is
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

 p
le

as
e 

co
n

ta
ct

 T
re

vo
r 

R
ee

s 
o

n
 0

16
1 

24
6 

40
00

, o
r 

b
y 

em
ai

l t
o

 
tr

ev
o

r.
re

es
@

kp
m

g
.c

o
.u

k,
 w

h
o

 is
 t

h
e 

n
at

io
n

al
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 p
ar

tn
er

 f
o

r 
al

l o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

. 
A

ft
er

 t
h

is
, 

if
 y

o
u

 a
re

 s
ti

ll 
d

is
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

 w
it

h
 h

o
w

 y
o

u
r 

co
m

p
la

in
t 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 h

an
d

le
d

 y
o

u
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
’s

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
. 

P
u

t 
yo

u
r 

co
m

p
la

in
t 

in
 w

ri
ti

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 U
n

it
 M

an
ag

er
, 

A
u

d
it

 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
, 

W
es

tw
ar

d
 H

o
u

se
, L

im
e 

K
iln

 C
lo

se
, S

to
ke

 G
if

fo
rd

, 
B

ri
st

o
l, 

B
S

34
8S

R
o

r 
b

y 
em

ai
l 

to
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

@
au

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k.
 T

h
ei

r 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 is

 0
84

4 
79

8 
31

31
, t

ex
tp

h
o

n
e

(m
in

ic
o

m
) 

02
0 

76
30

 0
42

1.

Page 42



2
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

on
e

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 s
um

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

ke
y 

fin
di

ng
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

:

!
ou

r i
nt

er
im

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

at
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

(t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il)
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

20
10

/1
1 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

; a
nd

!
ou

r w
or

k 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 o
ur

 2
01

0/
11

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 (
V

F
M

) 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 
up

to
 J

un
e 

20
11

.

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

O
ur

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 A

ud
it 

P
la

n 
20

10
/1

1,
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 y

ou
 in

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

11
, s

et
 o

ut
 th

e 
fo

ur
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 o
ur

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
ud

it 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

D
ur

in
g 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

w
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

ur
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l e

va
lu

at
io

n 
w

or
k.

 T
hi

s 
co

ve
re

d 
ou

r:

!
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ge
ne

ra
l c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
IT

 s
ys

te
m

s;

!
te

st
in

g 
of

 c
er

ta
in

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ke
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
he

lp
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l a
ud

it;
 

!
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

fu
nc

tio
n;

 

!
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ac
co

un
ts

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

or
k 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 p

rio
r 

ye
ar

 a
ud

it 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ris

k 
ar

ea
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 y

ea
r;

 a
nd

!
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

w
or

k 
to

 r
es

ta
te

 th
e 

20
09

/1
0 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 u
nd

er
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
(I

F
R

S
).

V
F

M
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n

O
ur

 V
F

M
 A

ud
it 

P
la

n 
20

10
/1

1 
is

su
ed

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 th

e 
ne

w
 V

F
M

 a
ud

it 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 th
is

 y
ea

r 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 th

e 
ke

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 U

se
 o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

ud
ito

r’s
 s

co
re

d 
ju

dg
em

en
ts

 re
gi

m
e.

 

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 s

om
e 

ea
rly

 w
or

k 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 o
ur

 2
01

0/
11

 V
F

M
 

co
nc

lu
si

on
. T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

:

!
un

de
rt

ak
in

g 
a 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

V
F

M
 a

ud
it 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t:

S
tr

u
ct

u
re

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 is
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

d 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

!
S

ec
tio

n 
2 

su
m

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

he
ad

lin
e 

m
es

sa
ge

s.

!
S

ec
tio

n 
3 

se
ts

 o
ut

 o
ur

 k
ey

 fi
nd

in
gs

 fr
om

 o
ur

 in
te

rim
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k 
in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

20
10

/1
1 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

!
S

ec
tio

n 
4

ou
tli

ne
s 

ou
r 

ke
y 

fin
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 o
ur

 w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

V
F

M
 

co
nc

lu
si

on
.

!
S

ec
tio

n 
5 

se
t o

ut
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

tu
s 

on
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fr

om
 

th
e 

P
ub

lic
  I

nt
er

es
t R

ep
or

t.

O
ur

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
. W

e 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

re
vi

ew
ed

 y
ou

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 in

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

pr
io

r 
ye

ar
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

an
d 

th
is

 is
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

B
.

A
ck

n
o

w
le

d
g

em
en

ts

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 ta
ke

 th
is

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 th

an
k 

of
fic

er
s 

an
d 

M
em

be
rs

 
fo

r t
he

ir 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 h
el

p 
an

d 
co

-o
pe

ra
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k.

T
h

is
 d

o
cu

m
en

t s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 

th
e 

ke
y 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

ar
is

in
g

 fr
o

m
 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 to
 d

at
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n

 

to
 b

o
th

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’s

 2
01

0/
11

 fi
n

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
20

10
/1

1 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
.

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

S
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 

P
ro

ce
d

u
re

s
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
P

la
n

n
in

g

Page 43



3
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

tw
o

H
ea

d
lin

es

T
h

is
 ta

b
le

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 th

e 

h
ea

d
lin

e 
m

es
sa

g
es

. T
h

e 

re
m

ai
n

d
er

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 

p
ro

vi
d

es
 fu

rt
h

er
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

n
 

ea
ch

 a
re

a.

Financial statements

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 a
n

d
 IT

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t
Y

ou
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 IT

 c
on

tr
ol

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t i

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ov
er

al
l. 

 T
he

re
 a

re
 s

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
IT

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t. 

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
ke

y 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s
T

he
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

ke
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

 a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 s

ou
nd

.

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
fu

lly
 c

om
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

in
 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
k 

ar
ea

s
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ov
er

al
l p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
is

 a
de

qu
at

e.
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f t

he
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 o
ur

 IS
A

 
26

0 
R

ep
or

t 2
00

9/
10

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

IF
R

S
 r

es
ta

te
m

en
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

m
ad

e 
go

od
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

re
st

at
in

g 
its

 2
00

9/
10

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 u
nd

er
 IF

R
S

.

W
e 

ha
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 th

e 
re

st
at

em
en

t w
or

k 
an

d 
ar

e 
co

nt
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 k
ey

 
ch

an
ge

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 

PIR

F
o

llo
w

 u
p

 o
f 

P
u

b
lic

 In
te

re
st

 R
ep

o
rt

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

re
sp

on
de

d 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

to
 th

e 
P

ub
lic

 In
te

re
st

 R
ep

or
t. 

It 
ha

s 
cl

ea
rly

 tr
ea

te
d 

th
e 

is
su

es
 ra

is
ed

 in
 th

e 
R

ep
or

t s
er

io
us

ly
 a

nd
 h

as
, t

o 
its

 
cr

ed
it,

 u
se

d 
it 

as
 a

 c
at

al
ys

t f
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

W
e 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

m
at

te
r 

no
w

 c
lo

se
d 

fo
r 

au
di

t p
ur

po
se

s.

Value for 
Money

F
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

O
ur

 V
F

M
 a

ud
it 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 w

or
k 

to
 d

at
e 

ha
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 g
oo

d 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 o

n 
its

 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
.

W
e 

st
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
ou

r 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

to
 in

fo
rm

 o
ur

 v
al

ue
 

fo
r m

on
ey

 c
on

cl
us

io
n,

 to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r a
lo

ng
si

de
 o

ur
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ac
co

un
ts

.

S
ec

u
ri

n
g

 V
F

M

Page 44



4
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

th
re

e 
–

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

C
on

tr
ol

s 
op

er
at

ed
 a

t a
n 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l l
ev

el
 o

fte
n 

ha
ve

 a
n 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
co

nt
ro

ls
 a

t a
n 

op
er

at
io

na
l l

ev
el

 a
nd

 if
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
th

is
 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

ou
r 

au
di

t. 

In
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s 
w

e 
us

ed
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
U

se
 o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t t

o 
in

fo
rm

 o
ur

 fi
nd

in
gs

 in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s.
 D

ue
 to

 th
e 

re
du

ce
d 

sc
op

e 
of

 th
e 

V
F

M
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
e 

ha
ve

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

m
or

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
w

or
k 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 o

ur
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

pi
ni

on
.

W
e 

ob
ta

in
 a

n 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ov
er

al
l c

on
tr

ol
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t a

nd
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 W

e 
do

 n
ot

 c
om

pl
et

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
te

st
in

g 
of

 th
es

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
.

K
ey

 f
in

d
in

g
s

W
e 

co
ns

id
er

 th
at

 y
ou

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

na
l c

on
tr

ol
s 

ar
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
ov

er
al

l, 
bu

t 
no

te
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

re
as

 fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t.

Y
o

u
r 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t i
s 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 

o
ve

ra
ll.

 

A
sp

ec
t

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

!

In
te

g
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 e
th

ic
al

 v
al

u
es

!

P
h

ilo
so

p
h

y 
an

d
 o

p
er

at
in

g
 s

ty
le

!

P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
o

se
 c

h
ar

g
ed

 w
it

h
 

g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

!

H
u

m
an

 r
es

o
u

rc
e 

p
o

lic
ie

s 
an

d
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

!

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

!

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 s
ys

te
m

s 
re

le
va

n
t 

to
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
!

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

!

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

!

K
ey

:
"

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t g

ap
s 

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

#
M

in
or

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
co

nt
ro

ls
.

!
G

en
er

al
ly

 s
ou

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t.

Page 45



5
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

th
re

e 
–

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
IT

 c
o

n
tr

o
l e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
lie

s 
on

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 (I

T
) 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 b

ot
h 

fin
an

ci
al

 re
po

rt
in

g 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

. I
n 

or
de

r t
o 

sa
tis

fy
 

ou
rs

el
ve

s 
th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
re

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 IT
, w

e 
te

st
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

ov
er

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

da
ta

, s
ys

te
m

 c
ha

ng
es

, s
ys

te
m

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
co

m
pu

te
r o

pe
ra

tio
ns

. 

K
ey

 f
in

d
in

g
s

W
e 

fo
un

d 
yo

ur
 IT

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t i

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ov
er

al
l. 

W
e 

no
te

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
re

as
 fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t. 

!
W

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

 th
at

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ce
 te

am
 

ha
ve

 ‘s
up

er
-u

se
r’ 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

A
pt

os
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
so

ftw
ar

e.
 N

on
-

sy
st

em
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

s 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 u
su

al
ly

 h
av

e 
th

is
 le

ve
l o

f a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

it 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

an
d 

re
st

ric
te

d 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

A
gr

es
so

sy
st

em
 b

ui
ld

, w
he

re
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
ed

 
w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l n
ee

d 
fo

r 
m

an
ag

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
cu

rit
y.

!
T

he
re

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 n
o 

pr
oc

es
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 in

fo
rm

 s
ys

te
m

 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
or

s 
w

he
n 

an
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 h
as

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

di
ffe

re
nt

 c
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 m
ay

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 re

qu
ire

 a
cc

es
s 

rig
ht

s 
to

 c
er

ta
in

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

.  
A

ga
in

 th
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
in

 th
e 

A
gr

es
so

de
si

gn
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.

!
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r f
or

m
al

ly
 d

ef
in

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 c
om

pu
te

r 
sy

st
em

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 g

ro
up

s 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

 s
im

ila
r r

ol
es

 a
nd

 
fo

rm
al

ly
 d

oc
um

en
t/a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 th
es

e 
gr

ou
ps

/p
ro

fil
es

 o
n 

a 
pe

rio
di

c 
ba

si
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 a

de
qu

at
e 

se
gr

eg
at

io
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s.
  T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
be

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 im
po

rt
an

t w
ith

 th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 A

gr
es

so
an

d 
‘G

o’
.

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
.

Y
o

u
r 

IT
 c

o
n

tr
o

l e
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 o
ve

ra
ll.

W
e 

n
o

te
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

ar
ea

s 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
er

 im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t.
 

A
sp

ec
t

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

A
cc

es
s 

to
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d

 d
at

a
#

S
ys

te
m

 c
h

an
g

es
 a

n
d

 m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
!

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t o

f 
n

ew
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d

 a
p

p
lic

at
io

n
s

!

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
o

p
er

at
io

n
s,

 in
cl

. p
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 a
n

d
 

b
ac

ku
p

#

E
n

d
-u

se
r 

co
m

p
u

ti
n

g
!

K
ey

:
"

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t g

ap
s 

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

#
M

in
or

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
co

nt
ro

ls
.

!
G

en
er

al
ly

 s
ou

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t.

Page 46



6
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

th
re

e 
–

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
ke

y 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
rs

 to
 u

pd
at

e 
ou

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ke
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 w

he
re

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 o
ur

 fi
na

l 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

ud
it.

 W
e 

co
nf

irm
 o

ur
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 b
y 

co
m

pl
et

in
g 

w
al

kt
hr

ou
gh

s 
fo

r 
th

es
e 

sy
st

em
s.

 

W
e 

th
en

 te
st

 s
el

ec
te

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
 th

at
 a

dd
re

ss
 k

ey
 r

is
ks

 w
ith

in
 th

es
e 

sy
st

em
s.

 T
he

 s
tr

en
gt

h 
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
in

fo
rm

s 
th

e 
su

bs
ta

nt
iv

e 
te

st
in

g 
w

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

du
rin

g 
ou

r 
fin

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

vi
si

t. 

O
ur

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f a
 k

ey
 s

ys
te

m
 w

ill
 n

ot
 a

lw
ay

s 
be

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
’ o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

at
 s

ys
te

m
. T

hi
s 

is
 b

ec
au

se
 w

e 
ar

e 
so

le
ly

 
in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 w

he
th

er
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

ris
ks

 a
re

 m
iti

ga
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

, i
.e

. w
he

th
er

 th
e 

sy
st

em
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 m
at

er
ia

lly
 re

lia
bl

e 
fig

ur
es

 fo
r 

in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

K
ey

 f
in

d
in

g
s

T
he

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
ke

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
s 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 s
ou

nd
 b

ut
 

w
e 

no
te

d 
so

m
e 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f i
nd

iv
id

ua
l f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s.

!
P

ay
ro

ll 
–

A
s 

w
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 la
st

 y
ea

r,
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
se

gr
eg

at
io

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pa

yr
ol

l s
ys

te
m

 e
nf

or
ce

d 
at

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f s

ys
te

m
 a

cc
es

s.
  

T
hi

s 
ha

s 
no

t b
ee

n 
re

so
lv

ed
 in

 2
01

0/
11

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 w

ai
tin

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
‘G

o’
 s

ys
te

m
 to

 b
e 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
. 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
al

so
 g

av
e 

lim
ite

d 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

pa
yr

ol
l s

ys
te

m
 in

 
20

09
/1

0 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

ed
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

.  
W

e 
w

ill
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
ub

st
an

tiv
e 

au
di

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ov
er

 p
ay

ro
ll 

du
rin

g 
ou

r f
in

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
vi

si
t. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 y
et

 a
ss

es
se

d 
th

os
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 th
at

 a
re

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

os
ed

ow
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

ou
r 

te
st

in
g 

w
ill

 th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 s
up

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

ith
 fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

du
rin

g 
ou

r 
fin

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
vi

si
t.

T
h

e 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ke

y 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
 a

re
 

g
en

er
al

ly
 s

o
u

n
d

.
S

ys
te

m
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

F
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g
!

G
ra

n
t 

in
co

m
e

!

H
o

u
si

n
g

 r
en

ts
 in

co
m

e
!

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

ax
 in

co
m

e
!

B
u

si
n

es
s 

ra
te

s 
in

co
m

e
!

S
u

n
d

ry
 in

co
m

e
!

P
ay

ro
ll 

ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
#

N
o

n
-p

ay
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

!

B
en

ef
it

s 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

!

C
as

h
!

T
re

as
u

ry
 m

an
ag

em
en

t

C
ap

it
al

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re

A
ss

et
 d

is
p

o
sa

ls

A
ss

et
 v

al
u

at
io

n
s

K
ey

:
"

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t g

ap
s 

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

#
M

in
or

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l c
on

tr
ol

s.
!

G
en

er
al

ly
 s

ou
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

T
o 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t t

he
 fi

na
l a

ud
it 

vi
si

t 

Page 47



7
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

th
re

e 
–

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
rs

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

ke
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
se

ek
 to

 r
el

y 
on

 a
ny

 r
el

ev
an

t w
or

k 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 to

 m
in

im
is

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
du

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 w
or

k.
 O

ur
 a

ud
it 

fe
e 

is
 s

et
 o

n 
th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
pl

ac
e 

fu
ll 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

ei
r w

or
k.

 

W
he

re
 w

e 
in

te
nd

 to
 r

el
y 

on
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it’

s 
w

or
k 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ke
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s,
 a

ud
iti

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 re
qu

ire
 u

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

an
 o

ve
ra

ll 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

fu
nc

tio
n 

an
d 

to
 

ev
al

ua
te

 a
nd

 te
st

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f t

he
ir 

w
or

k.
 

T
he

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

in
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t (

th
e 

C
od

e)
 

de
fin

es
 th

e 
w

ay
 in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

se
rv

ic
e 

sh
ou

ld
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 it
s 

fu
nc

tio
ns

. W
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 e
le

ve
n 

st
an

da
rd

s 
se

t 
ou

t i
n 

th
e 

C
od

e.
 

W
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it’
s 

w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

ke
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
re

-
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 a
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 te
st

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

th
em

. 

K
ey

 f
in

d
in

g
s

W
e 

la
st

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

 fu
ll 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
C

od
e 

in
 J

un
e 

20
10

. 
W

e 
ha

ve
 u

pd
at

ed
 o

ur
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

at
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 o
ur

 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r 

w
or

k 
du

rin
g 

20
10

/1
1.

B
as

ed
 o

n 
ou

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

fu
lly

 c
om

pl
ie

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

od
e.

 

W
e 

di
d 

no
t i

de
nt

ify
 a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
ss

ue
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l 
au

di
t’s

 w
or

k 
an

d 
ar

e 
pl

ea
se

d 
to

 r
ep

or
t t

ha
t w

e 
ar

e 
ag

ai
n 

ab
le

 to
 p

la
ce

 
fu

ll 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 s
ev

er
al

 o
f t

he
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

re
po

rt
s 

of
 k

ey
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

sy
st

em
s.

 

T
hi

s 
ye

ar
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ye

ar
 fo

r 
In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t 

so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
re

po
rt

s 
w

e 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

er
e 

no
t 

re
ad

y 
fo

r 
ou

r 
in

te
rim

 a
ud

it 
vi

si
t. 

W
e 

w
ill

 d
is

cu
ss

 th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 th
e 

bo
th

 
th

e 
in

te
rim

 a
nd

 fi
na

l 2
01

1/
12

 a
ud

it 
vi

si
ts

 w
ith

 F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
as

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
og

re
ss

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

ha
ng

e.
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

 f
u

lly
 c

o
m

p
lie

s 

w
it

h
 th

e 
C

o
d

e 
o

f 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

In
te

rn
al

 A
u

d
it

 in
 L

o
ca

l 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t.
 

A
sp

ec
t

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

!

In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
!

E
th

ic
s 

fo
r 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

o
rs

!

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!

R
el

at
io

n
sh

ip
s 

w
it

h
 m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 o

th
er

 a
u

d
it

o
rs

 
an

d
 o

th
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 b
o

d
ie

s
!

S
ta

ff
in

g
, t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
!

A
u

d
it

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
!

U
n

d
er

ta
ki

n
g

 a
u

d
it

 w
o

rk
!

A
u

d
it

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
!

D
u

e 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 c
ar

e
!

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

!

K
ey

:
"

N
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

.
#

M
in

or
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s.

!
F

ul
l c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
.

Page 48



8
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

th
re

e 
–

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 p

ro
ce

ss

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e 

is
su

ed
 o

ur
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

A
ud

it 
P

ro
to

co
l t

o 
S

ar
ah

 D
id

co
te

on
 1

9th
A

pr
il.

 
T

hi
s 

im
po

rt
an

t d
oc

um
en

t s
et

s 
ou

t o
ur

 a
ud

it 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

nd
 ti

m
et

ab
le

. I
t 

al
so

 s
um

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ev

id
en

ce
 w

e 
re

qu
ire

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k.
 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 in

te
rim

 w
or

k 
w

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 re
vi

ew
ed

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

og
re

ss
 in

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 o

ur
 IS

A
 2

60
 R

ep
or

t 
20

09
/1

0.

K
ey

 f
in

d
in

g
s

W
e 

co
ns

id
er

 th
at

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 is

 a
de

qu
at

e.
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

se
ve

ra
l o

f t
he

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 o

ur
 

IS
A

 2
60

 R
ep

or
t 2

00
9/

10
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

th
e 

tim
es

ca
le

s 
of

 th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
.T

he
 ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

rit
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

. 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 s

ta
tu

s 
re

po
rt

 o
f p

rio
r 

ye
ar

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

.

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’s
 o

ve
ra

ll 

p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r 

th
e 

p
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 

o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 is

 

ad
eq

u
at

e.
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

in
 o

u
r 

IS
A

 2
60

 R
ep

o
rt

 2
00

9/
10

 

re
la

ti
n

g
 to

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

Is
su

e
P

ro
g

re
ss

Is
su

e
–

T
es

ti
n

g
o

f
b

ac
ku

p
s

T
he

re
is

no
fo

rm
al

te
st

in
g

of
ba

ck
up

s.

T
he

co
un

ci
l

an
tic

ip
at

es
th

at
th

e
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g
se

rv
er

re
pl

ic
at

io
n

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
w

ill
al

lo
w

pe
rio

di
c

fo
rm

al
te

st
re

st
or

at
io

ns
.

Page 49



9
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

th
re

e 
–

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

IF
R

S
 r

es
ta

te
m

en
t

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

F
ro

m
 2

01
0/

11
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 th
ei

r f
in

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

IF
R

S
 b

as
ed

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. T

hi
s 

co
nt

ai
ns

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

ep
or

tin
g 

re
gi

m
e.

W
e 

ha
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 th

e 
w

or
k 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 r
es

ta
te

 it
s 

20
09

/1
0 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 u
nd

er
 IF

R
S

 a
nd

 it
s 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

pr
od

uc
in

g 
20

10
/1

1 
ba

la
nc

es
 in

 it
s 

ac
co

un
ts

 u
nd

er
 IF

R
S

. 

K
ey

 f
in

d
in

g
s

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

m
ad

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 r
es

ta
tin

g 
th

e 
20

09
/1

0 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 u

nd
er

 IF
R

S
.  

A
s 

at
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1,
 th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

ill
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 b
e 

fin
al

is
ed

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

di
sc

lo
su

re
s 

on
 a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

an
d 

le
as

es
.

F
ur

th
er

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 b

el
ow

 o
n 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ris
k 

ar
ea

s 
w

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 o

ur
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

20
10

/1
1

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 IF

R
S

.

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 m
ad

e 
g

o
o

d
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 r

es
ta

ti
n

g
 it

s 

20
09

/1
0 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

u
n

d
er

 IF
R

S
.

W
e 

h
av

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 th

e 

re
st

at
em

en
t w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 a

re
 

co
n

te
n

t t
h

at
 t

h
e 

ke
y 

ch
an

g
es

 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
el

y 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
re

ss
ed

. 

Page 50



10
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

th
re

e 
–

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

S
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
k 

ar
ea

s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

In
 o

ur
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

20
10

/1
1,

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 y
ou

 in
 

Ja
nu

ar
y,

 w
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

e 
ke

y 
ris

ks
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
20

10
/1

1 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

O
ur

 a
ud

it 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

re
m

ai
n 

fle
xi

bl
e 

as
 r

is
ks

 a
nd

 is
su

es
 

ch
an

ge
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

. T
o 

da
te

 th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

no
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
th

e 
ris

ks
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 to
 y

ou
.

W
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
di

sc
us

si
ng

 th
es

e 
ris

ks
 w

ith
P

au
l J

on
es

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 

re
gu

la
r m

ee
tin

gs
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 w

e 
so

ug
ht

 to
 r

ev
ie

w
 r

el
ev

an
t w

or
ki

ng
s 

an
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

tr
ea

tm
en

t a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 

in
te

rim
 w

or
k.

 

K
ey

 f
in

d
in

g
s

T
he

 ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

w
or

k 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 to
 d

at
e 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

es
e 

ris
ks

.

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 t
ak

en
 

se
ri

o
u

sl
y 

th
e 

ke
y 

ri
sk

 a
re

as
 

w
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

n
d

 m
ad

e 
g

o
o

d
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 a
d

d
re

ss
in

g
 

th
em

. 

H
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
es

e 
st

ill
 p

re
se

n
t 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t c
h

al
le

n
g

es
 th

at
 

re
q

u
ir

e 
ca

re
fu

l m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 fo
cu

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
is

it
 

th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

fi
n

al
 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
.

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k
Is

su
e

P
ro

g
re

ss

V
al

u
at

io
n

o
f

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

$
W

e
w

ill
re

vi
ew

th
e

C
B

C
va

lu
at

io
n

to
en

su
re

th
at

it
is

co
ns

is
te

nt
w

ith
LA

A
P

82
‘G

ui
da

nc
e

on
th

e
Im

pa
irm

en
t

of
Ic

el
an

di
c

B
an

ks
’.

$
W

e
w

ill
as

se
ss

va
lu

at
io

n
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
fo

r
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

.

$
W

e
w

ill
as

se
ss

w
he

th
er

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

ha
s

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

ap
pl

ie
d

th
e

C
ap

ita
lis

at
io

n
D

ire
ct

iv
e

pe
r

th
e

re
gu

la
tio

ns
re

le
as

ed
by

th
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

fo
r

C
om

m
un

iti
es

an
d

Lo
ca

l
G

ov
er

nm
en

ti
n

20
09

.

W
e

w
ill

re
vi

ew
th

e
va

lu
at

io
n

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

du
rin

g
ou

r
fin

al
ac

co
un

tin
g

vi
si

t.
V

al
u

at
io

n
 o

f 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts

Page 51



11
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

th
re

e 
–

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

S
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
k 

ar
ea

s

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 t
ak

en
 

se
ri

o
u

sl
y 

th
e 

ke
y 

ri
sk

 a
re

as
 

w
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

n
d

 m
ad

e 
g

o
o

d
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 a
d

d
re

ss
in

g
 

th
em

. 

H
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
es

e 
st

ill
 p

re
se

n
t 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t c
h

al
le

n
g

es
 th

at
 

re
q

u
ir

e 
ca

re
fu

l m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 fo
cu

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
is

it
 

th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

fi
n

al
 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
.

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k
Is

su
e

P
ro

g
re

ss

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
IF

R
S

$
W

e
w

ill
re

vi
ew

th
e

C
ou

nc
il’

s
pr

og
re

ss
on

im
pl

em
en

tin
g

IF
R

S
ag

ai
ns

t
its

de
ta

ile
d

co
nv

er
ge

nc
e

pl
an

.
In

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
w

e
w

ill
co

ns
id

er
th

e
st

ep
s

ta
ke

n
to

re
st

at
e

op
en

in
g

ba
la

nc
es

.

$
W

e 
w

ill
 h

ol
d 

re
gu

la
r 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

w
ith

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
w

he
re

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

.  
W

e 
w

ill
 o

ff
er

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

co
nv

er
ge

nc
e 

pr
oc

es
s.

W
e

ha
ve

un
de

rt
ak

en
a

re
vi

ew
of

th
e

C
ou

nc
il’

s
pr

og
re

ss
on

im
pl

em
en

tin
g

IF
R

S
an

d
no

te
d

fin
di

ng
s

on
pa

ge
9.

V
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

ss
et

s

$
W

e
w

ill
re

vi
ew

th
e

C
ou

nc
il’

s
ac

co
un

tin
g

po
lic

ie
s

fo
r

fix
ed

as
se

ts
to

en
su

re
th

at
th

ey
ar

e
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
va

lu
ed

.

$
W

e
w

ill
as

se
ss

va
lu

at
io

n
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
fo

r
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

.

$
W

e
w

ill
re

vi
ew

th
e

C
ou

nc
il’

s
pr

oc
es

se
s

fo
r

id
en

tif
yi

ng
fix

ed
as

se
t

an
d

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

w
hi

ch
m

ay
re

qu
ire

im
pa

irm
en

t
an

d
co

ns
id

er
w

he
th

er
th

es
e

im
pa

irm
en

ts
ha

ve
be

en
ac

co
un

te
d

fo
r

co
rr

ec
tly

w
ith

in
th

e
fin

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

.

W
e

no
te

d
as

pa
rt

of
ou

r
IF

R
S

re
vi

ew
th

at
th

e
co

m
po

ne
nt

ac
co

un
tin

g
po

lic
y

fo
r

fix
ed

as
se

ts
is

cu
rr

en
tly

be
in

g
fin

al
is

ed
by

th
e

C
ou

nc
il’

s
fin

an
ce

te
am

.

V
al

ua
tio

n
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
w

ill
be

re
vi

ew
ed

du
rin

g
th

e
fin

al
au

di
t

vi
si

t.

Lo
ca

lt
ax

es
/

re
n

t
ar

re
ar

s

$
D

ur
in

g
th

e
in

te
rim

ph
as

e
of

ou
r

au
di

t
w

e
w

ill
re

vi
ew

th
e

C
ou

nc
il’

s
pr

oc
es

se
s

fo
r

co
lle

ct
in

g
an

d
re

co
ve

rin
g

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g

ba
la

nc
es

in
re

la
tio

n
to

co
un

ci
lt

ax
,

na
tio

na
ln

on
-

do
m

es
tic

ra
te

s
(N

N
D

R
)a

nd
re

nt
ar

re
ar

s.

$
W

e
w

ill
cr

iti
ca

lly
re

vi
ew

th
e

le
ve

lo
f

ba
d

de
bt

w
rit

e
of

fs
an

d
ba

d
de

bt
pr

ov
is

io
ni

ng
at

th
e

ye
ar

en
d.

W
e

w
ill

pe
rf

or
m

a
tr

en
d

an
al

ys
is

of
th

e
le

ve
lo

f
ba

la
nc

es
ov

er
th

e
la

st
fin

an
ci

al
ye

ar
an

d
co

m
pa

re
th

e
C

ou
nc

il’
s

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

to
si

m
ila

r
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
.

W
e

no
te

d
no

co
nt

ro
l

ex
ce

pt
io

ns
du

rin
g

ou
r

in
te

rim
au

di
t

w
or

k.

W
e

w
ill

re
vi

ew
th

e
le

ve
l

of
ba

d
de

bt
w

rit
e

of
fs

an
d

be
d

de
bt

pr
ov

is
io

n
du

rin
g

ou
r

fin
al

au
di

t
vi

si
t.

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f I

FR
S

V
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f 

Fi
xe

d
 A

ss
et

s

Lo
ca

l T
ax

es
 

an
d

 A
rr

ea
rs

Page 52



12
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

fo
ur

 –
V

F
M

 c
on

cl
us

io
n

N
ew

 V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d

F
or

 2
01

0/
11

, a
ud

ito
rs

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 g
iv

e 
th

ei
r 

st
at

ut
or

y 
V

F
M

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
tw

o 
cr

ite
ria

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
.

T
he

se
 c

on
si

de
r w

he
th

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 

fo
r:

!
se

cu
rin

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

si
lie

nc
e:

 lo
ok

in
g 

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

, f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
; a

nd

!
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 s
ec

ur
es

 e
co

no
m

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s:
 

lo
ok

in
g 

at
 h

ow
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
pr

od
uc

tiv
ity

.

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
sc

or
ed

 ju
dg

em
en

ts
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

ne
w

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
an

d 
th

e 
V

F
M

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

is
 th

e 
on

ly
 o

ut
pu

t. 
T

hi
s 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
 ‘p

as
s 

/ f
ai

l’ 
st

yl
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t.

W
e 

fo
llo

w
 a

 r
is

k 
ba

se
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 ta

rg
et

 a
ud

it 
ef

fo
rt

 o
n 

th
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 

gr
ea

te
st

 a
ud

it 
ris

k.
 W

e 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
es

e 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

ou
r 

w
or

k 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y.
 

O
ur

 V
F

M
 a

ud
it 

dr
aw

s 
he

av
ily

 o
n 

ot
he

r a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 is

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

ou
r V

F
M

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f l
as

t y
ea

r’s
 V

F
M

 a
ud

it.
 W

e 
th

en
 a

ss
es

s 
if 

m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
au

di
t w

or
k 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

re
as

. 
T

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f a
ud

it 
to

ol
s 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 g

ui
de

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ca
n 

dr
aw

 u
po

n 
w

he
re

 r
el

ev
an

t.

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
n

ew
 V

F
M

 a
u

d
it

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

T
he

 k
ey

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 V
F

M
 a

ud
it 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
re

 s
um

m
ar

is
ed

 b
el

ow
.

W
e 

fo
llo

w
 a

 n
ew

 V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 th

is
 y

ea
r.

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 w
ill

 

co
n

si
d

er
 h

o
w

 th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

se
cu

re
s 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 

an
d

 c
h

al
le

n
g

es
 h

o
w

 it
 

se
cu

re
s 

ec
o

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 

an
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s.

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
0/

11
 

d
es

cr
ib

es
 in

 m
o

re
 d

et
ai

l h
o

w
 

th
e 

n
ew

 V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 

o
p

er
at

es
.

V
F

M
 a

ud
it 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t

F
in

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r a
ud

it 
w

or
k

A
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f 
re

si
du

al
 a

ud
it 

ris
k

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
V

F
M

 
au

di
t w

or
k 

(if
 

an
y)

C
on

cl
ud

e 
on

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
V

F
M

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r w

or
k 

re
qu

ire
d

A
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f w
or

k 
by

 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 &
 o

th
er

 
re

vi
ew

 a
ge

nc
ie

s

S
pe

ci
fic

 lo
ca

l r
is

k 
ba

se
d 

w
or

k

VFM conclusion

Page 53



13
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

S
ec

tio
n 

fiv
e 

–
P

ub
lic

 In
te

re
st

 R
ep

or
t

F
o

llo
w

 u
p

 o
f 

P
u

b
lic

 In
te

re
st

 R
ep

o
rt

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d

In
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
w

e 
is

su
ed

 a
 P

ub
lic

 In
te

re
st

 R
ep

or
t o

n 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 

m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

th
at

 le
d 

to
 th

e 
H

ig
h 

C
ou

rt
 a

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
fo

rm
er

 M
an

ag
in

g 
D

ire
ct

or
, M

rs
 C

hr
is

tin
e 

La
ird

, i
n 

20
09

. T
he

 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

cl
ai

m
 a

ga
in

st
 M

rs
 L

ai
rd

 fa
ile

d.
 

T
hi

s 
ou

tc
om

e 
at

tr
ac

te
d 

m
uc

h 
at

te
nt

io
n 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 fr
om

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 

m
ed

ia
. T

he
 c

os
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

le
ga

l a
ct

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 

di
sp

ut
e 

w
ith

 M
rs

 L
ai

rd
 w

er
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
. A

s 
a 

re
su

lt,
 w

e 
un

de
rt

oo
k 

a 
de

ta
ile

d 
re

vi
ew

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
ke

y 
fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 p

oi
nt

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
is

 o
ut

co
m

e.
 

T
he

 P
ub

lic
 In

te
re

st
 R

ep
or

t s
et

 o
ut

 o
ur

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
ed

 2
6 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 c
ov

er
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 im

pr
ov

e,
 o

r 
w

he
re

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 w
er

e 
no

t 
fo

llo
w

ed
 fu

lly
.  

T
he

 R
ep

or
t  

w
as

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

 a
nd

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
at

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 fu

ll 
C

ou
nc

il 
on

 2
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0.

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 to
 r

es
po

nd
 

to
 o

ur
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
, a

nd
 a

ls
o 

th
os

e 
fr

om
 it

s 
ow

n 
M

em
be

r 
W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

, w
hi

ch
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
di

sp
ut

e 
w

ith
 M

rs
 L

ai
rd

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t m

at
te

rs
 a

nd
 d

is
pu

te
 re

so
lu

tio
n.

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

O
ur

 2
01

0/
11

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
 in

cl
ud

ed
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

a 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

au
di

t t
o 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

m
ad

e 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 th

e 
P

ub
lic

 In
te

re
st

 R
ep

or
t.

O
ur

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

ok
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ow

n 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, n
ot

ab
ly

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
rly

 re
po

rt
s 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
R

ep
or

t w
as

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
an

d 
th

e 
re

po
rt

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

ei
r 

fo
llo

w
 u

p 
re

vi
ew

 o
n 

a 
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 o
ur

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

. W
e 

al
so

 s
up

pl
em

en
te

d 
th

is
 w

ith
 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

w
ith

 k
ey

 C
ou

nc
il 

st
af

f.

K
ey

 f
in

d
in

g
s

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

re
sp

on
de

d 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

to
 th

e 
P

ub
lic

 In
te

re
st

 R
ep

or
t, 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

a 
hi

gh
 p

ro
fil

e 
w

ith
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 M

em
be

rs
. I

t h
as

 
cl

ea
rly

 tr
ea

te
d 

th
e 

is
su

es
 ra

is
ed

 in
 th

e 
R

ep
or

t s
er

io
us

ly
 a

nd
 h

as
, t

o 
its

 
cr

ed
it,

 u
se

d 
it 

as
 a

 c
at

al
ys

t f
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 in
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 th

e 
R

ep
or

t w
as

 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

, t
oo

k 
ac

co
un

t o
f a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

w
as

 w
el

l c
o-

or
di

na
te

d 
to

 li
nk

 th
e 

ac
tio

ns
 in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

R
ep

or
t w

ith
 th

os
e 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

M
em

be
r 

W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
 r

ev
ie

w
. 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

gu
la

r,
 

de
ta

ile
d,

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

al
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 p

ap
er

s.
 

A
s 

w
el

l a
s 

in
st

ig
at

in
g 

ro
bu

st
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

al
so

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 it

s 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 it
s 

re
sp

on
se

 in
to

 th
e 

R
ep

or
t. 

T
hi

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 u

se
fu

l a
nd

 ti
m

el
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
re

sp
on

se
s 

w
ou

ld
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
is

su
es

 b
eh

in
d 

ou
r 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 re

po
rt

s 
w

er
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

. 

T
he

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 w
ith

 o
nl

y 
a 

m
in

or
ity

 o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

on
ly

 b
ee

n 
pa

rt
ia

l i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

in
te

nd
ed

 a
ct

io
ns

. I
n 

th
es

e 
ca

se
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 s

til
l c

on
si

de
rin

g 
ho

w
 a

nd
 w

he
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 th
at

 re
m

ai
n 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g.

 

T
he

se
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 fo

cu
se

d 
on

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 

ac
tio

ns
, h

ow
ev

er
. I

t w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 u

se
fu

l f
or

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
he

th
er

 in
te

nd
ed

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
a 

pe
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f a

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 M
em

be
rs

 c
ou

ld
 

co
ns

id
er

 w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 
ne

w
 r

ep
or

t t
em

pl
at

e 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

W
e 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

m
at

te
r 

no
w

 c
lo

se
d 

fo
r 

au
di

t p
ur

po
se

s.

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 r
es

p
o

n
d

ed
 

p
o

si
ti

ve
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e 
P

u
b

lic
 

In
te

re
st

 R
ep

o
rt

. I
t 

h
as

 c
le

ar
ly

 

tr
ea

te
d

 th
e 

is
su

es
 r

ai
se

d
 in

 

th
e 

R
ep

o
rt

 s
er

io
u

sl
y 

an
d

 

h
as

, t
o

 it
s 

cr
ed

it
, u

se
d

 it
 a

s 
a 

ca
ta

ly
st

 f
o

r 
ch

an
g

e 
an

d
 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t.
 

W
e 

co
n

si
d

er
 t

h
e 

m
at

te
r 

n
o

w
 

cl
o

se
d

 fo
r 

au
d

it
 p

u
rp

o
se

s.

Page 54



14
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1

K
ey

 is
su

es
 a

n
d

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

W
e 

h
av

e 
g

iv
en

 e
ac

h
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 a

 r
is

k 

ra
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

ed
 w

h
at

 

ac
ti

o
n

 m
an

ag
em

en
t w

ill
 

n
ee

d
 to

 t
ak

e.
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l s
h

o
u

ld
 c

lo
se

ly
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 

ad
d

re
ss

in
g

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
ks

 

an
d

 im
p

le
m

en
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s.

A
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
le

va
n

t f
o

r 
th

e 
n

ew
 A

g
re

ss
o

sy
st

em
 in

 t
h

e 
G

o
 p

ro
je

ct
.

W
e 

w
ill

 fo
rm

al
ly

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 

th
es

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
n

ex
t 

ye
ar

.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 r

at
in

g
 f

o
r 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s

!
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
n

e:
is

su
es

 th
at

 a
re

 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l a
nd

 m
at

er
ia

l t
o 

yo
ur

 
sy

st
em

 o
f i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
. W

e 
be

lie
ve

 
th

at
 th

es
e 

is
su

es
 m

ig
ht

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 y

ou
 

do
 n

ot
 m

ee
t a

 s
ys

te
m

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
or

 
re

du
ce

 (m
iti

ga
te

) a
 r

is
k.

!
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 tw
o

:
is

su
es

 th
at

 h
av

e 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
bu

t d
o 

no
t n

ee
d 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 a

ct
io

n.
 Y

ou
 m

ay
 s

til
l m

ee
t a

 
sy

st
em

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
in

 fu
ll 

or
 in

 p
ar

t o
r 

re
du

ce
 

(m
iti

ga
te

) a
 r

is
k 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 b

ut
 th

e 
w

ea
kn

es
s 

re
m

ai
ns

 in
 th

e 
sy

st
em

. 

!
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 th
re

e:
is

su
es

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
, i

f 
co

rr
ec

te
d,

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 in
 

ge
ne

ra
l b

ut
 a

re
 n

ot
 v

ita
l t

o 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
sy

st
em

. T
he

se
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 is
su

es
 o

f b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
th

at
 w

e 
fe

el
 w

ou
ld

 b
en

ef
it 

yo
u 

if 
yo

u 
in

tr
od

uc
ed

 th
em

.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
su

e 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

/ r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

/ d
u

e 
d

at
e

1
Is

su
e

-
n

o
p

ro
ce

ss
fo

r
tr

an
sf

er
s

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s

w
ho

ha
ve

tr
an

sf
er

re
d

be
tw

ee
n

se
rv

ic
es

m
ay

as
a

re
su

lt
no

lo
ng

er
re

qu
ire

al
lo

ft
he

ir
ex

is
tin

g
ac

ce
ss

rig
ht

s
to

ce
rt

ai
n

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.

T
he

re
is

cu
rr

en
tly

no
pr

oc
es

s
in

pl
ac

e
to

in
fo

rm
sy

st
em

s
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
or

s
of

an
y

tr
an

sf
er

s,
or

fo
r

lin
e

m
an

ag
er

s
of

tr
an

sf
er

re
d

st
af

f
to

in
fo

rm
H

R
/IT

th
at

th
ei

r
ac

ce
ss

rig
ht

s
to

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

ar
e

no
lo

ng
er

re
qu

ire
d.

N
B

if
st

af
f

re
qu

ire
ad

di
tio

na
l

ac
ce

ss
rig

ht
s,

th
e

lin
e

m
an

ag
er

w
ill

re
qu

es
ti

tf
ro

m
IT

.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

T
he

C
ou

nc
il

sh
ou

ld
co

ns
id

er
im

pl
em

en
tin

g
a

pr
oc

es
s

to
he

lp
en

su
re

th
at

sy
st

em
s

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

or
s

ar
e

in
fo

rm
ed

of
tr

an
sf

er
s

an
d

ca
n

th
er

ef
or

e
re

m
ov

e/
re

st
ric

t
th

e
em

pl
oy

ee
s

ac
ce

ss
to

IT
sy

st
em

s
ba

se
d

on
th

ei
r

ne
w

ro
le

.

T
he

co
un

ci
lw

ill
re

vi
ew

H
R

an
d

IC
T

pr
oc

es
se

s
w

hi
ch

ar
e

cu
rr

en
tly

us
ed

fo
r

ne
w

st
ar

te
rs

an
d

fo
r

st
af

f
tr

an
sf

er
rin

g
be

tw
ee

n
se

rv
ic

es
to

en
su

re
sy

st
em

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

or
s

ar
e

no
tif

ie
d

of
ch

an
ge

s
re

qu
ire

d
to

sy
st

em
s

ac
ce

ss
.

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

o
ff

ic
er

s:
Ju

lie
M

cC
ar

th
y

/
R

ac
he

l
M

cK
in

no
n

D
u

e
D

at
e:

S
ep

te
m

be
r2

01
1

2

Page 55



15
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1

K
ey

 is
su

es
 a

n
d

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

W
e 

h
av

e 
g

iv
en

 e
ac

h
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 a

 r
is

k 

ra
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

ed
 w

h
at

 

ac
ti

o
n

 m
an

ag
em

en
t w

ill
 

n
ee

d
 to

 t
ak

e.
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l s
h

o
u

ld
 c

lo
se

ly
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 

ad
d

re
ss

in
g

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
ks

 

an
d

 im
p

le
m

en
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s.

A
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
le

va
n

t f
o

r 
th

e 
n

ew
 A

g
re

ss
o

sy
st

em
 in

 t
h

e 
G

o
 p

ro
je

ct
.

W
e 

w
ill

 fo
rm

al
ly

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 

th
es

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
n

ex
t 

ye
ar

.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
su

e 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

/ r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
o

ff
ic

er
/ d

u
e 

d
at

e

2
Is

su
e

-
A

p
to

s
su

p
er

u
se

rs

IT
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
sy

st
em

s
ge

ne
ra

lly
al

lo
w

th
e

cr
ea

tio
n

of
ac

co
un

ts
w

ith
“s

up
er

us
er

”
ac

ce
ss

w
hi

ch
ha

ve
un

re
st

ric
te

d
ac

ce
ss

in
or

de
r

to
pe

rf
or

m
sy

st
em

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

ta
sk

s.
It

is
be

st
pr

ac
tic

e
to

re
st

ric
tt

he
nu

m
be

r
of

th
es

e
ac

co
un

ts
.

T
he

H
ea

d
of

R
es

ou
rc

es
,

G
ro

up
A

cc
ou

nt
an

t
an

d
H

ea
d

of
F

in
an

ci
al

S
er

vi
ce

s
al

lh
av

e
su

pe
r

us
er

ac
ce

ss
to

A
pt

os
as

a
re

su
lt

of
th

ei
r

ro
le

s
in

in
iti

al
ly

se
tti

ng
up

th
e

sy
st

em
.

A
llo

w
in

g
su

pe
r

us
er

ac
ce

ss
to

se
ni

or
fin

an
ce

st
af

f
is

no
t

go
od

pr
ac

tic
e

du
e

to
th

e
in

cr
ea

se
d

ris
ks

an
d

po
te

nt
ia

l
fo

r
m

an
ag

em
en

t
ov

er
rid

e
re

su
lti

ng
fr

om
th

is
un

m
on

ito
re

d
le

ve
lo

fa
cc

es
s.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

T
he

C
ou

nc
il

sh
ou

ld
co

ns
id

er
if

th
es

e
no

n-
sy

st
em

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

or
us

er
s

re
qu

ire
th

is
po

w
er

fu
l

le
ve

l
of

ac
ce

ss
on

an
on

go
in

g
ba

si
s

an
d

re
st

ric
t

ac
ce

ss
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y.

A
pt

os
‘s

up
er

us
er

’
ac

ce
ss

w
ill

be
re

m
ov

ed
fr

om
D

ire
ct

or
R

es
ou

rc
es

an
d

H
ea

d
of

F
in

an
ci

al
S

er
vi

ce
s

w
ith

im
m

ed
ia

te
ef

fe
ct

.

T
he

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
of

a
ne

w
E

R
P

sy
st

em
w

ill
fa

ct
or

in
re

le
va

nt
pe

rs
on

ne
l

to
‘s

up
er

us
er

’
ac

ce
ss

w
he

n
th

e
ne

w
sy

st
em

go
es

‘li
ve

’
in

A
pr

il
20

12
.

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

O
ff

ic
er

:
M

ar
ty

n
S

cu
ll

D
u

e 
d

at
es

: 
  I

m
m

ed
ia

te
 a

ffe
ct

 a
nd

 

A
pr

il 
20

12

3
Is

su
e

–
n

o
d

o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

o
f

co
n

fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
ch

an
g

es

IT
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
sy

st
em

s
in

cl
ud

e
a

nu
m

be
r

of
se

tp
ar

am
et

er
s

w
ith

in
w

hi
ch

th
ey

op
er

at
e.

T
he

C
ou

nc
il’

s
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
sy

st
em

s
do

no
t

ha
ve

w
rit

te
n

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
de

sc
rib

in
g

ho
w

pa
ra

m
et

er
ch

an
ge

s
sh

ou
ld

be
ap

pr
ov

ed
,

im
pl

em
en

te
d

an
d

ch
ec

ke
d,

al
th

ou
gh

w
e

no
te

th
at

di
sc

us
si

on
s

w
ith

de
vo

lv
ed

sy
st

em
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
or

s
co

nf
irm

ed
th

at
th

ey
ar

e
aw

ar
e

of
th

ei
r

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s

re
ga

rd
in

g
fo

llo
w

in
g

ap
pr

op
ria

te
te

st
in

g
fo

r
th

es
e

ch
an

ge
s.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

T
he

C
ou

nc
il

sh
ou

ld
do

cu
m

en
t

a
pr

oc
es

s
fo

r
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n

ch
an

ge
s

m
ad

e
w

ith
in

an
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
so

th
at

re
le

va
nt

sy
st

em
ow

ne
rs

ar
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
ei

r
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s
re

ga
rd

in
g

ap
pr

ov
al

an
d

ap
pr

op
ria

te
te

st
in

g
of

th
es

e
ch

an
ge

s.

A
pr

oc
es

s
w

ill
be

ad
ap

te
d

fr
om

ou
r

in
te

rn
al

IC
T

ch
an

ge
m

an
ag

em
en

t
pr

oc
es

s.
T

hi
s

ca
n

be
di

st
rib

ut
ed

to
sy

st
em

ow
ne

rs
to

m
ai

nt
ai

n
an

d
re

co
rd

an
y

ch
an

ge
s

th
ey

m
ak

e
to

th
ei

r
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n

an
d

re
co

rd
re

su
lts

of
an

y
te

st
in

g
ca

rr
ie

d
ou

t.

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

O
ff

ic
er

:
P

au
lW

oo
lc

oc
k

D
u

e
d

at
e:

A
pr

oc
es

s
w

ill
be

dr
af

te
d

by
S

ep
te

m
be

r2
01

1.

2 3

Page 56



16
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1

K
ey

 is
su

es
 a

n
d

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

W
e 

h
av

e 
g

iv
en

 e
ac

h
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 a

 r
is

k 

ra
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

ed
 w

h
at

 

ac
ti

o
n

 m
an

ag
em

en
t w

ill
 

n
ee

d
 to

 t
ak

e.
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l s
h

o
u

ld
 c

lo
se

ly
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 

ad
d

re
ss

in
g

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
ks

 

an
d

 im
p

le
m

en
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s.

A
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
le

va
n

t f
o

r 
th

e 
n

ew
 A

g
re

ss
o

sy
st

em
 in

 t
h

e 
G

o
 p

ro
je

ct
.

W
e 

w
ill

 fo
rm

al
ly

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 

th
es

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
n

ex
t 

ye
ar

.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
su

e 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

/ r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

/ d
u

e 
d

at
e

4
Is

su
e

–
d

o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

o
f

ac
ce

ss
ru

le
s

U
se

r
gr

ou
ps

pr
ov

id
e

an
ef

fe
ct

iv
e

w
ay

of
m

an
ag

in
g

ac
ce

ss
rig

ht
s

to
sy

st
em

s;
a

gr
ou

p
ca

n
be

se
t

up
w

ith
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ac
ce

ss
rig

ht
s

an
d

re
st

ric
tio

ns
fo

r
a

sp
ec

ifi
c

jo
b

ro
le

an
d

us
er

s
as

si
gn

ed
to

th
is

gr
ou

p,
ra

th
er

th
an

ev
er

y
in

di
vi

du
al

ha
vi

ng
un

iq
ue

ac
ce

ss
rig

ht
s.

A
lth

ou
gh

us
er

gr
ou

ps
to

re
st

ric
t

ac
ce

ss
to

sp
ec

ifi
c

fu
nc

tio
ns

/c
os

t
ce

nt
re

s
ar

e
be

in
g

us
ed

in
th

e
m

aj
or

ity
of

sy
st

em
s

in
sc

op
e

fo
r

fin
an

ci
al

au
di

t
su

pp
or

t
te

st
in

g
(w

ith
th

e
ex

ce
pt

io
n

of
pa

yr
ol

l),
th

er
e

is
no

fo
rm

al
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n

av
ai

la
bl

e
th

at
re

fle
ct

s
w

ha
t

ac
ce

ss
is

gi
ve

n
vi

a
as

si
gn

m
en

t
of

th
es

e
gr

ou
ps

an
d

ho
w

a
ne

w
in

di
vi

du
al

's
gr

ou
p

sh
ou

ld
be

al
lo

ca
te

d.
T

hi
s

ha
s

le
d

to
th

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
of

m
an

y
us

er
gr

ou
ps

ba
se

d
on

in
di

vi
du

al
us

er
s

(u
su

al
ly

on
e

us
er

pe
r

gr
ou

p)
in

A
pt

os
,

ra
th

er
th

an
gr

ou
ps

ba
se

d
on

jo
b

ro
le

.
T

he
se

in
di

vi
du

al
us

er
ac

ce
ss

rig
ht

s
m

ay
no

t
ha

ve
ap

pr
op

ria
te

se
gr

eg
at

io
n

of
du

tie
s

co
nt

ro
ls

.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

T
he

C
ou

nc
il

sh
ou

ld
co

ns
id

er
fo

rm
al

ly
de

fin
in

g
an

d
do

cu
m

en
tin

g
gr

ou
ps

/p
ro

fil
es

fo
r

ea
ch

fin
an

ci
al

re
po

rt
in

g
sy

st
em

ba
se

d
on

us
er

s
jo

b
ro

le
s,

w
ith

re
le

va
nt

se
gr

eg
at

io
n

of
du

tie
s

ru
le

s
al

so
ta

ke
n

in
to

ac
co

un
t.

T
hi

s
w

ill
be

pi
ck

ed
up

as
pa

rt
of

th
e

ne
w

E
R

P
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

w
hi

ch
is

du
e

to
go

‘li
ve

’
in

C
he

lte
nh

am
in

A
pr

il
20

12
.

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 O
ff

ic
er

: 
M

ar
ty

n
S

cu
ll

D
u

e 
d

at
e:

  A
pr

il 
20

12
 

2

Page 57



17
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1

K
ey

 is
su

es
 a

n
d

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
(c

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

)

W
e 

h
av

e 
g

iv
en

 e
ac

h
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 a

 r
is

k 

ra
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

ed
 w

h
at

 

ac
ti

o
n

 m
an

ag
em

en
t w

ill
 

n
ee

d
 to

 t
ak

e.
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l s
h

o
u

ld
 c

lo
se

ly
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 

ad
d

re
ss

in
g

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
ks

 

an
d

 im
p

le
m

en
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s.

A
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
le

va
n

t f
o

r 
th

e 
n

ew
 A

g
re

ss
o

sy
st

em
 in

 t
h

e 
G

o
 p

ro
je

ct
.

W
e 

w
ill

 fo
rm

al
ly

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 

th
es

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
n

ex
t 

ye
ar

.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
su

e 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

 / 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 / 
d

u
e 

d
at

e

5
A

ss
es

si
n

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

es
 fr

o
m

 P
u

b
lic

 In
te

re
st

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ro
bu

st
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 m

on
ito

rp
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 p
re

pa
re

d 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 o
ur

 P
ub

lic
 In

te
re

st
 

R
ep

or
t. 

T
he

se
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 a
ct

io
ns

, h
ow

ev
er

. 

It 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 u
se

fu
l f

or
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
to

 c
on

si
de

r w
he

th
er

 in
te

nd
ed

 
ou

tc
om

es
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

a 
pe

er
 re

vi
ew

 o
f a

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 M
em

be
rs

 c
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 n
ew

 
re

po
rt

 te
m

pl
at

e 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 

C
on

si
de

r i
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 

an
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

P
ub

lic
 In

te
re

st
 

R
ep

or
t a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
.

T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 th

e 
ne

w
 r

ep
or

t 
te

m
pl

at
e 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t t

em
pl

at
e)

 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

ed
 it

s 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 w
hi

ch
 

no
w

 e
ns

ur
es

 th
at

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ris

k 
re

gi
st

er
 is

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t t

he
 S

en
io

r L
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

T
ea

m
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 o
n 

a 
m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

. 

T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r a
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

w
he

th
er

 o
ut

co
m

es
 w

er
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f a

 p
ee

r r
ev

ie
w

.

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 O
ff

ic
er

: 
S

ar
a 

F
re

ck
le

to
n

D
u

e 
d

at
e:

  A
pr

il 
20

12
 

2

Page 58



18
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

F
o

llo
w

-u
p

 o
f 

p
ri

o
r 

ye
ar

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

T
hi

s 
ap

pe
nd

ix
 s

um
m

ar
is

es
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 o
ur

 In
te

rim
 a

nd
 IS

A
 2

60
 A

ud
it 

R
ep

or
ts

 
20

09
/1

0 
an

d 
re

-it
er

at
es

 a
ny

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 s
til

l o
ut

st
an

di
ng

. 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 n
o

t 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

in
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 IS

A
 

26
0 

re
p

o
rt

 2
00

9/
10

. 

W
e 

re
-i

te
ra

te
 t

h
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
ce

 

o
f 

th
e 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

 th
at

 t
h

es
e 

ar
e 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

s 
a 

m
at

te
r 

o
f 

u
rg

en
cy

.

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
th

at
 w

er
e:

 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 in

 o
ri

g
in

al
 r

ep
o

rt
 

13

Im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 in

 y
ea

r 
o

r 
su

p
er

se
d

ed
 

4

R
em

ai
n

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 (r
e-

it
er

at
ed

 b
el

o
w

)
9

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
su

e 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

S
ta

tu
s 

as
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
20

11

1
Is

su
e

–
P

as
sw

o
rd

co
n

tr
o

l

It
is

im
po

rt
an

t
to

ha
ve

st
ro

ng
pa

ss
w

or
d

co
nt

ro
ls

to
lim

it
th

e
po

te
nt

ia
l

of
ac

ce
ss

to
IT

sy
st

em
s

fr
om

un
au

th
or

is
ed

ex
te

rn
al

pa
rt

ie
s.

D
ur

in
g

ou
r

in
te

rim
w

or
k

w
e

id
en

tif
ie

d
th

at
al

l
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
sy

st
em

s
ha

ve
w

ea
k

pa
ss

w
or

d
co

nt
ro

l
in

te
rm

s
of

pa
ss

w
or

d
le

ng
th

an
d

co
m

pl
ex

ity
.

Th
is

in
cr

ea
se

s
th

e
ris

k
of

un
au

th
or

is
ed

ac
ce

ss
.

Th
e

A
ct

iv
e

D
ire

ct
or

y
/

N
et

w
or

k
pa

ss
w

or
d

is
st

ro
ng

bu
t

th
is

on
ly

se
cu

re
s

ag
ai

ns
t

ex
te

rn
al

ac
ce

ss
.

S
om

e
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
re

qu
ire

ad
di

tio
na

lc
on

tr
ol

s
su

ch
as

th
e

us
er

be
in

g
a

m
em

be
r

of
an

ac
tiv

e
di

re
ct

or
y

gr
ou

p
or

ha
vi

ng
cl

ie
nt

so
ft

w
ar

e
in

st
al

le
d

on
th

ei
r

P
C

.
Th

es
e

fa
ct

or
s

m
iti

ga
te

so
m

e
of

th
e

ris
k

in
pr

ac
tic

e,
bu

t
un

au
th

or
is

ed
ac

ce
ss

re
m

ai
ns

a
re

al
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
ev

ie
w

ac
ce

ss
co

nt
ro

ls
to

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

an
d

in
st

itu
te

al
lp

ra
ct

ic
al

m
iti

ga
tin

g
m

ea
su

re
s

to
ov

er
co

m
e

lim
ita

tio
ns

in
pa

ss
w

or
d

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n.

A
cc

es
s

to
th

e
C

H
R

IS
21

sy
st

em
do

es
re

qu
ire

th
e

cl
ie

nt
so

ft
w

ar
e

be
in

g
in

st
al

le
d

on
th

e
em

pl
oy

ee
s

P
C

.

H
ow

ev
er

,
th

is
ye

ar
’s

au
di

t
of

th
e

sy
st

em
ha

s
al

re
ad

y
id

en
tif

ie
d

th
e

cu
rr

en
t

pa
ss

w
or

d
co

nt
ro

ls
as

be
in

g
w

ea
k.

N
ew

pa
ss

w
or

d
co

nt
ro

ls
(i.

e.
co

nf
or

m
in

g
to

IC
T

gu
id

an
ce

fo
r

pa
ss

w
or

d
le

ng
th

an
d

co
m

pl
ex

ity
,

an
d

fo
rc

in
g

us
er

s
to

ch
an

ge
th

ei
r

pa
ss

w
or

d
af

te
r

a
de

fin
ed

pe
rio

d
of

tim
e)

ar
e

du
e

to
be

im
pl

em
en

te
d

fo
r

al
l

C
H

R
IS

21
us

er
s.

Is
su

e
st

ill
st

an
d

s

C
H

R
IS

21
pa

ss
w

or
d

co
nt

ro
ls

ha
ve

no
t

ch
an

ge
d

si
nc

e
th

e
pr

ev
io

us
au

di
t;

ho
w

ev
er

m
an

ag
em

en
t

ex
pe

ct
th

e
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

of
th

e
ne

w
G

o
sy

st
em

(r
ep

la
ci

ng
C

H
R

IS
21

in
20

12
)

w
ill

cl
ea

r
th

is
is

su
e.

In
ad

di
tio

n,
O

pe
n

R
ev

en
ue

s
ta

xa
tio

n
an

d
be

ne
fit

s
sy

st
em

pa
ss

w
or

d
co

nt
ro

ls
ar

e
w

ea
k

as
th

e
ab

ili
ty

to
im

pl
em

en
t

st
ro

ng
er

co
m

pl
ex

ity
ru

le
s

ha
s

on
ly

be
en

ad
de

d
in

a
re

ce
nt

up
gr

ad
e

of
th

e
sy

st
em

;
th

e
co

un
ci

l
pl

an
s

to
im

pr
ov

e
th

is
co

nt
ro

li
n

20
11

/1
2.

2

Page 59



19
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

F
o

llo
w

-u
p

 o
f 

p
ri

o
r 

ye
ar

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 n
o

t 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

in
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 IS

A
 

26
0 

re
p

o
rt

 2
00

9/
10

. 

W
e 

re
-i

te
ra

te
 t

h
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
ce

 

o
f 

th
e 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

 th
at

 t
h

es
e 

ar
e 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

s 
a 

m
at

te
r 

o
f 

u
rg

en
cy

.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
su

e 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

S
ta

tu
s 

as
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1

2
Is

su
e

–
P

ay
ro

ll
se

g
re

g
at

io
n

o
f

d
u

ti
es

S
eg

re
ga

tio
n

of
du

tie
s

w
ith

in
th

e
pa

yr
ol

lf
un

ct
io

n
en

su
re

s
th

at
st

af
f

m
em

be
rs

ca
rr

y
ou

t
th

ei
r

du
tie

s
as

pe
r

th
ei

r
jo

b
fu

nc
tio

n
an

d
re

du
ce

s
th

e
ris

k
of

em
pl

oy
ee

ov
er

la
p

an
d

fr
au

d.
S

eg
re

ga
tio

n
of

du
tie

s
at

th
e

jo
b

fu
nc

tio
n

le
ve

l
sh

ou
ld

be
re

pl
ic

at
ed

w
ith

in
th

e
IT

sy
st

em
s

to
m

in
im

is
e

th
e

ris
k

of
un

au
th

or
is

ed
ac

ce
ss

to
sy

st
em

s
ou

ts
id

e
th

e
st

af
f

m
em

be
rs

re
m

it.

D
ur

in
g

ou
r

in
te

rim
au

di
t

w
e

no
te

d
th

at
th

er
e

is
no

se
gr

eg
at

io
n

of
du

tie
s

in
th

e
pa

yr
ol

l
de

pa
rt

m
en

t,
en

fo
rc

ed
at

th
e

le
ve

l
of

sy
st

em
ac

ce
ss

.
Th

is
im

pl
ie

s
th

at
al

lp
ay

ro
ll

st
af

f
w

ill
be

ab
le

to
pe

rf
or

m
al

l
fu

nc
tio

ns
on

th
e

sy
st

em
.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

Fo
rm

al
ly

do
cu

m
en

t
th

e
le

ve
lo

f
ac

ce
ss

an
d

fu
nc

tio
na

lit
y

th
at

ea
ch

m
em

be
r

of
pa

yr
ol

l
st

af
f

ne
ed

s
fo

r
th

ei
r

jo
b.

D
em

on
st

ra
te

ho
w

,
in

th
e

ab
se

nc
e

of
sy

st
em

co
nt

ro
ls

,s
eg

re
ga

tio
n

of
du

tie
s

is
ac

hi
ev

ed
.

Th
is

is
a

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
e

of
ha

vi
ng

a
sm

al
l

pa
yr

ol
l

te
am

an
d

ac
ce

ss
le

ve
ls

ar
e

se
t

th
is

w
ay

to
en

su
re

co
nt

in
ui

ty
of

th
e

se
rv

ic
e.

S
eg

re
ga

tio
n

of
du

tie
s

ex
is

ts
be

tw
ee

n
th

os
e

st
af

f
re

sp
on

si
bl

e
fo

r
po

st
s

an
d

th
os

e
re

sp
on

si
bl

e
fo

r
em

pl
oy

ee
s.

W
he

re
po

ss
ib

le
,

al
l

da
ta

en
tr

y
is

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

ch
ec

ke
d

an
d

si
gn

ed
of

f.

Is
su

e
st

ill
st

an
d

s

Th
er

e
co

nt
in

ue
s

to
be

no
sy

st
em

en
fo

rc
ed

se
gr

eg
at

io
n

of
du

tie
s

w
ith

in
th

e
pa

yr
ol

ls
ys

te
m

,
bu

t
th

e
m

an
ag

em
en

t
re

sp
on

se
st

ill
ap

pl
ie

s
in

th
is

si
tu

at
io

n.

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
of

th
e

ne
w

E
R

P
sy

st
em

in
A

pr
il

20
12

w
ill

re
pl

ac
e

th
e

C
hr

is
21

pa
yr

ol
l

sy
st

em
an

d
al

lo
w

th
is

co
nt

ro
l

to
be

re
-e

xa
m

in
ed

.

3
Is

su
e

–
Le

av
er

s
p

ro
ce

ss

O
nl

y
cu

rr
en

t
st

af
f

m
em

be
rs

sh
ou

ld
be

ab
le

to
ac

ce
ss

IT
sy

st
em

s.
Fo

rm
er

st
af

f
m

em
be

rs
sh

ou
ld

ha
ve

th
ei

r
ac

ce
ss

rig
ht

s
re

m
ov

ed
on

le
av

in
g

th
ei

r
jo

b
to

en
su

re
on

ly
ap

pr
op

ria
te

pe
rs

on
s

ha
ve

ac
ce

ss
.

W
e

id
en

tif
ie

d
du

rin
g

th
e

in
te

rim
au

di
t

th
at

th
e

le
av

er
s

pr
oc

es
s

ha
d

no
t

be
en

fo
rm

al
ly

do
cu

m
en

te
d

fo
r

an
y

of
th

e
IT

sy
st

em
s

w
e

re
vi

ew
ed

.
Th

e
C

iv
ic

a
ca

sh
re

ce
ip

tin
g

sy
st

em
ha

s
no

t
ha

d
an

y
ef

fe
ct

iv
e

re
m

ov
al

of
le

av
er

s
du

rin
g

th
e

20
09

/1
0

au
di

t
ye

ar
.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

A
cc

es
s

to
al

l
ke

y
da

ta
sh

ou
ld

be
st

ric
tly

co
nt

ro
lle

d
th

ro
ug

h
a

fo
rm

al
is

ed
pr

oc
es

s,
w

ith
ap

pr
op

ria
te

au
th

or
is

at
io

n
re

ta
in

ed
fo

r
ac

ce
ss

.
A

n
ef

fe
ct

iv
e

an
d

tim
el

y
pr

oc
ed

ur
e

to
pr

oc
es

s
le

av
er

s
fo

r
al

la
pp

lic
at

io
ns

is
es

se
nt

ia
lt

o
en

su
re

th
at

ac
ce

ss
is

ap
pr

op
ria

te
an

d
to

re
du

ce
th

e
po

te
nt

ia
lr

is
k

of
fr

au
d.

Th
is

is
a

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
e

of
ha

vi
ng

a
sm

al
l

pa
yr

ol
l

te
am

an
d

ac
ce

ss
le

ve
ls

ar
e

se
t

th
is

w
ay

to
en

su
re

co
nt

in
ui

ty
of

th
e

se
rv

ic
e.

S
eg

re
ga

tio
n

of
du

tie
s

ex
is

ts
be

tw
ee

n
th

os
e

st
af

f
re

sp
on

si
bl

e
fo

r
po

st
s

an
d

th
os

e
re

sp
on

si
bl

e
fo

r
em

pl
oy

ee
s.

W
he

re
po

ss
ib

le
,

al
l

da
ta

en
tr

y
is

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

ch
ec

ke
d

an
d

si
gn

ed
of

f.

In
p

ro
g

re
ss

Th
e

le
av

er
s

pr
oc

es
s

ha
s

no
w

be
en

fo
rm

al
ly

do
cu

m
en

te
d,

ho
w

ev
er

;
ou

r
te

st
in

g
id

en
tif

ie
d

a
sm

al
l

nu
m

be
r

of
st

af
f

w
ho

ha
d

le
ft

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

in
th

e
ye

ar
un

de
r

au
di

t
bu

t
no

t
ha

d
th

ei
r

ne
tw

or
k

ac
ce

ss
di

sa
bl

ed
.

2 3

Page 60



20
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

F
o

llo
w

-u
p

 o
f 

p
ri

o
r 

ye
ar

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 n
o

t 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

in
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 IS

A
 

26
0 

re
p

o
rt

 2
00

9/
10

. 

W
e 

re
-i

te
ra

te
 t

h
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
ce

 

o
f 

th
e 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

 th
at

 t
h

es
e 

ar
e 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

s 
a 

m
at

te
r 

o
f 

u
rg

en
cy

.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
su

e 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

S
ta

tu
s 

as
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1

4
Is

su
e

–
T

es
ti

n
g

o
f

b
ac

ku
p

s

Th
er

e
is

no
fo

rm
al

te
st

in
g

of
ba

ck
up

s.
W

hi
ls

t
re

st
or

at
io

n
of

en
d

us
er

fil
es

is
pe

rf
or

m
ed

w
he

n
re

qu
es

te
d,

fo
rm

al
re

st
or

es
of

fin
an

ci
al

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

da
ta

ha
s

no
t

be
en

pe
rf

or
m

ed
du

rin
g

th
e

ye
ar

.
W

ith
ou

t
pe

rio
di

c
te

st
in

g
of

th
e

ba
ck

up
s

in
re

la
tio

n
to

fin
an

ci
al

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

da
ta

,
it

is
no

t
po

ss
ib

le
to

en
su

re
in

te
gr

ity
of

th
e

ba
ck

up
m

ed
ia

.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

Th
e

C
ou

nc
il

sh
ou

ld
co

ns
id

er
:

en
su

rin
g

ta
pe

s
co

nt
ai

n
da

ta
;

re
st

or
in

g
te

st
fil

es
to

a
te

st
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t;
co

nd
uc

tin
g

a
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
of

fu
ll

te
st

re
st

or
es

as
pa

rt
of

D
is

as
te

r
R

ec
ov

er
y

te
st

in
g;

an
d

do
cu

m
en

tin
g

th
e

ap
pr

oa
ch

to
re

co
rd

in
g

an
d

te
st

in
g

an
y

re
st

or
es

to
th

e
liv

e
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t
th

at
m

ay
be

co
m

e
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

R
eg

ul
ar

re
st

or
es

fr
om

da
ily

ba
ck

up
s

ar
e

pe
rf

or
m

ed
.

R
es

to
re

s
/

te
st

in
g

to
be

re
vi

ew
ed

af
te

r
si

te
to

si
te

re
pl

ic
at

io
n

ha
s

be
en

in
st

al
le

d.

Is
su

e
st

ill
st

an
d

s

A
lth

ou
gh

w
e

no
te

th
at

re
st

or
at

io
ns

of
sp

ec
ifi

c
fil

es
ar

e
pe

rf
or

m
ed

as
a

re
su

lt
of

en
d

us
er

re
qu

es
ts

,
th

er
e

ar
e

no
fo

rm
al

te
st

re
st

or
at

io
ns

of
w

ho
le

ba
ck

-u
ps

pe
rf

or
m

ed
.

H
ow

ev
er

,
th

e
C

ou
nc

il
an

tic
ip

at
es

th
at

th
e

fo
rt

hc
om

in
g

se
rv

er
re

pl
ic

at
io

n
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

w
ill

al
lo

w
pe

rio
di

c
fo

rm
al

te
st

re
st

or
at

io
ns

.

5
Is

su
e

–
Lo

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

b
ac

ku
p

ta
p

es

In
th

e
ev

en
t

of
a

di
sa

st
er

it
is

es
se

nt
ia

l
th

at
da

ta
ca

n
be

re
tr

ie
ve

d
qu

ic
kl

y
to

en
su

re
m

in
im

um
di

sr
up

tio
n

to
co

un
ci

l
se

rv
ic

es
.

Th
is

ca
n

be
ac

hi
ev

ed
by

ta
ki

ng
re

gu
la

r
ba

ck
up

s
of

IT
sy

st
em

s
an

d
en

su
rin

g
th

at
ba

ck
up

ta
pe

s
ar

e
ke

pt
se

cu
re

ly
.

W
e

no
te

d
th

at
th

e
m

os
t

re
ce

nt
ba

ck
up

ta
pe

s
ar

e
lo

ca
te

d
in

th
e

IC
T

of
fic

e.
In

th
e

ev
en

t
of

di
sa

st
er

to
th

e
m

ai
n

co
un

ci
l

si
te

th
es

e
m

ig
ht

be
lo

st
,

al
on

g
w

ith
th

e
ab

ili
ty

to
re

st
or

e
da

ta
up

to
on

e
w

ee
k

pr
ev

io
us

.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

Th
e

m
os

t
re

ce
nt

ba
ck

up
ta

pe
s

sh
ou

ld
be

st
or

ed
in

su
ch

a
w

ay
th

at
in

th
e

ev
en

t
of

di
sa

st
er

at
th

e
m

ai
n

co
un

ci
l

si
te

,
th

e
ta

pe
s

co
ul

d
be

re
tr

ie
ve

d
an

d
us

ed
at

th
e

di
sa

st
er

re
co

ve
ry

si
te

.

Th
e

da
ily

ta
pe

s
ar

e
cu

rr
en

tly
st

or
ed

in
a

st
ro

ng
ro

om
at

th
e

M
un

ic
ip

al
of

fic
es

.
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

ar
e

un
de

rw
ay

to
fin

d
an

ex
te

rn
al

lo
ca

tio
n

to
st

or
e

da
ily

ta
pe

s.

Th
e

co
un

ci
l

is
lo

ok
in

g
to

in
ve

st
in

si
te

to
si

te
S

A
N

da
ta

re
pl

ic
at

io
n

so
lu

tio
n

la
te

r
on

th
is

ye
ar

.
Th

e
se

co
nd

ar
y

si
te

w
ill

be
lo

ca
te

d
at

th
e

D
ep

ot
si

te
.

In
p

ro
g

re
ss

B
ac

ku
ps

ar
e

cu
rr

en
tly

st
or

ed
of

fs
ite

at
a

si
te

4
m

ile
s

aw
ay

w
hi

ch
re

st
ric

ts
th

e
ab

ili
ty

to
ta

ke
of

fs
ite

on
a

da
ily

ba
si

s;
ho

w
ev

er
th

er
e

is
cu

rr
en

tly
a

pl
an

to
ch

an
ge

th
is

to
a

ga
lle

ry
ne

ar
by

w
hi

ch
co

ul
d

fa
ci

lit
at

e
da

ily
ba

ck
-

up
s

be
in

g
ta

ke
n

of
fs

ite
.

In
ad

di
tio

n,
th

er
e

ar
e

da
ta

re
pl

ic
at

io
n

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
be

in
g

im
pl

em
en

te
d

w
hi

ch
w

ill
al

lo
w

re
pl

ic
at

io
n

of
se

rv
er

s
at

th
e

D
R

si
te

4
m

ile
s

aw
ay

;
th

is
is

in
th

e
pr

oc
es

s
of

be
in

g
im

pl
em

en
te

d
in

th
e

20
11

/1
2

fin
an

ci
al

ye
ar

.

1 2

Page 61



21
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

F
o

llo
w

-u
p

 o
f 

p
ri

o
r 

ye
ar

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 n
o

t 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

in
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 IS

A
 

26
0 

re
p

o
rt

 2
00

9/
10

. 

W
e 

re
-i

te
ra

te
 t

h
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
ce

 

o
f 

th
e 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

 th
at

 t
h

es
e 

ar
e 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

s 
a 

m
at

te
r 

o
f 

u
rg

en
cy

.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
su

e 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

S
ta

tu
s 

as
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
20

11

6
Is

su
e 

–
La

ck
 o

f 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

b
an

k 
re

co
n

ci
lia

ti
o

n
Th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

an
k 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n 
re

vi
ew

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 n
ot

 
ev

id
en

ce
d 

by
 a

 s
ig

na
tu

re
 a

nd
 d

at
e 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
no

 
au

di
t 

tr
ai

l e
xi

st
s 

of
 t

he
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

vi
ew

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l p
ro

ce
ss

es
. 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

Th
e 

ba
nk

 r
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

ns
 a

re
 s

ig
ne

d 
an

d 
da

te
d 

as
 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

m
on

th
ly

 r
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

.

A
lth

ou
gh

 re
gu

la
rly

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
, 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
at

 n
o 

fo
rm

al
 s

ig
na

to
ry

 w
as

 e
vi

de
nt

 
fo

r 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
ns

 
an

d 
ha

s 
pu

t 
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t t
o 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
fu

tu
re

 
ba

nk
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
ns

 a
re

 s
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

da
te

d.

T
o

b
e

re
vi

ew
ed

at
fi

n
al

au
d

it
vi

si
t

7
Is

su
e

–
La

ck
o

f
h

ig
h

le
ve

lm
o

n
th

ly
p

ay
ro

ll
re

vi
ew

W
e

no
te

d
th

at
cu

rr
en

tly
th

er
e

is
no

hi
gh

le
ve

lr
ev

ie
w

of
th

e
pa

yr
ol

l
be

fo
re

au
th

or
is

at
io

n
an

d
pa

ym
en

t
ea

ch
m

on
th

.
A

ce
nt

ra
l

hi
gh

le
ve

l
re

vi
ew

co
ul

d
ch

ec
k

an
y

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
m

on
th

on
m

on
th

va
ria

nc
es

be
fo

re
pa

ym
en

t
of

th
e

pa
yr

ol
l.

Th
er

e
is

lim
ite

d
pa

yr
ol

l
ex

ce
pt

io
n

re
po

rt
in

g
w

ith
th

e
cu

rr
en

t
pa

yr
ol

l
sy

st
em

an
d

th
is

hi
gh

le
ve

l
ov

er
vi

ew
w

ou
ld

pr
ov

id
ed

ad
de

d
as

su
ra

nc
e

un
til

a
ne

w
pa

yr
ol

ls
ys

te
m

is
in

tr
od

uc
ed

.
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
A

m
on

th
ly

hi
gh

le
ve

l
re

vi
ew

ex
am

in
in

g
an

y
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

m
on

th
ly

va
ria

nc
es

w
ou

ld
gi

ve
ad

di
tio

na
l

as
su

ra
nc

es
of

th
e

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s
an

d
ac

cu
ra

cy
of

th
e

pa
yr

ol
l

pa
ym

en
t

w
hi

ch
is

on
e

of
th

e
m

os
t

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
co

st
s

of
th

e
co

un
ci

l.

A
s

ag
re

ed
fo

llo
w

in
g

th
e

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

of
th

e
re

ce
nt

in
te

rn
al

au
di

t
re

vi
ew

,
w

ith
ef

fe
ct

fr
om

S
ep

te
m

be
r

20
10

th
e

pa
yr

ol
l

B
A

C
S

au
th

or
is

at
io

n
fo

rm
an

d
su

pp
or

tin
g

pa
pe

rs
w

ill
be

re
vi

ew
ed

an
d

si
gn

ed
of

f
by

a
m

an
ag

er
in

de
pe

nd
en

t
of

th
e

pa
yr

ol
li

np
ut

te
am

.

T
o

b
e

re
vi

ew
ed

at
fi

n
al

au
d

it
vi

si
t

2 2

Page 62



22
©

 2
01

1 
K

P
M

G
 L

LP
, a

 U
K

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p,

 is
 a

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 K

P
M

G
 E

ur
op

e 
LL

P
 a

nd
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f t

he
 K

P
M

G
 n

et
w

or
k

of
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 
a 

S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 it
s 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 K

P
M

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
K

P
M

G
lo

go
 a

re
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e,
 a

 S
w

is
s 

en
tit

y.
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

F
o

llo
w

-u
p

 o
f 

p
ri

o
r 

ye
ar

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 n
o

t 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

in
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 IS

A
 

26
0 

re
p

o
rt

 2
00

9/
10

. 

W
e 

re
-i

te
ra

te
 t

h
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
ce

 

o
f 

th
e 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

 th
at

 t
h

es
e 

ar
e 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

s 
a 

m
at

te
r 

o
f 

u
rg

en
cy

.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
su

e 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

S
ta

tu
s 

as
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
20

11

8
Is

su
e

–
La

ck
o

f
ev

id
en

ce
o

f
re

vi
ew

o
f

in
co

m
e

re
co

n
ci

lia
ti

o
n

s
W

e
no

te
d

th
at

cu
rr

en
tly

th
er

e
is

a
la

ck
of

ev
id

en
ce

of
th

e
re

vi
ew

of
th

e
in

co
m

e
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n

of
th

e
de

bt
or

s
sy

st
em

to
th

e
ca

sh
re

ce
ip

tin
g

sy
st

em
us

in
g

th
e

da
ily

A
S

H
re

po
rt

s,
as

th
e

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n
is

no
t

si
gn

ed
or

da
te

d.
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
Th

e
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

ar
e

si
gn

ed
an

d
da

te
d

as
ev

id
en

ce
of

re
vi

ew
w

hi
ch

le
av

es
a

cl
ea

r
au

di
t

tr
ai

lo
f

th
e

co
m

pl
et

io
n

of
th

e
co

nt
ro

l.

Th
e

S
en

io
r

R
ev

en
ue

s
C

on
tr

ol
O

ff
ic

er
w

ill
in

fu
tu

re
in

iti
al

an
d

da
te

th
e

fil
e

as
ev

id
en

ce
of

a
w

ee
kl

y
re

vi
ew

.
In

ad
di

tio
n

th
e

R
ev

en
ue

s
M

an
ag

er
w

ill
al

so
in

iti
al

an
d

da
te

th
e

fil
e

w
he

n
re

vi
ew

in
g

th
e

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n
on

a
m

on
th

ly
ba

si
s.

T
o

b
e

re
vi

ew
ed

at
fi

n
al

au
d

it
vi

si
t

9
Is

su
e

–
la

ck
o

f
d

o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

N
N

D
R

re
co

n
ci

lia
ti

o
n

W
e

no
te

d
th

at
th

er
e

is
a

la
ck

of
ev

id
en

ce
of

th
e

re
vi

ew
of

th
e

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n
be

tw
ee

n
th

e
N

N
D

R
an

d
th

e
IB

S
re

po
rt

s.
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
Th

e
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

ar
e

si
gn

ed
an

d
da

te
d

to
ev

id
en

ce
th

at
th

e
co

nt
ro

li
s

op
er

at
in

g
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y.

A
sp

re
ad

sh
ee

t
is

co
m

pl
et

ed
do

cu
m

en
tin

g
th

e
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n.

A
s

w
ith

is
su

e
3

ab
ov

e,
th

e
fil

e
w

ill
be

in
iti

al
le

d
an

d
da

te
d

by
th

e
S

en
io

r
R

ev
en

ue
s

C
on

tr
ol

O
ff

ic
er

on
a

w
ee

kl
y

ba
si

s
an

d
by

th
e

R
ev

en
ue

s
M

an
ag

er
m

on
th

ly
.

T
o

b
e

re
vi

ew
ed

at
fi

n
al

au
d

it
vi

si
t

2 2

Page 63



©
 2

01
1 

K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l. 
K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l i

s 
a 

S
w

is
s 

co
op

er
at

iv
e 

of
 

w
hi

ch
 a

ll 
K

P
M

G
 fi

rm
s 

ar
e 

m
em

be
rs

. K
P

M
G

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l p
ro

vi
de

s 
no

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 c
lie

nt
s.

 E
ac

h 
m

em
be

r f
irm

 is
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t l
eg

al
 e

nt
ity

 a
nd

 
ea

ch
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 it
se

lf 
as

 s
uc

h.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.

T
he

 K
P

M
G

 n
am

e,
 lo

go
 a

nd
 ‘c

ut
tin

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
pl

ex
ity

’ a
re

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

tr
ad

em
ar

ks
 o

r 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f K

P
M

G
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e 
(K

P
M

G
 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).

Page 64



Agenda Item 9
Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70
This page is intentionally left blank



   
$rwbi2eow.doc Page 1 of 2 Last updated 13 June 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Audit Committee – 22 June 2011 

The Future of Local Public Audit - Consultation 
 

Accountable member Corporate Services - Cllr Colin Hay  
Accountable officer Audit Partnership Manager - Robert Milford  
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy and Business Improvement Overview and Scrutiny 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary The Corporate Governance Group has reviewed the DCLG consultation 

document and drafted a reponse. However, as this document directly relates 
to the roles, responsibilities and structure of the Audit Committee it is 
important that the Council’s Audit Committee Members have an opportunity 
to comment. It is envisaged, following Audit Committee comment, that an 
updated response would be sent to DCLG in time to meet the 30th June 
2011 deadline. 

The Future of Local Public Audit Appendix  A 
Corporate Governance Group draft response Appendix B 

Recommendations That the Audit Committee considers and comments on the 
consultation questions 

 
Financial implications None arising directly from this report. However, the costs associated with 

the Auditor and Independent Members will need to be addressed when the 
proposals are finalised.  
Contact officer: Mark Sheldon 
E-mail: mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264123 

Legal implications There are no Legal issues arising directly from this report. Although there 
will be implications arising when the proposals are finalised and enforced. 
Contact officer:   Sara Freckleton 
E-mail: sara.freckleton@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272010 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR issues arising directly from this report.  
Contact officer: Amanda Attfield 
E-mail: amanda.attfield@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264186 

Agenda Item 10
Page 71



   
$rwbi2eow.doc Page 2 of 2 Last updated 13 June 2011 
 

Key risks This consultation document relates to the role of the Audit Committee and 
the appointment of the Auditor. It is necessary to respond to this 
consultation to help inform the proposals so that inefficient or ineffective 
processes are not introduced. 

 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

N/A 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

N/A 

1. Background 
  
1.1 On 13 August 2010, the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government announced 

plans to disband the Audit Commission transfer the work of the Audit Commission’s in-house 
practice into the private sector and put in place a new local audit framework. Local authorities 
would be free to appoint their own independent external auditors and there would be a new audit 
framework for local health bodies. A new decentralised audit regime would be established and 
councils and local health bodies would still be subject to robust auditing.  

 
1.2 The Secretary of State was clear that safeguards would be developed to ensure independence, 

competence and quality, regulated within a statutory framework.  
 
1.3 This consultation (Appendix 1) paper discusses the Government’s proposals for how a new local 

audit framework could work and seeks your views. .  
 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The DCLG proposals directly impact on the roles and responsibilities of the Audit 

Committee and its structure. It is therefore appropriate for this committee to comment on 
these proposals. 
 

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 The DCLG proposal offers, at various points, differing options of structuring the Audit Committee, 

process for appointment of the Auditor, etc. The Corporate Governance Group has responded to 
these various options (Appendix 2). The Audit Committee members are invited to comment and 
make further suggestions on the various options. 

4. Monitoring and review 
4.1 The Audit Committee will be informed of the results of the consultation when they are available. 

Report author Contact officer:   Robert Milford – 01242 264115 
robert.milford@cheltenham.gov. 

Appendices 1. Consultation document 
2. Question and answers document 

Background information  
 
 

Page 72



Future of local public audit 
Consultation

www.communities.gov.uk

Page 73



Future of local public audit 
Consultation

March 2011 
Department for Communities and Local Government 

Page 74



Department for Communities and Local Government 
Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London
SW1E 5DU 
Telephone: 030 3444 0000 
Website: www.communities.gov.uk 

! Crown Copyright, 2011 

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

This publication, excluding logos, may be reproduced free of charge in any 
format or medium for research, private study or for internal circulation within 
an organisation. This is subject to it being reproduced accurately and not used 
in a misleading context. The material must be acknowledged as Crown 
copyright and the title of the publication specified. 

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any 
format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view 
this licence, visit http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-
licence/ or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, 
London TW9 4DU, or e-mail: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

If you require this publication in an alternative format please email 
alternativeformats@communities.gsi.gov.uk

DCLG Publications 
Tel: 030 0123 1124 
Fax: 030 0123 1125 

Email: product@communities.gsi.gov.uk
Online via the website: www.communities.gov.uk

March 2011 

ISBN: 978 1 4098 2933 1 

Page 75



Contents

Ministerial foreword 4
Glossary 6

What is audit and why is it important? 10
Current arrangements for the audit of local 
public bodies 11
Proposals for a new audit framework for local 
public bodies 11
Design Principles 12
What this consultation covers 13
Audit Commission functions excluded from this 
consultation 14
Timing and how to get involved 15
Costs 15
Who are we consulting? 16
How to respond 16

1: Introduction 

Publication of responses 16

Standards and Codes of Practice 18
Registration of auditors 19

2: Regulation of local 
public audit 

Monitoring and Enforcement 22

Duty to appoint an auditor 23
Role of the audit committee 27
Involvement of the public in the appointment of 
an auditor 29
Applicability to other sectors 30
Failure to appoint an auditor 30
Rotation of audit firms and audit staff 32
Resignation or Removal of an auditor 33

3: Commissioning 
local public audit 
services

Auditor Liability 36

Scope of local public audit 37
Public Interest Reporting 41
Provision of non-audit services 42
Public Interest Disclosure 44

4: Scope of audit and 
the work of auditors 

Transparency 45

Current system 48
Appointing the examiner 53
Public Interest Reporting for smaller bodies 54
Objection to accounts for smaller bodies 54

5: Arrangements for 
smaller bodies 

Regulatory Regime for smaller bodies 55
6: List of consultation 
questions List of consultation questions 56

Appendix A Audited bodies published accounts 60
Appendix B List of bodies to which the Audit Commission 

appoints auditors in England 61
Appendix C Recognised supervisory bodies and recognised 

qualifying bodies in England 63

3

Page 76



Ministerial foreword

“…The Audit Commission has lost its way. Rather than being a watchdog that 
champions taxpayers' interests, it has become the creature of the Whitehall state. 
We need to redress this balance.” 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 13 August 2010 

On 13 August, the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
announced our plans to disband the Audit Commission and re-focus audit on helping 
local people hold their councils and other local public bodies to account for local 
spending decisions. 

We want to drive power downwards to people. We want local public bodies to be 
more accountable to their citizens, to you the taxpayer, rather than upwards to 
Whitehall. That is what localism is all about. 

The current arrangements for local audit, whereby a single organisation - the Audit 
Commission - is the regulator, commissioner and provider of local audit services are 
inefficient and unnecessarily centralised. The Audit Commission has increased the 
professionalism and the quality of local government audit, but, it has also become 
too focused on reporting to central Government and supporting the previous era of a 
target driven Government.  

We are clear that centralised inspection and supervision have no part in localism and 
that they can be an unnecessary burden on frontline services at a time when they 
must be tightening their belts and focusing on service delivery; they also drive a 
culture of compliance rather than initiative and problem solving. If our local services 
are going to be genuinely responsive, tailored to the needs of local people, then they 
must be accountable to those same people. This is why we want to put in place a 
new locally focused audit regime, which is open and transparent but retains the high 
quality of audit that we expect. 

This consultation sets out our vision for the future of local audit.  This vision is firmly 
based on four principles. The first of these is localism. When reforms are complete 
local public bodies will be free to appoint their own independent external auditors 
from a more competitive and open market. The second is transparency; local public 
bodies will become increasingly accountable for their spending decisions to the 
people who ultimately provide their resources. The third is to remove the overheads 
charged by the Audit Commission to service the central government machine. At a 
time when we are taking decisive action to reduce the deficit, we think it is important 
that we deliver a framework which sees a reduction in the overall cost of audit to 
local bodies. The fourth principle is high standards of auditing. Make no mistake, we 
are determined that audit will remain both robust and efficient and that the new 
framework will follow the established principles of public audit. 

To meet these principles, the consultation sets out proposals which would see all 
local public bodies with a turnover of over £6.5m appointing their own independent 
auditor. This appointment would be made on the advice of an independent audit 
committee.

4

Page 77



Auditors would be regulated under a system which mirrors that of the audit of 
companies with a role for the Financial Reporting Council and the professional audit 
bodies. We envisage that the National Audit Office will set the code of audit practice 
and we have put forward options for the scope of audit in the new framework. The 
consultation document also sets out how transparency will be increased in the new 
framework and our proposals for auditing smaller bodies with a turnover below 
£6.5m in a proportionate way.

Alongside these proposals, the consultation asks a number of questions, to which I 
would welcome your responses. Your contribution will help us to further develop the 
framework before publishing legislation in draft in the autumn. 

We look forward to hearing your comments on how we can make the future of local 
audit robust and efficient while ensuring that local public bodies are truly accountable 
to those they serve. 

Rt. Hon Grant Shapps MP

5

Page 78



Glossary

Accountancy and Actuarial Disciplinary Board  
An independent board which has the ability to investigate and discipline accountants 
and actuaries who are members of the following professional bodies: the Association 
of Chartered Certified Accountants; the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants; the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy and the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales; the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Ireland and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland.
http://www.frc.org.uk/aadb/

Charities Act 1993 
The Charities Act 1993 sets out the regulatory framework in which charities operate. 
http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/About_us/Regulation/default.aspx

CIPFA
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy is the professional body for 
people in public finance. 
www.cipfa.org.uk

Companies Act 2006 
The Companies Act 2006 forms the primary source of UK company law. 
http://www.companieshouse.gov.uk/companiesAct/companiesAct.shtml

Comptroller and Auditor General 
Created by the Exchequer and Audit Departments Act 1866 to authorise funding to 
Government departments and examine departmental accounts, reporting the results 
to Parliament.

Drainage Boards 
An operating authority, established in areas of England and Wales with particular 
drainage needs. The Board is responsible for work to secure clean water drainage 
and water level management.
http://www.ada.org.uk/

Financial Reporting Council 
The Financial Reporting Council is the UK’s independent regulator responsible for 
promoting high quality corporate governance and reporting to foster investment. 
They also oversee the regulatory activities of the professional accountancy bodies 
and operate independent disciplinary arrangements for public interest cases 
involving accountants and actuaries. 
http://frc.org.uk/

6

Page 79



Freedom of Information Act 2000 
Legislation which enables any member of the public to request information from a 
public body. 

Grant Certification 
The Audit Commission is required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to make 
arrangements for the certification of grant claims when requested to do so by public 
bodies in receipt of grant funds. 

Health and Social Care Bill 
The Bill takes forward the areas of Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS (July 
2010) and the subsequent Government response Liberating the NHS: legislative 
framework and next steps (December 2010). It also includes provision to strengthen 
public health services and reform the Department’s arm’s length bodies. 

International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS is an independent, not for profit private sector organisation which works on 
behalf of the public sector to develop standardised financial reporting standards.
http://www.ifrs.org/

LASAAC
The Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LASAAC) develops 
and promotes proper accounting practice for local government in Scotland in line 
with legislation, International Financial Reporting Standards (overseen by the 
International Accounting Standards Board) and the work of the Financial Reporting 
Advisory Board. 
http://www.cipfa.org.uk/pt/cipfalasaac/index.cfm

Lord Sharman
Liberal Democrat peer, previously the spokesman for Business, Enterprise and 
Regulatory Reform and former chairman of KMPG. Lord Sharman’s review of audit 
and accountability for central government, Holding to Account: the Review of Audit 
and Accountability in Central Government was published in February 2001.   
http://archive.treasury.gov.uk/docs/2001/sharman_1302.html

Management Commentary  
A narrative report which provides the context or background to the financial position, 
performance and cash flow of an authority or public body.

National Fraud Initiative 
Since 1996 the Audit Commission has run the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), an 
exercise that matches electronic data within and between audited bodies to prevent 

7

Page 80



and detect fraud. This includes police authorities, local probation boards and fire and 
rescue authorities as well as local councils. 
www.audit-commission.gov.uk/nfi

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Bill 
The Bill will make the police service more accountable to local people by replacing 
police authorities with directly elected police and crime commissioners to be 
introduced from May 2012. 

Professional Oversight Board 
The Professional Oversight Board (POB), formerly known as the Professional 
Oversight Board for Accountancy, is a UK regulatory body specialising in the 
accounting, auditing and actuarial professions. 
www.frc.org.uk/pob

Public Audit Forum 
The public audit agencies, the National Audit Office, the Northern Ireland Audit 
Office, the Audit Commission for Local Authorities and the National Health Service in 
England, the Wales Audit Office and Audit Scotland have established the Public 
Audit Forum to provide a focus for developmental thinking in relation to public audit.  
http://www.public-audit-forum.gov.uk

Public Interest Reports 
Under Section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the appointed auditor is required 
to consider whether to issue a report in the public interest on any significant matter 
coming to his or her notice in the course of an audit, and to bring it to the attention of 
the audited body and the public. 

Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 is an Act that protects whistleblowers from 
detrimental treatment by their employer. 

Remuneration report
Companies produce a report containing certain information concerning director’s 
remuneration, governed by the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, 

Section 151 officer 
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and requires one 
officer to be nominated to take responsibility for the administration of those affairs.

8

Page 81



Special Health Authorities
Special health authorities are health authorities that provide a health service to the 
whole of England, not just to a local community. They have been set up to provide a 
national service to the NHS or the public under section 9 of the NHS Act 1977. They 
are independent, but can be subject to ministerial direction in the same way as other 
NHS bodies.

Unitary Authority 
Since 1996 the two-tier structure of local government has ceased to exist in Scotland 
and Wales, and in some parts of England, and has been replaced by single-tier 
unitary authorities, responsible for all local government services.

Whole of Government Accounts 
Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) are full accruals based accounts covering 
the whole public sector and audited by the National Audit Office. WGA is a 
consolidation of the accounts of about 1500 bodies from central government, 
devolved administrations, the health service, local government and public 
corporations.

9

Page 82



Section 1

1. Introduction 

1.1. On 13 August 2010, the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government announced plans to disband the Audit Commission, transfer the 
work of the Audit Commission’s in-house practice into the private sector and put 
in place a new local audit framework. Local authorities would be free to appoint 
their own independent external auditors and there would be a new audit 
framework for local health bodies.  A new decentralised audit regime would be 
established and councils and local health bodies would still be subject to robust 
auditing.

1.2. The Secretary of State was clear that safeguards would be developed to ensure 
independence, competence and quality, regulated within a statutory framework.

1.3. This consultation paper discusses the Government’s proposals for how a new 
local audit framework could work and seeks your views.

1.4. This document has been developed by the Department for Communities and 
Local Government. Our proposals have been discussed with a wide range of 
partners and bodies which will be affected by the changes. These include the 
Audit Commission, the National Audit Office, the Financial Reporting Council, 
accountancy professional bodies, local government, other local public bodies 
and Government departments with an interest. 

What is audit and why is it important? 

1.5. An audit is the review of financial statements, resulting in the publication of an 
independent opinion on whether those statements have been prepared, in all 
material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 
framework and present a true and fair view. A summary of accounting 
arrangements for local bodies other than those in the health sector is at 
appendix A.

1.6. The audit of public bodies plays a key role in ensuring that those responsible for 
handling public money are held accountable for the use of that money. Public 
audit strengthens accountability, both upwards to the elected or appointed 
members who make decisions about the allocation of resources, and outwards 
to the consumers and beneficiaries, taxpayers and the wider community.
Regular public audit also provides assurance on bodies’ arrangements for 
managing their finances properly, including their arrangements for value for 
money and to safeguard public money.

10

Page 83



Current arrangements for the audit of local public bodies in England 

1.7. There are approximately 11,000 local public bodies which, together, are 
responsible for some £200bn of public money.  Of these, there are 353 local 
authorities; 268 NHS bodies (in addition to Special Health Authorities audited by 
the National Audit Office, and Foundation Trusts); 38 police authorities; and 215 
other bodies, including fire and rescue authorities; national park authorities; 
conservation boards; larger internal drainage boards, joint committees; and 
probation trusts. The remaining 9,800 bodies, with income or expenditure 
ranging from £1m down to £1,000 or less, comprise: 9,400 parish and town 
councils; 150 internal drainage boards; and 250 other bodies (for example, 
charter trustees and port health authorities). A list of the categories of bodies 
audited by the Audit Commission is set out in Appendix B. 

1.8. The current system for the audit of local public bodies is operated and overseen 
by the Audit Commission under the provisions of the Audit Commission Act 
1998 (as amended).  Since its inception in 1983, the Audit Commission has 
acted as the regulator, commissioner and provider of local audit services.

1.9. Acting as the overall regulator, the Audit Commission publishes two statutory 
Codes of audit practice - one for local government bodies and one for health 
bodies - which are approved by Parliament. These set the standards for audit 
and require auditors to comply with the auditing and ethical standards issued by 
the Auditing Practices Board1 (which is part of the Financial Reporting 
Council)2.  The Commission monitors the quality of audit, although the 
professional accountancy bodies also monitor their members.

1.10.Acting as the commissioner, the Audit Commission appoints auditors, either 
from its in-house practice or from firms contracted to the Commission, to local 
public bodies.

1.11.The Audit Commission also acts as the main provider in the current system, 
with 70 per cent of local public audits undertaken by its in-house practice. 

Proposals for a new audit framework for local public bodies 

1.12.The Government believes that the current arrangements for local public audit, 
whereby a single organisation is the regulator, commissioner and provider of 
local audit services are unnecessarily centralised. There is a lack of 
transparency and clarity as well as potential conflicts between the roles.   

1.13.The proposals set out in this consultation build on the statutory arrangements 
and professional ethical and technical standards that currently apply to 
companies.  However, those arrangements have been adapted to ensure that 
the principles of public sector audit are maintained.

1 http://www.frc.org.uk/apb/
2 http://www.frc.org.uk/

11

Page 84



1.14.The proposed new local audit regime would continue to provide Parliament with 
the assurances it needs on public spending. The National Audit Office would 
prepare the Codes of audit practice, which prescribe the way in which auditors 
are to carry out their functions, and which would continue to be approved by 
Parliament, and associated guidance. The National Audit Office would also 
continue to audit Government departments providing funding to local public 
bodies and will continue to receive Whole of Government Accounts returns.  
Registration of audit firms and auditors, as well as monitoring and enforcement 
of audit standards, would be undertaken by the accountancy professional 
bodies, under the supervision of the Financial Reporting Council (as this builds 
on their existing role in the regulation of private sector auditors) and its 
operating bodies.

1.15.Principal local authorities would appoint their own auditors, with decisions made 
by full council, taking into account advice from an independently chaired audit 
committee.  Different arrangements would apply for some other local public 
bodies and these are explained in section 3. 

1.16.Localism and decentralisation can only work if central government is prepared 
to trust local bodies, communities and citizens.  We have aimed to design a 
local audit system which provides the rigour needed for Parliament, but allows 
local public bodies to take more responsibility in the way they procure audit 
services.  These changes go hand in hand with the Government’s actions to 
increase transparency in local government and will help enable local people 
and local organisations to hold their local public bodies to account for the way 
that their money is spent. 

Design principles 

1.17.In proposing a new framework for local public audit, we have followed a set of 
design principles:

! localism and decentralisation – freeing up local public bodies, subject to 
appropriate safeguards, to appoint their own independent external auditors 
from a more competitive and open market, while ensuring a proportionate 
approach for smaller bodies 

! transparency – ensuring that the results of audit work are easily accessible 
to the public, helping local people to hold councils and other local public 
bodies to account for local spending decisions 

! lower audit fees – achieving a reduction in the overall cost of audit 
! high standards of auditing – ensuring that there is effective and transparent 

regulation of public audit, and conformity to the principles of public audit  

1.18.These principles are not wholly independent.  For instance, there is a clear 
relationship between the quality and scope of the audit and the level of audit 
fees. We wish to find the right balance to ensure an effective, robust, quality 
audit for local bodies while keeping fees as low as possible.

12

Page 85



1.19.We have also had regard to the principles of local public audit, which were 
codified in 1998 by the Public Audit Forum, but have deep historical roots. They 
are:

! Independence of public sector auditors from the organisations being 
audited.  Auditors must be independent, to avoid improper influence and 
allow work to be carried out freely.  Independence encompasses the methods 
of appointment of auditors; the financial relationship between auditor and 
audited bodies, discretion in the amount of work necessary, the ability to 
follow up the implementation of recommendations, and the ability to have 
access to information necessary for audit work.

! The wide scope of public audit, covering the audit of financial 
statements, regularity, propriety and value for money.  Public audit 
involves more than an opinion on accounts.  It also covers issues such as 
regularity, propriety and value for money.  In this way, it helps to contribute to 
corporate governance arrangements of public bodies.

! The ability of public auditors to make the results of their audits available 
to the public, to democratically elected representatives and other key 
stakeholders.  To be effective, there must be appropriate reporting 
arrangements, under which auditors report the results of their work both to the 
bodies responsible for funding and to the public.  

Q1:  Have we identified the correct design principles?  If not what other 
principles should be considered? Do the proposals in this document meet 
these design principles? 

What this consultation covers 

1.20.This consultation focuses on the audit of local public bodies that currently have 
auditors appointed by the Audit Commission.  It sets out, in sections 2 and 3, 
our proposals for the regulation and commissioning of audit, including the 
various elements of the new regulatory framework and the role local public 
bodies will have when appointing an auditor.  Section 4 covers the scope of 
local public audit and the work of auditors, while section 5 deals with the way 
that the proposed framework would apply to smaller local bodies, such as 
parish councils.

LOCAL BODIES COVERED BY THIS CONSULTATION 
1.21.This document sets out proposals for a new framework for most bodies 

currently audited by the Audit Commission and listed in appendix B.

1.22.However, the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Bill, which is currently 
before Parliament, aims to make a number of significant reforms to the policing 
system. This includes provisions to abolish police authorities (excluding the City 
of London) and replace them with directly elected Police and Crime 
Commissioners for each police force outside London, and the Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime for the Metropolitan Police. 

13

Page 86



1.23.Police and Crime Commissioners (and Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime) 
will be responsible for holding the Chief Constable (and Commissioner for 
London) of their police force to account for the full range of their responsibilities.

1.24.Probation services, which used to be part of Local Government’s remit, have 
been a responsibility of central government since consolidation into the Home 
Office in 2000-01. The financial results of probation trusts have been 
consolidated into the National Offender Management Service accounts, which 
are audited by the Comptroller and Auditor General.  We believe, therefore, that 
probation trusts should in future be audited by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General.

Q2: Do you agree that the audit of probation trusts should fall within the 
Comptroller and Auditor General’s regime?

1.25.Pension funds are not statutorily subject to a full audit separate from that of the 
local authority. However, the Audit Commission has used its regulatory powers 
to require pension funds to be audited separately. We propose to include 
pension funds on the list of local public bodies subject to the new local audit 
framework.

1.26.We consider that Joint Committees should remain subject to audit, but it will be 
for the constituent authorities making up the Joint Committee to decide whether 
the Joint Committee is audited separately or as part of one of the authorities’ 
own audits. 

1.27.The abolition of the Audit Commission will also impact on the audit 
arrangements for local health bodies. Currently, the Strategic Health 
Authorities, Primary Care Trusts and NHS Trusts are audited under the Audit 
Commission framework.  The Health and Social Care Bill, currently before 
Parliament, aims to abolish Strategic Health Authorities and Primary Care 
Trusts and provides for all NHS Trusts to become Foundation Trusts by 2014. 
The Department of Health is considering the governance and accountability 
arrangements for the new health landscape and these will help determine the 
appropriate audit arrangements. The local public bodies referred to in this 
consultation paper do not therefore include local health bodies. However, health 
bodies will be included in draft legislation on the proposals for the new local 
audit framework. The Department of Health will publish a paper summarising its 
proposals at the same time. 

Audit Commission functions excluded from this consultation 

1.28.There are a number of functions that are or have been carried out by the Audit 
Commission that are not considered as part of this consultation.  The Secretary 
of State has announced that the Commission’s inspection and research 
activities would cease. In general, local government and others outside of 
central Government are well-placed to decide when and where research should 

14

Page 87



be undertaken.  In addition, the National Audit Office, following confirmation of 
its existing powers, will be able, when reporting to Parliament on the activities of 
central Government departments, to examine the impact of policies 
administered by local bodies.  As well as contributing to parliamentary 
accountability, this will provide useful insights for local communities by drawing 
out examples of what works successfully in different circumstances and how 
barriers to good value for money are being overcome.

1.29.It will also be possible for an auditor to undertake value for money studies 
connected to audit work, with the agreement of the audited body.  In addition, 
the National Audit Office would be able to identify and report on wider issues of 
concern about local bodies’ use of resources or common themes of interest, 
should such issues be identified by the audit process.  They could do this, in 
part, by drawing upon the work of local auditors. 

1.30.Other functions, such as grant certification, operation of the National Fraud 
Initiative and the auditor function of reporting on Whole of Government 
Accounts returns will continue in some form, but are not considered in detail 
here.  These issues will be covered in the forthcoming draft bill and 
accompanying consultation.   

1.31.The Audit Commission appoints auditors to all local public bodies in England.  It 
appoints its own auditors from the in-house practice to 70 per cent of local 
public bodies, with the remaining 30 per cent of auditors employed by 
accountancy firms under contract to the Commission.  We are considering a 
range of options for transferring the Commission’s in-house audit practice into 
the private sector.  We expect that an announcement on our preferred option for 
privatisation of the Commission’s audit work will be made ahead of publication 
of a draft audit bill. 

Timing and how to get involved 

1.32.This initial consultation will run for 12 weeks with responses invited by 30 June. 
Following this period, we will consider the responses we receive and will publish 
a summary and a Government response. 

1.33.We then propose to publish draft legislation on the proposals for a new local 
audit framework which will be subject to pre-legislative scrutiny by Parliament 
and other interested parties. As part of this process, we will consult again on 
our proposals, and will publish a consultation stage impact assessment.
Following pre-legislative scrutiny, we will prepare for final legislation to be 
introduced at the earliest opportunity. 

Costs

1.34.We are developing an impact assessment which will be published alongside the 
draft Bill.  We would therefore be interested in your views on the costs and 
benefits of the proposals and options set out in this consultation.  This evidence 
will inform the draft bill proposals and help refine the impact assessment.      

15

Page 88



Who are we consulting?

1.35.We would welcome comments from organisations affected by the change to the 
audit of local public bodies, and any other bodies or individuals. This document 
is available on the Department for Communities and Local Government website 
(www.communities.gov.uk) and we will be drawing it to the attention of all public 
bodies currently audited by the Audit Commission, to professional bodies and 
those involved in regulating audit in England. It is open to all to make 
representations on the proposed new system of local audit and all submissions 
will be carefully considered.

How to respond  

1.36.Your response must be received by 30 June 2011 to:

fola@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Or to: 
Luke Scofield 
The Department for Communities and Local Government  
Zone 3/G6
Eland House
Bressenden Place
London SW1E 5DU

1.37.Please use the title ‘Response to future of local audit consultation’.  

1.38.It would be helpful if you could make clear in your response whether you 
represent an organisation or group, and in what capacity you are responding.  

Publication of responses – confidentiality and data protection

1.39.Information provided in response to this consultation, including personal 
information, may be published, or disclosed in accordance with the access to 
information regimes (these are primarily the Freedom of Information Act 2000, 
the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Environmental Information Regulations 
2004).

1.40.If you want any information you provide to be treated as confidential you should 
be aware that under the Freedom of Information Act, there is a statutory Code 
of Practice with which public authorities must comply, and which deals, 
amongst other things, with obligations of confidence. In view of this, it would be 
helpful if you could explain to us why you regard the information you have 
provided as confidential.

1.41.If we receive a request for disclosure of the information we will take full account 
of your explanation, but we cannot give any assurance that confidentiality can 
be maintained in all circumstances. An automatic confidentiality disclaimer 

16

Page 89



generated by your IT system will not, of itself, be regarded as binding on the 
Department.

1.42.The Department will process your personal data in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act and in the majority of circumstances this will mean that your 
personal data will not be disclosed to third parties.  

17

Page 90



Section 2 

2. Regulation of local public audit 

2.1. Audit systems in the UK for both the public and private sector follow the 
International Standards on Auditing. These include the following common 
elements of regulation:

! standards – setting out what comprises the audit and the quality standards 
that apply 

! registration – determining who can audit and ensuring that auditors have the 
necessary skills, expertise and qualifications in order that there can be 
confidence in the auditors’ work 

! monitoring and enforcement – ensuring that standards are met and that 
appropriate action is taken in the case of failure 

2.2. The Government believes that having a specific regulator for the local 
government and the local health sectors in England - less than 10% of the audit 
market – risks duplication.  We therefore consider that, to the extent possible, 
there should be a consistent regulatory regime for audit, covering the private 
sector and the local government and local health sectors. This local public audit 
regime should be focused on local accountability, in the way that the 
commercial sector is tailored to accountability to shareholders.   

Standards and codes of practice 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
2.3. Under the current system the Audit Commission sets audit standards through 

Codes of audit practice for the local government and health sectors, which are 
approved by Parliament.  These Codes build on the ethical, auditing and other 
standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board and are therefore broadly 
consistent with audit standards applied in other sectors.

2.4. However, the Commission’s Codes contain additional standards to reflect the 
principles of public audit and its wider scope, particularly in terms of regularity 
and propriety and value for money.  They specify the approach to audit for 
areas not already covered by professional audit standards (such as the ‘value 
for money’ conclusion). The Commission also publishes guidance and 
statements of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies.

OTHER SECTORS 
2.5. Standards for the audit of companies are set by the Auditing Practices Board 

(part of the Financial Reporting Council), which sets standards and issues 
guidance for the performance of external audit and in relation to the 
independence, objectivity and integrity of external auditors.  The Auditing 
Practices Board is also responsible for setting ethical standards for auditors in 
the private and public sectors. 

18

Page 91



The Audit Commission’s Codes of audit practice

The Commission has a statutory duty to prepare, keep under review and publish 
statutory Codes of audit practice.  There are currently two Codes: one for local 
government bodies and one for health bodies. The Codes, which are approved by 
Parliament and must be reviewed at least every five years, set out best 
professional practice with respect to the standards, procedures and techniques to 
be adopted by auditors. The latest versions of the Codes of practice were 
published in 2010.

The Codes are high level documents, which focus on the Audit Commission's 
core requirements and aspects of audit specific to its regime. Each Code: 

! sets out the general principles to be followed by auditors in delivering their 
objectives

! outlines auditors’ responsibilities regarding the audit of financial statements 
and use of resources and 

! sets out the range of outputs through which the results of audit are reported 

OUR PROPOSALS 
2.6. Under our proposals, auditors of local public bodies would continue to follow the 

auditing and ethical standards set by the Auditing Practices Board.  We have 
considered which body would be best placed to produce the audit Codes of 
practice and supporting guidance.  While this is a role that could possibly be 
undertaken by the Financial Reporting Council or the profession, we believe 
that the National Audit Office, given its role in providing Parliament with 
assurance on public spending, would be best placed to develop and maintain 
the audit Codes, which would continue to be approved by Parliament.  The 
National Audit Office would also produce any supporting guidance.

Q3: Do you think that the National Audit Office would be best placed to 
produce the Code of audit practice and the supporting guidance? 

Registration of auditors 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
2.7. The Audit Commission Act 1998 stipulates that for an individual or a firm to be 

appointed as an auditor, the person/s conducting the audit must be a member 
of one of the specified professional bodies and has such qualifications as may 
be approved by the Secretary of State (none have been so approved). The 
Audit Commission regulates the quality of the work of auditors by setting 
minimum qualifications a public sector auditor must have in conjunction with 
standards set by the professional bodies for membership. 

19

Page 92



OTHER SECTORS 
2.8. As part of the statutory framework for the audit of companies under the 

Companies Act 2006, the Professional Oversight Board (part of the Financial 
Reporting Council), essentially acts as the main regulator, with statutory powers 
delegated to it by Government for the recognition and supervision of those 
professional accountancy bodies responsible for supervising the work of 
auditors or offering an audit qualification – recognised qualifying body and 
recognised supervisory body e.g. Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales. 

2.9. Recognised supervisory bodies are responsible for putting rules and 
arrangements in place which their members must fulfil before they can be 
registered auditors, both as regards eligibility for appointment as a statutory 
auditor and the conduct of statutory audit work. A list of recognised supervisory 
bodies and recognised qualifying bodies for the purposes of the Companies Act 
is at annex C.  The Institute of Charted Accountants for Scotland maintains the 
list of registered auditors for the whole of the UK on behalf of the recognised 
supervisory bodies. 

2.10.People with responsibility for company audit work at the firm must also hold a 
recognised qualification, awarded by a recognised qualifying body. 

2.11.Looking elsewhere, in Finland, auditors who are eligible to audit municipal 
authorities are included in a register of eligible auditors maintained by the 
Finnish Board of Chartered Public Finance Auditing.  In Italy, auditors who can 
carry out local public audit are included on a register of auditors managed by 
the Ministry of Justice. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
2.12.We propose that, as under the Companies Act 2006 (“the Companies Act”), an 

overall regulator would have responsibility for authorising professional 
accountancy bodies to act as recognised supervisory bodies for local public 
audit. Any such body would need to comply with the statutory requirements set 
out in the proposed primary legislation. It would have the roles of registration, 
monitoring, and discipline in relation to local public audit. 

2.13.The Financial Reporting Council is the regulator for Companies Act audit and 
we propose that it takes on a similar role for the local public audit regulatory 
regime in England, provided that it can assure the Government that it has both 
the resources and the expertise to undertake the role, and wishes to do so.  It is 
likely that setting up a separate regulator for local public audit would lead to 
duplication of work as entirely new systems and procedures would need to be 
developed. 

2.14.Recognised supervisory bodies for local public audit could include supervisory 
bodies recognised under the Companies Act 2006 and any other bodies with 
sufficient expertise and capacity. 

2.15.A recognised supervisory body for local public audit could have rules and 
practices covering: 

20

Page 93



! the eligibility of firms to be appointed as local public auditors and 
! the qualifications, experience and other criteria individuals must reach before 

being permitted to lead a local public audit engagement and/or sign off  an 
audit report

2.16.We propose to set out, in primary legislation, certain high level criteria that 
specify that the auditor must be: 

! a member of a recognised supervisory body and 
! eligible for appointment under the rules of that body 

2.17. The legislation will include provisions enabling the supervisory body to develop 
appropriate detailed rules and practices on other criteria.

2.18.The eligibility criteria will be based on those for the audit of companies as we 
would like to ensure enough flexibility in the criteria to enable new firms to enter 
the local public audit market. However, there will need to be additional criteria to 
ensure that auditors have the necessary experience to be able to undertake a 
robust audit of a local public body. 

2.19.We propose that all eligible local public auditors would be placed on a public 
register. This register could be kept by the recognised supervisory bodies for 
local public audit, or it could be kept by another body. 

Q4: Do you agree that we should replicate the system for approving and 
controlling statutory auditors under the Companies Act 2006 for statutory 
local public auditors? 

Q5: Who should be responsible for maintaining and reviewing the register of 
statutory local public auditors? 

Q6: How can we ensure that the right balance is struck between requiring 
audit firms eligible for statutory local public audit to have the right level of 
experience, while allowing new firms to enter the market? 

Q7: What additional criteria are required to ensure that auditors have the 
necessary experience to be able to undertake a robust audit of a local public 
body, without restricting the market? 

21

Page 94



Monitoring and enforcement 

CURRENT SYSTEM  
2.20.The Audit Commission currently monitors the quality of auditors' performance 

through its annual quality review programme.  The Audit Inspection Unit of the 
Financial Reporting Council reviews the quality of the financial statements 
audits carried out by the Commission's own audit practice and by private firms 
on behalf of the Commission.

OTHER SECTORS 
2.21.Under the Companies Act, the recognised supervisory bodies are responsible 

for monitoring the quality of the statutory audits undertaken by their members 
and for disciplining their members where this is appropriate.

2.22.Some companies that are of public significance because of the nature of their 
business, their size, or their number of employees can be designated as “public 
interest entities”. In the case of these bodies, the Professional Oversight Board 
has an additional role in monitoring the quality of the auditing function and the 
Accountancy and Actuarial Disciplinary Board has a role in investigating 
significant public interest disciplinary cases and imposing sanctions to those 
found guilty of misconduct. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
2.23.We propose that recognised supervisory bodies for local public audit would 

have responsibility for monitoring the quality of audits undertaken by their 
members, as they do in the private sector. This work would fall under the 
monitoring units of these bodies, and would include: 

! reviews of individual audit engagements 
! reviews of the policies, procedures and internal controls of those firms 

licensed to carry out the public sector audits 
! reporting on the quality of audit to the registration body 

2.24.The recognised supervisory bodies for local public audit would investigate 
complaints or disciplinary cases, as well as issues identified during their 
monitoring process. They would also be able to stop a firm being eligible for 
appointment as a statutory local public auditor and remove them from the 
register of eligible local public auditors. 

2.25.We are considering whether the overall regulator (i.e. the body that authorises 
the recognised supervisory bodies) should have a role in assuring the quality, 
and undertaking independent investigation of the audit of local public bodies 
that might be considered analogous to public interest entities for the public 
sector. The overall regulator would have powers to investigate and discipline in 
these cases. The process undertaken would be similar to that above, but would 
provide an additional level of assurance in respect of those bodies.

22

Page 95



However, the costs that would fall on the Financial Reporting Council from 
undertaking this role would be passed on to the audit firms and therefore could 
be reflected in fees. 

Q8: What should constitute a public interest entity (i.e. a body for which 
audits are directly monitored by the overall regulator) for the purposes of 
local audit regulation?  How should these be defined?  

Q9:  There is an argument that by their very nature all local public bodies 
could be categorised as ‘public interest entities.’  Does the overall regulator 
need to undertake any additional regulation or monitoring of these bodies?
If so, should these bodies be categorised by the key services they perform, 
or by their income or expenditure?  If the latter, what should the threshold 
be?

Q10: What should the role of the regulator be in relation to any local bodies 
treated in a manner similar to public interest entities? 

23

Page 96



Section 3 

3. Commissioning local public audit services 

3.1. The Government believes that a localist approach, without an independent 
central body having a role in appointing an auditor, is an important element of 
driving accountability to local people rather than to central government.
However, maintaining the independence of the auditor in the new system is 
central to the principles of public audit.  Our proposals therefore need to include 
measures to safeguard the independence of the auditor. 

Duty to appoint an auditor 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
3.2. Under the current system, all auditors of local public bodies included in 

Schedule 2 of the Audit Commission Act are appointed by the Audit 
Commission.  Before making appointments of auditors to local government 
bodies, the Commission has a statutory duty to consult the body. The 
Commission has voluntarily extended this practice to health bodies. 

OTHER SECTORS 
3.3. Commissioning takes different forms in different sectors.  Under the Companies 

Act the annual general meeting must agree a resolution on the appointment of 
the auditor, although this will be based on a recommendation from directors and 
input from an audit committee.

3.4. Looking elsewhere, it is clear that there are different systems for commissioning 
audit services.  However, in the USA local authorities procure their own 
auditors: an audit committee often appoints ‘internal auditors’ for their local 
authority, who then procure the external auditor. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
3.5. We propose that all larger local public bodies (those with income/expenditure 

over £6.5m) will be under a duty to appoint an auditor. The auditor would need 
to be on the register of local public statutory auditors, which should help to 
ensure that the quality of auditors is maintained.

3.6. It is equally important as it is in other sectors that those to whom audit is 
directed have influence but that the independence of the auditor remains 
paramount. Therefore, for larger public bodies, we propose an approach 
whereby appointment is made by full council or equivalent, on the advice of an 
audit committee with opportunities for the electorate to make an input. 

3.7. We consider that local public bodies will wish to co-operate to ensure that there 
is wide competition for external audit contracts, and that local public bodies will 
want to work together to procure an external auditor. We propose to ensure that 
legislation provides for both joint procurement and joint audit committees.

24

Page 97



Q11: Do you think the arrangements we set out are sufficiently flexible to 
allow councils to cooperate and jointly appoint auditors?  If not, how would 
you make the appointment process more flexible, whilst ensuring 
independence?

3.8. Lord Sharman, in his report, Holding to Account: the Review of Audit and 
Accountability in Central Government, was clear that, to maintain confidence, 
auditors must be independent to avoid improper influence and allow work to be 
carried out freely.  Independence includes the way auditors are appointed.  We 
consider that, as part of a new local audit regime, each larger local public body 
should have an audit committee with a majority of members independent of the 
local public body and, with some elected members to strike a balance between 
objectivity and in-depth understanding of the issues.  

3.9. A possible structure is set out below.  However, there could be alternative 
arrangements, for example: 

a) only the chair and perhaps a minority of members are independent of the 
local public body 

b) a chair and a majority of members independent of the local public body, as 
described below 

c) as for (b), but with independent selection of the members independent of the 
local authorities 

3.10.We are keen to ensure that local public bodies have flexibility in the way that 
they constitute and run audit committees. But we need to balance this with 
ensuring that the minimum requirements for an audit committee set out in 
legislation provide for an independent audit appointment. We set out below a 
possible structure and role for the audit committee, some of which may be 
prescribed in legislation and some of which we would put forward as best 
practice.

25

Page 98



Structure of audit committees 

We envisage that in the new system, an audit committee could be structured in the following 
way:

! The chair should be independent of the local public body. The vice-chair would also be 
independent, to allow for the possible absence of the chair. 

! The elected members on the audit committee should be non-executive, non-cabinet 
members, sourced from the audited body and at least one should have recent and 
relevant financial experience (it is recommended that a third of members have recent 
and relevant financial experience where possible).

! There would be a majority of members of the committee who were independent of the 
local public body. 

Independent members of the committee 

When choosing an independent member of the committee, a person can only be considered for 
the position if: 

! he or she has not been a member nor an officer of the local authority/public body within 
five years before the date of the appointment 

! is not a member nor an officer of that or any other relevant authority 
! is not a relative nor a close friend of a member or an officer of the body/authority 
! has applied for the appointment 
! has been approved by a majority of the members of the council 
! the position has been advertised in at least one newspaper distributed in the local area 

and in other similar publications or websites that the body/local authority considered 
appropriate

Q12: Do you think we have identified the correct criteria to ensure the 
quality of independent members? If not, what criteria would you suggest? 

Q13: How do we balance the requirements for independence with the need 
for skills and experience of independent members?  Is it necessary for 
independent members to have financial expertise? 

Q14: Do you think that sourcing suitable independent members will be 
difficult?  Will remuneration be necessary and, if so, at what level? 

26

Page 99



Role of the Audit Committee 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
3.11.As auditors are currently appointed by the Audit Commission there is no role for 

an audit committee in the appointment of auditors, although the Audit 
Commission always consults local public bodies before it confirms an audit 
appointment. However, some local public bodies do have Audit Committees 
(some of which are independent) with roles in relation to both internal and 
external audit.   

3.12.Health bodies currently have their own form of audit committees following the 
Financial Reporting Council best practice guidance, comprising of 
independently appointed non-executive directors governed by their own rules 
and requirements.

OTHER SECTORS 
3.13.The Financial Reporting Council currently produces guidance for the 

establishment of audit committees for companies, stating that they should be 
made up of at least three, or in the case of smaller companies two, independent 
non-executive directors. 

3.14.The main role and responsibilities of a company’s audit committee are set out in 
written terms of reference and can include a number of roles, including: 

! providing advice to the board in relation to the appointment of external 
auditors

! approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor 
! reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity 

and the effectiveness of the audit process 
! developing and implementing policy on the engagement of the external 

auditor to supply non-audit services 

3.15.Looking elsewhere, audit committees are statutory bodies in each municipality 
in Finland. Their remit includes preparing the choice and appointment of 
external auditors. In Canada, the local authority’s audit committee also 
commissions audit services. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
3.16.It is likely that we would want to specify in legislation some responsibilities that 

the audit committee should have in relation to the engagement of an auditor 
and monitoring the independence and quality of the external audit. However, we 
would not wish to limit the scope of an audit committee so that a local body had 
no flexibility in designing its role. 

3.17.The expanded role of the audit committee would include the provision of advice 
and guidance to the full council or equivalent (the audit committee may wish to 
have regard to advice from the section 151 officer) on appropriate criteria for 
engaging an auditor and advice as to how these criteria could be weighted. The 
audit committee would be given copies of the bids to evaluate in order that they 

27

Page 100



may advise the full council or equivalent on the selection process and may, if 
they wish, indicate which auditor, in their view, presents the best choice.

3.18.The full council or equivalent would need to have regard to the advice of the 
audit committee but would not need to follow its advice. The full council or 
equivalent would be responsible for selecting an auditor and engaging that 
auditor on a contractual basis.

3.19.Advice provided by the audit committee to the full council or equivalent would 
be published, although consideration will need to be given to the treatment of 
commercially confidential material. 

3.20.If the full council or equivalent did not follow the advice of the audit committee, 
then it would need to publish on its website a statement from the audit 
committee explaining its advice and a statement from the full council or 
equivalent setting out the reasons why the council or equivalent has taken a 
different position. 

Option 1 
3.21.We could specify only one mandatory duty for the local public body’s audit 

committee, i.e. to provide advice to the local public body on the engagement of 
the auditor and the resignation or removal of an auditor. 

3.22.It would then be left up to the local public body and the audit committee to 
decide whether the audit committee should have a wider role in other issues, 
e.g. setting a policy on the provision of non-audit services by the statutory 
auditor or reviewing the relationship between the auditor and the audited body. 

3.23.This option would ensure that the audit committee provided advice to the local 
public body at crucial moments, but would allow the local public body and the 
audit committee flexibility to decide on any other functions it may carry out. 
However, if only the minimum was followed, this may not provide an adequate 
check on ongoing independence through the auditor’s term. 

Option 2 
3.24.We could specify a much more detailed mandatory role for the audit committee 

which could include, but may not be restricted to the following: 

! providing advice to the full council on the procurement and selection of their 
external auditor 

! setting a policy on the provision of non-audit work by the statutory auditor 
! overseeing issues around the possible resignation or removal of the auditor 
! seeking assurances that action is being taken on issues identified at audit 
! considering auditors’ reports 
! ensuring that there is an effective relationship between internal and external 

audit
! reviewing the financial statements, external auditor’s opinions/conclusions 

and reports to members and monitor management action in response to the 
issues raised by external audit 

! providing advice to the full council on the quality of service they are receiving 

28

Page 101



! reporting annually to the full council on its activities for the previous year 

3.25.This option would provide more assurance about the independence of the 
relationship between the audited body and its auditor, it would also ensure that 
the audit committee had a wider role in reviewing the financial arrangements of 
the local public body. 

Q15: Do you think that our proposals for audit committees provide the 
necessary safeguards to ensure the independence of the auditor 
appointment? If so, which of the options described in paragraph 3.9 seems 
most appropriate and proportionate? If not, how would you ensure 
independence while also ensuring a decentralised approach? 

Q16: Which option do you consider would strike the best balance between a 
localist approach and a robust role for the audit committee in ensuring 
independence of the auditor? 

Q17: Are these appropriate roles and responsibilities for the Audit 
Committee?  To what extent should the role be specified in legislation? 

Q18:  Should the process for the appointment of an auditor be set out in a 
statutory code of practice or guidance?  If the latter, who should produce 
and maintain this? 

Involvement of the public in the appointment of an auditor 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
3.26.There is no involvement of the public in the appointment of auditors by the Audit 

Commission to audited bodies. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
3.27.We envisage that the appointment of an auditor by the local public body should 

be as transparent as possible so that local people are able to hold their local 
public bodies to account for the appointment.  

Pre-appointment
3.28.The audited body could ask for expressions of interest from audit firms for the 

audit contract one month prior to the publication of the invitation to tender. The 
list of those firms that have expressed an interest would then be published on 
the audited body’s website. The public would then be able to make 
representations to the audited body’s audit committee about any of these firms. 
The audit committee would consider these representations when providing 
advice to the full council or equivalent. 

29

Page 102



Post - appointment 
3.29.The public would be able to make representations at any time to the local public 

body’s audit committee. If a representation identified a significant, or potentially 
significant, issue relating to the auditor, then the audit committee would be able 
to provide advice to the audited body on that issue and investigate as 
appropriate. If the issue identified was material to the ongoing work of the 
auditor (such as an undisclosed material conflict of interest) then the audited 
body would need to take such steps as appeared necessary, in accordance 
with the terms of the contract with the auditor, to address that issue. We may 
also wish to specify in legislation some statutory requirements relating to 
conflicts of interest. 

Q19:  Is this a proportionate approach to public involvement in the selection 
and work of auditors? 

Applicability to other sectors 

3.30.The policy of audit committees acting as a safeguard to independent 
appointment is applicable to all larger local public bodies covered by this 
framework. The approach may differ depending on the constitution and 
governance arrangements of those bodies.

3.31.For Police and Crime Commissioners (and Mayor's Office for Policing and 
Crime) and Chief Constables (and Commissioner for London) we are 
considering whether the Police and Crime Panel should have a role similar to 
that of the audit committee. Arrangements for the audit of these policing bodies 
will be finalised once the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Bill has 
completed its passage.

Q20:  How can this process be adapted for bodies without elected 
members?

Failure to appoint an auditor 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
3.32.As the Audit Commission is responsible for appointing the auditors for all 

audited bodies specified in the Audit Commission Act 1998, the situation where 
an audited body fails to appoint an auditor does not arise. 

OTHER SECTORS 
3.33.The Companies Act 2006 provides a default power for the Secretary of State, 

so that if a private company fails to appoint an auditor or auditors, the Secretary 
of State may appoint one or more persons to fill the vacancy. If the company 
fails to make the necessary appointment, the company is required to give notice 
to the Secretary of State that his power has become exercisable and if the 

30

Page 103



company fails to give this notice then the company has committed an offence 
and can be liable for a fine. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
3.34.The audited body would be under a duty to appoint an auditor.  However, there 

could be some instances under the new system where a body does not fulfil this 
duty.

Option 1 
3.35.In these circumstances we propose that the Secretary of State would be able to 

direct the local public body to appoint an auditor. 

Option 2 
3.36.Alternatively, where a local public body does not fulfil its duty to appoint an 

auditor the Secretary of State could be provided with the power to make the 
auditor appointment.  In addition to meeting the cost of the appointment the 
local public body could be subject to a sanction for failing to make the 
appointment.

Q21:  Which option do you consider provides a sufficient safeguard to 
ensure that local public bodies appoint an auditor?  How would you ensure 
that the audited body fulfils its duty? 

3.37.It would clearly be against our design principles for the new local audit 
framework for the Secretary of State to make the auditor appointment for local 
public bodies.  However, some form of assurance will be required that local 
public bodies have fulfilled their duty to appoint an auditor.

Q22:  Should local public bodies be under a duty to inform a body when 
they have appointed an auditor, or only if they have failed to appoint an 
auditor by the required date? 

3.38.Given that we envisage that the Recognised Supervisory Bodies will hold the 
register of eligible local public auditors there is an argument that they should be 
notified if a local public body has appointed or failed to appoint an auditor.
However, this could involve a significant cost.   

3.39.As the Secretary of State would be able to direct the local public body to 
appoint an auditor, or could be provided with the power to make the auditor 
appointment where a local public body does not fulfil its duty to appoint an 
auditor, an alternative option would be for the local public body to notify the 
appropriate government department, or a body that the government department 
specifies, of the auditor appointment.  The cost of doing this could be met by 
the appropriate department, and would provide an effective route for the 
Secretary of State to exercise his powers to direct the local public body to 
appoint an auditor, or to make the auditor appointment where the body did not 
fulfil its duty to appoint an auditor.

31

Page 104



Q23:  If notification of auditor appointment is required, which body should 
be notified of the auditor appointment/failure to appoint an auditor?

Rotation of audit firms and audit staff 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
3.40.The Auditing Practices Board’s ethical standards, which apply to the audit of 

both private and public entities, require an audit firm to establish policies and 
procedures to monitor the length of time that audit engagement partners and 
other key staff serve as members of the engagement team for each audit. 
These procedures are in place to help ensure the independence and objectivity 
of auditors. 

3.41.The Audit Commission appoints audit firms or its own staff for an initial period of 
five years. The audit engagement partner can then be appointed for an 
additional period of up to two years in accordance with the Auditing Practices 
Board’s Ethical Standards (i.e. a maximum of seven years, provided there are 
no threats to the auditor’s independence).  The audit manager (the second in 
command to the audit engagement partner) can be appointed for a maximum of 
ten years. After this period individuals should then have no further direct 
relationship with or involvement in work relating to the body concerned until a 
further period of five years has elapsed.  

OTHER SYSTEMS 
3.42.In the case of listed companies, the audit firm must have policies and 

procedures so that: 

! no-one shall act as audit engagement partner for more than seven years and 
! anyone who has acted as the audit engagement partner for a particular entity 

for a period of seven years, shall not subsequently participate in the audit 
engagement with that entity until a further period of five years has elapsed 

3.43.The audit committee of a company assesses the independence and objectivity 
of the external auditor annually, taking into consideration regulatory and 
professional requirements. This assessment involves a consideration of all 
relationships between the company and the audit firm (including the provision of 
non-audit services) and any safeguards established by the external auditor. The 
audit committee seeks from the audit firm, on an annual basis, information 
about policies and processes for maintaining independence and monitoring 
compliance with relevant requirements, including current requirements 
regarding the rotation of audit partners and staff. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
3.44.We envisage that the new audit framework would be in line with the current 

ethical standards regarding the rotation of staff within the audit firm.

3.45.The audited body’s audit committee would have a role in monitoring the 
independence and objectivity of the body’s external auditor. 

32

Page 105



3.46.In relation to the rotation of the firm, an audit firm would be reappointed 
annually by the full council on the advice of the audit committee (who may want 
to provide advice on the quality of service received in the previous year) but the 
audited body could be required to undertake a competitive appointment process 
within five years. The audited body would be able to re-appoint the same firm 
for a second consecutive five year period, following competition. 

3.47.To preserve independence, we propose that the audited body would need to 
procure a different audit firm at the end of the second five year period. This will 
help to ensure that in carrying out their responsibilities auditors are not 
influenced by their desire to secure re-appointment. 

Q24:  Should any firm’s term of appointment be limited to a maximum of two 
consecutive five-year periods? 

Q25:  Do the ethical standards provide sufficient safeguards for the rotation 
of the engagement lead and the audit team for local public bodies?  If not, 
what additional safeguards are required? 

Q26: Do the proposals regarding the reappointment of an audit firm strike 
the right balance between allowing the auditor and audited body to build a 
relationship based on trust whilst ensuring the correct degree of 
independence?

Resignation or removal of an auditor 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
3.48.In the current situation there is not a direct contractual relationship between the 

auditor and the audited body - the relationship is with the Audit Commission.  It 
is therefore not possible for the audited body to remove the auditor and the 
auditor does not need to resign because of issues arising with the audit.

3.49.In the event that there was a breakdown in the relationship between the auditor 
and audited body the Audit Commission can consider rotating suppliers.

3.50.The audit engagement partner or audit team may change during the 
appointment and the Audit Commission can and does rotate between firms and 
its in-house practice undertaking the audit, including if the audited body 
requests it.

33

Page 106



OTHER SECTORS 

Resignation
3.51.In the companies sector, if an auditor ceases for any reason to hold office, he 

must deposit a statement at the company’s registered office which will usually 
set out the circumstances connected with his ceasing to hold office. If the 
circumstances are set out in the statement (in the case of a quoted company), 
the company must send a copy of the statement to all members of the company 
unless it makes a successful application to the court to stop this.

3.52.If (in the case of an unquoted company) the circumstances are not set out in the 
statement, the auditor must deposit a statement with the company to that effect 
but the company does not have to circulate this statement to its members. 

3.53.When an external auditor resigns, the audit committee of the company will 
investigate the issues giving rise to such resignation and consider whether any 
action is required. 

Removal
3.54.The members of a company may remove an auditor from office at any time 

during their term of office. They, or the directors, must give 28 days notice of 
their intention to put to a general meeting a resolution to remove the auditor. 
The company must send a copy of the notice to the auditor, who then sends it 
to the company’s members. The auditor may speak at the meeting where the 
resolution is to be considered. Although a company may remove an auditor 
from office at any time, the auditor may be entitled to compensation or damages 
for termination of appointment. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
3.55.We envisage that a body might wish to remove its auditor, or an auditor might 

wish to resign, only in exceptional circumstances, for example, an auditor being 
in breach of the ethical standards, or a complete breakdown in the relationship 
between the auditor and audited body.

3.56.However, we recognise the importance of having stringent safeguards in place 
for the resignation and removal of an auditor to protect the independence of the 
auditor and the quality of the audit.  These safeguards would broadly mirror 
those in the Companies Act, but would be adapted to reflect the principles of 
public audit.  The process would be designed to ensure that auditors are not 
removed, or do not resign, without serious consideration. 

Resignation
3.57.We envisage that in the first instance, the audited body and the auditor should 

discuss and seek to resolve any concerns.  If the auditor still wished to resign 
he should give 28 days written notice of his intention to the audit committee and 
the audited body, setting out his intention to resign.  The audited body should 
then make a written response, which it should send with the auditor’s written 
notice, to its members and the audit committee.  The auditor will then be 
required to deposit a statement at the audited body’s main office and with the 
audit committee, which should be published on its website.  The statement 

34

Page 107



would set out the circumstances connected with the resignation of the office 
that are relevant to the business of the audited body.

3.58.The audited body would need to notify the body responsible for maintaining the 
register of appointed auditors, and the auditor will need to notify the appropriate 
regulatory supervisory body.  We envisage a role for the audit committee and 
the regulatory supervisory body in investigating the issues that have led to the 
resignation and considering whether any action is required. 

Removal
3.59.Again, we envisage that in the first instance, the audited body and the auditor 

should discuss and seek to resolve any concerns.  If the audited body still 
wished to remove its auditor, it should give 28 days written notice of its intention 
to the audit committee and to the auditor.  The audited body should put to a 
public meeting, or full council meeting, a resolution to remove the auditor. The 
audited body would also send a copy of this notice to the auditor. 

3.60.The auditor would then have the right to make a written response, which the 
body would need to send to its members and the audit committee, and to speak 
at the meeting where the resolution is to be considered.  A representative from 
the audit committee should also be able to speak at the meeting.  The auditor 
would be required to deposit a statement at the audited body’s main office and 
with the audit committee, which would need to be published on its website.
This statement would set out the circumstances connected with the cessation of 
their office that are relevant to the business of the audited body.

3.61.The audited body would need to notify the appropriate regulatory supervisory 
body. We envisage a role for the audit committee and the regulatory 
supervisory body in investigating the issues that have led to the removal and 
considering whether any action is required. 

3.62.A right of access to the previous auditor’s audit working papers (from the 
previous year and/or current) should be provided to incoming auditors in cases 
of resignation or removal or any other instances where the audit firm changes. 
This right should extend to all aspects of the previous auditor’s responsibilities 
and not just to work on the audit of the financial statements. 

Q27: Do you think this proposed process provides sufficient safeguard to 
ensure that auditors are not removed, or resign, without serious 
consideration, and to maintain independence and audit quality? If not, what 
additional safeguards should be in place? 

35

Page 108



Auditor liability 

3.63.In the private sector, auditors are concerned about the consequences of the 
risks of litigation, as a result of actual or perceived failing by auditors. These 
concerns have been fuelled by legal judgments about the extent of auditors’ 
duty of care to third parties, such as potential investors and the banks. They 
have increasingly caused auditors to caveat their audit opinions by explicitly 
limiting their duty of care and by seeking to limit their liability. Case law has 
established that the duty of care of auditors appointed by the Commission is to 
the audited body itself and not to third parties. Public authorities can sue their 
auditor for breach of duty.

CURRENT SYSTEM 
3.64.There are particular issues in the public sector where auditors may exercise 

special powers. The Audit Commission currently indemnifies auditors for the 
costs they incur where they are engaged in litigation arising from the exercise of 
such powers. This ensures that auditors are able to exercise their functions with 
the certainty that their costs will be met. 

OTHER SECTORS 
3.65.In the companies sector, the Companies Act provides that general provisions 

that protect auditors from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or 
breach of trust in relation to the company, or provide an indemnity against 
liability are void, but: 

! does not prevent a company from indemnifying an auditor against any costs 
incurred by him in defending proceedings in which judgment is given in his 
favour or in the granting of relief by the court in the case of honest and 
reasonable conduct 

! allows for a “liability limitation agreement” to be put in place if it is authorised 
by the members of the company, provided it complies with the content 
permitted in the Companies Act 

OUR PROPOSALS 
3.66. In the absence of a central body providing indemnity to audit firms, it could be 

possible for audited bodies and auditors to deal with auditor liability as part of 
their contractual negotiations. A legislative framework, similar to that in the 
companies sector, could set out the process for setting and agreeing liability 
limitation agreements. Without a liability agreement, audit firms may increase 
their fees to match the increased risk they face in undertaking their work. 

Q28: Do you think the new framework should put in place similar provision 
as that in place in the companies sector, to prevent auditors from seeking to 
limit their liability in an unreasonable way? 

36

Page 109



Section 4 

4. Scope of audit and the work of auditors 

4.1. In this chapter, we look at the scope of the audit and the options for the 
elements of local public bodies’ finance and the arrangements that auditors 
should assess.  The duty for the auditor to issue a report in the public interest is 
also considered.  This section asks whether auditors should be able to carry out 
additional, non-audit, work for the audited body, and considers the various 
safeguards that could be introduced to ensure that auditor independence is not 
compromised.

Scope of local public audit 

4.2. The starting point is the principles of public audit, in particular the wide scope of 
the audit covering the audit of financial statements, regularity and propriety and 
value for money.

CURRENT SYSTEM 
4.3. Public sector accounting in the UK has recently moved to adopt International 

Financial Reporting Standards adapted as necessary for the public sector (for 
local government audits from 2010-11). 

4.4. Currently, the auditor of larger local public bodies is required to: 

! give an opinion on whether the accounting statements give a true and fair 
view of the audited body’s financial position and of its income and expenditure

! provide a conclusion as to whether the body has proper arrangements for 
securing value for money, having regard to specified criteria (such as financial 
resilience and to regularity and propriety) and in accordance with guidance 
issued by the Commission 

! review and report on as appropriate, other information published with the 
financial statements, including the statement on internal control/annual 
governance statement and the remuneration report and 

! (for local government) review and report on the Whole of Government 
Accounts return 

4.5. Smaller local public bodies are currently subject to a limited assurance regime.
We believe that it is important for smaller bodies to continue to be dealt with 
proportionately under the new framework and discuss this in more detail at 
Section 5.

OTHER SECTORS 

Companies
4.6. The scope of audit for companies is based around the financial statements 

produced by the company and a report that the directors are required to produce 
which must describe the company’s principal activities, a review of the business 
and an indication of future developments. 

37

Page 110



4.7. Statutory auditors of companies include in their report, statements as to 
whether, in their opinion: 

! the accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 
2006

! the accounts give a “true and fair “ view of the company’s financial statements 
! the director’s report is consistent with the accounts 
! the remuneration report is properly prepared 

Charities
4.8. Any charity which has income above the audit threshold in the financial year 

must have an audit of its financial statements undertaken by a registered 
auditor. This is in line with the treatment of companies.

4.9. The Charities Act 1993 also requires all registered charities to prepare a 
Trustees’ Annual Report. The length of the report and the amount of detail 
included in it can be in proportion to the charity’s size so for small charities it 
can be a very simple report. 

Central government 
4.10.The Comptroller and Auditor General, with the support of the National Audit 

Office, is responsible for auditing the financial statements of all central 
Government departments, executive agencies and a wide range of other public 
sector bodies. 

4.11.When certifying the accounts of central government departments, the 
Comptroller and Auditor General states whether, in his opinion: 

! the financial statements give a “true and fair” view of the financial position of 
the body 

! the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with 
underpinning legislation 

! in all material respects the transactions recorded in the financial statements 
are in accordance with Parliamentary or other authority (regularity) 

! information given in the Management Commentary/Annual Report is 
consistent with the financial statements 

! the audited part of the Remuneration Report has been properly prepared in 
accordance with relevant guidance 

4.12.The Comptroller and Auditor General also has statutory authority to report to 
Parliament on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which 
departments and other bodies have used their resources. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
4.13.When looking at the future scope of audit for local public bodies we have 

considered whether we should move to a more transparent model, such as that 
followed by companies and charities which must produce a director or trustee’s 
report. Central Government departments are also required to prepare an 
Annual Report along similar lines. However, we recognise that public money 

38

Page 111



must be accounted for in a certain way, including assuring regularity and 
propriety and with the necessary focus on value for money. With this in mind, 
for larger public bodies we have identified the following three options to deliver 
effective audit that conforms to the principles of public audit. 

Option 1 
4.14.The scope of audit could be reduced to be more in line with that for companies, 

with no assessment of value for money.   The auditor would: 

! give an opinion on whether the financial statements give a true and fair view 
of the audited body’s financial position and of its income and expenditure and 

! review, and report on as appropriate, other information published with the 
financial statements, including the statement on internal control/annual 
governance statement, the remuneration report and the whole of government 
accounting summarisation schedules 

4.15.This option would reduce the information available to local citizens on how local 
bodies are spending their money or on whether bodies are securing value for 
money.

Option 2 
4.16.As under the current system, the auditor would: 

! give an opinion on whether the financial statements give a true and fair view 
of the audited body’s financial position and of its income and expenditure; and 

! provide a conclusion as to whether it has the proper arrangements in place 
to secure value for money (based on locally defined policy priorities) having 
regard to specified criteria (including financial resilience and regulatory and 
propriety)

! review, and report on as appropriate, other information published with the 
financial statements, including the statement on internal control/annual 
governance statement, the remuneration report and the whole of government 
accounting summarisation schedules 

4.17.This option would maintain the current scope of audit.  However, this option 
would not provide any additional information to local citizens on how local public 
bodies are spending their money or on whether bodies are securing value for 
money.

Option 3 
4.18.New arrangements could provide stronger assurances on the way local public 

bodies spend money. Under this option, the auditor would still give an opinion
on the financial statements, but would provide conclusions on: 

! regularity and propriety – a conclusion on compliance with relevant laws and 
regulations and the audited body’s governance and control regime 

39

Page 112



! financial resilience – a conclusion about the future financial sustainability of 
the audited body and 

! value for money – in addition to proper arrangements in place to secure value 
for money, a conclusion about the achievement of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness within the audited body 

4.19.We will need to consider carefully how a stronger value for money element to 
the audit would fit with other sectors, such as policing, who already have 
alternative systems for examining and reporting value for money publicly. 

4.20.We believe that, compared to option 1 and 2, option 3 could lead to greater 
transparency for local citizens, and would help deliver the wide scope of public 
audit. It would also require a separate conclusion on regularity and propriety 
and financial resilience, rather than having regard to these aspects within a 
conclusion on value for money (as in option 2). However, the volume of work 
undertaken by the auditor would be significantly greater than for option 1. It is 
also possible that auditors would have difficulties in reaching a robust 
conclusion on value for money, regularity and propriety.  We expect that 
reaching a conclusion on the achievement for value for money would involve 
more work for auditors, particularly in the case of complex organisations such 
as principal local authorities. 

Option 4 
4.21.Local public spending should be transparent so that citizens can hold bodies to 

account. Companies are required, by law, to produce and publish an annual 
report, including the principal activities of the company during the year, and a 
business review which includes risks and uncertainties.  Most public bodies also 
produce such a report, although local authorities are not currently required to do 
so.

4.22.Under this option, all local public bodies would be required to produce an 
annual report and to publish this report on their website.  The report would set 
out the arrangements the audited body had put in place to secure value for 
money, whether they had achieved economy, efficiency and effectiveness, 
regularity and propriety and financial resilience. 

4.23.The auditor would be required to: 

! give an opinion on the financial statements 
! review the audited body’s annual report and 
! provide reasonable assurance on the annual report

4.24.The annual report could be written in an accessible way and would be 
published. This option could therefore substantially increase the transparency of 
the local public bodies, compared to options 1 and 2.  Citizens’ increased 
knowledge of the local public body’s financial performance could help drive 
greater local accountability.  We would need to consider whether producing an 
annual report in an appropriate format would be a new burden for local 
authorities that do not currently produce an annual report in an appropriate 
format.

40

Page 113



4.25.Another possible benefit of this option, is that it brings the format of audit for 
local public bodies (financial statements and reviewing a report) more in-line 
with that of other sectors. 

Q29: Which option would provide the best balance between costs for local 
public bodies, a robust assessment of value for money for the local 
taxpayer and provide sufficient assurance and transparency to the 
electorate?  Are there other options?

Q30: Do you think local public bodies should be required to set out their 
performance and plans in an annual report? If so, why? 

Q31: Would an annual report be a useful basis for reporting on financial 
resilience, regularity and propriety, as well as value for money, provided by 
local public bodies?

Q32:  Should the assurance provided by the auditor on the annual report be 
‘limited’ or ‘reasonable’? 

Q33:  What guidance would be required for local public bodies to produce 
an annual report?  Who should produce and maintain the guidance? 

Public interest reporting 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
4.26.Under Section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the auditor is currently 

required to consider whether to issue a report in the public interest on any 
significant matter coming to his or her notice in the course of an audit, and to 
bring it to the attention of the audited body and the public. The auditor can also 
make written recommendations to the audited body as part of this report.  The 
audited body has a corresponding duty to consider and respond to these 
reports and any recommendations that might be made. The costs of the report 
fall on the audited body. 

4.27.Appointed auditors have issued 131 public interest reports since 2002, of which 
13 have related to principal local authorities, 85 to parish councils, 30 to health 
bodies and one each to a passenger transport authority (now an integrated 
transport authority), a passenger transport executive, and an internal drainage 
board.

4.28.In addition to the auditor’s duties to report in the public interest, they also have 
the power to make a recommendation requiring a public response and can 
issue an advisory notice to the body if they have reason to believe the body is 
about to or has made a decision involving the unlawful incurring of expenditure.

41

Page 114



OTHER SECTORS 
4.29.Although public interest reporting is a consequence of the principles of public 

audit, there are some similarities with processes in place in other sectors. 

4.30.The auditor of a regulated entity generally has special reporting responsibilities 
in addition to the responsibility to report on financial statements. One of these 
special reporting responsibilities is a statutory duty to report certain information, 
relevant to the regulators’ functions that come to the auditor’s attention in the 
course of the audit work. This form of report is derivative in nature and is 
initiated by the auditor on discovery of a reportable matter.  

OUR PROPOSALS 
4.31.We consider it is important that the duty on an auditor to consider whether to 

make a report in the public interest should be retained. Public interest reports 
are a key part of the current audit system and provide a vehicle through which 
the public are made aware of issues of significant interest to them. This is 
consistent with the design principles of localism and transparency.

4.32.We envisage that the current publication requirements for public interest reports 
would be retained, as would the audited body’s responsibilities to consider the 
report at a meeting within one month of receipt and to publish a summary of the 
meeting’s decision.

4.33.The costs of public interest reports will fall on the audited body.  It has been 
suggested that the new direct contractual relationship between the audited 
bodies and their auditors could have, if unchecked, an impact on the ability or 
willingness of the auditor to issue a public interest report. However, we believe 
that if suitable safeguards are put in place for the resignation or removal of 
auditors, this will mitigate the risk. 

4.34.We also propose to retain the power of an auditor to make a recommendation 
requiring a public response and to issue an advisory notice to the body if they 
have reason to believe the body is about to or has made a decision involving 
the unlawful incurring of expenditure.

Q34:  Do these safeguards also allow the auditor to carry out a public 
interest report without his independence or the quality of the public interest 
report being compromised? 

Provision of non-audit services 

CURRENT SYSTEM 
4.35.The auditor may be best placed to carry out certain types of additional work for 

the audited body.  Therefore, the Audit Commission allows additional work to be 
undertaken without prior approval from the Commission, if the auditor is 
satisfied that: 

42

Page 115



! performance of such work will not compromise, nor be reasonably perceived 
by the public to compromise, his independence and 

! the value of the work in total, in any audit year, does not exceed a de minimis 
amount (set by the Audit Commission as the higher of £30,000 or 20 per cent 
of the total audit fee, excluding fees for the certification of grant claims and 
returns)

4.36.Auditors are required to establish procedures to identify and address any 
potential breaches of these requirements. 

4.37.All such work must be: 

! agreed in advance with the audited body, on the understanding that such 
work is discretionary and is not required to meet the auditors’ statutory 
responsibilities and 

! billed separately from the audit work 

The Commission requires applications for approval to carry out work exceeding the 
de minimis threshold at least ten days before the start of the work. 

OTHER SECTORS 
4.38.In other sectors, such as the companies sector, statutory auditors are allowed 

to provide other non-audit services to the company. 

4.39.However, the audit committee of the company has a role in considering all 
relationships between the company and the audit firm, including the provision of 
non-audit services and whether, taken as a whole and having regard to the 
views, as appropriate, of the external auditor, management and internal audit, 
those relationships appear to impair the auditor’s independence and objectivity. 

4.40.The audit committee should also develop and recommend to the board the 
company’s policy in relation to the provision of non-audit services by the 
auditor, and keep the policy under review. The audit committee’s objective 
should be to ensure that the provision of such services does not impair the 
external auditor’s independence or objectivity. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
4.41.We propose that auditors will be able to provide non-audit services to the 

audited body, but safeguards will be built into the system to prevent any actual 
or perceived threats to the auditor’s independence. We recognise that by 
adding a number of safeguards into the system we could reduce the number of 
auditors eligible for appointment to an audited body, which would in turn affect 
competition.   

4.42.We propose that auditors should continue to adhere to the ethical standards 
produced by the Auditing Practices Board and permission should be sought 
from the audit committee who would provide advice to the body on whether 
non-audit work should be undertaken as well as continuing to monitor the 
relationship between the auditor and the audited body.

43

Page 116



Q35:  Do you agree that auditors appointed to a local public body should 
also be able to provide additional audit-related or other services to that 
body?   

Q36:  Have we identified the correct balance between safeguarding auditor 
independence and increasing competition? If not, what safeguards do you 
think would be appropriate?     

Public interest disclosure

CURRENT SYSTEM 
4.43.Under the current framework, the Audit Commission and appointed auditors are 

prescribed persons under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 for 
disclosures relating to “the proper conduct of public business, value for money, 
fraud and corruption in local government and health service bodies”.  The Audit 
Commission and appointed auditors consider information they receive as a 
result of a disclosure and determine what action, if any, to take in the context of 
their existing statutory and professional powers and duties. 

4.44.We recognise the importance of the roles undertaken by prescribed persons 
including the Audit Commission and appointed auditors. It provides reassurance 
to workers that it is safe and acceptable for them to raise concerns internally 
and sets out the circumstances where the disclosure of the malpractice outside 
of the organisation is in the public interest and should be protected. 

The Audit Commission’s role in public interest disclosure 

The Audit Commission is a ‘prescribed person’ as set out in the Schedule to the 
Public Interest Disclosure Act.  It exercises this role by: 

! receiving the facts of a disclosure 
! supporting the discloser by referring them to Public Concern at Work for 

further advice and guidance if subjected to victimisation or harassment; 
! acknowledging receipt of the disclosure and stating in general terms 

what the procedures are 
! forwarding information to the auditor and inform the discloser 

The current role of the appointed auditor 
The auditor’s role includes: 

! evaluating the information provided by the Commission 
! acknowledging receipt to the discloser, and providing an indication of the 

likely response, with an explanation for the decision
! undertaking appropriate audit work in response to the disclosure 
! reporting the outcome of any work to the discloser and the Commission

44

Page 117



OTHER SECTORS 
4.45.The Financial Reporting Council’s guidance for the audit committees of 

companies sets out a role for the audit committee in reviewing arrangements 
under which staff of the company may, in confidence, raise concerns about 
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters. The 
audit committee’s objective is to ensure that arrangements are in place for the 
proportionate and independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate 
follow-up action. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
4.46.We believe it is important that a similar system operates in the new framework. 

We propose that the Audit Commission’s role (receiving, acknowledging receipt 
of and forwarding the facts of disclosure) should be broadly transferred to the 
audit committee of the local public body. The audit committee may chose to 
designate one of its independent members as a point of contact. As this role is 
an administrative role, which involves no need to consider the issue they are 
transferring, we do not see this as an additional burden on audit committees. 

4.47.We envisage that the statutory auditor of the local public body would continue to 
be a prescribed person and would continue with his/her role with no change 
from the current system. 

Q37: Do you agree that it would be sensible for the auditor and the audit 
committee of the local public body to be designated prescribed persons 
under the Public Interest Disclosure Act? If not, who do you think would be 
best placed to undertake this role? 

Transparency

CURRENT SYSTEM 
4.48.Members of the public currently have rights to question the auditor of an audited 

body about its accounts and raise objections, if the audited body is not a health 
body, in respect of unlawful items of account or matters on which the auditor 
can make a report in the public interest. The auditor may also apply for a 
declaration to the Court. Objectors have the right to appeal to the Courts about 
an auditor’s decision. 

4.49.Auditors have only limited discretion to refuse to investigate objections, but the 
costs of investigating objections, which are recovered from the local public body 
and, therefore, funded by council taxpayers, can be disproportionate to the 
sums involved in the complaint, or to the normal audit costs of the local public 
body.

4.50.The right to object to the accounts was first introduced more than 150 years 
ago, at a time when the auditor was the only individual to whom an elector 
could raise issues of concern. 

45

Page 118



OUR PROPOSALS 
4.51.The public can now raise concerns through a wide variety of appropriate 

avenues for redress, including the Local Government Ombudsman (in relation 
to maladministration) and the Information Commissioner (on matters concerning 
the rights that individuals have under the Freedom of Information and Data 
Protection Acts). Publication of all expenditure over £500 also makes spending 
more transparent and more readily available to the public.

4.52.With this in mind, we consider that the rights for local government electors to 
object to the accounts are both outdated and over-burdensome on auditors, 
local public bodies and council tax payers.

4.53.Under the new local audit framework, members of the public would retain the 
right to make representations to the auditor, raise issues with the auditor and to 
ask the auditor questions about the accounts.

4.54.While the right to make formal objections would be removed, the local public 
body would still be required to advertise that its accounts had been prepared 
and there will be increased publicity requirements for audited bodies. The 
auditor would still be open and transparent about the audit, and would consider 
any relevant representations from the public. The auditor would have discretion 
to decide whether to follow-up any issues raised by local citizens, having regard 
to the significance of the issue, the amounts of public money involved and the 
wider public interest.  If the auditor decided not to consider a representation 
further, the decision would be amenable to judicial review, should the citizen 
who made the representation be dissatisfied with the decision.

4.55.We propose that auditors should also be brought within the remit of the 
Freedom of Information Act to the extent that they are carrying out their 
functions as public office holders.  Therefore, only information in connection 
with a public audit would be within the remit of a freedom of information request. 
However, we recognise that there are costs associated with responding to 
freedom of information requests which could have an impact on audit fees. We 
would also need to consider whether this could be detrimental to the auditor 
and audited body’s relationship. 

4.56.We also envisage that local public bodies should be required to publish their 
accounts and the auditor’s report on the website. 

4.57.We consider that these proposals would provide a balance between 
transparency and disproportionate cost. 

46

Page 119



Q38: Do you agree that we should modernise the right to object to the 
accounts? If not, why?   

Q39:  Is the process set out above the most effective way for modernising 
the procedures for objections to accounts?  If not, what system would you 
introduce?

Q40: Do you think it is sensible for auditors to be brought within the remit of 
the Freedom of Information Act to the extent of their functions as public 
office holders? If not, why? 

Q41:  What will be the impact on (i) the auditor/audited body relationship, 
and (ii) audit fees by bringing auditors within the remit of the Freedom of 
Information Act (to the extent of their functions as public office holders 
only)?   

47

Page 120



Section 5 

5. Arrangements for smaller bodies 

Current system 

The limited assurance audit regime 

The limited assurance audit regime was first introduced in 2001-02 for local councils 
(parish meetings and parish and town councils) where neither income nor expenditure 
exceeded £500,000. This threshold was increased to £1m in 2006. 

The regime is designed specifically to minimise the audit requirement upon, and cost to, 
these small bodies. The audits are based on the submission by the body to the auditor of 
an annual return that is subject to a desk review. The audit report provides a limited level 
of assurance to the body commensurate with the amount of work undertaken. 

The basic audit approach is common to all smaller bodies. However, for those bodies with 
annual income or expenditure over £200,000, auditors are required to carry out additional 
testing as part of their audit approach to reflect the higher risk to public funds; this is 
referred to as the intermediate audit. In addition, on a random sample basis, 5 per cent of 
those bodies operating below the £200,000 threshold will also be selected annually for 
intermediate audit at no extra cost. 

5.1. Under the current legislation, the statutory audit requirements for smaller bodies 
are the same as those for larger bodies. However, since 2002, the Audit 
Commission has ensured that these are met proportionately through a separate 
“limited assurance” framework for bodies with an income or expenditure less 
than £1m.  The smallest bodies currently do not pay any fees for their annual 
audit.

5.2. To bring this into line with the framework under the Companies Act the £1m 
threshold for local public bodies is being increased to not more than £6.5m.   

OTHER SECTORS 
5.3. The companies and charities sector, both have arrangements in place to ensure 

a more proportionate level of audit for smaller bodies. 

Charities
5.4. The Charities Act 1993 put in place a system by which some small charities 

could be subject to independent examination rather than a full audit. 

48

Page 121



Independent Examination v Audit (Charity Sector) 

The two main differences between independent examination and audit relate to: 
! Who can act 
! The nature of the report. 

Who can act The nature of the Report 
Independent
Examination

An independent person who is 
reasonably believed by the body to 
have the requisite knowledge and 
practical experience to carry out a 
competent examination of the 
accounts. No specific qualification is 
necessarily required but the person 
must have a good understanding of 
accounts.

Provides a "negative 
assurance" on the accounts. 
The independent examiner 
declares that no evidence was 
found of lack of accounting 
records, of accounts failing to 
comply with the records, nor of 
other matters that need to be 
disclosed. 

Audit Must be a registered auditor An audit report will need to 
provide an opinion on the 
financial statements 

5.5. The level of independent examination is dictated by the level of gross income of 
the charity. 

Level of Gross Income External scrutiny Annual Report 
Not exceeding £10,000 There is no requirement to have the 

accounts independently examined or 
audited

The trustees must 
prepare an annual 
report but it may be 
simplified. 

Over £10,000 but not 
exceeding £100,000 

Accounts must be subject to outside 
scrutiny but trustees may choose either 
independent examination or audit by a 
registered auditor

An Annual Report 
must be prepared but 
it may be simplified 

Over £100,000 but not 
exceeding £500,000 
(total assets not 
exceeding £2.8m) 

Accounts must be subject to outside 
scrutiny but trustees may choose either 
independent examination or audit by a 
registered auditor.

If an independent examination is chosen 
and gross income exceeds £250,000 then 
the independent examiner appointed 
must be a member of a body specified 
under the 2006 Act.

An Annual Report 
must be prepared but 
it may be simplified 

Exceeds £500,000 (or a 
charity whose gross 
assets exceed £2.8m 
and gross income 
exceeds £100,000) 

A statutory audit is required (subject to 
specified exceptions) and the accounts 
must be audited by a registered auditor. 

A full Annual Report 
must be prepared 

49

Page 122



5.6. Company charities used to be dealt with under the Companies Act 2006 
system. However, from the financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2008 all 
charities (including company charities) are subject to the Charities Act 1993 
system. The purpose of this change was to ensure that the scrutiny of small 
company charities was consistent with charity law requirements and in 
particular allowed for the independent examination of eligible small company 
charities.

5.7. Company charities which meet the Companies Act definition of a small 
company may elect for exemption from audit under the Companies Act and opt 
to have their accounts audited or independently examined under the Charities 
Act 1993. 

5.8. Independent examination offers a lower cost alternative to charities that do not 
require the higher level of assurance that audit can provide. Changes effective 
from this date also result in new requirements for the audit of small groups 
when their accounts are prepared by parent company charities. 

Companies
5.9. The Companies Act 2006 sets out the thresholds which must be met for a 

company to be deemed a small company. These are, at least two of the 
following three conditions: 

! annual income or expenditure (gross income for charities) not exceeding - 
£6,500,000

! balance sheet total not exceeding - £3,260,000 
! average numbers of employers not exceeding – 50 

5.10.These thresholds are subject to periodic amendment. 

5.11.There is exemption from audit for certain small companies if they are eligible 
and wish to take advantage of it. To qualify for audit exemption, a company 
must:

! qualify as small (per paragraph 5.9) and
! have an income or expenditure of not more than £6.5m and
! have a balance sheet total of not more than £3.26m 

5.12.Even if a small company meets these criteria, it must still have its accounts 
audited if this is demanded by a member or members holding at least 10 per 
cent of the nominal value of issued share capital or holding 10 per cent of any 
class of shares. Public companies are not eligible for exemption. 

OUR PROPOSALS 
5.13.Both the limited assurance and independent examination regimes outlined 

above provide a simpler, more proportionate, form of external scrutiny than a 
full audit, but still provide assurance that the accounts of the bodies involved 
have been reviewed by an independent person.

50

Page 123



5.14.We aim to bring arrangements for smaller local public bodies into line with other 
sectors. We are therefore considering a process under which the income and 
expenditure of a body determines what ‘level’ of audit or scrutiny is required; the 
greater the income/expenditure, the more scrutiny is required.

5.15.We propose that the 1,200 or so bodies with income or expenditure less than 
£1,000 would not be subject to an external examination or audit, as the risk to 
public funds is low and any external examination or audit fees would be 
disproportionate to their income or expenditure. These bodies do not currently 
pay a fee for an audit or examination, and requiring them to now do so would 
clearly increase their costs.      

5.16.Bodies with an income or expenditure between £1,000 and the upper threshold 
of £6.5m would be subject to an independent examination rather than a full 
audit.

5.17.Examiners of small bodies should act for a maximum period of 10 years (which 
is in line with the current practices of the Audit Commission). 

5.18.We propose that the independent examination of smaller bodies should be 
similar to that followed in the charities sector. As we have set out above, the 
charities sector provides for a reduced audit for bodies with income or 
expenditure below £500,000. However, the Audit Commission has provided 
limited assurance to all bodies with income or expenditure under £1m recently 
raised to not more than £6.5m. We are keen to ensure that smaller bodies are 
not disproportionately affected by our proposals. Therefore we propose a 
staged model such as the model followed in the charities sector, where the level 
of examination and the qualifications that the independent examiner must have 
are based on the income or expenditure of the body. However, this staged 
model would reflect the current £6.5m threshold used by the Audit Commission 
for their limited assurance regime. The independent examination of smaller 
bodies might therefore look as follows:

51

Page 124



Number % small 
bodies
market

Income/Expenditure Scrutiny

Level
1

1,200 12% Public bodies with 
expenditure less than 
£1,000

! Existing governance and accounting 
arrangements

! Annual accounts published 
! Positive confirmation that annual accounts 

have been produced and published via the 
precept request (or equivalent) 

! No external audit/scrutiny 

Level
2

Approx
6,400
bodies

64% Public bodies with 
expenditure between 
£1,000 and £50,000 

As level 1, but 

! (Under option 1 below) the county or 
unitary council to appoint an independent 
examiner (no specific qualifications 
needed, but County or unitary council 
should assure itself that the relevant 
person has the requisite experience and 
expertise) to assess its accounts.  In 
practice the Section 151 officer or full 
council, having regard to advice provided 
by the audit committee, would make this 
appointment.  The independent examiner 
might be an officer of the county or unitary 
council.

! The body must also publish the details of 
the examiner. 

Level
3

Approx
1,625
bodies

16% Public bodies with 
expenditure between 
£50,000 and 
£250,000

As level 2, but:

! Existing internal audit arrangements 
! Independent examiner must hold a 

professional qualification to assess its 
accounts.

Level
4

Approx
675
bodies

7% Public bodies with 
expenditure between 
£250,000 and £6.5m

As level 3, but 
! Independent examiner must hold a 

professional qualification and be registered 
as a public auditor.

52

Page 125



Appointing the examiner 

OPTION 1 
5.19.We consider that the appointment process for the independent examiner should 

be proportionate. An audit committee could be a significant cost for a smaller 
body. Instead, where an independent examiner is required, we propose that the 
county or unitary authority should be responsible for appointing the independent 
examiner (see table above).  If smaller bodies were responsible for appointing 
their own examiner in the absence of an audit committee there would be a lack 
of independence in the appointment process.  In addition, they may not achieve 
a good price for this service.  

5.20.If the county or unitary authority was responsible for the appointment this would 
provide a degree of independence to the appointment process for smaller 
bodies, and they would have the ability to appoint independent examiners for all 
of the smaller bodies in their areas, providing the opportunity to make savings 
through economies of scale. 

OPTION 2 
5.21.The small body would be required to make arrangements for the appointment of 

the independent examiner, including the involvement of an audit committee.  
This would give the body the freedom to make the necessary arrangements 
which might include joining up with other small bodies, either locally or providing 
similar services.  The smaller bodies would be able to arrange a joint audit 
committee, with safeguards to provide for independence.  Alternatively, the 
small body would be able to join with a larger local public body and utilise their 
audit committee.  Under this option the scope of the examination would still be 
as set out in the table above.      

Q42:  Which option provides the most proportionate approach for smaller 
bodies? What could happen to the fees for smaller bodies under our 
proposals?

Q43: Do you think the county or unitary authority should have the role of 
commissioner for the independent examiners for smaller bodies in their 
areas?  Should this be the section 151 officer, or the full council having 
regard to advice provided by the audit committee? What additional costs 
could this mean for county or unitary authorities? 

Q44:  What guidance would be required to enable county/unitary authorities 
to:
a.) Appoint independent examiners for the smaller bodies in their areas?
b.) Outline the annual return requirements for independent examiners? 

Who should produce and maintain this guidance? 

53

Page 126



Q45:  Would option 2 ensure that smaller bodies appoint an external 
examiner, whilst maintaining independence in the appointment?   

Q46:  Are there other options given the need to ensure independence in the 
appointment process? How would this work where the smaller body, e.g. a 
port health authority, straddles more than one county/unitary authority? 

Q47:  Is the four-level approach for the scope of the examination too 
complex?  If so, how would you simplify it? Should the threshold for smaller 
bodies be not more than £6.5m or £500,000? Are there other ways of dealing 
with small bodies, e.g. a narrower scope of audit? 

Public interest reporting for smaller bodies 

5.22.There would be no auditor to receive queries or objections from the public, and 
there would be no public interest reporting.   However, if the examiner identified 
issues giving cause for concern we propose that these could be raised with the 
audited body, or the county or unitary authority.  The county or unitary authority 
could be given the power to appoint an auditor to then carry out a public interest 
report on the matters raised with the audited body.  Sanctions could include a 
power to make the next precept (partly or wholly) conditional on the matters 
raised being addressed.

Q48:  Does this provide a proportionate, but appropriate method for 
addressing issues that give cause for concern in the independent 
examination of smaller bodies? How would this work where the county 
council is not the precepting authority? 

Objections to accounts of smaller bodies 

5.23.For bodies with an income or expenditure greater than £6.5 million we are 
proposing to modernise the system for dealing with objections to accounts.

5.24.In the case of smaller bodies, we propose that the independent examiner would 
be able to consider whether to refer issues raised by citizens to the proper 
officer (possibly the s151 officer) of the county or unitary authority.  That 
authority would be provided with powers to take action, which might include 
appointing an auditor to consider those issues and report in public to the 
examined body.  The costs for dealing with the representation would fall to the 
smaller body. 

54

Page 127



Q49:  Is the process set out above the most appropriate way to deal with 
issues raised in relation to accounts for smaller bodies?  If not, what system 
would you propose?   

Regulatory regime for smaller bodies 

5.25.For smaller bodies the more proportionate approach described of independent 
examination would not give rise to the same level of scrutiny as an external 
audit.

5.26.However, if appointing the independent examiner to the smaller body, or if 
provided with powers to take action, which might include appointing an auditor 
to carry out a public interest report, the county or unitary council would, 
essentially, be the regulator for this sector.

Q50:  Does this provide a proportionate but appropriate system of 
regulation for smaller bodies?  If not, how should the audit for this market 
be regulated? 

55

Page 128



Section 6 

6. List of consultation questions 

1. Have we identified the correct design principles?  If not what other principles 
should be considered? Do the proposals in this document meet these design 
principles?

2. Do you agree that the audit probation trusts should fall within the Comptroller and 
Auditor General’s regime?

3. Do you think that the National Audit Office would be best placed to produce the 
Code of audit practice and the supporting guidance? 

4. Do you agree that we should replicate the system for approving and controlling 
statutory auditors under the Companies Act 2006 for statutory local public 
auditors?

5. Who should be responsible for maintaining and reviewing the register of statutory 
local public auditors? 

6. How can we ensure that the right balance is struck between requiring audit firms 
eligible for statutory local public audit to have the right level of experience, while 
allowing new firms to enter the market? 

7. What additional criteria are required to ensure that auditors have the necessary 
experience to be able to undertake a robust audit of a local public body, without 
restricting the market? 

8. What should constitute a public interest entity (i.e. a body for which audits are 
directly monitored by the overall regulator) for the purposes of local audit 
regulation?  How should these be defined? 

9. There is an argument that by their very nature all local public bodies could be 
categorised as ‘public interest entities.’  Does the overall regulator need to 
undertake any additional regulation or monitoring of these bodies?  If so, should 
these bodies be categorised by the key services they perform, or by their income 
or expenditure?  If the latter, what should the threshold be? 

10. What should the role of the regulator be in relation to any local bodies treated in a 
manner similar to public interest entities? 

11. Do you think the arrangements we set out are sufficiently flexible to allow 
councils to cooperate and jointly appoint auditors?  If not, how would you make 
the appointment process more flexible, whilst ensuring independence? 

12. Do you think we have identified the correct criteria to ensure the quality of 
independent members? If not, what criteria would you suggest? 

56

Page 129



13. How do we balance the requirements for independence with the need for skills 
and experience of independent members?  Is it necessary for independent 
members to have financial expertise? 

14. Do you think that sourcing suitable independent members will be difficult?  Will 
remuneration be necessary and, if so, at what level? 

15. Do you think that our proposals for audit committees provide the necessary 
safeguards to ensure the independence of the auditor appointment? If so, which 
of the options described in paragraph 3.9 seems most appropriate and 
proportionate? If not, how would you ensure independence while also ensuring a 
decentralised approach? 

16. Which option do you consider would strike the best balance between a localist 
approach and a robust role for the audit committee in ensuring independence of 
the auditor? 

17. Are these appropriate roles and responsibilities for the Audit Committee?  To 
what extent should the role be specified in legislation? 

18. Should the process for the appointment of an auditor be set out in a statutory 
code of practice or guidance?  If the latter, who should produce and maintain 
this?

19. Is this a proportionate approach to public involvement in the selection and work of 
auditors?

20. How can this process be adapted for bodies without elected members? 

21. Which option do you consider provides a sufficient safeguard to ensure that local 
public bodies appoint an auditor?  How would you ensure that the audited body 
fulfils its duty? 

22. Should local public bodies be under a duty to inform a body when they have 
appointed an auditor, or only if they have failed to appoint an auditor by the 
required date? 

23. If notification of auditor appointment is required, which body should be notified of 
the auditor appointment/failure to appoint an auditor? 

24. Should any firm’s term of appointment be limited to a maximum of two 
consecutive five-year periods? 

25. Do the ethical standards provide sufficient safeguards for the rotation of the 
engagement lead and the audit team for local public bodies?  If not, what 
additional safeguards are required? 

57

Page 130



26. Do the proposals regarding the reappointment of an audit firm strike the right 
balance between allowing the auditor and audited body to build a relationship 
based on trust whilst ensuring the correct degree of independence? 

27. Do you think this proposed process provides sufficient safeguard to ensure that 
auditors are not removed, or resign, without serious consideration, and to 
maintain independence and audit quality? If not, what additional safeguards 
should be in place? 

28. Do you think the new framework should put in place similar provision as that in 
place in the Companies sector, to prevent auditors from seeking to limit their 
liability in an unreasonable way? 

29. Which option would provide the best balance between costs for local public 
bodies, a robust assessment of value for money for the local taxpayer and 
provides sufficient assurance and transparency to the electorate?  Are there 
other options? 

30. Do you think local public bodies should be required to set out their performance 
and plans in an annual report? If so, why? 

31. Would an annual report be a useful basis for reporting on financial resilience, 
regularity and propriety, as well as value for money, provided by local public 
bodies? 

32. Should the assurance provided by the auditor on the annual report be ‘limited’ or 
‘reasonable’?

33. What guidance would be required for local public bodies to produce an annual 
report?  Who should produce and maintain the guidance? 

34. Do these safeguards also allow the auditor to carry out a public interest report 
without his independence or the quality of the public interest report being 
compromised?

35. Do you agree that auditors appointed to a local public body should also be able to 
provide additional audit-related or other services to that body? 

36. Have we identified the correct balance between safeguarding auditor 
independence and increasing competition? If not, what safeguards do you think 
would be appropriate? 

37. Do you agree that it would be sensible for the auditor and the audit committee of 
the local public body to be designated prescribed persons under the Public 
Interest Disclosure Act? If not, who do you think would be best placed to 
undertake this role? 

38. Do you agree that we should modernise the right to object to the accounts? If not, 
why?

58

Page 131



39. Is the process set out above the most effective way for modernising the 
procedures for objections to accounts?  If not, what system would you introduce? 

40. Do you think it is sensible for auditors to be brought within the remit of the 
Freedom of Information Act to the extent of their functions as public office 
holders? If not, why? 

41. What will be the impact on (i) the auditor/audited body relationship, and (ii) audit 
fees by bringing auditors within the remit of the Freedom of Information Act (to 
the extent of their functions as public office holders only)? 

42. Which option provides the most proportionate approach for smaller bodies? What 
could happen to the fees for smaller bodies under our proposals? 

43. Do you think the county or unitary authority should have the role of commissioner 
for the independent examiners for smaller bodies in their areas?  Should this be 
the section 151 officer, or the full council having regard to advice provided by the 
audit committee? What additional costs could this mean for county or unitary 
authorities? 

44. What guidance would be required to enable county/unitary authorities to: 
  a.) Appoint independent examiners for the smaller bodies in their areas?
 b.) Outline the annual return requirements for independent examiners? 
 Who should produce and maintain this guidance? 

45. Would option 2 ensure that smaller bodies appoint an external examiner, whilst 
maintaining independence in the appointment? 

46. Are there other options given the need to ensure independence in the 
appointment process? How would this work where the smaller body, e.g. a port 
health authority, straddles more than one county/unitary authority? 

47. Is the four-level approach for the scope of the examination too complex?  If so, 
how would you simplify it? Should the threshold for smaller bodies be not more 
than £6.5m or £500,000? Are there other ways of dealing with small bodies, e.g. 
a narrower scope of audit? 

48. Does this provide a proportionate, but appropriate method for addressing issues 
that give cause for concern in the independent examination of smaller bodies? 
How would this work where the county council is not the precepting authority? 

49. Is the process set out above the most appropriate way to deal with issues raised 
in relation to accounts for smaller bodies?  If not, what system would you 
propose?

50. Does this provide a proportionate but appropriate system of regulation for smaller 
bodies?  If not, how should the audit for this market be regulated?

59

Page 132



Appendix A 

Audited bodies’ published accounts – current arrangements 

The annual accounting statements that audited bodies, other than NHS bodies and 
probation bodies, are currently required to publish are prescribed in Accounts and 
Audit Regulations made under section 27 of the Audit Commission Act 1998. A new 
consolidated set of the regulations has recently been issued. The accounting 
statements for all the bodies must cover the year ending on 31 March. 

The larger bodies (broadly those with annual income or expenditure of more than 
£6.5m) must produce a “statement of accounts”, based, as from the 2010-11 
financial year, on International Financial Reporting Standards as those standards are 
applied by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom, published by CIPFA/LASAAC. The statement must also conform to 
specific requirements set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations and other 
legislation. A statement of accounts includes all the elements that would be expected 
in a comprehensive set of accounts, including: 

! movement in reserves statement 
! comprehensive income and expenditure account 
! balance sheet 
! cash flow statement, and  
! supporting notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies

Where the body has significant subsidiaries or associates Group Accounts must also 
be included. The statement of accounts is accompanied by a statement of internal 
control or annual governance statement, setting out the body’s annual assessment 
of how it is managing and controlling the risks it faces in achieving its aims and legal 
obligations. 

The smaller bodies are given a choice on the form of their annual accounting 
statements. They can prepare either: 

! a statement of accounts on the same basis as a larger body or 
! an income and expenditure account and statement of balances or 
! where the body’s annual income or expenditure is no more than £200,000, a 

record of receipts and payments

For the second and third options the requirements are specified in an Annual Return 
that the body is required to present to the auditor and publish. The form of the 
Annual Return is laid out in Governance and Accountability for Local Councils, a 
Practitioners’ Guide, available from the National Association of Local Councils. 

The accounting statements for both the larger and smaller bodies must be audited 
(for smaller bodies the audit is a ‘limited assurance’ - a simpler, more proportionate, 
form of external scrutiny than a full audit). The statements, together with the auditor’s 
opinion on them, must then be published, and this should be done by 30 September 
following the financial year end. The larger bodies are required to publish the 
statements on their websites, and the smaller bodies by displaying them within their 
area, though both are free to use other means of publication in addition. 

60

Page 133



Appendix B 

List of bodies to which the Audit Commission appoints auditors in England 

The audit bodies which are specified in primary legislation are3:

! A local authority (meaning a county council, district council, London borough 
council and a parish council). 

! A joint authority (which means an authority established by Part 4 of the Local 
Government Act 1985, includes metropolitan county fire and rescue 
authorities).

! The Greater London Authority. 
! Passenger Transport Executive. 
! A functional body (meaning Transport for London, the London Development 

Agency, the Metropolitan Police Authority and the London Fire and 
Emergency Planning Authority). 

! The London Pensions Fund Authority. 
! The London Waste and Recycling Board. 
! A parish meeting of a parish not having a separate parish council. 
! A committee of a local authority, including a joint committee of two or more 

such authorities. 
! The Council of the Isles of Scilly. 
! Any Charter Trustees constituted under section 246 of the Local Government 

Act 1972. 
! A Health Service Body prepared under paragraph 3(1) of Schedule 15 to the 

National Health Service Act 2006. 
! A Port Health Authority constituted under section 2 of the Public Health 

(Control of Disease) Act 1984. 
! The Broads Authority. 
! A national park authority. 
! A conservation board established by order under section 86 of the 

Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. 
! A police authority established under section 3 of the Police Act 1996. 
! A fire and rescue authority constituted by a scheme under Section 2 of the 

Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 or a scheme to which section 4 of that Act 
applies.

! An authority established for an area in England by an order under section 207 
of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (joint 
waste authorities). 

! A licensing planning committee. 
! An internal drainage board. 
! A local probation board established under section 4 of the Criminal Justice 

and Court Services Act. 

3 It is proposed through the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Bill that police and crime 
commissioners and chief constables will be added to schedule 2 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 
and thereby become a body for which the Audit Commission will appoint auditors to. In addition, the 
Health Bill refers to GP Consortia being brought within the Audit Commission Act 1998.

61

Page 134



! A probation trust.  
! An economic prosperity board established under section 88 of the Local 

Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. 
! A combined authority established under section 103 of that Act. 
! The accounts of the collection fund of the Common Council and the accounts 

of the City fund.
! The accounts relating to the superannuation fund maintained and 

administered by the Common Council under the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 1995.

62

Page 135



Appendix C 

Recognised supervisory bodies and recognised qualifying bodies in England 

In the companies sector, audit firms must be registered with, and subject to 
supervision by a recognised supervisory body and persons responsible for company 
audit work at a firm must hold a recognised qualification awarded by a recognised 
qualifying body. 

There are currently five recognised supervisory bodies: 

! Association of Authorised Public Accountants 
! Association of Chartered Certified Accountants 
! Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
! Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland 
! Institute of Chartered Accountants in Scotland 

and six recognised qualifying bodies: 

! Association of Chartered Certified Accountants 
! Association of International Accountants 
! Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
! Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
! Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland 
! Institute of Chartered Accountants in Scotland 

63

Page 136



Department for Communities and Local Government

© Crown Copyright, March 2011 

ISBN: 978 1 4098 2933 1 

Page 137



Page 138
This page is intentionally left blank



De
pa
rtm

en
t o
f C

om
mu

nit
ies

 an
d L

oc
al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ap
pe
nd
ix 
B 

Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 do

cu
me

nt 
Ap

ril 
20
11
 on

 th
e 

 Fu
tur

e o
f lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 au
dit

 
 Co

ns
ult

ati
on

 qu
es

tio
ns

  
CB

C 
res

po
ns

e 
 

 
1. 

Ha
ve

 w
e i

de
nti

fie
d t

he
 co

rre
ct 

de
sig

n p
rin

cip
les

? I
f n

ot 
wh

at 
oth

er 
pri

nc
ipl

es
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 co

ns
ide

red
? D

o t
he

 pr
op

os
als

 in
 

thi
s d

oc
um

en
t m

ee
t th

es
e d

es
ign

 pr
inc

ipl
es

?  
Th

e p
rin

cip
les

 co
ve

r th
e f

un
da

me
nta

l re
qu

ire
me

nts
 of

 an
 

ex
ter

na
l a

ud
ito

r p
rov

isio
n. 

Ke
y e

lem
en

ts,
 su

ch
 as

, 
ind

ep
en

de
nc

e a
nd

 tra
ns

pa
ren

cy
 ar

e c
lea

rly
 co

ns
ide

red
. T

he
 

pro
po

sa
l d

oe
s c

ov
er 

the
se

 el
em

en
ts.

 
Ho

we
ve

r, i
t d

oe
s n

ot 
co

ve
r th

e r
ela

tio
ns

hip
 be

tw
ee

n t
he

 
ex

ter
na

l a
ud

ito
r, t

he
 in

ter
na

l a
ud

ito
r a

nd
 ot

he
r a

ss
ura

nc
e 

pro
vid

ers
. C

urr
en

tly
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 in
 Lo

ca
l A

uth
ori

ty 
en

ab
le 

va
rio

us
 so

urc
es

 to
 be

 us
ed

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su

ran
ce

 to
 th

e A
ud

it 
Co

mm
itte

e, 
the

 C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 ul

tim
ate

ly 
the

 pu
bli

c. 
Th

e 
pro

po
sa

l d
oe

s n
ot 

ind
ica

te 
ho

w 
the

 ne
w 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 w
ou

ld 
me

et 
the

 Ac
co

un
ts 

& A
ud

it R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 (2

01
1),

 an
d o

the
r 

cu
rre

nt 
reg

ula
tio

ns
 an

d c
od

es
 of

 be
st 

pra
cti

ce
, a

lth
ou

gh
 th

es
e 

ma
y b

e a
me

nd
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct 

the
 ne

w 
sc

he
me

. It
 al

so
 do

es
 no

t 
ind

ica
te 

ho
w 
kn

ow
led

ge
 an

d b
es

t p
rac

tic
e w

ou
ld 

be
 sh

are
d 

be
tw

ee
n t

he
 ‘n

ew
 lo

ca
lise

d a
ud

ito
rs’

 an
d p

as
se

d o
n t

o t
he

 
au

dit
ee

 to
 en

su
re 

the
 pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 ca
n c

on
tin

ue
 to

 co
mp

are
 

an
d c

on
tra

st 
the

ir e
ffo

rts
 w

ith
 ea

ch
 ot

he
r, w

hic
h i

s a
 ke

y 
ele

me
nt 

to 
dri

vin
g o

ut 
mo

re 
va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
.   

 
 

 
2. 

Do
 yo

u a
gre

e t
ha

t th
e a

ud
it p

rob
ati

on
 tru

sts
 sh

ou
ld 

fal
l w

ith
in 

the
 C

om
ptr

oll
er 

an
d A

ud
ito

r G
en

era
l’s 

reg
im

e?
  

No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 fo

r th
is 

au
tho

rity
.  

 
 

3. 
Do

 yo
u t

hin
k t

ha
t th

e N
ati

on
al 

Au
dit

 O
ffic

e (
NA

O)
 w

ou
ld 

be
 

be
st 

pla
ce

d t
o p

rod
uc

e t
he

 C
od

e o
f a

ud
it p

rac
tic

e a
nd

 th
e 

su
pp

ort
ing

 gu
ida

nc
e?

  
Ye

s -
 th

e N
AO

 is
 be

st 
pla

ce
d t

o p
rod

uc
e t

he
 C

od
e. 

Ho
we

ve
r, 

thi
s w

ill n
ee

d t
o b

e i
n c

on
su

lta
tio

n w
ith

 ot
he

r k
ey

 st
ak

eh
old

ers
, 

for
 ex

am
ple

, th
e C

ha
rte

red
 In

sti
tut

e o
f P

ub
lic 

Fin
an

ce
 an

d 
Ac

co
un

tan
cy

 (C
IPF

A)
. 

 
 

Page 139



4. 
Do

 yo
u a

gre
e t

ha
t w

e s
ho

uld
 re

pli
ca

te 
the

 sy
ste

m 
for

 
ap

pro
vin

g a
nd

 co
ntr

oll
ing

 st
atu

tor
y a

ud
ito

rs 
un

de
r th

e 
Co

mp
an

ies
 Ac

t 2
00

6 f
or 

sta
tut

ory
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic 

au
dit

ors
?  

Ye
s –

 W
e a

gre
e t

ha
t th

e r
ep

lica
tio

n o
f th

e a
pp

rov
al 

an
d c

on
tro

l 
pro

ce
ss

 fo
r th

e a
ud

ito
rs 

wo
uld

 be
 ap

pro
pri

ate
. 

 
 

5. 
W
ho

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 re
sp

on
sib

le 
for

 m
ain

tai
nin

g a
nd

 re
vie

win
g t

he
 

reg
ist

er 
of 

sta
tut

ory
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic 

au
dit

ors
?  

Th
is 

fun
cti

on
 co

uld
 be

 w
ith

in 
the

 re
mi

t o
f th

e N
AO

 
 

 
6. 

Ho
w 
ca

n w
e e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
 rig

ht 
ba

lan
ce

 is
 st

ruc
k b

etw
ee

n 
req

uir
ing

 au
dit

 fir
ms

 el
igi

ble
 fo

r s
tat

uto
ry 

loc
al 

pu
bli

c a
ud

it t
o 

ha
ve

 th
e r

igh
t le

ve
l o

f e
xp

eri
en

ce
, w

hil
e a

llo
win

g n
ew

 fir
ms

 to
 

en
ter

 th
e m

ark
et?

  

Th
is 

wo
uld

 ha
ve

 to
 be

 a 
po

licy
 de

cis
ion

 of
 th

e N
AO

 in
 th

e f
irs

t 
ins

tan
ce

 th
at 

is 
the

n s
ub

jec
t to

 re
vie

w 
an

d c
on

su
lta

tio
n w

ith
 

bo
th 

the
 po

ten
tia

l p
rov

ide
rs 

of 
au

dit
 an

d t
he

 pu
bli

c s
ec

tor
 

bo
die

s. 
 

 
7. 

W
ha

t a
dd

itio
na

l c
rite

ria
 ar

e r
eq

uir
ed

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t a

ud
ito

rs 
ha

ve
 th

e n
ec

es
sa

ry 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e t

o b
e a

ble
 to

 un
de

rta
ke

 a 
rob

us
t a

ud
it o

f a
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic 

bo
dy

, w
ith

ou
t re

str
ict

ing
 th

e 
ma

rke
t? 

 

Th
e a

ud
ito

rs 
wil

l re
qu

ire
 th

e r
ele

va
nt 

un
de

rst
an

din
g o

f th
e 

‘lo
ca

l is
su

es
’ a

nd
 st

ak
eh

old
ers

. T
he

ref
ore

 fo
r th

is 
au

tho
rity

 
CI

PF
A w

ou
ld 

be
 a 

ke
y s

tak
eh

old
er 

an
d c

on
sid

era
tio

n g
ive

n t
o 

the
 si

ze
 of

 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on

 i.e
. a

 se
co

nd
 tie

r a
uth

ori
ty 

/ 
Bo

rou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il. 

Als
o a

s m
en

tio
ne

d a
bo

ve
, th

e a
bil

ity
 to

 
mo

ve
 kn

ow
led

ge
 an

d b
es

t p
rac

tic
e b

etw
ee

n o
the

r a
uth

ori
tie

s 
wo

uld
 be

 a 
req

uir
em

en
t. H

ow
ev

er,
 co

ntr
oll

ing
 m

ark
et 

for
ce

s 
an

d b
arr

ier
s t

o e
ntr

y c
ou

ld 
no

t b
e a

 re
sp

on
sib

ility
 of

 th
is 

au
tho

rity
. 

 
 

8. 
W
ha

t s
ho

uld
 co

ns
titu

te 
a p

ub
lic 

int
ere

st 
en

tity
 (i.

e. 
a b

od
y f

or 
wh

ich
 au

dit
s a

re 
dir

ec
tly

 m
on

ito
red

 by
 th

e o
ve

ral
l re

gu
lat

or)
 

for
 th

e p
urp

os
es

 of
 lo

ca
l a

ud
it r

eg
ula

tio
n?

 H
ow

 sh
ou

ld 
the

se
 

be
 de

fin
ed

?  

In 
the

 in
ter

es
t o

f p
rot

ec
tin

g t
he

 pu
bli

c p
urs

e, 
loc

ali
sm

 an
d 

tra
ns

pa
ren

cy
, a

nd
 en

su
rin

g v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y f
rom

 th
e p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r, a
ll p

ub
lic 

int
ere

st 
en

titi
es

 sh
ou

ld 
rec

eiv
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

au
dit

. H
ow

ev
er,

 th
is 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 pr
op

ort
ion

ate
 to

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
n 

the
 lo

ca
l c

om
mu

nit
y. 

Th
ere

for
e a

 sc
ale

d o
r ri

sk
 ba

se
d 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut.
 Th

is 
sh

ou
ld 

als
o e

ns
ure

 
tha

t th
e m

on
ito

rin
g o

f th
e r

eg
ula

tor
 do

es
 no

t d
riv

e u
p t

he
 co

sts
 

of 
the

 pr
ov

isio
n a

nd
 th

ere
by

 de
fea

t th
e o

bje
cti

ve
 of

 ch
an

gin
g 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

sc
he

me
.   

 
 

9. 
Th

ere
 is

 an
 ar

gu
me

nt 
tha

t b
y t

he
ir v

ery
 na

tur
e a

ll lo
ca

l p
ub

lic 
bo

die
s c

ou
ld 

be
 ca

teg
ori

se
d a

s ‘
pu

bli
c i

nte
res

t e
nti

tie
s.’

 D
oe

s 
the

 ov
era

ll r
eg

ula
tor

 ne
ed

 to
 un

de
rta

ke
 an

y a
dd

itio
na

l 
Se

e a
ns

we
r to

 qu
es

tio
n 8

 ab
ov

e. 
Plu

s, 
the

 se
rvi

ce
s d

eli
ve

red
 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 th
e k

ey
 dr

ive
r, w

ith
 th

e f
oc

us
 of

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 th
es

e 
se

rvi
ce

s f
or 

the
 be

st 
va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
.  

Page 140



reg
ula

tio
n o

r m
on

ito
rin

g o
f th

es
e b

od
ies

? I
f s

o, 
sh

ou
ld 

the
se

 
bo

die
s b

e c
ate

go
ris

ed
 by

 th
e k

ey
 se

rvi
ce

s t
he

y p
erf

orm
, o

r b
y 

the
ir i

nc
om

e o
r e

xp
en

dit
ure

? I
f th

e l
att

er,
 w
ha

t s
ho

uld
 th

e 
thr

es
ho

ld 
be

?  
 

 
10

. W
ha

t s
ho

uld
 th

e r
ole

 of
 th

e r
eg

ula
tor

 be
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 an
y 

loc
al 

bo
die

s t
rea

ted
 in

 a 
ma

nn
er 

sim
ila

r to
 pu

bli
c i

nte
res

t 
en

titi
es

?  
Se

e 8
 an

d 9
 ab

ov
e. 

 
 

11
. D

o y
ou

 th
ink

 th
e a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
we

 se
t o

ut 
are

 su
ffic

ien
tly

 
fle

xib
le 

to 
all

ow
 co

un
cils

 to
 co

op
era

te 
an

d j
oin

tly
 ap

po
int

 
au

dit
ors

? I
f n

ot,
 ho

w 
wo

uld
 yo

u m
ak

e t
he

 ap
po

int
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss

 m
ore

 fle
xib

le,
 w

hil
st 

en
su

rin
g i

nd
ep

en
de

nc
e?

  

Th
e p

rop
os

al 
ind

ica
tes

 m
ea

ns
 fo

r s
ev

era
l a

uth
ori

tie
s t

o 
ap

po
int

 th
e a

ud
ito

r to
o m

ax
im

ise
 th

e u
se

 of
 ec

on
om

ies
 of

 
sc

ale
. H

ow
ev

er,
 th

is 
au

tho
rity

 is
 al

so
 in

ter
es

ted
 in

 en
su

rin
g 

tha
t th

e a
pp

oin
ted

 au
dit

or 
wo

uld
 no

t b
e r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 au
dit

 a 
sh

are
d s

erv
ice

 m
ore

 th
an

 on
ce

. T
his

 w
ou

ld 
en

ab
le 

the
 

au
tho

rity
 to

 dr
ive

 ou
t fu

rth
er 

co
st 

sa
vin

gs
 fro

m 
sh

are
d 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

 
 

 
12
. D

o y
ou

 th
ink

 w
e h

av
e i

de
nti

fie
d t

he
 co

rre
ct 

cri
ter

ia 
to 

en
su

re 
the

 qu
ali

ty 
of 

ind
ep

en
de

nt 
me

mb
ers

? I
f n

ot,
 w

ha
t c

rite
ria

 
wo

uld
 yo

u s
ug

ge
st?

  
Th

e c
on

ce
pt 

of 
ind

ep
en

de
nt 

me
mb

ers
 in

 ge
ne

ral
 is

 no
t 

ne
ce

ss
ari

ly 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 fo

r a
 lo

ca
l a

uth
ori

ty 
wh

ere
by

 th
e A

ud
it 

Co
mm

itte
e m

em
be

rs 
ha

ve
 be

en
 el

ec
ted

 by
 th

e p
ub

lic 
an

d 
ha

ve
 a 

fun
da

me
nta

l d
uty

 to
 th

e p
ub

lic.
 Th

ere
for

e r
es

tric
tin

g 
the

ir r
ole

 th
rou

gh
 th

e i
ntr

od
uc

tio
n o

f in
de

pe
nd

en
t C

ha
ir a

nd
 

Vic
e C

ha
ir a

s a
 m

ini
mu

m 
co

uld
 be

 co
un

ter
 pr

od
uc

tiv
e. 

Ho
we

ve
r, i

nd
ep

en
de

nt 
me

mb
ers

 co
uld

 be
 us

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 or

 
en

ha
nc

e t
he

 sk
ills

 ba
se

 of
 th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e. 
Th

ere
for

e t
he

 
sk

ills
 an

d e
xp

eri
en

ce
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 pa

rt o
f th

e c
rite

ria
 fo

r th
e 

se
lec

tio
n o

f in
de

pe
nd

en
t m

em
be

rs.
 

 
 

13
. H

ow
 do

 w
e b

ala
nc

e t
he

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 w
ith

 
the

 ne
ed

 fo
r s

kill
s a

nd
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e o

f in
de

pe
nd

en
t m

em
be

rs?
 

Is 
it n

ec
es

sa
ry 

for
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
rs 

to 
ha

ve
 fin

an
cia

l 
ex

pe
rtis

e?
  

Th
e b

ala
nc

e w
ou

ld 
req

uir
e c

on
sid

era
tio

n w
ith

 cu
rre

nt 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 in
 ot

he
r s

ec
tor

s, 
for

 ex
am

ple
, c

on
sid

era
tio

n o
f 

the
 re

su
lts

 of
 th

e W
alk

er 
Re

po
rt (

20
09

), U
K C

orp
ora

te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e C

od
e (

20
10

), F
ina

nc
ial

 R
ep

ort
ing

 C
ou

nc
il 

Gu
ida

nc
e o

n A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

es
 (2

00
8),

 an
d o

the
r re

ce
nt 

as
se

ss
me

nts
 of

 ot
he

r s
ec

tor
s c

ou
ld 

inf
orm

 th
is 

pro
ce

ss
.  

 

Page 141



It i
s n

ec
es

sa
ry 

for
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
rs 

to 
ha

ve
 fin

an
cia

l 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 re
lev

an
t p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r fi
na

nc
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e, 
if t

he
y a

re 
to 

be
 co

ns
ide

red
 fo

r th
e C

ha
ir/V

ice
 

Ch
air

 as
 th

is 
au

tho
rity

 ha
s e

na
ble

d t
he

 Au
dit

 C
om

mi
tte

e t
o 

ap
pro

ve
 th

e f
ina

l a
cc

ou
nts

. 
 

 
14

. D
o y

ou
 th

ink
 th

at 
so

urc
ing

 su
ita

ble
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
rs 

wil
l 

be
 di

ffic
ult

? W
ill r

em
un

era
tio

n b
e n

ec
es

sa
ry 

an
d, 

if s
o, 

at 
wh

at 
lev

el?
  

Ye
s, 

the
re 

wil
l b

e d
iffi

cu
lty

 in
 so

urc
ing

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t m

em
be

rs,
 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 w
he

n t
ho

se
 w

ho
 ha

ve
 a 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

int
ere

st 
in 

de
ve

lop
ing

 th
e l

oc
al 

au
tho

rity
 w

ou
ld 

mo
st 

like
ly 

loo
k t

o d
o t

his
 

by
 be

co
mi

ng
 a 

Co
un

cill
or.

 Th
ere

 is
 th

e r
isk

 th
at 

‘in
de

pe
nd

en
t’ 

me
mb

ers
 ar

e f
ou

nd
 fro

m 
tho

se
 th

at 
are

 un
su

cc
es

sfu
l in

 an
 

ele
cti

on
 an

d h
av

e a
 de

trim
en

tal
 im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e A
ud

it 
Co

mm
itte

e. 
 

Re
mu

ne
rat

ion
 is

 hi
gh

ly 
like

ly 
to 

be
 ne

ce
ss

ary
 an

d w
ill b

ec
om

e 
a p

rob
lem

 if 
thi

s c
os

t c
ou

nte
rs 

sa
vin

gs
 m

ad
e f

rom
 th

e c
ha

ng
e 

in 
the

 se
lec

tio
n o

f th
e a

ud
ito

r.  
 

 
15

. D
o y

ou
 th

ink
 th

at 
ou

r p
rop

os
als

 fo
r a

ud
it c

om
mi

tte
es

 pr
ov

ide
 

the
 ne

ce
ss

ary
 sa

feg
ua

rds
 to

 en
su

re 
the

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 of
 th

e 
au

dit
or 

ap
po

int
me

nt?
 If 

so
, w

hic
h o

f th
e o

pti
on

s d
es

cri
be

d i
n 

pa
rag

rap
h 3

.9 
se

em
s m

os
t a

pp
rop

ria
te 

an
d p

rop
ort

ion
ate

? I
f 

no
t, h

ow
 w

ou
ld 

yo
u e

ns
ure

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 w
hil

e a
lso

 en
su

rin
g 

a d
ec

en
tra

lise
d a

pp
roa

ch
?  

No
t n

ec
es

sa
rily

 as
 th

e f
un

da
me

nta
l d

ec
isio

n o
f a

ud
ito

r 
ap

po
int

me
nt 

rem
ain

s i
n t

he
 fu

ll c
ou

nc
il r

em
it a

nd
 on

ly 
tak

es
 

ad
vic

e f
rom

 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e. 

 
 

16
. W

hic
h o

pti
on

 do
 yo

u c
on

sid
er 

wo
uld

 st
rik

e t
he

 be
st 

ba
lan

ce
 

be
tw

ee
n a

 lo
ca

list
 ap

pro
ac

h a
nd

 a 
rob

us
t ro

le 
for

 th
e a

ud
it 

co
mm

itte
e i

n e
ns

uri
ng

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 of
 th

e a
ud

ito
r? 

 
Se

e c
om

me
nt 

at 
15

 ab
ov

e. 
Ho

we
ve

r, o
pti

on
 (a

) in
 pa

rag
rap

h 
3.9

 is
 m

os
t li

ke
ly 

to 
be

 th
e o

pti
on

 gi
vin

g t
he

 lo
ca

lly 
ele

cte
d 

Co
un

cill
ors

 in
 th

is 
au

tho
rity

 th
e g

rea
tes

t o
pp

ort
un

ity
 fo

r 
inf

lue
nc

e i
n t

he
 Fu

ll C
ou

nc
il d

ec
isio

n. 
 

 
17

. A
re 

the
se

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 ro
les

 an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi

litie
s f

or 
the

 Au
dit

 
Co

mm
itte

e?
 To

 w
ha

t e
xte

nt 
sh

ou
ld 

the
 ro

le 
be

 sp
ec

ifie
d i

n 
leg

isla
tio

n?
  

Th
e p

rop
os

al 
ide

nti
fie

s t
ha

t th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e “

ma
y w

ish
 to

 
ha

ve
 re

ga
rd 

to 
ad

vic
e f

rom
 th

e S
ec

tio
n 1

51
 O

ffic
er”

, th
is 

sh
ou

ld 
als

o i
nc

lud
e t

he
 H

ea
d o

f In
ter

na
l A

ud
it a

s t
he

 ot
he

r k
ey

 
int

ern
al 

off
ice

r w
ith

 kn
ow

led
ge

 of
 au

dit
 pr

ac
tic

es
. T

he
 gr

ea
ter

 
pre

sc
rip

tiv
e O

pti
on

 2 
wo

uld
 he

lp 
to 

en
su

re 
the

 Au
dit

 
Co

mm
itte

es
 op

era
te 

in 
a s

im
ila

r w
ay

 an
d t

he
 as

pe
cts

 lis
ted

 

Page 142



he
lp 

en
su

re 
oth

er 
ke

y d
uti

es
 ar

e n
ot 

dis
co

nti
nu

ed
.   

 
 

 
18

. S
ho

uld
 th

e p
roc

es
s f

or 
the

 ap
po

int
me

nt 
of 

an
 au

dit
or 

be
 se

t 
ou

t in
 a 

sta
tut

ory
 co

de
 of

 pr
ac

tic
e o

r g
uid

an
ce

? I
f th

e l
att

er,
 

wh
o s

ho
uld

 pr
od

uc
e a

nd
 m

ain
tai

n t
his

?  
If t

he
 pr

oc
es

s i
s n

ot 
a s

tat
uto

ry 
co

de
 th

ere
 is

 th
e r

isk
 th

at 
the

 
pro

ce
ss

 w
ou

ld 
be

 de
va

lue
d. 

Th
e N

AO
 sh

ou
ld 

se
t th

is 
Co

de
 in

 
lin

e w
ith

 its
 re

mi
t fo

r a
ud

it o
f p

ub
lic 

bo
die

s. 
 

 
19

. Is
 th

is 
a p

rop
ort

ion
ate

 ap
pro

ac
h t

o p
ub

lic 
inv

olv
em

en
t in

 th
e 

se
lec

tio
n a

nd
 w

ork
 of

 au
dit

ors
?  

Th
e a

pp
roa

ch
 ta

ke
n s

ho
uld

 be
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

po
licy

 
an

d t
en

de
r p

roc
es

s b
es

t p
rac

tic
e. 

 
 

 
20

. H
ow

 ca
n t

his
 pr

oc
es

s b
e a

da
pte

d f
or 

bo
die

s w
ith

ou
t e

lec
ted

 
me

mb
ers

?  
No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 fo
r th

is 
au

tho
rity

. 
 

 
21

. W
hic

h o
pti

on
 do

 yo
u c

on
sid

er 
pro

vid
es

 a 
su

ffic
ien

t s
afe

gu
ard

 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t lo
ca

l p
ub

lic 
bo

die
s a

pp
oin

t a
n a

ud
ito

r? 
Ho

w 
wo

uld
 yo

u e
ns

ure
 th

at 
the

 au
dit

ed
 bo

dy
 fu

lfils
 its

 du
ty?

  
Th

e o
pti

on
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 th

e “
co

mp
ly 

or 
ex

pla
in”

 
pri

nc
ipl

es
 of

 th
e U

K. 
Th

ere
 m

ay
 w

ell
 be

 so
un

d r
ea

so
n f

or 
a 

fai
lur

e t
o a

pp
oin

t in
 th

e a
ud

ito
r a

s t
en

de
rin

g p
roc

es
se

s a
re 

be
ing

 su
gg

es
ted

. H
ow

ev
er,

 th
is 

do
es

 ne
ed

 th
e s

up
po

rt o
f 

pe
na

ltie
s f

or 
ex

ce
ss

ive
 fa

ilu
re 

to 
ap

po
int

, b
ut 

sh
ou

ld 
no

t 
dis

ab
le 

the
 ab

ility
 fo

r th
e a

uth
ori

ty 
to 

ma
ke

 a 
de

cis
ion

 in
 its

 
loc

al 
co

mm
un

ity
 in

ter
es

t. 
 

 
22

. S
ho

uld
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic 

bo
die

s b
e u

nd
er 

a d
uty

 to
 in

for
m 

a b
od

y 
wh

en
 th

ey
 ha

ve
 ap

po
int

ed
 an

 au
dit

or,
 or

 on
ly 

if t
he

y h
av

e 
fai

led
 to

 ap
po

int
 an

 au
dit

or 
by

 th
e r

eq
uir

ed
 da

te?
  

Th
e d

uty
 to

 in
for

m 
wh

en
 ap

po
int

ed
 an

d w
he

n f
ail

ed
 co

uld
 be

 
us

ed
 to

 in
for

m 
the

 N
AO

 an
d h

elp
 m

ain
tai

n t
he

 re
gis

ter
 of

 
au

dit
ors

. 
 

 
23

. If
 no

tifi
ca

tio
n o

f a
ud

ito
r a

pp
oin

tm
en

t is
 re

qu
ire

d, 
wh

ich
 bo

dy
 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 no
tifi

ed
 of

 th
e a

ud
ito

r a
pp

oin
tm

en
t/fa

ilu
re 

to 
ap

po
int

 an
 au

dit
or?

  
Se

e 2
2 a

bo
ve

. 

 
 

24
. S

ho
uld

 an
y f

irm
’s 

ter
m 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt 

be
 lim

ite
d t

o a
 

ma
xim

um
 of

 tw
o c

on
se

cu
tiv

e f
ive

-ye
ar 

pe
rio

ds
?  

Th
e f

irm
’s 

ter
m 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt 

co
uld

 be
 in

lin
e w

ith
 th

e 
ele

cto
ral

 te
rm

’s 
i.e

. fo
ur 

ye
ar 

pe
rio

ds
. H

ow
ev

er,
 lim

ita
tio

n o
f 

ap
po

int
me

nt 
ma

y h
elp

 in
 th

e r
ed

uc
tio

n o
f b

arr
ier

s o
f e

ntr
y w

ith
 

ne
w 

au
dit

 fir
ms

 
 

 
25
. D

o t
he

 et
hic

al 
sta

nd
ard

s p
rov

ide
 su

ffic
ien

t s
afe

gu
ard

s f
or 

the
 

rot
ati

on
 of

 th
e e

ng
ag

em
en

t le
ad

 an
d t

he
 au

dit
 te

am
 fo

r lo
ca

l 
Ye

s t
he

se
 ar

e s
uff

icie
nt 

sa
feg

ua
rds

. 

Page 143



pu
bli

c b
od

ies
? I

f n
ot,

 w
ha

t a
dd

itio
na

l s
afe

gu
ard

s a
re 

req
uir

ed
?  

 
 

26
. D

o t
he

 pr
op

os
als

 re
ga

rdi
ng

 th
e r

ea
pp

oin
tm

en
t o

f a
n a

ud
it f

irm
 

str
ike

 th
e r

igh
t b

ala
nc

e b
etw

ee
n a

llo
win

g t
he

 au
dit

or 
an

d 
au

dit
ed

 bo
dy

 to
 bu

ild
 a 

rel
ati

on
sh

ip 
ba

se
d o

n t
rus

t w
hil

st 
en

su
rin

g t
he

 co
rre

ct 
de

gre
e o

f in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

?  

Se
e 2

4 a
bo

ve
. 

 
 

27
. D

o y
ou

 th
ink

 th
is 

pro
po

se
d p

roc
es

s p
rov

ide
s s

uff
icie

nt 
sa

feg
ua

rd 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t a
ud

ito
rs 

are
 no

t re
mo

ve
d, 

or 
res

ign
, 

wit
ho

ut 
se

rio
us

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
, a

nd
 to

 m
ain

tai
n i

nd
ep

en
de

nc
e 

an
d a

ud
it q

ua
lity

? I
f n

ot,
 w

ha
t a

dd
itio

na
l s

afe
gu

ard
s s

ho
uld

 
be

 in
 pl

ac
e?

  

Ye
s t

he
se

 ar
e s

uff
icie

nt 
sa

feg
ua

rds
. 

 
 

28
. D

o y
ou

 th
ink

 th
e n

ew
 fra

me
wo

rk 
sh

ou
ld 

pu
t in

 pl
ac

e s
im

ila
r 

pro
vis

ion
 as

 th
at 

in 
pla

ce
 in

 th
e C

om
pa

nie
s s

ec
tor

, to
 pr

ev
en

t 
au

dit
ors

 fro
m 

se
ek

ing
 to

 lim
it t

he
ir l

iab
ility

 in
 an

 un
rea

so
na

ble
 

wa
y?

  

Th
e n

ew
 fra

me
wo

rk 
mu

st 
en

su
re 

the
 au

dit
ors

 ar
e r

ea
so

na
bly

 
ac

co
un

tab
le 

oth
erw

ise
 th

is 
is 

in 
co

nfl
ict

 w
ith

 th
e p

ub
lic 

bo
die

s 
be

ing
 au

dit
ed

.  
 

 
29

. W
hic

h o
pti

on
 w

ou
ld 

pro
vid

e t
he

 be
st 

ba
lan

ce
 be

tw
ee

n c
os

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l p
ub

lic 
bo

die
s, 

a r
ob

us
t a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y f

or 
the

 lo
ca

l ta
xp

ay
er 

an
d p

rov
ide

s s
uff

icie
nt 

as
su

ran
ce

 an
d t

ran
sp

are
nc

y t
o t

he
 el

ec
tor

ate
? A

re 
the

re 
oth

er 
op

tio
ns

?  

Op
tio

n 3
 w

ou
ld 

be
 th

e b
es

t s
uit

ed
 ar

ran
ge

me
nt 

for
 th

is 
au

tho
rity

. 

 
 

30
. D

o y
ou

 th
ink

 lo
ca

l p
ub

lic 
bo

die
s s

ho
uld

 be
 re

qu
ire

d t
o s

et 
ou

t 
the

ir p
erf

orm
an

ce
 an

d p
lan

s i
n a

n a
nn

ua
l re

po
rt?

 If 
so

, w
hy

?  
Ye

s t
he

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 an

d p
lan

s s
ho

uld
 be

 se
 ou

t in
 an

 an
nu

al 
rep

ort
 to

 en
ab

le 
the

 lo
ca

lism
 an

d t
ran

sp
are

nc
y a

sp
ec

ts 
to 

be
 

de
live

red
. 

 
 

31
. W

ou
ld 

an
 an

nu
al 

rep
ort

 be
 a 

us
efu

l b
as

is 
for

 re
po

rtin
g o

n 
fin

an
cia

l re
sili

en
ce

, re
gu

lar
ity

 an
d p

rop
rie

ty,
 as

 w
ell

 as
 va

lue
 

for
 m

on
ey

, p
rov

ide
d b

y l
oc

al 
pu

bli
c b

od
ies

?  
Ye

s –
 th

is 
inf

orm
ati

on
 w

ou
ld 

giv
e a

 be
tte

r in
dic

ati
on

 of
 th

e l
on

g 
ter

m 
sit

ua
tio

n a
nd

 pr
ov

ide
 as

su
ran

ce
 th

at 
the

 au
tho

rity
 do

es
 

no
t c

om
mi

t to
 sh

ort
 te

rm
 st

rat
eg

ies
 po

ss
ibl

y d
riv

en
 by

 po
litic

al 
flu

ctu
ati

on
s. 

 
 

 

Page 144



32
. S

ho
uld

 th
e a

ss
ura

nc
e p

rov
ide

d b
y t

he
 au

dit
or 

on
 th

e a
nn

ua
l 

rep
ort

 be
 ‘lim

ite
d’ 

or 
‘re

as
on

ab
le’

?  
Eit

he
r te

rm
 w

ou
ld 

ne
ed

 de
fin

ing
. H

ow
ev

er 
the

re 
is 

a 
rec

og
nis

ed
 un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f re

as
on

ab
le 

as
su

ran
ce

.  T
he

 
co

nc
ep

t o
f li

mi
ted

 as
su

ran
ce

 co
uld

 le
ad

 to
 th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f 
mi

nim
ali

st 
au

dit
ing

 an
d c

on
fus

ion
 w

ith
 au

dit
 op

ini
on

s w
he

re 
‘lim

ite
d’ 

as
su

ran
ce

 in
dic

ate
s a

 fa
ilin

g s
ys

tem
 of

 co
ntr

ol.
 

 
 

33
. W

ha
t g

uid
an

ce
 w

ou
ld 

be
 re

qu
ire

d f
or 

loc
al 

pu
bli

c b
od

ies
 to

 
pro

du
ce

 an
 an

nu
al 

rep
ort

? W
ho

 sh
ou

ld 
pro

du
ce

 an
d m

ain
tai

n 
the

 gu
ida

nc
e?

  
Su

ffic
ien

t g
uid

an
ce

 to
 en

su
re 

co
mp

ara
bil

ity
 w

ith
 ot

he
r lo

ca
l 

pu
bli

c b
od

ies
, b

ut 
no

t s
o r

es
tric

tiv
e t

ha
t it

 do
es

 no
t a

llo
w 

loc
al 

co
nte

xt.
 Th

e N
AO

 in
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 st
ak

eh
old

ers
, fo

r 
ex

am
ple

, C
IPF

A a
nd

 Lo
ca

l G
ov

ern
me

nt 
As

so
cia

tio
n. 

 
 

34
. D

o t
he

se
 sa

feg
ua

rds
 al

so
 al

low
 th

e a
ud

ito
r to

 ca
rry

 ou
t a

 
pu

bli
c i

nte
res

t re
po

rt w
ith

ou
t h

is 
ind

ep
en

de
nc

e o
r th

e q
ua

lity
 

of 
the

 pu
bli

c i
nte

res
t re

po
rt b

ein
g c

om
pro

mi
se

d?
  

Th
e a

ud
it f

irm
s a

re 
mo

st 
like

ly 
in 

the
 be

st 
po

sit
ion

 to
 co

mm
en

t 
on

 w
ha

t w
ou

ld 
or 

wo
uld

 no
t in

flu
en

ce
 th

eir
 ab

ility
 to

 ca
rry

 ou
t a

 
pu

bli
c i

nte
res

t re
po

rt (
PIR

). H
ow

ev
er,

 a 
rou

te 
to 

the
 N

AO
 fo

r 
pu

bli
c c

on
ce

rns
, p

erh
ap

s i
n a

 si
mi

lar
 fo

rm
 to

 th
e m

on
ito

rin
g o

f 
au

dit
or 

sta
nd

ard
s, 

co
uld

 be
 us

ed
 as

 a 
me

an
s t

o e
ns

ure
 PI

Rs
 

are
 ca

rrie
d o

ut.
 

 
 

35
. D

o y
ou

 ag
ree

 th
at 

au
dit

ors
 ap

po
int

ed
 to

 a 
loc

al 
pu

bli
c b

od
y 

sh
ou

ld 
als

o b
e a

ble
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 ad

dit
ion

al 
au

dit
-re

lat
ed

 or
 

oth
er 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o t
ha

t b
od

y?
  

Ye
s –

 bu
t th

is 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 m

an
ag

ed
 to

 en
su

re 
it d

oe
s n

ot 
im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e f
irm

’s 
ind

ep
en

de
nc

e o
r o

bje
cti

vit
y. 

 
 

36
. H

av
e w

e i
de

nti
fie

d t
he

 co
rre

ct 
ba

lan
ce

 be
tw

ee
n s

afe
gu

ard
ing

 
au

dit
or 

ind
ep

en
de

nc
e a

nd
 in

cre
as

ing
 co

mp
eti

tio
n?

 If 
no

t, 
wh

at 
sa

feg
ua

rds
 do

 yo
u t

hin
k w

ou
ld 

be
 ap

pro
pri

ate
?  

Ob
jec

tiv
ity

, in
teg

rity
, c

on
fid

en
tia

lity
 an

d c
om

pe
ten

cy
 ar

e a
ll k

ey
 

ele
me

nts
 of

 th
e A

ud
ito

r s
up

po
rte

d b
y h

is 
ind

ep
en

de
nc

e. 
Th

es
e e

lem
en

ts 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 sa

feg
ua

rde
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 co
de

s. 
 

 
37

. D
o y

ou
 ag

ree
 th

at 
it w

ou
ld 

be
 se

ns
ibl

e f
or 

the
 au

dit
or 

an
d t

he
 

au
dit

 co
mm

itte
e o

f th
e l

oc
al 

pu
bli

c b
od

y t
o b

e d
es

ign
ate

d 
pre

sc
rib

ed
 pe

rso
ns

 un
de

r th
e P

ub
lic 

Int
ere

st 
Dis

clo
su

re 
Ac

t? 
If n

ot,
 w

ho
 do

 yo
u t

hin
k w

ou
ld 

be
 be

st 
pla

ce
d t

o u
nd

ert
ak

e 
thi

s r
ole

?  

No
 – 

the
 ro

ute
 fo

r d
isc

los
ure

 sh
ou

ld 
lin

k t
o t

he
 N

AO
, n

ot 
the

 
Au

dit
 C

om
mi

tte
e, 

in 
lin

e w
ith

 co
mm

en
ts 

ma
de

 re
ga

rdi
ng

 PI
Rs

 
at 

34
 ab

ov
e. 

 

 
 

38
. D

o y
ou

 ag
ree

 th
at 

we
 sh

ou
ld 

mo
de

rni
se

 th
e r

igh
t to

 ob
jec

t to
 

the
 ac

co
un

ts?
 If 

no
t, w

hy
?  

Ye
s. 

 
 

Page 145



39
. Is

 th
e p

roc
es

s s
et 

ou
t a

bo
ve

 th
e m

os
t e

ffe
cti

ve
 w

ay
 fo

r 
mo

de
rni

sin
g t

he
 pr

oc
ed

ure
s f

or 
ob

jec
tio

ns
 to

 ac
co

un
ts?

 If 
no

t, w
ha

t s
ys

tem
 w
ou

ld 
yo

u i
ntr

od
uc

e?
  

Th
e p

rop
os

al 
do

es
 re

co
gn

ise
 th

e c
ha

ng
es

 br
ou

gh
t a

bo
ut 

by
 

the
 tra

ns
pa

ren
cy

 ag
en

da
. H

ow
ev

er,
 to

 co
mm

en
t o

n i
ts 

eff
ec

tiv
en

es
s a

t th
is 

sta
ge

 w
ou

ld 
be

 pr
em

atu
re 

as
 th

e 
tra

ns
pa

ren
cy

 ag
en

da
 is

 st
ill r

ela
tiv

ely
 ne

w.
 

 
 

40
. D

o y
ou

 th
ink

 it 
is 

se
ns

ibl
e f

or 
au

dit
ors

 to
 be

 br
ou

gh
t w

ith
in 

the
 

rem
it o

f th
e F

ree
do

m 
of 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 Ac
t to

 th
e e

xte
nt 

of 
the

ir 
fun

cti
on

s a
s p

ub
lic 

off
ice

 ho
lde

rs?
 If 

no
t, w

hy
?  

Th
is 

co
uld

 en
ha

nc
e t

he
 tra

ns
pa

ren
cy

 as
pe

cts
 of

 th
e A

ud
ito

r. 

 
 

41
. W

ha
t w

ill b
e t

he
 im

pa
ct 

on
 (i)

 th
e a

ud
ito

r/a
ud

ite
d b

od
y 

rel
ati

on
sh

ip,
 an

d (
ii) 

au
dit

 fe
es

 by
 br

ing
ing

 au
dit

ors
 w

ith
in 

the
 

rem
it o

f th
e F

ree
do

m 
of 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 Ac
t (t

o t
he

 ex
ten

t o
f th

eir
 

fun
cti

on
s a

s p
ub

lic 
off

ice
 ho

lde
rs 

on
ly)

?  

Sa
feg

ua
rds

 w
ou

ld 
be

 re
qu

ire
d t

o c
on

tro
l a

ny
 ex

ten
sio

n o
f 

Fre
ed

om
 of

 In
for

ma
tio

n w
he

re 
the

 re
sp

on
se

 co
uld

 un
de

rm
ine

 
the

 re
lat

ion
sh

ip 
be

tw
ee

n t
he

 au
dit

or 
an

d t
he

 au
dit

ed
 bo

dy
. It

 
co

uld
 le

ad
 to

 a 
gre

ate
r c

os
t th

rou
gh

 th
e m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f th

e 
inf

orm
ati

on
 di

sc
los

ed
, p

art
icu

lar
ly 

if a
dd

res
sin

g s
uc

h m
att

ers
 

as
 fra

ud
 an

d p
rob

ity
.  

 
 

42
. W

hic
h o

pti
on

 pr
ov

ide
s t

he
 m

os
t p

rop
ort

ion
ate

 ap
pro

ac
h f

or 
sm

all
er 

bo
die

s?
 W

ha
t c

ou
ld 

ha
pp

en
 to

 th
e f

ee
s f

or 
sm

all
er 

bo
die

s u
nd

er 
ou

r p
rop

os
als

?  
No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 fo
r th

is 
au

tho
rity

. 

 
 

43
. D

o y
ou

 th
ink

 th
e c

ou
nty

 or
 un

ita
ry 

au
tho

rity
 sh

ou
ld 

ha
ve

 th
e 

rol
e o

f c
om

mi
ss

ion
er 

for
 th

e i
nd

ep
en

de
nt 

ex
am

ine
rs 

for
 

sm
all

er 
bo

die
s i

n t
he

ir a
rea

s?
 Sh

ou
ld 

thi
s b

e t
he

 se
cti

on
 15

1 
off

ice
r, o

r th
e f

ull
 co

un
cil 

ha
vin

g r
eg

ard
 to

 ad
vic

e p
rov

ide
d b

y 
the

 au
dit

 co
mm

itte
e?

 W
ha

t a
dd

itio
na

l c
os

ts 
co

uld
 th

is 
me

an
 

for
 co

un
ty 

or 
un

ita
ry 

au
tho

riti
es

?  

No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 fo

r th
is 

au
tho

rity
. 

 
 

44
. W

ha
t g

uid
an

ce
 w

ou
ld 

be
 re

qu
ire

d t
o e

na
ble

 co
un

ty/
un

ita
ry 

au
tho

riti
es

 to
:  

No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 fo

r th
is 

au
tho

rity
. 

 
 

a.)
 A

pp
oin

t in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

xa
mi

ne
rs 

for
 th

e s
ma

lle
r b

od
ies

 
in 

the
ir a

rea
s?

  
 

b.)
 O

utl
ine

 th
e a

nn
ua

l re
tur

n r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

for
 

ind
ep

en
de

nt 
ex

am
ine

rs?
  

 
W
ho

 sh
ou

ld 
pro

du
ce

 an
d m

ain
tai

n t
his

 gu
ida

nc
e?

  
No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 fo
r th

is 
au

tho
rity

. 

Page 146



 
 

45
. W

ou
ld 

op
tio

n 2
 en

su
re 

tha
t s

ma
lle

r b
od

ies
 ap

po
int

 an
 

ex
ter

na
l e

xa
mi

ne
r, w

hil
st 

ma
int

ain
ing

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 in
 th

e 
ap

po
int

me
nt?

  
No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 fo
r th

is 
au

tho
rity

. 

 
 

46
. A

re 
the

re 
oth

er 
op

tio
ns

 gi
ve

n t
he

 ne
ed

 to
 en

su
re 

ind
ep

en
de

nc
e i

n t
he

 ap
po

int
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss

? H
ow

 w
ou

ld 
thi

s 
wo

rk 
wh

ere
 th

e s
ma

lle
r b

od
y, 

e.g
. a

 po
rt h

ea
lth

 au
tho

rity
, 

str
ad

dle
s m

ore
 th

an
 on

e c
ou

nty
/un

ita
ry 

au
tho

rity
?  

No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 fo

r th
is 

au
tho

rity
. 

 
 

47
. Is

 th
e f

ou
r-le

ve
l a

pp
roa

ch
 fo

r th
e s

co
pe

 of
 th

e e
xa

mi
na

tio
n 

too
 co

mp
lex

? I
f s

o, 
ho

w 
wo

uld
 yo

u s
im

pli
fy 

it?
 Sh

ou
ld 

the
 

thr
es

ho
ld 

for
 sm

all
er 

bo
die

s b
e n

ot 
mo

re 
tha

n £
6.5

m 
or 

£5
00

,00
0?

 Ar
e t

he
re 

oth
er 

wa
ys

 of
 de

ali
ng

 w
ith

 sm
all

 bo
die

s, 
e.g

. a
 na

rro
we

r s
co

pe
 of

 au
dit

?  

No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 fo

r th
is 

au
tho

rity
. 

 
 

48
. D

oe
s t

his
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
pro

po
rtio

na
te,

 bu
t a

pp
rop

ria
te 

me
tho

d f
or 

ad
dre

ss
ing

 is
su

es
 th

at 
giv

e c
au

se
 fo

r c
on

ce
rn 

in 
the

 
ind

ep
en

de
nt 

ex
am

ina
tio

n o
f s

ma
lle

r b
od

ies
? H

ow
 w

ou
ld 

thi
s 

wo
rk 

wh
ere

 th
e c

ou
nty

 co
un

cil 
is 

no
t th

e p
rec

ep
tin

g 
au

tho
rity

?  

No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 fo

r th
is 

au
tho

rity
. 

 
 

49
. Is

 th
e p

roc
es

s s
et 

ou
t a

bo
ve

 th
e m

os
t a

pp
rop

ria
te 

wa
y t

o d
ea

l 
wit

h i
ss

ue
s r

ais
ed

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 ac

co
un

ts 
for

 sm
all

er 
bo

die
s?

 
If n

ot,
 w

ha
t s

ys
tem

 w
ou

ld 
yo

u p
rop

os
e?

  
No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 fo
r th

is 
au

tho
rity

. 

 
 

50
. D
oe
s t
his

 pr
ov
ide

 a 
pro

po
rtio

na
te 
bu
t a
pp
rop

ria
te 

sy
ste

m 
of 

reg
ula

tio
n f

or 
sm

all
er 

bo
die

s?
 If 
no
t, h

ow
 sh

ou
ld 
the

 
au
dit
 fo
r th

is 
ma

rke
t b
e r

eg
ula

ted
?  

No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 fo

r th
is 

au
tho

rity
. 

  En
d. 

 

Page 147



Page 148
This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Audit committee, 22nd June 2011  Commissioning update. Version 1 
 Page 1 Last updated 10 June 2011 
  
 

Information/Discussion Paper 
Audit committee - 22nd June 2011 

Commissioning update 
This note contains the information to keep Members informed of matters relating to 
the work of the Committee, but where no decisions from Members are needed 
 

1. Why has this come to audit committee? 
1.1 At the last meeting of the committee members indicated that as an audit committee 

they needed to be aware of the governance issues which may emerge from 
becoming a commissioning council and specifically from individual reviews.  Reports 
have been presented to the last round of overview and scrutiny committees on the 
updates on each of the individual reviews and a more general report to economy and 
business improvement overview and scrutiny committee on the proposed review 
schedule. 

2. Summary of the Issue 
2.1 The commissioning programme is being managed through MSP and Prince2 

methodology.  There is a programme board which includes cabinet representation 
(leader and cabinet member corporate services) and this is supported by a cross 
party member working group which includes the leader and the group leader for the 
conservative group who act as a sounding board for the process moving forward and 
specifically the role of members. 

2.2 The two commissioning reviews for leisure and culture and built environment have 
project teams which include the lead cabinet member and again a cross party 
member working group which the cabinet member chairs.  These groups enable 
members to discuss outcomes and help support the project in reviewing the direction 
of travel for the delivery of those outcomes. 

2.3 The commissioning programme board has started to explore the different delivery 
and governance options that are available to the council, and this work is being 
supported by a senior solicitor from Onelegal.  This is work in progress but attached 
at appendix A are the different options that are available.  The individual reviews are 
then using these models to identify whether there are examples of these in operation 
either locally or nationally and as the reviews move forward will consider some of the 
benefits and weaknesses of such arrangements.  This work will help to support any 
decision making and assessment of how the review should then be taken forward and 
what further work should be undertaken through more formalised option appraisals. 

3. Summary of evidence/information 
3.1 The development of the GO programme has provided useful learning in relation to 

governance arrangements and we need to ensure that these are fully considered and 

Agenda Item 11
Page 149



 

 

 

Audit committee, 22nd June 2011  Commissioning update. Version 1 
 Page 2 Last updated 10 June 2011 
  
 

built into the other reviews as they progress.  Members this evening are receiving an 
update report from the director of resources on the GO programme and members 
may wish to consider whether there are issues arising from this review which could 
usefully be incorporated into other commissioning programmes. 

3.2 The council is also looking at how the implementation of a shared finance and HR 
service will be able to support other delivery models.  CBH have already signed up to 
use the GO shared service and governance arrangements will be put in place with 
CBH and the shared service.  The GO programme has also flagged the 
dependencies to the potential establishment of a council owned joint waste company 
and the way that the company could access services from the shared service.  Work 
is ongoing with Onelegal to ensure that the commissioning programmes and 
interdependencies with other shared service/contractual arrangements are 
considered at an early stage to ensure that appropriate governance arrangements 
are in place. 

3.3 The audit committee will also need to satisfy themselves in future years about how 
different delivery arrangements will impact on the council’s annual governance 
statement and what it will expect from such organisations.  The council’s corporate 
governance group has already started to think about the issues and what it may need 
to build into any agreements with different providers.   

3.4 Any governance framework will be developed prior to the start of any formal 
contractual agreement and will be reviewed and updated throughout the contract 
period. 

3.5 In commissioning outcomes the council needs to satisfy itself that it has clear 
processes for measuring the delivery of the outcomes, which are effective but not 
bureaucratic or costly..  The council already has good working relationships with CBH 
who in effect are commissioned to manage a range of housing outcomes and we can 
continue to learn from that client relationship.  Different delivery models will require 
different client monitoring and management arrangements and member participation. 

3.6 However what must underpin our commissioning processes is however and whoever 
is delivering the service there must be a clear focus on customer service, effective 
quality standards and outcomes which can be measured and used to realise agreed 
benefits 

4. Next Steps - possible next steps for the committee to consider eg potential 
witnesses, further report, site visit etc. 

4.1 The leisure and culture review and built environment review are proposing to report 
back on the strategic direction in the autumn, following update reports to cabinet in 
July.  It would make sense for the audit committee at that stage to be alerted to any 
issues which may have arisen with regards to governance issues and to consider 
how they would wish to be kept involved in the reviews from a governance 
perspective. 

 
Background Papers  

Page 150



 

 

 

Audit committee, 22nd June 2011  Commissioning update. Version 1 
 Page 3 Last updated 10 June 2011 
  
 

Contact Officer Jane Griffiths, Director of commissioning, 01242 
264126, jane.griffiths@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Accountability Councillor Colin Hay, cabinet member corporate 
services 

Scrutiny Function Economy and business improvement 
 
 

Page 151



Page 152
This page is intentionally left blank



Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 - c

om
mo

n s
erv

ice
 de

liv
ery

 m
od

els
Se
cto

r
Co
ns
titu

tio
na
l fo

rm
Br
oa
d c
ha
rac

ter
ist
ics

Op
po
rtu
nit
ies

Lim
ita
tio
ns

Fin
an
ce
 - i
mp

lic
ati
on
s

Le
ga
l/S
taf
f/P
ro
cu
rem

en
t r
eq
uir
em
en
ts

Go
ve
rn
an
ce

Co
uld

 su
it:

De
cis
ion

 m
ak
ing

 re
qu
ire
me
nt

Civil Sector

Co
-op

era
tiv
es

A b
us
ine
ss
 or
ga
nis
ati
on
 ow

ne
d a

nd
 op

era
ted

 by
 a 
gro

up
 of
 

ind
ivid

ua
ls 
for
 th
eir
 m
utu

al 
be
ne
fit;
 M
ay
 al
so
 be

 de
fin
ed
 as

 a 
bu
sin
es
s o

wn
ed
 an

d c
on
tro
lle
d e

qu
all
y b
y t
he
 pe

op
le 
wh
o u

se
 

its
 se

rvi
ce
s o

r b
y t
he
 pe

op
le 
wh
o w

ork
 th
ere

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ex
am

ple
 - S

pa
 C
red

it U
nio
ns
, W

ork
er'
s C

o-o
pe
rat
ive
s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Co
-op

era
tiv
e D

ire
cto

ry 
for
 th
e S

W
 - 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.uk
.co

op
/di
rec

tor
y/r
cc
/S_

W
es
t

A w
ay
 fo
r p
eo
ple
 to
 co

lle
cti
ve
ly 
‘do
 it 
for
 th
em

se
lve
s’;
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Th
ey
 dr
aw
 th
e k
no
wle

dg
e, 
sk
ills
 an

d e
xp
ert
ise
 th
at 
div
ers

e 
me

mb
ers

 br
ing
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
ov
idi
ng
 em

plo
ym
en
t fo

r lo
ca
l p
eo
ple
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 LA

s t
o d

eli
ve
r p
ub
lic 
se
rvi
ce
s c
an
 pr
ov
ide
 a 

co
ns
ist
en
cy
 of
 de

ma
nd
 fo
r s
erv

ice
s.

Mu
st 
en
su
re 
tha

t e
nti
re 
inc
om

e s
tre
am

 is
 no

t 
rel
ian
t o
n a

 si
ng
le 
co
ntr
ac
t (i
.e.
 fro

m 
the

 LA
); A

 
ba
rrie

r m
ay
 be

 fin
an
cia
l a
nd
 st
ruc

tur
al 
alo
ng
 

wit
h a

 ge
ne
ral
 la
ck
 of
 un

de
rst
an
din
g o

f th
e 

so
cia
l e
nte

rpr
ise
 bu

sin
es
s m

od
el 
am

on
g 

fin
an
cie
rs 
an
d c

om
mi
ss
ion
ers

.

Ca
n r
ec
eiv
e c

ha
rity
 ex

em
pt 
sta

tus
. F
ilin
g 

req
uir
em

en
ts 
de
pe
nd
en
t o
n c

ho
se
n s

tru
ctu

re.

De
mo

cra
tic
all
y o
wn
ed
 an

d r
un
, g
ivin

g 
me

mb
ers

 re
al 
co
ntr
ol 
ov
er 
the

 di
rec

tio
n o

f 
the

ir e
nte

rpr
ise
 an

d a
llo
win

g t
he
m 
to 

co
ntr
ibu
te 
to 
the

 su
cc
es
s o

f th
e b

us
ine
ss
. 

An
 LA

 w
an
tin
g t
o i
nje
ct 
inn
ov
ati
ve
 

ap
pro

ac
he
s a

nd
 fre

sh
 th
ink
ing
 in
to 

tra
dit
ion
al 
wa
ys
 of
 co

nd
uc
tin
g b

us
ine
ss
 in
 

the
 pu

bli
c s
ec
tor
.

Civil Sector

So
cia
l E
nte

rp
ris
e

So
cia
l e
nte

rpr
ise
s a

re 
bu
sin
es
se
s w

ith
 pr
im
ari
ly 
so
cia
l o
r 

en
vir
on
me

nta
l o
bje
cti
ve
s. 
Th
eir
 su

rpl
us
es
 ar
e r
ein
ve
ste

d i
n 

the
 bu

sin
es
s o

r c
om

mu
nit
y, 
rat
he
r th

an
 be

ing
 dr
ive
n b

y t
he
 

ne
ed
 to
 m
ax
im
ise
 it 
for
 sh

are
ho
lde
rs 
an
d o

wn
ers

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ex
am

ple
 - L

od
sw
ort
h L

ard
er 
- 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.lo
ds
wo
rth
lar
de
r.c
o.u

k/ 
So
cia
l E
nte

rpr
ise
 C
oa
litio

n -
 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.so
cia
len
ter
pri
se
.or
g.u

k/

A w
ay
 fo
r p
eo
ple
 to
 co

lle
cti
ve
ly 
‘do
 it 
for
 th
em

se
lve
s’;
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Th
ey
 dr
aw
 th
e k
no
wle

dg
e, 
sk
ills
 an

d e
xp
ert
ise
 th
at 
div
ers

e 
me

mb
ers

 br
ing
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
ov
idi
ng
 em

plo
ym
en
t fo

r lo
ca
l p
eo
ple
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 LA

s t
o d

eli
ve
r p
ub
lic 
se
rvi
ce
s c
an
 pr
ov
ide
 a 

co
ns
ist
en
cy
 of
 de

ma
nd
 fo
r s
erv

ice
s.

Mu
st 
en
su
re 
tha

t e
nti
re 
inc
om

e s
tre
am

 is
 no

t 
rel
ian
t o
n a

 si
ng
le 
co
ntr
ac
t (i
.e.
 fro

m 
the

 LA
); A

 
ba
rrie

r m
ay
 be

 fin
an
cia
l a
nd
 st
ruc

tur
al 
alo
ng
 

wit
h a

 ge
ne
ral
 la
ck
 of
 un

de
rst
an
din
g o

f th
e 

so
cia
l e
nte

rpr
ise
 bu

sin
es
s m

od
el 
am

on
g 

fin
an
cie
rs 
an
d c

om
mi
ss
ion
ers

.

Fil
ing
 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 de

pe
nd
en
t o
n c

ho
se
n 

str
uc
tur
e.

De
mo

cra
tic
all
y o
wn
ed
 an

d r
un
, g
ivin

g 
me

mb
ers

 re
al 
co
ntr
ol 
ov
er 
the

 di
rec

tio
n o

f 
the

ir e
nte

rpr
ise
 an

d a
llo
win

g t
he
m 
to 

co
ntr
ibu
te 
to 
the

 su
cc
es
s o

f th
e b

us
ine
ss
. 

An
 LA

 w
an
tin
g t
o i
nje
ct 
inn
ov
ati
ve
 

ap
pro

ac
he
s a

nd
 fre

sh
 th
ink
ing
 in
to 

tra
dit
ion
al 
wa
ys
 of
 co

nd
uc
tin
g b

us
ine
ss
 in
 

the
 pu

bli
c s
ec
tor
.

Civil Sector

Ch
ari
tab

le 
Tr
us
t

Th
e f
orm

al 
‘tru

st’
 fo
rm
at;
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

As
se
ts 
he
ld 
by
 a 
bo
dy
 of
 tru

ste
es
 fo
r th

e b
en
efi
t o
f a
gre

ed
 

be
ne
fic
iar
ies
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ex
am

ple
 - C

ad
bu
ry 
- h
ttp
://w

ww
.w
a-

ca
db
ury

.or
g.u

k/P
ag
e.a

sp
?id
=3
5

Ca
n b

e e
sta

bli
sh
ed
 by
 an

yo
ne
 w
ho
 w
ish
es
 to
 de

dic
ate

 a 
po
rtio

n o
f th

eir
 as

se
ts 
to 
ch
ari
ty;
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Po
ss
ibl
e t
o s

ec
ure

 si
gn
ific
an
t ta

x e
xe
mp

tio
ns
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

As
se
ts 
are

 be
ing
 pu

t to
 co

ns
tru
cti
ve
 us

e;

Ca
nn
ot 
sta

rt l
eg
al 
ac
tio
n, 
bo
rro
w 
mo

ne
y, 
en
ter
 

int
o c

on
tra
cts
 in
 its
 ow

n n
am

e; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Th
e o

ffic
ers

 ca
n b

e p
ers

on
all
y l
iab
le 
if t
he
 

ch
ari
ty 
is 
su
ed
 or
 ha

s d
eb
ts;
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Pr
ov
ide
s o

pp
ort
un
itie
s t
o c

om
pe
te 
for
 co

ntr
ac
ts 

fro
m 
oth

er 
LA
s/a

ge
nc
ies
 to
 ge

ne
rat
e r
ev
en
ue
 

str
ea
ms
.

Ch
ari
tab

le 
sta

tus
 - m

ini
mu

m 
80
% 
rel
ief
 on

 
NN

DR
 an

d e
xe
mp

tio
n f
rom

 C
orp

ora
tio
n T

ax
, 

Ca
pit
al 
Ga

ins
 Ta

x &
 St
am

p D
uty
. S
pe
cia
l V
AT
 

ex
em

pti
on
s i
n s

om
e c

irc
um

sta
nc
es
. G

ift 
aid
 fo
r 

inv
es
tor
s. 
An
nu
al 
inc
om

e/e
xp
en
dit
ure

 re
tur
ns
 

ne
ed
 to
 be

 fil
ed
 w
ith
 th
e C

ha
rity
 C
om

mi
ss
ion
.

No
t a
 se

pa
rat
e l
eg
al 
en
tity
; L
eg
all
y c
on
sid
ere

d 
to 
be
 a 
ch
ari
ty 
in 
an
d o

f it
se
lf;

Th
e b

od
y’s
 m
em

be
rs 
to 
tak
e f
ull
 lia
bil
ity
 fo
r 

all
 co

ntr
ac
tua

l o
r fi
na
nc
ial
 re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
;

An
 LA

 ro
ote

d i
n t
he
 co

mm
un
ity
, o
pe
n a

nd
 

tra
ns
pa
ren

t in
 th
eir
 de

ali
ng
s, 
hig
hly
 

ac
co
un
tab

le 
for
 th
eir
 ac

tio
ns
, h
igh
 

sta
nd
ard

s e
mb

ed
de
d. 

Civil Sector

Co
mm

un
ity
 La
nd
 Tr
us
t (C

LT
)

A c
orp

ora
te 
bo
dy
 ho

ldi
ng
 pr
op
ert
y f
or 
the

 pu
rpo

se
s o

f th
e 

co
mm

un
ity
 ra
the

r th
an
 fo
r p
riv
ate

 pr
ofi
t, a

nd
 of
fer
ing
 th
e 

op
po
rtu
nit
y f
or 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th
e l
oc
al 
co
mm

un
ity
 to
 be

co
me

 
inv
olv
ed
 in
 its
 go

ve
rna

nc
e; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Its
 pr
op
ert
y r
ep
res

en
ts 
fix
ed
 as

se
ts 
to 
be
 he

ld 
in 
pe
rpe

tui
ty 
for
 

loc
al 
us
e; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Its
 pr
ofi
ts 
mu

st 
be
 us

ed
 to
 be

ne
fit 
the

 co
mm

un
ity
, o
the

r th
an
 

be
ing
 pa

id 
dir
ec
tly
 to
 its
 m
em

be
rs 
(if 
a C

IC
);  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Its
 pu

rpo
se
 is
 to
 fa
cili
tat
e l
oc
all
y-d

riv
en
 lo
ng
 te
rm
 an

d 
aff
ord

ab
le 
de
ve
lop
me

nt 
– p

rov
idi
ng
 re
ge
ne
rat
ion
, 

co
ns
erv

ati
on
, o
r c
ult
ura

l b
en
efi
t lo
ca
lly.
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ex
am

ple
 -  
La
nd
 fo
r P
eo
ple
 - h

ttp
://w

ww
.la
nd
for
pe
op
le.
co
.uk
    
    
    
    
 

CL
T N

etw
ork

 - h
ttp
://w

ww
.co

mm
un
ity
lan
dtr
us
ts.
org

.uk
/ho

me
; 

CL
T F

un
d -
 ht
tp:
//w
ww

.cl
tfu
nd
.or
g.u

k

Ca
n a

cc
es
s l
oa
n f
ina
nc
e, 
mo

rtg
ag
e l
an
d a

ss
ets

 an
d h

old
 

res
erv

es
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Fre
e t
o e

xte
nd
 m
em

be
rsh

ip 
to 
pri
va
te 
an
d p

ub
lic 
se
cto

r 
org

an
isa
tio
n; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ca
n w

ork
 ac

ros
s d

om
ain
 bo

un
da
rie
s; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ar
e l
ike
ly 
to 
su
pp
ort
 co

lla
bo
rat
ive
, c
ros

s-a
ge
nd
a 

ap
pro

ac
he
s t
o l
oc
al 
iss
ue
s &

 co
nc
ern

s, 
an
d w

ork
 po

sit
ive
ly 

ac
ros

s t
he
 pu

bli
c, 
pri
va
te 
an
d t
hir
d s

ec
tor
; T
he
ir s

tat
uto

ry 
rec

og
nit
ion
 pr
ov
ide
s c
on
fid
en
ce
 to
 pa

rtie
s; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Th
ey
 qu

ali
fy 
as
 bo

die
s t
ha
t th

e H
CA

 de
al 
wit
h a

nd
 th
ere

for
e 

as
so
cia
ted

 w
ith
 th
e k
ey
 pr
og
ram

me
s d

eli
ve
red

 by
 C
LG

;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Th
ey
 ca

nn
ot 
be
 so

ld 
bu
t a
re 
ab
le 
in 
pri
nc
ipl
e t
o a

ss
im
ila
te 

oth
er 
mo

de
ls 
an
d s

ca
le 
up
.

In 
pri
nc
ipl
e t
he
 de

mo
cra

tic
 fo
rm
at 
co
uld
 

dis
co
ura

ge
 th
e s

ca
lin
g u

p o
f a
cti
vit
y b
ey
on
d 

loc
al 
are

a; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

If t
he
y t
ak
e c

ha
rita

ble
 st
atu

s t
he
ir r
es
tric

tio
n o

n 
the

 di
str
ibu
tio
n o

f p
rof
it r
ed
uc
es
 th
e a

pp
ea
l o
f 

co
lla
bo
rat
ion
s t
o t
he
 pr
iva
te 
se
cto

r;  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

If t
he
y t
ak
e C

IC
 lim

ite
d b

y s
ha
re 
sta

tus
, th

ey
 

res
tric

t th
e f
isc
al 
be
ne
fits
 th
ey
 ca

n r
ec
eiv
e f
rom

 
Tre

as
ury

.

W
ill g

en
era

lly 
tak
e t
he
 fo
rm
 of
 a 
CL
G 
or 
IPS

Its
 go

ve
rna

nc
e i
s f
lex
ibl
e -
 it 
ca
n c

ho
os
e t
o 

es
tab

lish
 as

 a 
ch
ari
ty 
or 
a C

IC
 an

d t
ak
e o

n 
ad
dit
ion
al 
reg

ula
tio
n -
 an

d i
ts 
tax

 po
sit
ion
 

de
pe
nd
s o

n t
he
 le
ga
l fo
rm
 it 
us
es
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

In 
ad
dit
ion
 to
 an

 as
se
t lo
ck
 pr
ote

cti
ng
 its
 

pro
pe
rty
, a
 C
LT
 is
 re
qu
ire
d t
o h

av
e a

 
de
mo

cra
tic
 m
em

be
rsh

ip.
 

An
 LA

 in
ter
es
ted

 in
 fu
rth
eri
ng
 a 
po
licy

 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f c
om

mu
nit
y a
ss
et 
tra
ns
fer
 

an
d p

art
icip

ati
on
 in
 de

cis
ion
 m
ak
ing
 an

d 
str
en
gth

en
ing
 co

mm
un
ity
 in
flu
en
ce
 in
 

po
litic

al 
pro

ce
ss
es
;  A

n L
A i
nte

res
ted

 in
 

de
ve
lop
ing
 a 
pri
va
te 
fin
an
ce
 in
itia
tiv
e (
PF
I) 

wh
ere

by
 th
e C

LT
 w
ou
ld 
tak
e o

wn
ers

hip
 of
 

the
 fre

eh
old
 an

d l
ea
se
 ou

t th
e f
ac
ility

 to
 th
e 

PF
I p
rov

ide
r fo

r th
e d

ura
tio
n o

f th
e 

ag
ree

me
nt.

Civil Sector

Co
mp

an
y l
im
ite
d b

y 
gu
ara

nte
e (
CL
G)

Co
mp

an
ies
 Li
mi
ted

 by
 G
ua
ran

tee
 ar
e u

su
all
y n
on
–p
rof
it 

org
an
isa
tio
ns
 su

ch
 as

 ch
ari
tie
s, 
clu
bs
 an

d a
ss
oc
iat
ion
s; 

Em
ph
as
is 
is 
no
rm
all
y c
on
ce
rne

d w
ith
 th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f a
 

se
rvi
ce
 fo
r th

e b
en
efi
t o
f th

e p
ub
lic 
or 
a s

pe
cif
ic 
se
cti
on
 of
 it.
 

W
hil
st 
a c

om
pa
ny
 lim

ite
d b

y g
ua
ran

tee
 m
igh
t a
cti
ve
ly 
se
ek
 to
 

ma
xim

ise
 its
 re
ve
nu
es
 th
rou

gh
 do

na
tio
ns
, s
ub
sc
rip
tio
ns
 or
 

sp
on
so
rsh

ips
, it
 w
ou
ld 
als
o s

ee
k t
o a

pp
ly 
su
ch
 fu
nd
s i
n 

rel
ev
an
t p
roj
ec
ts;

In 
sit
ua
tio
ns
 w
he
re 
a c

om
pa
ny
 lim

ite
d b

y g
ua
ran

tee
 ha

s m
ore

 
inc
om

e t
ha
n e

xp
en
se
s, 
the

 ex
ce
ss
 is
 re
fer
red

 to
 as

 a 
su
rpl
us
 

an
d n

ot 
a p

rof
it; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ex
am

ple
: A
n A

rm
s L

en
gth

 M
an
ag
em

en
t O

rga
nis
ati
on
.

Eli
gib
le 
for
 ce

rta
in 
gra

nts
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Eli
gib
le 
for
 m
os
t s
oc
ial
 en

ter
pri
se
 fu
nd
ing
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

No
 re
str
ict
ion
s o

n r
es
erv

e h
old
ing
s; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

No
 re
str
ict
ion
s o

n t
rad

ing
 or
 bo

rro
win

g a
ga
ins
t a
ss
ets

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Fle
xib
le 
an
d c

om
me

rci
al;
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Att
rac

tiv
e t
o n

ew
ly 
ind
ep
en
de
nt 
org

an
isa
tio
ns
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Fle
xib
le 
for
 pr
iva
te 
se
cto

r p
art
ne
rsh

ips
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Dir
ec
tor
s a

re 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ac

co
un
tab

le.

Ine
lig
ibl
e f
or 
mu

ch
 gr
an
t fu

nd
ing
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
oh
ibi
tio
n o

n p
rof
it d
ist
rib
uti
on
 co

uld
 re
du
ce
 

ap
pe
al 
for
 pr
iva
te 
se
cto

r;  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

No
 as

se
t lo
ck
s r
ed
uc
e s

ec
uri
ty 
for
 LA

s; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

No
 in
de
pe
nd
en
t re

gu
lat
ion
 re
du
ce
s s
ec
uri
ty 
for
 

LA
; P
os
sib
ility

 of
 in
eli
gib
ility

 fo
r s
om

e 
pro

fes
sio
na
l s
tan

da
rds

 i.e
. A
cc
red

ita
tio
n; 

Pr
iva
te 
se
cto

r in
ve
sto

rs 
ma

y b
e e

lig
ibl
e f
or 

Co
mm

un
ity
 In
ve
stm

en
t T
ax
 R
eli
ef 
(C
ITR

) in
 

ce
rta
in 
are

as
 an

d s
ec
tor
s. 
Ac
co
un
ts 
& a

nn
ua
l 

ret
urn

 to
 R
eg
ist
rar
 of
 C
om

pa
nie
s. 

De
sp
ite
 qu

ali
fyi
ng
 as

 a 
NP

DO
 – 
the

reb
y 

for
mi
ng
 to
 al
l in
ten

ts 
an
d p

urp
os
es
 a 

ch
ari
tab

le 
ve
hic
le 
– i
t is
 on

ly 
su
bje
ct 
to 
the

 
lig
ht 
tou

ch
 re
gu
lat
ion
 of
 C
om

pa
nie
s H

ou
se
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

(N
DP

O 
= N

on
 Pr
ofi
t D
ist
rib
uti
ng
 

Or
ga
nis
ati
on
)

An
 LA

 lo
ok
ing
 fo
r a
 m
od
el 
tha

t e
na
ble
s i
ts 

de
vo
lve
d s

erv
ice
 to
 co

mm
it t
o p

ub
lic 

be
ne
fit 
bu
t to

 ac
hie
ve
 si
gn
ific
an
t 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
an
d b

ec
om

e f
ina
nc
ial
ly 
se
lf 

su
sta

ini
ng
 be

for
e b

ec
om

ing
 co

ns
tra
ine
d b

y 
reg

ula
tio
n.

Civil Sector

Ch
ari
tab

le 
co
mp

an
y l
im
ite
d 

by
 gu

ara
nte

e (
CC
LG
)

CL
Gs
 ar
e u

su
all
y n
on
–p
rof
it o
rga

nis
ati
on
s s
uc
h a

s c
ha
riti
es
, 

clu
bs
 an

d a
ss
oc
iat
ion
s; 

Em
ph
as
is 
is 
no
rm
all
y c
on
ce
rne

d w
ith
 th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f a
 

se
rvi
ce
 fo
r th

e b
en
efi
t o
f th

e p
ub
lic 
or 
a s

pe
cif
ic 
se
cti
on
 of
 it.
 

W
hil
st 
a c

om
pa
ny
 lim

ite
d b

y g
ua
ran

tee
 m
igh
t a
cti
ve
ly 
se
ek
 to
 

ma
xim

ise
 its
 re
ve
nu
es
 th
rou

gh
 do

na
tio
ns
, s
ub
sc
rip
tio
ns
 or
 

sp
on
so
rsh

ips
, it
 w
ou
ld 
als
o s

ee
k t
o a

pp
ly 
su
ch
 fu
nd
s i
n 

rel
ev
an
t p
roj
ec
ts;

In 
sit
ua
tio
ns
 w
he
re 
a c

om
pa
ny
 lim

ite
d b

y g
ua
ran

tee
 ha

s m
ore

 
inc
om

e t
ha
n e

xp
en
se
s, 
the

 ex
ce
ss
 is
 re
fer
red

 to
 as

 a 
su
rpl
us
 

an
d n

ot 
a p

rof
it

Eli
gib
le 
for
 gr
an
t fu

nd
ing
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Tri
ed
 an

d t
es
ted

 (T
rus

ted
) m

od
el;
  R
isk
 av

ers
e; 
Pr
ote

cts
 th
e 

lia
bil
ity
 of
 tru

ste
es
; F
lex
ibi
lity
 su

bs
idi
ary

 st
ruc

tur
es
.

Un
ab
le 
to 
ho
ld 
sig
nif
ica
nt 
fin
an
cia
l re

se
rve

s; 
LT
 

vu
lne
rab

ility
 / S

T r
es
tric

tio
ns
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Do
es
 no

t s
up
po
rt c

oll
ab
ora

tiv
e w

ork
ing
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Un
pa
id 
Bo
ard

 / N
o q

ua
lity
 of
 le
ad
ers

hip
 

req
uir
ed
/ le
ss
 ac

co
un
tab

le 
Bo
ard

;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Re
str
ict
ed
 fro

m 
no
n-c

ha
rita

ble
 co

mm
erc

ial
 

ac
tiv
ity
.

Ch
ari
tab

le 
sta

tus
 - m

ini
mu

m 
80
% 
rel
ief
 on

 
NN

DR
 an

d e
xe
mp

tio
n f
rom

 C
orp

ora
tio
n T

ax
, 

Ca
pit
al 
Ga

ins
 Ta

x &
 St
am

p D
uty
. S
pe
cia
l V
AT
 

ex
em

pti
on
s i
n s

om
e c

irc
um

sta
nc
es
. G

ift 
aid
 fo
r 

inv
es
tor
s. 
Mu

st 
file
 an

nu
al 
ac
co
un
ts 
wit
h b

oth
 

Re
gis
tar
 of
 C
om

pa
nie
s &

 C
ha
rity
 C
om

mi
ss
ion
.

Mo
re 
fix
ed
 go

ve
rna

nc
e p

rov
isio

ns
 th
an
 

CI
Os
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

No
 fle
xib
ility

 fo
r w
elc
om

ing
 ex

ter
na
l 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 
wit
hin
 go

ve
rna

nc
e s

tru
ctu

re;
 

Su
bje
ct 
to 
du
al 
reg

ula
tio
n b

y C
ha
riti
es
 

Co
mm

iss
ion
 an

d C
om

pa
nie
s H

ou
se
.

An
 LA

 in
 a 
hig
hly
 ph

ila
nth

rop
ic 
are

a; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

An
 LA

 su
bs
idi
sin
g a

 pr
iva
te/
pu
bli
c v
en
tur
e

Civil Sector

Ch
ari
tab

le 
inc
or
po
rat
ed
 

or
ga
nis
ati
on
 (C
IO
)

Ne
w 
co
rpo

rat
e v

eh
icle

 su
bje
ct 
on
ly 
to 
reg

ula
tio
n b

y t
he
 

Ch
ari
tie
s C

om
mi
ss
ion
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Th
e C

IO
 is
 ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e a
n o

pti
on
 av
ail
ab
le 
for
 ch
ari
tie
s 

in 
lat
e s

pri
ng
 20

11
. T
he
 in
tro
du
cti
on
 of
 th
e n

ew
 m
od
el 
wil
l b
e 

ph
as
ed
 in
 to
 m
an
ag
e w

ha
t w
e e

xp
ec
t w
ill b

e h
igh
 de

ma
nd
 by
 

ch
ari
tie
s.

Re
du
ce
s b

ure
au
cra

cy
; c
rea

tes
 a 
mo

re 
fle
xib
le 
ch
ari
tab

le 
for
ma

t s
im
ila
r to

 th
at 
of 
the

 co
mp

an
y f
orm

at.
An
 un

tes
ted

 m
od
el

Ch
ari
tab

le 
sta

tus
 - m

ini
mu

m 
80
% 
rel
ief
 on

 
NN

DR
 an

d e
xe
mp

tio
n f
rom

 C
orp

ora
tio
n T

ax
, 

Ca
pit
al 
Ga

ins
 Ta

x &
 St
am

p D
uty
. S
pe
cia
l V
AT
 

ex
em

pti
on
s i
n s

om
e c

irc
um

sta
nc
es
. G

ift 
aid
 fo
r 

inv
es
tor
s. 
An
nu
al 
inc
om

e/e
xp
en
dit
ure

 re
tur
ns
 

ne
ed
 to
 be

 fil
ed
 w
ith
 th
e C

ha
rity
 C
om

mi
ss
ion
.

Su
bje
ct 
to 
few

er 
fix
ed
 go

ve
rna

nc
e 

pro
vis
ion
s a

nd
 of
fer
ing
 m
ore

 fle
x f
or 

me
rge

r a
nd
 re
co
ns
tru
cti
on
, w
ith
 le
ss
 

lia
bil
ity
 (th

e C
IO
 w
ill n

ot 
to 
be
 pe

na
lise

d f
or 

the
 co

nd
uc
t o
f it
s d

ire
cto

rs)

Civil Sector

Ind
us
tri
al 
Pr
ov
ide
nt 
So
cie
ty 

(IP
S)
 

An
 IP
S i
s a

 so
cie
ty 
co
nd
uc
ted

 fo
r th

e b
en
efi
t o
f a
 co

mm
un
ity
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

It i
s p

rim
ari
ly 
a c

orp
ora

te 
bo
dy
 w
hic
h c

an
 ho

ld 
ch
ari
tab

le 
sta

tus
 - s

ett
ing
 it 
ap
art
 fro

m 
oth

er 
ch
ari
tab

le 
str
uc
tur
es
 

be
ca
us
e i
ts 
aim

 is
 no

t s
im
ply
 to
 pr
ov
ide
 pu

bli
c b

en
efi
t b
ut 
to 

pro
du
ce
 a 
de
fin
ab
le 
va
lue
 an

d t
o g

en
era

te 
inc
om

e. 
 

Eff
ec
tiv
ely
 co

mb
ine
s c
ha
rita

ble
 st
atu

s a
nd
 ris

k-a
ve
rse

 
reg

ula
tio
n w

ith
 a 
mo

de
l d
es
ign
ed
 to
 ge

ne
rat
e i
nc
om

e; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

De
mo

cra
tic
 m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f a
ss
ets

 ca
n e

mb
ed
 ch

an
ge
 

wit
hin
 an

 or
ga
nis
ati
on
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Str
ate

gic
-le
ve
l tr
an
sp
are

nc
y o
f e
ntr
ep
ren

eu
ria
lism

;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Su
pp
ort
s i
nv
es
tm
en
t in
 sk
ills
 an

d s
taf
f d
ev
elo
pm

en
t.  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Se
t u
p c

os
ts 
ca
n b

e h
igh
; d
o n

ot 
su
pp
ort
 

co
lla
bo
rat
ive
 w
ork

ing
 as

 m
uc
h a

s c
om

pe
titi
on
; 

old
 fa
sh
ion
ed
 ad

mi
nis
tra
tiv
e a

nd
 re
gu
lat
ory

 
str
uc
tur
e [
co
mp

are
d w

ith
 C
CL
Gs
];la
rge

ly 
un
fam

ilia
r w
ith
in 
cu
ltu
ral
 se

cto
r;  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ma
ny
 le
isu
re 
tru
sts
 ha

ve
 de

vo
lve
d i
nto

 IP
Ss
 bu

t 
the

 st
ruc

tur
e i
s a

n a
rch

aic
 on

e a
nd
 it 
is 

an
tic
ipa
ted

 th
at 
the

 C
IO
 w
ill o

ffe
r a
 be

tte
r 

alt
ern

ati
ve
 fo
r c
orp

ora
te 
ch
ari
tie
s.

His
tor
ica
l lig

ht 
tou

ch
 FS

A r
eg
ula
tio
n; 
    
    
    
   

Ac
co
un
tab

ility
 fo
r C

om
mu

nit
y B

en
efi
t S
oc
iet
ies
 

wil
l in
cre

as
e w

he
n r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 re
gis
ter
 w
ith
 th
e 

Ch
ari
ty 
Co
mm

iss
ion
 [fr
om

 20
10
].

An
 LA

 in
ter
es
ted

 in
 us

ing
 its
 an

nu
al 
su
bs
idy
 as

 
an
 in
ve
stm

en
t to

 ge
ne
rat
e a

 gr
ow
th 
so
cia
l 

en
ter
pri
se
 bu

sin
es
s t
ha
t s
up
po
rts
 co

mm
un
ity
 

ow
ne
rsh

ip,
 em

po
we
rm
en
t a
nd
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
in 

po
litic

al 
pro

ce
ss
es
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

An
 LA

 in
ter
es
ted

 in
 cr
ea
tin
g a

 cr
os
s-d

om
ain
 

lei
su
re 
an
d c

ult
ura

l s
erv

ice
s t
rus

t c
ap
ab
le 
of 

ea
rni
ng
 si
gn
ific
an
t re

ve
nu
es
 to
 re
inv
es
t in
 its
 

ow
n d

ev
elo
pm

en
t a
nd
 re
du
ce
 th
e n

ee
d f
or 
loc
al 

au
tho

rity
 in
ve
stm

en
t o
ve
r ti
me

.

Civil Sector

Lim
ite
d L

iab
ilit
y P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
(LL

P)

A b
od
y c
orp

ora
te 
wit
h a

 le
ga
l p
ers

on
ali
ty 
se
pa
rat
e f
rom

 th
at 
of 

its
 m
em

be
rs,
 th
e L

LP
 is
 a 
hy
bri
d e

nti
ty 
co
mb

ini
ng
 th
e 

ad
va
nta

ge
ou
s t
ax
 ch

ara
cte

ris
tic
s a

nd
 or
ga
nis
ati
on
al 
fle
xib
ility

 
of 
a p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
wit
h l
im
ite
d l
iab
ility

 fo
r m

em
be
rs.
 ‘U
nli
mi
ted

 
ca
pa
cit
y’ 
– i
.e.
 no

 re
str
ict
ion
s o

n a
ny
 ac

tiv
itie
s. 
 C
an
no
t lo
se
 

mo
re 
tha

n t
he
y i
nv
es
t.

Ta
xa
tio
n a

pp
lie
d a

s a
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
; n
o r
es
tric

tio
ns
 on

 re
se
rve

 
ho
ldi
ng
s; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Jo
int
 ve

ntu
re/
 br
ing
s s
tak
eh
old
ers

 in
sid
e a

 pa
rtn
ers

hip
 - 

ali
gn
s i
nte

res
ts;
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Pr
ote

cti
on
 of
 lim

ite
d l
iab
ility

 fo
r m

em
be
rs;
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ap
pe
als
 to
 pr
iva
te 
se
cto

r th
rou

gh
 ta
x, 
div
ide
nd
 an

d 
co
ntr
ac
tin
g; 
Ap
pe
als
 to
 pu

bli
c s
ec
tor
 th
rou

gh
 sh

are
 

res
tric

tio
ns
 or
 re
gu
lat
ion
.

No
 N
ND

R 
(N
ati
on
al 
No
n d

om
es
tic
 R
ate

s) 
ex
em

pti
on
s; 
Ine

lig
ibl
e f
or 
gra

nt 
or 
so
cia
l 

en
ter
pri
se
 fu
nd
ing
; L
es
s d

ire
ct 
op
po
rtu
nit
y t
o 

ful
fil 
co
mm

un
ity
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
an
d e

mp
ow
erm

en
t 

ag
en
da
s; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
La
ck
 of
 

se
cu
rity
 pr
ov
ide
d b

y a
ss
et 
loc
k; 
    
    
    
    
    
   

Po
ss
ibi
lity
 of
 in
eli
gib
ility

 fo
r s
om

e p
rof
es
sio
na
l 

sta
nd
ard

s i
.e.
 Ac

cre
dit
ati
on
.

Su
bje

ct 
to 

sa
me

 au
dit
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 as

 lim
ite
d 

co
mp

an
ies

. P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
Ta

x R
etu

rn 
mu

st 
be
 

co
mp

let
ed
 fo

r H
MR

C.
 C
orp

ora
te 

pa
rtn

ers
 w
ill 
be
 

su
bje

ct 
to 

Co
rpo

rat
ion

 Ta
x. 
A 
LL
P 
ca
nn
ot 

be
 pa

rt 
of 

a g
rou

p f
or 

tax
 pu

rpo
se
s. 
No

rm
al 
VA

T r
ule

s 
ap
ply

. P
ote

nti
al 
im
pa
ct 
on
 pa

rtia
l e
xe
mp

tio
n.

LL
Ps
 ar
e g

ov
ern

ed
 by
 th
e L

LP
 Ac

t 2
00
0 

an
d a

re 
su
bje
ct 
to 
lig
ht 
tou

ch
 re
gu
lat
ion
 by
 

Co
mp

an
ies
 H
ou
se
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Go
ve
rna

nc
e i
s a

 m
att
er 
of 
me

mb
er 
ch
oic
e, 

wit
h n

o r
eq
uir
em

en
t fo

r d
ire
cto

rs,
 bo

ard
 

str
uc
tur
es
 or
 m
an
ag
em

en
t s
tru
ctu

re;
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Me
mb

ers
 ha

ve
 a 
joi
nt 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity
 to
 

div
ide
 th
e r
un
nin
g o

f th
e b

us
ine
ss
/ n
o 

ind
ivid

ua
l re

sp
on
sib
ility

 fo
r e
ac
h o

the
r’s
 

ac
tio
ns
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

An
 LA

 in
 a 
de
pri
ve
d a

rea
 or
 w
ith
 se

rvi
ce
s 

req
uir
ing
 hi
gh
 ca

pit
al 
inv
es
tm
en
t a
nd
 

wis
hin
g t
o c

on
tra
ct 
ou
t s
erv

ice
s t
o p

riv
ate

 
pa
rtn
ers

 in
 a 
PP
P; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

an
 LA

 w
ish
ing
 to
 do

na
te 
pro

fits
 ea

rne
d f
rom

 
LL
P m

em
be
rsh

ip 
to 
oth

er 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 

cla
im
 gi
ft a

id.

Pa
ge
 1 

of 
2

Page 153



Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 - c

om
mo

n s
erv

ice
 de

liv
ery

 m
od

els

Civil Sector

Co
mm

un
ity
 In
ter
es
t C
om

pa
ny
 

(C
IC
)

CI
Cs
 ar
e l
im
ite
d c

om
pa
nie
s c
rea

ted
 fo
r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s t
ha
t 

wis
h t
o c

on
du
ct 
a b

us
ine
ss
 ac

tiv
ity
 fo
r c
om

mu
nit
y b
en
efi
t;  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Th
ey
 m
ay
 en

ga
ge
 in
 tra

din
g a

nd
, w
ith
 ap

pro
va
l, b
orr
ow
 

ag
ain
st 
the

ir a
ss
ets

. 

Eli
gib
le 
for
 m
os
t g
ran

t fu
nd
ing
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ca
n a

cc
es
s l
oa
n f
ina
nc
e a

nd
 ho

ld 
un
res

tric
ted

 re
se
rve

s 
wit
ho
ut 
int
erv

en
tio
n; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Th
e s

tru
ctu

re 
su
pp
ort
s e

nte
rpr
ise
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ap
pe
als
 to
 pr
iva
te 
se
cto

r c
oll
ab
ora

tor
s b

ec
au
se
 of
 ab

ility
 to
 

pa
y d
ivid

en
ds
, re

wa
rd 
loa
ns
 an

d c
on
tra
ct 
ou
t s
erv

ice
s; 
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
lia
bly
 re
gu
lat
ed
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ca
pit
al 
an
d a

ss
et 
loc
k -
 pr
ev
en
ts 
cu
ltu
ral
 pr
op
ert
y b
ein
g 

us
ed
 w
ron

gly
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Bo
ard

 m
em

be
rs 
ca
n b

e p
aid
 so

 ar
e a

cc
ou
nta

ble
 an

d 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
ed
.

Of
fer
s l
im
ite
d p

hil
an
thr
op
y; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Sh
are

ho
lde
rs 
ca
n v

ote
 to
 ch

an
ge
 its
 pu

rpo
se
 - 

ma
rke

t fl
ex
ibi
lity
, h
ow
ev
er 
ne
ed
 to
 sa

feg
ua
rd 

cu
ltu
ral
 ho

ldi
ng
s.

Pr
iva
te 
se
cto

r in
ve
sto

rs 
co
uld
 be

 el
igi
ble
 fo
r 

EIS
 re
lie
f. M

us
t fi
le 
ac
co
un
ts,
 an

nu
al 
ret
urn

 & 
a 

co
mm

un
ity
 in
ter
es
t c
om

pa
ny
 re
po
rt w

ith
 

Re
gis
tra
r o
f C
om

pa
nie
s.

Str
uc
tur
e e

na
ble
s m

ult
ipl
e s

ha
reh

old
ers

 at
 

go
ve
rna

nc
e l
ev
el 
- th

ere
for
e u

nd
erp

ins
 

bo
th 
co
lla
bo
rat
ive
 w
ork

ing
 ac

ros
s p

riv
ate

, 
pu
bli
c a

nd
 th
ird
 se

cto
r, a

nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 

en
ga
ge
me

nt.

An
 LA

 in
ter
es
ted

 in
 ac

tiv
ely
 en

ab
lin
g 

reg
en
era

tio
n i
n d

ep
riv
ed
 lo
ca
l a
rea

s; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

An
 LA

 ab
le 
to 
bro

ke
r s
tro
ng
 re
lat
ion
sh
ips
 

an
d p

art
ne
rsh

ips
 be

tw
ee
n a

 th
riv
ing
 lo
ca
l 

pri
va
te 
se
cto

r a
nd
 its
 th
ird
 se

cto
r / 
cu
ltu
ral
 

se
cto

r d
ire
ct 
de
live

ry 
se
rvi
ce
s; 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

An
 LA

 in
ter
es
ted

 in
 em

po
we
rin
g s

ma
ll a
nd
 

sp
ec
ial
ist
 se

rvi
ce
s t
o b

ec
om

e f
it f
or 
ful
l 

de
vo
lut
ion
.

Th
e C

om
mu

nit
y I
nte

res
t C
om

pa
nie
s 

reg
ula
tor
 w
ill c

on
sid
er 
wh
eth

er 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

me
et 
the

 cr
ite
ria
 to
 be

co
me

 a 
Co
mm

un
ity
 

Int
ere

st 
Co
mp

an
y. 
If s
ati
sfi
ed
, th

e r
eg
ula
tor

wil
l a
dv
ise
 th
e r
eg
ist
rar
 in
 C
om

pa
nie
s 

Ho
us
e w

ho
, p
rov

idi
ng
 al
l th
e d

oc
um

en
ts 

are
 in
 or
de
r, w

ill i
ss
ue
 a 
ce
rtif
ica
te 
of 

inc
orp

ora
tio
n a

s a
 C
om

mu
nit
y I
nte

res
t 

Co
mp

an
y. 
 So

urc
e: 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.aw
ics
.co

.uk
/do

cu
me

nts
/br
ief
ing

_p
ap
ers

/ec
on
om

ic_
de
ve
lop
me

nt/
Co
mm

un
it

y_
Int
ere

st_
Co
mp

an
ies
__
15
-12

-20
07
.pd

f

Civil Sector

Vo
lun

tee
rin
g/ 
Re
sid
en
t &
 

Te
na
nt 
As
so
cia
tio
ns
/ 

Co
mm

un
ity
 gr
ou
ps

A R
es
ide
nts

’ A
ss
oc
iat
ion
 is
 a 
loc
al 
gro

up
, m

ad
e u

p o
f lo
ca
l 

res
ide
nts

 (te
na
nts

 an
d/o

r h
om

eo
wn
ers

) w
ho
 re
pre

se
nt 
the

 
int
ere

sts
 of
 ev

ery
on
e l
ivin

g i
n a

 pa
rtic

ula
r a
rea

 or
 bu

ild
ing
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

So
me

 as
so
cia
tio
ns
 co

me
 to
ge
the

r to
 ad

dre
ss
 on

e s
pe
cif
ic 

iss
ue
 or
 co

mm
un
ity
 ev

en
t (R

oy
al 
W
ed
din
g!)
, w
hil
e o

the
rs 

ho
pe
 to
 ad

dre
ss
 a 
wid

er 
sp
ec
tru
m 
of 
ma

tte
rs.
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

A f
ew
 Br
itis
h r
es
ide
nts

' a
ss
oc
iat
ion
s h

av
e r
eg
ist
ere

d a
s 

loc
ali
ty-
ba
se
d p

oli
tic
al 
pa
rtie

s t
o e

na
ble
 th
em

 to
 pa

rtic
ipa
te 
in 

loc
al 
ele
cti
on
s a

t d
ist
ric
t a
nd
 co

un
ty 
co
un
cil 
lev
el.

Re
sid
en
ts 
- g
ett
ing
 to
 kn
ow
 ne

igh
bo
urs

; s
ha
rin
g i
de
as
 an

d 
loc
al 
inf
orm

ati
on
; b
ec
om

ing
 m
ore

 in
vo
lve
d b

y h
av
ing
 a 

gre
ate

r s
ay
 ab

ou
t d
ec
isio

ns
 re
lat
ing
 to
 th
eir
 ne

igh
bo
urh

oo
d; 

me
et 
ne
w 
pe
op
le;
 le
arn

/up
da
te 
sk
ills
; g
ain
 co

nfi
de
nc
e i
n 

de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 lo
ca
l a
nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 is
su
es
; s
pe
ak
ing
 to
 lo
ca
l 

au
tho

rity
, P
oli
ce
 et
c a

nd
 be

 ta
ke
n m

ore
 se

rio
us
ly 
as
 a 
for
ma

l 
gro

up
; a
cc
ou
nta

ble
 to
 lo
ca
l re

sid
en
ts;
 in
cre

as
ed
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 

tra
ini
ng
 an

d n
etw

ork
ing
 op

po
rtu
nit
ies
; a
cc
es
s t
o f
un
din
g i
.e.
 

Lo
tte
ry 
an
d g

ov
ern

me
nt 
gra

nts
;   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Lo
ca
l A
uth

ori
ty 
- U

nd
ers

tan
din
g c

om
mu

nit
y n
ee
ds
 an

d 
wa
nts

; s
ati
sfa

cti
on
 w
ith
 lo
ca
l a
rea

; c
om

mu
nit
y i
nv
olv
em

en
t; 

em
po
we
rin
g t
he
 se

ns
e o

f c
om

mu
nit
y.

Iss
ue
s m

ay
 ar
ise
 w
he
n r
es
ide
nts

 do
n’t
 w
ish
 to
 

ad
dre

ss
 is
su
es
 fo
rm
all
y -
 th
e R

A w
ou
ld 
ne
ed
 to
 

ha
ve
 in
cre

as
ed
 co

nta
ct 
wit
h r
es
ide
nts

 if 
co
ve
rin
g a

 la
rge

 ar
ea
 of
 th
e t
ow
n a

nd
 be

 
pro

ac
tiv
e w

he
n i
ss
ue
s a

ris
e t
o e

ns
ure

 th
ey
 ar
e 

ad
dre

ss
ed
 fo
rm
all
y.

No
t g
ov
ern

ed
 by
 an

y l
eg
al 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

(un
les
s b

ec
om

es
 a 
lim
ite
d c

om
pa
ny
 or
 

ch
ari
ty)
; a
do
pti
on
 of
 a 
Co
ns
titu
tio
n i
s 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
. E
lec
tio
n o

f s
tro
ng
 a 

Ch
air
pe
rso

n t
o g

uid
e a

nd
 fo
cu
s t
he
 gr
ou
p; 

als
o V

ice
-C
ha
irp
ers

on
, S
ec
ret
ary

, a
nd
 

Tre
as
ure

r a
nd
 co

mm
itte
e m

em
be
rs;
  n
ee
d 

to 
se
t o
ut 
yo
ur 
aim

s a
nd
 st
ati
ng
 th
at 
the

 
gro

up
 is
 op

en
 to
 al
l re

sid
en
ts;
 ac

co
un
t fo

r 
all
 de

cis
ion
s (
mi
nu
tes

 of
 m
ee
tin
gs
/re
co
rd 

an
d p

ub
lici
se
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re 
etc

).

Public

Ar
ms
 Le
ng
th 
Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

Or
ga
nis
ati
on
 (A
LM
O)

Inv
olv
es
 a 
loc
al 
au
tho

rity
 se

ttin
g u

p a
 pr
iva
te 
lim
ite
d c

om
pa
ny
 

to 
run

 a 
pa
rtic

ula
r c
ou
nc
il s
erv

ice
.  T

he
 lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
ty 
– a

t 
lea
st 
at 
the

 st
art
 – 
is 
the

 so
le 
sh
are

ho
lde
r –
 bu

t th
e c

om
pa
ny
 

is 
run

 at
 ‘a
rm
s l
en
gth

’ fr
om

 th
e c

ou
nc
il. 

AL
MO

s r
un
nin
g l
eis
ure

, s
oc
ial
 se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 ot
he
r c
ou
nc
il 

fun
cti
on
s h

av
e b

ee
n a

rou
nd
 fo
r a
 fe
w 
ye
ars

. 
AL
MO

s h
av
e a

 C
om

pa
ny
 Bo

ard
 – 
us
ua
lly 
ma

de
 up

 of
 on

e 
thi
rd 
co
un
cill
ors

, o
ne
 th
ird
 ‘in
de
pe
nd
en
ts’
 an

d o
ne
 th
ird
 

ten
an
ts.
 Al
l b
oa
rd 
me

mb
ers

 ha
ve
 a 
leg
al 
ob
lig
ati
on
 to
 pu

t th
e 

int
ere

sts
 of
 th
e c

om
pa
ny
 be

for
e a

ny
 ot
he
r lo

ya
ltie
s.

No
t-fo

r-p
rof
it. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

A C
om

pa
ny
 Li
mi
ted

 by
 G
ua
ran

tee
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ex
am

ple
 - C

he
lte
nh
am

 Bo
rou

gh
 H
om

es
 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ch
elt
bo
roh

om
es
.or
g. 

W
he
n s

et 
up
 th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ill s
till 
ow
n t
he
 as

se
ts 
bu
t it
 w
ill 

tra
ns
fer
 th
e m

an
ag
em

en
t to

 th
e A

LM
O.
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

AL
MO

s c
an
 be

 us
ed
 fo
r th

e w
ho
le,
 or
 pa

rt, 
of 
the

 co
un
cil 

sto
ck
/se

rvi
ce
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

LA
s r
eta

in 
ov
era

ll c
on
tro
l o
f th

e p
erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d s
tra
teg

ic
dir
ec
tio
n o

f th
e A

LM
O.
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

If a
n A

LM
O 
is 
no
t d
ee
me

d t
o b

e a
 su

cc
es
s, 
the

 re
lev
an
t L
A 

is 
ab
le 
to 
win

d i
t u
p a

nd
 ta
ke
 m
an
ag
em

en
t b
ac
k i
n-h

ou
se
 

pro
vid
ed
 st
ak
eh
old
ers

 ha
ve
 be

en
 fu
lly 
inv
olv
ed
 in
, a
nd
 

su
pp
ort
, th

e d
ec
isio

n. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Se
pa
rat
ion
 of
 st
rat
eg
ic 
an
d m

an
ag
em

en
t ro

les
. - 
 Se

pa
rat
ion
 

fro
m 
the

 co
un
cil 
all
ow
s s
taf
f to

 fo
cu
s p

ure
ly 
on
 se

rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry.
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 C
us
tom

er 
foc

us
.

Tra
ns
ac
tio
ns
 be

tw
ee
n a

n A
LM

O 
an
d i
ts 
Co
un
cil 

are
 no

t c
on
sid
ere

d t
o b

e t
rad

ing
, a
nd
 ar
e 

the
ref
ore

 ex
em

pt 
fro
m 
Co
rpo

rat
ion
 Ta

x. 
Tra

din
g a

cti
vit
ies
 su

bje
ct 
to 
Co
rpo

rat
ion
 Ta

x.

An
 op

era
tes

 un
de
r th

e t
erm

s o
f a
  

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ag
ree

me
nt 
se
t o
ut 
by
 th
e 

au
tho

rity
; h
ea
de
d b

y a
n e

ffe
cti
ve
 Bo

ard
 

de
mo

ns
tra
tin
g s

uff
icie

nt 
ex
pe
rtis

e.

Public

As
se
t tr
an
sfe
r -
 Jo
 to
 co
nfi
rm
 

de
tai
l

Public

La
rg
e S

ca
le 
Vo
lun

tar
y 

Tr
an
sfe
r -
 so
cia
l h
ou
sin
g

LS
VT
 in
vo
lve
s t
he
 Lo

ca
l A
uth

ori
ty 
tra
ns
fer
rin
g t
he
 ow

ne
rsh

ip 
of 
its
 st
oc
k w

ith
 th
e a

gre
em

en
t [o

f th
e t
en
an
t]. 
Ke
y f
ea
tur
es
 

(ho
us
ing
):

• T
ran

sfe
rrin

g t
en
an
ts 
are

 of
fer
ed
 be

ne
fits
 su

ch
 as

 re
nt 

gu
ara

nte
es
, s
toc

k i
nv
es
tm
en
t p
rog

ram
me

s a
nd
 rig

hts
 as

 
'as
su
red

 te
na
nts

'.
• T
ran

sfe
r p
ric
e i
s d

ete
rm
ine
d b

y 'T
en
an
ted

 M
ark

et 
Va
lue
' 

• T
he
 ne

w 
lan
dlo
rd 
mu

st 
be
 a 
Re
gis
ter
ed
 Pr
ov
ide
r if
 fu
nd
ing
 is
 

to 
be
 se

cu
red

.
• T
ran

sfe
rs 
are

 fu
nd
ed
 en

tire
ly 
by
 th
e p

riv
ate

 se
cto

r.

So
cia

l H
ou

sin
g:
 Af
for
da
ble
 re
nts

, G
oo
d q

ua
lity
 se

rvi
ce
 

pro
vis
ion
, S
ec
ure

 bu
dg
ets

 fo
r o
ng
oin
g r
ep
air
 an

d
ma

int
en
an
ce
 an

d P
rov

isio
n f
or 
the

 ho
me

les
s a

nd
 ot
he
r 

ho
us
ing
 ne

ed
s, 
Th
e g

ov
ern

me
nt 
is 
ke
en
 to
 se

e s
uc
h 

tra
ns
fer
s t
ak
e p

lac
e b

ec
au
se
 it 
en
ab
les
 in
ve
stm

en
t to

 be
 

ma
de
 in
 im
pro

vin
g t
he
 ho

us
ing
 st
oc
k w

ith
ou
t c
all
ing
 on

 
pu
bli
c s
ec
tor
 ho

us
ing
 bu

dg
ets

 or
 pu

ttin
g p

res
su
re 
on
 th
e 

pu
bli
c s
ec
tor
 bo

rro
win

g r
eq
uir
em

en
t.; 
  

Inv
es

tm
en

t: 
Co
mp

let
ion
 of
 m
ajo
r re

pa
irs
, P
rov

isio
n f
or 

mo
de
rni
sa
tio
n a

nd
 In
ve
stm

en
t in
 ne

w 
ho
us
ing
 in
clu
din
g 

ac
hie
ve
me

nt 
of 
the

 de
ce
nt 
ho
me

s s
tan

da
rd

Te
na

nts
: P
rot
ec
tio
n o

f e
xis
tin
g r
igh
ts 
an
d o

ve
ral
l s
ec
uri
ty,
 

Re
nt 
gu
ara

nte
e a

nd
 bo

ard
 re
pre

se
nta

tio
n.

• A
fte
r a
 la
rge

-sc
ale
 vo

lun
tar
y t
ran

sfe
r th

e 
co
un
cil 
is 
no
 lo
ng
er 
a l
an
dlo
rd,
 bu

t it
 re
tai
ns
 

sig
nif
ica
nt 
ho
us
ing
 re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
.   
It i
s s
till 
the

 
str
ate

gic
 ho

us
ing
 co

un
cil.
 Th

ey
 m
us
t a
lso
 

mo
nit
or 
an
d c

o-o
rdi
na
te 
se
rvi
ce
s d

eli
ve
red

 by
 

ma
ny
 di
ffe
ren

t o
rga

nis
ati
on
s s
o t
ha
t th

ey
 ar
e 

se
am

les
s t
o t
en
an
ts 
an
d o

the
r s
erv

ice
 us

ers
.

• T
he
 co

ntr
oll
ing
 bo

dy
 of
 th
e n

ew
 la
nd
lor
d i
s n

ot 
de
mo

cra
tic
all
y e
lec
ted

.

"Th
e b

as
is 
for
 va

lua
tio
n f
or 
a L

SV
T i
s T

en
an
ted

 
Ma

rke
t V
alu
e. 
Th
is 
va
lue
s t
he
 st
oc
k a
s s
oc
ial
 

ho
us
ing
, a
ss
um

ing
 af
for
da
ble
 re
nts

 an
d g

oo
d 

sta
nd
ard

s o
f m

ain
ten

an
ce
. It
 do

es
 no

t re
fle
ct 

eit
he
r th

e v
alu
e o

f th
e '
bri
ck
s a

nd
 m
ort
ar'
 or
 th
e 

ma
rke

t v
alu
e, 
an
d i
s u

su
all
y l
es
s t
ha
n e

ith
er 
of 

the
se
 va

lue
s..
.Th

e c
ou
nc
il is

 pa
id 
the

 te
na
nte

d 
ma

rke
t v
alu
e f
or 
the

 ho
us
ing
 st
oc
k b
y t
he
 

reg
ist
ere

d s
oc
ial
 la
nd
lor
d, 
an
d u

su
all
y u
se
s t
he
 

pro
ce
ed
s t
o r
ep
ay
 de

bt.
 If 
the

 ‘te
na
nte

d m
ark

et 
va
lue
’ is
 m
ore

 th
an
 en

ou
gh
 to
 re
pa
y h
ou
sin
g 

de
bt,
 th
e c

ou
nc
il m

ay
 sp

en
d t
he
 re
st 
on
 

inv
es
tin
g i
n o

the
r s
erv

ice
s s
uc
h a

s l
eis
ure

 or
 

ec
on
om

ic 
de
ve
lop
me

nt.
 So

me
tim
es
 th
e 

ten
an
ted

 m
ark

et 
va
lue
 is
 lo
we
r th

an
 th
e l
ev
el 
of 

de
bt 
tha

t th
e c

ou
nc
il h
as
 ou

tst
an
din
g f
rom

 
bu
ild
ing
 an

d i
mp

rov
ing
 th
e h

ou
sin
g s

toc
k. 
Th
is 

sit
ua
tio
n i
s c
all
ed
 'o
ve
rha

ng
ing
 de

bt’
 an

d i
n 

the
se
 in
sta

nc
es
 th
e c

ou
nc
il m

us
t a
sk
 th
e 

go
ve
rnm

en
t to

 fu
nd
 th
e d

iffe
ren

ce
." S

ou
rce

: 
ww

w.
aw
ics
.co

.uk

Public

Sh
are

d S
erv

ice
s

Tw
o o

r m
ore

 LA
s j
oin
tly
 ru
n/m

an
ag
e s

erv
ice
s t
og
eth

er;
  

Sc
op
e c

an
 be

 in
for
ma

l o
r fo

rm
al.

Ca
n b

e s
erv

ice
 sp

ec
ific
;  L

ike
ly 
to 
be
 ch

ea
pe
r a
nd
 qu

ick
er 
to 

es
tab

lish
 th
is 
mo

de
l th
an
 a 
tru
st 
for
 ex

am
ple
;  C

an
 cr
ea
te 

job
s; 
 Ab

ility
 to
 bi
d f
or 
ex
ter
na
l w
ork

 – 
ge
ne
rat
ing
 in
co
me

;  
Gi
vie
s t
he
 co

un
cils

 st
ab
ility

 an
d t
ax
pa
ye
rs 
be
tte
r v
alu
e f
or 

mo
ne
y; 
 Id
en
tity
 of
 th
e c

ou
nc
ils 
is 
ret
ain
ed
;  E

ac
h c

ou
nc
il w

ill 
wo
rk 
to 
its
 ow

n c
orp

ora
te 
pla
n w

hic
h d

riv
es
 fo
rw
ard

 pr
ior
itie
s 

an
d b

us
ine
ss
.

W
ork

for
ce
 an

d H
R 
im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 [if
 no

t h
an
dle
d 

we
ll] 
– j
ob
 ro
le 
ma

y c
ha
ng
e/ 
nu
mb

er 
of 
rol
es
 

ma
y b
e r
ed
uc
ed
 et
c; 
 Br
ing
s r
isk
, c
om

ple
xit
y 

an
d a

mb
igu
ity
; th

at 
ca
n g

en
era

te 
co
nfu

sio
n a

nd
 

we
ak
en
 ac

co
un
tab

ility
;

A f
ram

ew
ork

 of
 re
lat
ion
sh
ips
 an

d 
ac
co
un
tab

iliti
es
 m
us
t b
e e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 so

 th
at 

me
mb

ers
, o
ffic
ers

 an
d o

the
r n
om

ine
es
 ca

n 
un
de
rst
an
d w

ha
t is
 ex

pe
cte

d o
f th

em
.

An
 LA

 w
an
tin
g t
o m

ain
tai
n a

nd
 cr
ea
te 
be
tte
r 

se
rvi
ce
s f
or 
all
 di
str
ict
's 
res

ide
nts

.

?

Jo
int
 Ve

ntu
re

A 
joi
nt
 ve

nt
ur
e i
s w

he
n 
tw
o o

r m
or
e b

us
ine

ss
es
 po

ol 
th
eir

 re
so
ur
ce
s a

nd
 ex

pe
rti
se
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 a 

pa
rti
cu
lar

 
go
al;

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
Re

as
on

s y
ou

 m
igh

t 
wa

nt
 to

 fo
rm

 a 
joi
nt
 ve

nt
ur
e i
nc
lud

e b
us
ine

ss
 

ex
pa
ns
ion

, d
ev
elo

pm
en
t o

f n
ew

 pr
od
uc
ts 

or
 m

ov
ing

 
int

o n
ew

 m
ar
ke
ts;

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

Su
cc
es
s i
n 
a j

oin
t v

en
tu
re
 de

pe
nd

s o
n 
th
or
ou

gh
 

re
se
ar
ch
 an

d a
na
lys

is 
of 

aim
s a

nd
 ob

jec
tiv

es
. T

his
 

sh
ou

ld 
be
 fo

llo
we

d u
p w

ith
 ef

fec
tiv

e c
om

mu
nic

at
ion

 
of 

th
e b

us
ine

ss
 pl

an
 to

 ev
er
yo
ne
 in

vo
lve

d.

Th
e r

isk
s a

nd
 re

wa
rd
s o

f t
he
 en

te
rp
ris
e a

re
 al
so
 

sh
ar
ed
.  
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 A
 jo

int
 ve

nt
ur
e c

ou
ld 

giv
e y

ou
 m

or
e r

es
ou

rce
s; 

gr
ea
te
r c

ap
ac
ity

; 
inc

re
as
ed
 te

ch
nic

al 
ex
pe
rti
se
; a

cc
es
s t

o e
sta

bli
sh
ed
 

ma
rk
et
s; 

dis
tri
bu

tio
n 
ch
an
ne
ls 

Pa
rtn
eri
ng
 w
ith
 an

oth
er 
bu
sin
es
s c
an
 be

 
co
mp

lex
. It
 ta
ke
s t
im
e a

nd
 ef
for
t to

 bu
ild
 th
e 

rig
ht 
rel
ati
on
sh
ip.
 Pr
ob
lem

s a
re 
like

ly 
to 
ari
se
 if:

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
s o

f th
e v

en
tur
e a

re 
no
t to

tal
ly 

cle
ar 
an
d c

om
mu

nic
ate

d t
o e

ve
ryo

ne
 in
vo
lve
d;

Th
e p

art
ne
rs 
ha
ve
 di
ffe
ren

t o
bje
cti
ve
s f
or 
the

 
joi
nt 
ve
ntu

re;
Th
ere

 is
 an

 im
ba
lan
ce
 in
 le
ve
ls 
of 
ex
pe
rtis

e, 
inv
es
tm
en
t o
r a
ss
ets

 br
ou
gh
t in
to 
the

 ve
ntu

re 
by
 th
e d

iffe
ren

t p
art
ne
rs;

Dif
fer
en
t c
ult
ure

s a
nd
 m
an
ag
em

en
t s
tyl
es
 

res
ult
 in
 po

or 
int
eg
rat
ion
 an

d c
o-o

pe
rat
ion
;

Th
e p

art
ne
rs 
do
n't
 pr
ov
ide
 su

ffic
ien
t le
ad
ers

hip
 

an
d s

up
po
rt i
n t
he
 ea

rly
 st
ag
es
.

De
pe
nd
en
t o
n c

ho
se
n m

od
el.

Se
t o
ut 
the

 te
rm
s a

nd
 co

nd
itio
ns
 in
 a 

wr
itte
n a

gre
em

en
t (m

ay
 al
so
 ne

ed
 ot
he
r 

ag
ree

me
nts

 in
clu
din
g a

 co
nfi
de
nti
ali
ty 

ag
ree

me
nt)
 to
 pr
ev
en
t a
ny
 

mi
su
nd
ers

tan
din
gs
 on

ce
 th
e j
oin
t v
en
tur
e 

is 
up
 an

d r
un
nin
g. 
A w

ritt
en
 ag

ree
me

nt 
sh
ou
ld 
co
ve
r th

e s
tru
ctu

re;
 th
e o

bje
cti
ve
s; 

the
 fin
an
cia
l c
on
trib

uti
on
s; 
wh
eth

er 
yo
u w

ill 
tra
ns
fer
 an

y a
ss
ets

 or
 em

plo
ye
es
; 

ow
ne
rsh

ip 
of 
int
ell
ec
tua

l p
rop

ert
y c
rea

ted
 

by
 th
e j
oin
t v
en
tur
e; 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
an
d 

co
ntr
ol;
 ho

w 
lia
bil
itie
s, 
pro

fits
 an

d l
os
se
s 

are
 sh

are
d; 
ho
w 
an
y d
isp
ute

s b
etw

ee
n t
he
 

pa
rtn
ers

 w
ill b

e r
es
olv
ed
; a
n e

xit
 st
rat
eg
y.

Private

Co
mp

an
y l
im
ite
d b

y s
ha
res

 
(C
LS
)

On
e o

r m
ore

 sh
are

ho
lde
rs 
wh
o o

wn
 th
e b

us
ine
ss
: th

ey
 ar
e 

thu
s e

nti
tle
d t
o a

ny
 pr
ofi
ts 
ge
ne
rat
ed
 by
 th
e c

om
pa
ny
;

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Co
rpo

rat
ion

 Ta
x. 
 Ta

x e
xe
mp

t P
ub
lic
 

Se
cto

r s
ha
reh

old
ers

 w
ill 
ge
t n

o r
efu

nd
 or

 cr
ed
it 

for
 ta

x p
aid

 by
 co

mp
an
y o

n g
ain

s. 
Ca

n t
ak
e 

ad
va
nta

ge
 of

 gr
ou
p t

ax
 re

lie
fs.
 N
orm

al 
VA

T r
ule

s 
ap
ply

. P
ote

nti
all
y p

riv
ate

 se
cto

r in
ve
sto

rs 
co
uld

 
be
ne
fit 
fro

m 
En

ter
pri
se
 In
ve
stm

en
t S

ch
em

e (
EI
S)
 

& 
CI
TR

. A
cc
ou
nts

 &
 an

nu
al 
ret

urn
 to

 R
eg
ist
rar

 of
 

Co
mp

an
ies

.

Mo
st 
CL
Ss
 us

e s
tan

da
rd 
(or
 a 
slig

ht 
va
ria
tio
n t
o) 
Ta
ble
 A 
me

mo
ran

du
m 
an
d 

art
icle

s o
f a
ss
oc
iat
ion
 to
 se

t o
ut 
a b

as
ic 

co
ns
titu
tio
n f
or 
the

 bu
sin
es
s a

nd
 ge

ne
ral
ly 

pe
rm
it i
t to

 ca
rry
 ou

t a
ny
 le
ga
l a
cti
vit
ies
 in
 

the
 fu
rth
era

nc
e o

f it
s p

rof
it o
bje
cti
ve
s.

Pa
ge
 2 

of 
2

Page 154



Au
dit

 C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

 
 

 
Ite
m  

Of
fic
er 

 \\m
ud

ata
\m

gd
ata

roo
t\A

ge
nd

aIt
em

Do
cs

\2\
6\1

\AI
00

00
21

62
\$h

ap
z2

2a
f.d

oc
 

 
22
 Ju
ne
 20
11

 
Da
te 
of 
me
eti
ng
: 

22
 Ju

ne
 20

11
 

Ag
ree
 ag
en
da
 by
:  

w/
c 1

6 M
ay

 20
11

 
Co
mp
let
e r
ep
or
ts 
by
:  

10
 Ju

ne
 20

11
 

Ch
air
s b
rie
fin
g: 
 

15
 Ju

ne
 20

11
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 – 

up
da

te 
on

 cu
rre

nt 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 ex
erc

ise
s 

Ja
ne

 G
riff

ith
s 

An
nu

al 
go

ve
rna

nc
e r

ep
ort

 – 
co

nc
lus

ion
 an

d a
na

lys
is 

of 
wo

rk 
co

lla
ted

 in
 ar

riv
ing

 at
 th

e 
an

nu
al 

go
ve

rna
nc

e s
tat

em
en

t s
up

po
rtin

g t
he

 St
ate

me
nt 

of 
Ac

co
un

ts 
Ma

rk 
 Sh

eld
on

 
An

nu
al 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 re

po
rt –

 co
nc

lus
ion

 fro
m 

an
nu

al 
wo

rk 
of 

int
ern

al 
au

dit
 di

vis
ion

 
Ro

b M
ilfo

rd 
KP

MG
 In

ter
im

 Au
dit

 re
po

rt 2
01

1/1
2 –

 su
mm

ari
se

s t
he

 re
su

lts
 of

 KP
MG

’s 
int

eri
m 

au
dit

 
tes

tin
g, 

inc
lud

ing
 te

sti
ng

 of
 fin

an
cia

l a
nd

 ot
he

r c
on

tro
ls,

 to
 in

clu
de

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 on
 th

e P
ub

lic 
Int

ere
st 

Re
po

rt 
KP

MG
 

Au
dit

 fe
e l

ett
er 

20
11

/12
 – 

se
ts 

ou
t h

igh
 le

ve
l a

ud
it s

tra
teg

y a
nd

 fe
e f

or 
20

11
/12

 au
dit

  
KP

MG
 

DC
LG

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 th
e f

utu
re 

of 
au

dit
 – 

co
ns

ide
r re

sp
on

se
 

Ro
b M

ilfo
rd 

GO
 Pr

og
ram

me
 – 

up
da

te 
an

d g
ov

ern
an

ce
 is

su
es

 (p
res

en
tat

ion
) 

 
Th

e B
rib

ery
 Ac

t 2
01

0 –
 co

ns
ide

r n
ew

 le
gis

lat
ion

 an
d i

ts 
eff

ec
t o

n t
he

 ad
mi

nis
tra

tio
n o

f th
e 

co
un

cil’
s b

us
ine

ss
 

Br
ya

n P
ars

on
s 

Co
rpo

rat
e R

isk
 R

eg
ist

er 
– u

pd
ate

 (b
rie

fin
g f

or 
inf

orm
ati

on
 on

ly)
 

Br
ya

n P
ars

on
s 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 G
rou

p –
 up

da
te 

(br
ief

ing
 fo

r in
for

ma
tio

n o
nly

) 
Br

ya
n P

ars
on

s 
 

 
21
 Se
pte
mb
er 
20
11
 

Da
te 
of 
me
eti
ng
: 

21
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

11
 

Ag
ree
 ag
en
da
 by
: 

w/c
 08

 Au
gu

st 
20

11
 

Co
mp
let
e r
ep
or
ts 
by
: 

09
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

11
 

Ch
air
s b
rie
fin
g: 

tbc
 

Ye
ar 

en
d –

 Au
dit

 C
om

mi
tte

e r
ep

ort
ing

 
KP

MG
 

Re
vie

w 
of 

An
nu

al 
Sta

tem
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nts
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

Re
po

rt o
n p

rog
res

s i
n d

eli
ve

rin
g K

PM
G 

ac
tio

n p
lan

 
Sa

ra 
Fre

ck
let

on
 

Co
rpo

rat
e R

isk
 R

eg
ist

er 
– u

pd
ate

 (b
rie

fin
g f

or 
inf

orm
ati

on
 on

ly)
 

Br
ya

n P
ars

on
s 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 G
rou

p –
 up

da
te 

(br
ief

ing
 fo

r in
for

ma
tio

n o
nly

) 
Br

ya
n P

ars
on

s 
 

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 155



Au
dit

 C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

 
 

 
Ite
m  

Of
fic
er 

 \\m
ud

ata
\m

gd
ata

roo
t\A

ge
nd

aIt
em

Do
cs

\2\
6\1

\AI
00

00
21

62
\$h

ap
z2

2a
f.d

oc
 

11
 Ja
nu
ar
y 2
01
2 

Da
te 
of 
me
eti
ng
: 

11
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
12

 
Ag
ree
 ag
en
da
 by
: 

w/c
 28

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

1 
Co
mp
ete
 re
po
rts
 by
: 

30
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
1 

Ch
air
s b
rie
fin
g: 

tbc
 

Fu
tur

e e
xte

rna
l a

ud
it p

rop
os

als
 – 

go
ve

rnm
en

t re
sp

on
se

 to
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
Ro

b M
ilfo

rd 
Jo

int
 tra

ini
ng

 se
ss

ion
 w

ith
 C

ots
wo

ld 
an

d W
es

t O
xfo

rd 
co

un
cill

ors
? 

Ro
b M

ilfo
rd 

/ M
ark

 Sh
eld

on
 

Co
rpo

rat
e R

isk
 R

eg
ist

er 
– u

pd
ate

 (b
rie

fin
g f

or 
inf

orm
ati

on
 on

ly)
 

Br
ya

n P
ars

on
s 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 G
rou

p –
 up

da
te 

(br
ief

ing
 fo

r in
for

ma
tio

n o
nly

) 
Br

ya
n P

ars
on

s 
 

 
21
 M
arc
h 2
01
2 

Da
te 
of 
me
eti
ng
: 

21
 M

arc
h 2

01
2 

Ag
ree
 ag
en
da
 by
: 

w/
c 0

6 F
eb

rua
ry 

20
12

 
Co
mp
ete
 re
po
rts
 by
: 

09
 M

arc
h 2

01
2 

Ch
air
s b
rie
fin
g: 

tbc
 

Co
rpo

rat
e R

isk
 R

eg
ist

er 
– u

pd
ate

 (b
rie

fin
g f

or 
inf

orm
ati

on
 on

ly)
 

Br
ya

n P
ars

on
s 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 G
rou

p –
 up

da
te 

(br
ief

ing
 fo

r in
for

ma
tio

n o
nly

) 
Br

ya
n P

ars
on

s 
 

 
20
 Ju
ne
 20
12
 

Da
te 
of 
me
eti
ng
: 

20
 Ju

ne
 20

12
 

Ag
ree
 ag
en
da
 by
: 

w/c
 7 

Ma
y 2

01
2 

Co
mp
ete
 re
po
rts
 by
: 

08
 Ju

ne
 20

12
 

Ch
air
s b
rie
fin
g: 

tbc
 

Co
rpo

rat
e R

isk
 R

eg
ist

er 
– u

pd
ate

 (b
rie

fin
g f

or 
inf

orm
ati

on
 on

ly)
 

Br
ya

n P
ars

on
s 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 G
rou

p –
 up

da
te 

(br
ief

ing
 fo

r in
for

ma
tio

n o
nly

) 
Br

ya
n P

ars
on

s 
 

 
Ite
ms
 to
 be
 ad
de
d a
t a
 fu
tur
e d
ate
 

Ch
an

ge
s t

o t
he

 ap
po

int
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss

 fo
r e

xte
rna

l a
ud

ito
rs 

(ab
oli

tio
n o

f th
e A

ud
it 

Co
mm

iss
ion

) 
KP

MG
 

Co
rpo

rat
e S

tra
teg

y 2
01

1/1
2 –

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 of

 go
ve

rna
nc

e i
ss

ue
s 

 
 

Page 156



 
 

Briefing 
Notes 
 

 
Committee name:  Audit Committee 
 
Date 22 June 2011 
 
Responsible officer:  Bryan Parsons 

 
Corporate Risk Register 

This briefing paper contains information to keep Members informed of matters relating to the work of the 
Committee, no decisions are required but members can make comments on the work of the group or 
suggestions for additional action. 
1. Why has this come to Audit Committee? 
1.1 To provide the Committee with a copy of the Corporate Risk Register and information on 

how and when risks are monitored, reviewed and reported. 

2. Summary 

2.1 The Audit Committee revises and reviews the Risk Management Policy on an annual basis.  
This document provides a framework and guidance for staff and members on the 
management of risk within the council. 

2.2 Corporate Risks are recorded within a register (CRR) that is reviewed 4 weekly by the 
Senior Leadership Team (SLT). The CRR is reported to Economy and Business 
improvement overview and scrutiny committee for comment and then to cabinet 3 times a 
year for approval. In addition to this formal reporting cycle Cabinet Members are provided 
with revised copy of the register every month following the SLT meeting so that they can 
discus specific risks with their owners. 

2.3 It has been suggested that a copy of the CRR should also be provided to the Audit 
committee on a regular basis so that members are aware of the risks being recorded and 
monitored. 

3. Conclusion 
3.1 A copy of the CRR has therefore been provided at appendix 1 for your attention. If you 

have any comments or suggestions these will be taken on board and either included in 
reports to EBI and Cabinet or used by officers to improve the monitoring process. 

3.2 A timetable for the monitoring, review and reporting of corporate risks is also attached at 
appendix 2. 

4. Summary of supporting information 
4.1 Appendix 1, The Corporate Risk Register as approved by SLT on the 10th May 2011 and 

reviewed by Economy and Business Improvement overview and scrutiny committee on the 
23rd May 2011  
Appendix 2, CRR - Timetable for review, update and reporting cycle – 2011/12. 
 

Agenda Annex
Page 157



5. Further information 
5.1 If you require any further information on any of these issues please contact                  

Bryan Parsons - Policy officer - governance on 01242 264189 or 
bryan.parsons@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Page 158



To
tal

 nu
mb

er 
of 

Lo
w 

Me
diu

m 
an

d H
igh

 ris
ks

Ris
ks
 sc

ori
ng

De
ce

mb
er

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br
ua

ry
Ma

rc
h

Ma
y

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pte
mb

er
Oc

tob
er

No
ve

mb
er

De
ce

mb
er

< t
ha

n 7
10

10
10

3
2

> t
ha

n 1
0 b

ut 
< 1

6
14

14
10

16
24

> t
ha

n 1
5 b

ut 
< 2

5
8

8
9

9
9

To
tal
 nu

mb
er 

of 
op

en
 ris

ks
32

32
29

28
35

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
Nu

mb
er 

of 
ris
ks
 cl
os
ed

 pe
r m

on
th 
by
 SL

T s
inc

e 0
1/0

1/2
01

1
5

6
11

To
tal
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ris
ks
 on

 re
gis

ter
32

32
34

34
46

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il C

or
po

rat
e R

isk
 R

eg
ist

er 
Da

sh
bo

ard
 20

10
 - 2

01
1

Ri
sk

 sc
or

es
 up

da
ted

 fo
llo

wi
ng

 SL
T m

on
ito

rin
g m

ee
tin

g

10

14

8
De

c. 
ris

ks
 by

 sc
or

e.

R A
G

10

14

8Ja
n. 

ris
ks

 by
 sc

or
e.

R

A
G

10

10

9
Fe

b. 
ris

ks
 by

sc
or

e.

R
A
G

3

16

9

Ma
r. r

isk
s b

y s
co

re.

R
A
G

2
24

9Ma
y. 

ris
ks

 by
 sc

or
e.

R
A
G

0
0

0

ris
ks

 by
 sc

or
e.

R AG

0
0

ris
ks

 by
 sc

or
e.

R
A

G
0

0

. ri
sk

s b
y s

co
re.

R
A

G

0
0

. ri
sk

s b
y s

co
re.

R
A
G

0
0

. ri
sk

s b
y s

co
re.

R
AG

0
0

ris
ks

 by
 sc

or
e.

R
A
G

0
0

. ri
sk

s b
y s

co
re.

R
A

G

To
tal

 nu
mb

er 
of 

ris
ks

 on
 ta

rg
et 

to 
me

et 
de

ad
lin

e 
by

 sc
or

e
Lo

w 
Ris

ks
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

Ma
rc
h

Ma
y

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pte
mb

er
Oc

tob
er

No
ve

mb
er

De
ce

mb
er

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br
ua

ry
< t

ha
n 7

 on
 de

ad
lin

e
8

3
2

< t
ha

n 7
 m

ay
 no

t m
ee

t d
ea

dli
ne

2
0

0
< t

ha
n 7

 w
ill n

ot 
me

et 
de

ad
lin

e
0

0
0

Me
diu

m 
ris

ks
> t

ha
n 1

0 b
ut 

< 1
6 w

ill m
ee

t d
ea

dli
ne

 
8

12
18

> t
ha

n 1
0 b

ut 
< 1

6 m
ay

 no
t m

ee
t d

ea
dli

ne
 

2
4

6
> t

ha
n 1

0 b
ut 

< 1
6 w

ill n
ot 

me
et 

de
ad

line
 

0
0

0
Hig

h r
isk

s
>th

an
 15

 bu
t <

 25
 w

ill m
ee

t d
ea

dli
ne

.
7

7
6

< t
ha

n 1
5 m

ay
 no

t m
ee

t d
ea

dli
ne

2
2

3
>th

an
 15

 bu
t <

 25
 w

ill n
ot 

me
et 

de
ad

line
.

0
0

0
To

tal
 nu

mb
er 

wit
h d

ea
dli

ne
 in

dic
ato

r
29

28
35

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

De
ad

lin
es

 up
da

ted
  fo

llo
wi

ng
 m

on
thl

y S
LT

 m
on

ito
rin

g m
ee

tin
g

Page 159



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

1
CR

2
3

If r
es
ilie

nc
e i
ss
ue
s a

re 
no
t 

ad
dre

ss
ed
 in
 th
e P

ay
rol
l s
erv

ice
, 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 qu

alit
y f
or 

em
plo

ye
es
 

wil
l b
e i
mp

ac
ted

, a
nd
 m

ay
 im

pa
ct 

on
 pa

rtn
er 

rel
ati
on
sh
ip 
wit

h C
BH

, 
po
ss
ibly

 im
pa
cti
ng
 fu
nd
ing

 st
rea

m 
fro

m 
CB

H,
 an

d t
he
re 

wil
l n
ot 
be
 

su
ffic

ien
t re

so
urc

e t
o s

up
po
rt 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 ta
sk
s r
eg
ard

ing
 pa

yro
ll 

an
d A

BW
 (G

O)
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n.

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 

Or
g D

ev
 

& 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

01/04/10

4
5

20
Re

du ce
Ra

ise
 as

 G
O 
Pr
og
ram

me
 ris

k. 
Mo

nit
or 

sit
ua
tio
n. 
Se

ek
 an

d o
bta

in 
req

uir
ed
 sk

ill s
et 

an
d e

xp
eri
en
ce
 - a

dv
ert

ise
 ro

le 
wit

h p
art

ne
rs,
 

SW
Em

plo
ye
rs,
 ot
he
r n

etw
ork

s. 
Se

ek
 Ag

en
cy
 

su
pp
ort

 vi
a C

om
en
su
ra.

 

En
d J

un
e 

20
11

Gr
ee
n

HR
 

Op
era

tio
ns
 

Ma
na
ge
r  

Ju
lie 

Mc
Ca

rth
y

Ra
ise

d a
s r
isk

 on
 G
O 
Pr
og
ram

me
 re

gis
ter

. N
oth

ing
 re

ce
ive

d f
rom

 
ne
tw
ork

s. 
Ad

ve
rtis

ed
 ro

le 
ex
ter

na
lly.

 Ap
plic

ati
on
s r
ev
iew

ed
, in

ter
vie

w 
too

k 
pla

ce
. N

o s
uit
ab
le 
ap
plic

an
ts 
ide

nti
fie
d. 
W
ill s

ee
k A

ge
nc
y s

up
po
rt a

im
ing

 
to 
ha
ve
 in
 pl
ac
e b

y e
nd
 Ju

ne
 de

ad
line

. M
ee
tin
g w

ith
 Au

dit
 on

 11
th 
Ma

y t
o 

rev
iew

 re
ce
nt 
pa
yro

ll a
ud
it f
ind

ing
s. 
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
of 
res

ou
rce

 m
ad
e a

nd
 

ca
pa
cit
y g

ap
 m

ore
 cl
os
ely

 de
fin
ed
, a
cti
on
s t
o m

itig
ate

 to
 be

 co
ns
ide

red
 

(w
ha
t to

 st
op
, re

pri
ori
tis
e, 
do
 le
ss
, e
tc)
. 

10/05/11

2
CR

4
1

If c
ap
ac
ity 

to 
lea

d a
nd
 m

an
ag
e t
he
 

ch
an
ge
s, 
at 
the

 sa
me

 tim
e a

s 
im
ple

me
nti
ng
 m

ajo
r c
ha
ng
e (

i.e
. a
 

ne
w 
ER

P s
ys
tem

), i
s n

ot 
se
cu
red

 
the

n t
he
 be

ne
fits

 fro
m 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
  a
nd
 th
e E

RP
 

sy
ste

m 
wil
l n
ot 
be
 fu
lly 

rea
lize

d, 
an
d 

mo
ral
e a

nd
 m

oti
va
tio
n m

ay
 be

 

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
v

e A
nd
rew

 
No

rth

 October 2010

4
4

16
Re

du ce
Qu

art
erl
y r
ev
iew

 of
 ca

pa
cit
y f
or 

ma
jor
 ch

an
ge
 

pro
gra

mm
es
, b
y S

LT
.  A

gre
e a

lloc
ati
on
 of
 

ca
pa
cit
y f
un
din

g. 
En

su
re 

dia
log

ue
 be

tw
ee
n 

pro
jec

t/p
rog

ram
me

 m
an
ag
ers

 an
d r

es
ou
rce

 
ma

na
ge
rs 
via

 po
rtfo

lio 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
 

re 
res

ou
rce

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 an

d s
up
ply

. 

01
/04

/12
Gr
ee
n

Dir
 Pe

op
le,
 

OD
 & 

Ch
an
ge
 

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

Ca
pa
cit
y p

rio
riti
es
 es

tab
lish

ed
 fo
r th

e a
pp
rov

ed
 £8

0k
 to
wa

rds
 ca

pa
cit
y, 

inf
orm

ed
 by

 th
e c

ap
ac
ity 

ma
pp
ing

 ex
erc

ise
 to
 be

 co
mp

let
ed
 by

 en
d A

pri
l, 

an
d q

ua
rte

rly
 th
ere

aft
er 

for
 m

ajo
r c
ha
ng
e p

rog
ram

me
s. 
Ca

pa
cit
y r
ev
iew

ed
 

at 
SL

T 1
0th

 M
ay
 20

11
. C

ap
ac
ity 

fun
din

g b
id 
for

 £2
3k
 su

bm
itte

d f
or 

CB
C 

GO
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n, 
for

 ca
pa
cit
y t
o e

ffe
ct 
req

uir
ed
 bu

sin
es
s c

ha
ng
e. 

10/05/11Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

mo
ral
e a

nd
 m

oti
va
tio
n m

ay
 be

 
im
pa
cte

d a
dv
ers

ely
 – 
aff
ec
tin
g 

ex
ist
ing

 SL
T, 

me
mb

ers
 an

d s
erv

ice
 

ma
na
ge
rs 

28
th
 October 2010

Se
nio

r 
Le
ad
ers

hip
 

Te
am

10/05/11

3
CR

9
b

If t
he
 H
igh

wa
ys
 Au

tho
rity

 is
 un

ab
le 

to 
su
pp
ort

 th
e t
raf

fic
 pr

op
os
als

 
wh

ich
 un

de
rpi
n t
he
 ci
vic

 pr
ide

 
sc
he
me

s t
he
n v

isio
n a

nd
 ou

tco
me

s 
wil
l n
ot 
be
 ac

hie
ve
d, 
an
d t
his

 w
ill 

im
pa
ct 
on
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 re
pu
tat
ion

 
an
d t
he
 fu
tur

e e
co
no
mi
c p

os
itio

n o
f 

the
 to
wn

.

Ta
sk
 

Fo
rce

 
Ma

na
gin g 

Dir
ec
tor

  
Je
rem

y 
W
illia

ms
on

01/04/10

4
4

16
Re

du ce
Ini
tia
l o
utp

uts
 pa

int
 a 
po
sit
ive

 im
pa
ct 
on
 th
e 

tow
n c

en
tre

 bu
t d
isb

en
efi
ts 
els

ew
he
re.

GC
C/
CB

C 
ha
ve
 ag

ree
d p

rep
ara

tio
n o

f a
 

mi
tig
ati
on
 st
rat

eg
y b

y e
nd
 of
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
11
 

wh
ich

 w
ill a

lso
 re

fle
ct 
im
pa
ct 
of 
CS

R.

Ju
ne
/Ju

ly 
20
10

Mi
tig
ati
on
 

str
ate

gy
 

ori
gin

al 
de
ad
line

 
Ja
nu
ary

 20
11
 

rev
ise

d t
o 

Ma
rch

 20
11

Gr
ee
n

Ta
sk
 Fo

rce
  

Ma
na
gin

g 
Dir

ec
tor

  

Je
rem

y 
W
illia

ms
on

GC
C 
ha
ve
 su

bm
itte

d L
oc
al 
Su

sta
ina

ble
 tra

ns
po
rt F

un
d b

id 
to 
De

pt 
of 

Tra
ns
po
rt w

ith
 su

pp
ort

ing
 le
tte
rs 
fro

m 
CB

c, 
Ta

sk
 Fo

rce
, C

ha
mb

er 
an
d 

Br
ew

ery
. O

utc
om

e p
red

ict
ed
 by

 en
d o

f J
un
e 2

01
1

06 05 11

16

Page 160



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

4
CR

3
3

If t
he
 co

un
cil 

do
es
 no

t k
ee
p t
he
 

mo
me

ntu
m 

go
ing

 w
ith
 re

ga
rds

 to
 

the
 JC

S t
he
n t
he
 po

licy
 va

cu
um

 le
ft 

by
 th
e a

bo
litio

n o
f th

e R
SS

 an
d t
he
 

res
ult
an
t d
ela

y in
 pr

oje
cti
on
s a

nd
 

fra
me

wo
rk 
co
uld

 re
su
lt i
n 

ina
pp
rop

ria
te 
de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 

CE
X  

An
dre

w 
No

rth

10.08.10

4
4

16
Re

du ce
Ag

ree
me

nt 
ac
ros

s G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire
 di
str
ict
s t
o 

wo
rk 
co
llab

ora
tiv
ely

 on
 de

ter
mi
nin

g h
ou
sin

g 
an
d e

mp
loy

me
nt 
pro

jec
tio
ns
 by

 th
e e

nd
 of
 th
e 

ye
ar.

Re
vis

ed
 tim

eta
ble

 fo
r J
CS

 co
ns
ide

red
 an

d 
ag
ree

d b
y  
MS

G 
Ap

ril 
20
11
.

Co
un
ty 
Co

un
cil 

Ho
us
ing

 pr
oje

cti
on
s w

ork
 

pu
blis

he
d M

ay
 20

11
.

Ec
on
om

etr
ic 
Ho

us
ing

 M
od
el 
- w

ork
 

pro
gre

ss
ing

 an
d o

n t
arg

et 
to 
de
live

r J
uly

 20
11

01
/04

/13
Gr
ee
n

Sp
ati
al 

pla
nn
ing

 
ma

na
ge
r –

 
Tra

ce
y 

Cr
ew

s

Re
vie

w 
of 
all 

pro
gra

mm
e a

cti
vit
ies

 un
de
rw
ay
.

Th
e c

on
tra

ct 
to 
de
live

r e
co
no
me

tric
 ho

us
ing

 m
od
el 
sig

ne
d f
irs
t o
utp

uts
 

ex
pe
cte

d M
arc

h 2
01
1

Me
mb

ers
 st
ee
rin
g g

rou
p c

on
sid

eri
ng
 w
ay
s i
n w

hic
h t
im
eta

ble
 fo
r J
CS

 ca
n 

be
 ad

va
nc
ed
.

08/04/11

5
CR

3
4 a

If t
he
 co

un
cil 

do
es
 no

t h
av
e r

ob
us
t 

tes
tin
g o

f it
s b

us
ine

ss
 co

nti
nu
ity 

pla
ns
 th
en
 th
ere

 is
 a 
ris
k t
ha
t th

ey
 

ma
y n

ot 
be
 ef
fec

tiv
e 

Ex
ec
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Gr
ah
am

e 
Le
wis

05.07.10

4
4

16
Re

du ce
De

sk
 to
p r

ec
ov
ery

 te
st 
ba
se
d o

n w
ors

t c
as
e 

sc
en
ari
o i
.e.
 m

un
icip

al 
off
ice

s o
ut 
of 
ac
tio
n

01
/12

/20
10

01
/09

/20
11

Gr
ee
n

Ex
ec
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Gr
ah
am

e 
Le
wis

De
sk
 to
p e

xe
rci
se
 un

de
rta

ke
n a

nd
 BC

P a
re 

be
ing

 re
vis

ed
 in
 lig

ht 
of 
thi
s 

tes
t.

Pla
nn
ed
 te
sti
ng
 of
 de

po
t b
ac
k u

p a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
wil
l n
ee
d t
o b

e o
rga

nis
ed
 

in 
ne
w 
ye
ar

07/01/11

05.07.10

Th
is 
ris
k h

as
 be

en
 sp

lit 
to 
allo

w 
for

 on
 go

ing
 re

sili
en
ce
 te
sti
ng
 of
 BC

P w
ith
 

a n
ew

 de
ad
line

 of
 01

/09
/20

11

07/01/11

6
CR

3
4 b

If t
he
 co

un
cil 

do
es
 no

t h
av
e r

ob
us
t 

tes
tin
g o

f it
s b

us
ine

ss
 co

nti
nu
ity 

pla
ns
 th
en
 th
ere

 is
 a 
ris
k t
ha
t th

ey
 

ma
y n

ot 
be
 ef
fec

tiv
e 

Ex
ec
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Gr
ah
am

e 
Le
wis

05.07.10

4
4

16
Re

du ce
Tw

o s
tor

ag
e a

rea
 ne

tw
ork

s t
o b

e p
urc

ha
se
d 

for
 re

al 
tim

e b
ac
ku
ps
 of
 IC

T d
ata

, a
nd
 

pu
rch

as
e o

f a
dd
itio

na
l U

PS
 ba

tte
ry 
su
pp
ly f

or 
the

 m
un
icip

al 
off
ice

s.

Fu
ll t
es
t w

ith
 de

po
t a
s s

tan
d b

y s
ite
 to
 be

 
tes

ted

01
/07

/11
Am

be
r

IC
T 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Ma

na
ge
r 

Pa
ul 

W
oo
lco

ck

Pla
nn
ed
 te
sti
ng
 of
 de

po
t b
ac
k u

p a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
wil
l n
ee
d t
o b

e o
rga

nis
ed
 

in 
ne
w 
ye
ar/

Ins
tal
lat
ion

 of
 eq

uip
me

nt 
an
d s

oft
wa

re 
is 
co
mp

let
e. 
 Th

e 
rec

en
tly 

im
ple

me
nte

d i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

wil
l s
up
po
rt 2

5 k
ey
 sy

ste
ms

 (th
is 

fig
ure

 ca
n g

row
 to
 m

ee
t b
us
ine

ss
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
). T

he
 co

un
cil 

ha
s a

 
bu
sin

es
s c

on
tin
uit
y p

lan
 th
at 
co
ve
rs 
a w

ide
 ra

ng
e o

f b
us
ine

ss
 sy

ste
ms

 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e n

ee
d f
or 

an
 ef
fec

tiv
e I
CT

 ba
ck
 up

 sy
ste

m 
at 
the

 de
po
t.  

 Th
e 

co
un
cil 

is 
cu
rre

ntl
y u

pg
rad

ing
 its

 ba
ck
 up

 sy
ste

ms
 ha

vin
g i
ns
tal
led

 ne
w 

eq
uip

me
nt 
an
d w

ork
 is
 pr

og
res

sin
g t

o m
igr
ate

 th
e k

ey
 bu

sin
es
s s

ys
tem

s. 
 

On
ce
 fu
lly 

op
era

tio
na
l th

e c
ou
nc
il w

ill b
e i
n a

 po
sit
ion

 to
 un

de
rta

ke
 a 
ful
l 

tes
t a
nd
 th
e t
arg

et 
da
te 
for

 ca
rry

ing
 ou

t a
 ro

bu
st 
tes

t fo
r th

is 
ba
ck
-up

 
sy
ste

m 
is 
Mi
d M

ay
 20

11
. T

he
 ou

tco
me

 fo
r th

is 
tes

t w
ill p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

to 
SL

T t
ha
t it
s b

ac
k-u

p s
ys
tem

s a
re 

eff
ec
tiv
e.

03/03/11

16

Page 161



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

7
CR

3
5

If t
he
 cu

rre
nt 
pu
blic

 se
rvi
ce
 

pro
po
se
d b

ud
ge
t c
uts

  m
ea
n t
ha
t 

the
 co

un
ty 
co
un
cil 

are
 un

ab
le 
to 

fun
d a

nd
 pr

ov
ide

 of
fic
er 

res
ou
rce

 
for

 st
rat

eg
ic 
inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
pla

nn
ing

 
ph
as
e 3

 th
en
 th
e J

CS
 w
ill n

ot 
be
 

su
pp
ort

ed
 by

 ro
bu
st 
ev
ide

nc
e w

hic
h 

ma
y le

ad
 to
 in
ap
pro

pri
ate

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

CE
X  

An
dre

w 
No

rth

10.08.10

4
4

16
Re

du ce
Ch

air
 of
 th
e c

ros
s b

ou
nd
ary

 m
em

be
r s
tee

rin
g 

gro
up
 to
 w
rite

 to
 G
CC

 w
ith
 co

nc
ern

s.

 G
CC

 co
nti
nu
e a

s m
em

be
rs 
of 
the

 cr
os
s 

bo
un
da
ry 
pro

gra
mm

e b
oa
rd 

an
d m

em
be
r 

ste
eri
ng
 gr

ou
p a

nd
 th
ere

for
e u

nd
ers

tan
d 

req
uir
em

en
ts

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
co
mm

un
ity 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
lev

y 
sc
he
me

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

e J
CS

 w
ill d

em
on
str
ate

 
req

uir
em

en
t fo

r e
ffe
cti
ve
 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
pla

nn
ing

Re
vie

w 
po
sit
ion

 
01
/06

/20
11

Am
be
r

Sp
ati
al 

pla
nn
ing

 
ma

na
ge
r –

 
Tra

ce
y 

Cr
ew

s

Ve
rba

l c
on
firm

ati
on
 th
at 
the

 C
ou
nty

 w
ill h

av
e d

iffi
cu
lty 

in 
su
pp
ort

ing
 th
e 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
of 
the

 JC
S s

tra
teg

y s
taf
f c
uts

.

Aw
ait
ing

 co
nfi
rm

ati
on
 th
at 
SID

P s
up
po
rt c

an
 be

 of
fer

ed
 fro

m 
the

 C
ou
nty

 
un
til 
Ju
ne
 20

11
.

JC
S P

M 
to 
ex
plo

re 
the

 co
st 
im
plic

ati
on
s o

f b
rin
gin

g i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

pla
nn
ing

 
in-
ho
us
e p

os
t J
un
e 1

1 a
nd
 de

ve
lop

 a 
JD

/pe
rso

n s
pe
cif
ica

tio
n. 

11/05/11

8
CR

4
5

If s
ite
s i
de
nti
fie
d w

ith
in 
for

me
r C

ivic
 

pri
de
 pr

og
ram

me
 do

 no
t g

en
era

te 
su
ffic

ien
t n
et 
rec

eip
ts 
the

n t
he
 w
ide

r 
as
pir
ati
on
s e

.g.
 pu

blic
 re

alm
 w
ill n

ot 
be
 de

live
rab

le

AN
/JW

21 07 10

4
4

16
It m

ay
 be

 po
ss
ible

 to
 ut
ilis

e r
ec
eip

ts 
fro

m 
oth

er 
no
n C

ivic
 Pr

ide
 si
tes

 e.
g. 

Mi
dw

int
ers

 if 
ne
ce
ss
ary

. E
ffe
cti
ve
 so

ft m
ark

et 
tes

tin
g 

su
gg
es
ts 
op
tim

ism
 ov

er 
ne
t re

ce
ipt
s. 
Th

ere
 is
 

a n
ee
d t
o d

e-r
isk

 by
 ea

rly
 id
en
tifi
ca
tio
n o

f 
iss

ue
s r
ela

tin
g t

o l
eg
al 
titl
e, 
arc

ha
eo
log

y o
r th

e 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
to 
mi
nim

ise
 de

lay
.

Fe
bru

ary
 

20
12
 - 

fin
an
cia

l 
clo

se
 on

 
No

rth
 Pl

ac
e

Gr
ee
n

Ta
sk
 Fo

rce
 

Ma
na
gin

g 
Dir

ec
tor

  
Je
rem

y 
W
illia

ms
on

5 s
ho
rt l
ist
ed
 bi
dd
ers

 id
en
tifi
ed
 an

d i
nv
ite
d t
o p

roc
ee
d t
o n

ex
t (O

utl
ine

 
so
lut
ion

) s
tag

e. 
All
 ha

ve
 so

un
d f
ina

nc
ial 

co
ve
na
nts

 an
d t
rac

k r
ec
ord

 in
 

de
live

rin
g s

im
ilar

 sc
he
me

s.

06 05 11

9
CR

5
2

If t
he
 W

as
te 
Pr
oje

ct 
be
tw
ee
n s

om
e 

of 
the

 G
O 
pa
rtn

ers
 ha

s s
ign

ific
an
t 

eff
ec
ts 
on
 th
e G

O 
pro

gra
mm

e f
rom

 
bo
th 
a G

ov
ern

an
ce
 an

d o
pe
rat

ion
al 

pe
rsp

ec
tiv
e, 
de
live

ry 
of 
the

 G
O 

Pr
og
ram

me
 m

ay
 be

 ad
ve
rse

ly 
im
pa
cte

d. 

Ex
ec
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Gr
ah
am

e 
Le
wis

10/05/11

4
5

20
Re

du ce
Mi
tig
ati
ng
 ac

tio
ns
 - a

 se
t o
f fa

ct 
fin
din

g t
as
ks
 

ha
s b

ee
n i
nit
iat
ed
, in

clu
din

g a
 m

ee
tin
g h

eld
 on

 
3rd

 M
ay
, c
ov
eri
ng
 le
ga
l, f
ina

nc
e, 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
, g

ov
ern

an
ce
, a
nd
 hu

ma
n 

res
ou
rce

s i
ss
ue
s a

s r
ela

ted
 to
 th
e G

O 
Pr
og
ram

me
.  

Am
be
r

Dir
ec
tor

 of
 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

W
ork

 ha
s b

ee
n u

nd
ert

ak
en
 to
 de

ter
mi
ne
 th
e i
nte

rre
lat
ion

sh
ip 
be
tw
ee
n t
he
 

GO
 pr

og
ram

me
 an

d E
RP

 bu
ild 

an
d t
he
 w
as
te 
pro

jec
t to

 en
su
re 

tha
t th

e 
im
plic

ati
on
s o

f b
oth

 ar
e u

nd
ers

too
d a

nd
 ar

e a
dd
res

se
d i
n t
he
 re

po
rts
 to
 be

 
co
ns
ide

red
 by

 th
e C

ab
ine

t a
nd
 C
ou
nc
il in

 Ju
ne
 / J

uly
 20

11
.

10/05/11

16

Page 162



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

10
CR

5
6

Du
e t
o f
ina

nc
ial 

co
ns
tra

int
s t
he
 G
O 

Pr
og
ram

me
 do

es
 no

t h
av
e a

 
se
pa
rat

e b
us
ine

ss
 ch

an
ge
 m

an
ag
er 

rol
e, 
an
d i
f th

e n
ec
es
sa
ry 
ch
an
ge
 

bo
th 
wit

hin
 th
e r

eta
ine

d o
rga

nis
ati
on
 

an
d i
ns
ide

 th
e s

ha
red

 se
rvi
ce
 do

es
 

no
t ta

ke
 pl
ac
e t
o t
he
 re

qu
ire
d l
ev
el,
 

sa
vin

gs
 m

ay
 be

 co
mp

rom
ise

d. 
 

Th
is 
wa

s l
og
ge
d a

s a
 ris

k i
n A

ug
us
t 

20
10
, h
ow

ev
er 

on
 20

th 
Ap

ril 
20
11
 

the
  G

O 
Pr
og
ram

me
 Bo

ard
 to
ok
 a 

de
cis

ion
 to
 in
cre

as
e t
he
 ris

k r
ati
ng
. 

Ex
ec
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Gr
ah
am

e 
Le
wis

10/05/11

3
4

12
Re

du ce
Mi
tig
ati
ng
 ac

tio
ns
 - G

O 
Pr
og
ram

me
 M
an
ag
er 

to 
ma

int
ain

 a 
clo

se
 w
atc

hin
g b

rie
f o
f b
us
ine

ss
 

ch
an
ge
 ta
sk
s. 
Ris

k l
ev
el 
rai
se
d a

s a
cti
on
 w
as
 

fel
t in

su
ffic

ien
t fo

r th
e t
as
k. 
Ot
he
r p

os
sib

le 
ac
tio
ns
 be

ing
 co

ns
ide

red
. C

BC
 to
 co

ns
ide

r 
fun

din
g b

id 
for

 bu
sin

es
s c

ha
ng
e c

ap
ac
ity.

 C
BC

 
loc

al 
GO

 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n p

roj
ec
t (P

roj
ec
t 

GO
PK

) to
 co

mm
en
ce
 Ju

ly 2
01
1. 
Fu
rth

er 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 
CB

C 
ca
pa
cit
y r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
to 

tak
e p

lac
e a

s p
art

 of
 G
OP

K. 

01
/09

/11
Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 
Or
g 

De
v &

 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

Go
 Pr

og
ram

me
 ha

s m
ain

tai
ne
d a

 w
atc

hin
g b

rie
f, a

nd
 re

ce
nt 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

Bo
ard

 ra
ise

d r
isk

 le
ve
l s
uff
icie

nt 
to 
bri
ng
 to
 lo
ca
l ri
sk
 re

gis
ter

. A
t C

BC
, a
 

fun
din

g b
id 
ha
s b

ee
n s

ub
mi
tte
d f
or 

bu
sin

es
s c

ha
ng
e c

ap
ac
ity.

  

10/05/11

11
CR

5
3

Re
so
urc

ing
 :  

If a
va
ilab

ility
 of
 cr
itic

al 
res

ou
rce

s d
uri
ng
 th
e G

O 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n a

nd
 po

st 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n p

eri
od
 - t

he
n 

off
ice

rs 
inv

olv
ed
 in
 pr

oje
ct 
ma

y b
e 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 

Or
g D

ev
 

& 
Ch

an
ge

19/04/11

3
5

15
Re

du ce
Mi
tig
ati
ng
 ac

tio
ns
:  P

roj
ec
t s
tru

ctu
re 

an
d 

rep
ort

ing
 de

fin
es
 re

so
urc

e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
an
d 

wil
l h
igh

lig
ht 
an
y is

su
es
. L
oc
al 
GO

 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n p

roj
ec
t d
ue
 to
 co

mm
en
ce
 Ju

ly 
20
11
 (G

OP
K)
. 

01
/03

/12
Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 
Or
g 

De
v &

 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

UP
DA

TE
 R
isk

 sc
ore

 ha
s b

ee
n i
nc
rea

se
d (

9/3
/11

) d
ue
 to
 lo
ca
l w

ork
loa

d i
n 

mo
st 
pa
rtn

ers
 in
cre

as
ing

 du
e t
o f
ac
tor

s e
xte

rna
l to

 th
e p

rog
ram

me
 bu

t 
ha
vin

g t
he
 sa

me
 ne

t e
ffe
ct 
as
 or

igi
na
l ri
sk
. S

itu
ati
on
 w
ill c

on
tin
ue
 to
 be

 
mo

nit
ore

d c
los

ely
 by

 Pr
og
ram

me
 Bo

ard
. S

itu
ati
on
 w
ill n

ee
d t
o b

e 
mo

nit
ore

d b
y C

BC
 as

 pa
rt o

f lo
ca
l im

ple
me

nta
tio
n. 
CB

C 
to 
ap
po
int
 

10/05/11

off
ice

rs 
inv

olv
ed
 in
 pr

oje
ct 
ma

y b
e 

un
ab
le 
to 
pro

vid
e d

ay
 to
 da

y 
de
live

ry 
of 
se
rvi
ce
 to
 th
eir
 au

tho
rity

. 

Ch
an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

19/04/11

20
11
 (G

OP
K)
. 

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

mo
nit
ore

d b
y C

BC
 as

 pa
rt o

f lo
ca
l im

ple
me

nta
tio
n. 
CB

C 
to 
ap
po
int
 

sp
on
so
r fo

r lo
ca
l im

ple
me

nta
tio
n p

roj
ec
t - 

fro
m 

Ju
ly 2

01
1, 
an
d c

rea
te 
loc

al 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n p

roj
ec
t te

am
.  L

oc
al 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n p

roj
ec
t to

 en
su
re 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 
ca
pa
cit
y /
 re

so
urc

e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
as
 pe

r p
rog

ram
me

 pl
an
, 

an
d m

ak
e r

es
ou
rce

 av
aila

ble
. 

10/05/11

12
CR

4
4

If C
BC

 do
 no

t c
om

ple
te 
the

 PC
I s
elf
 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
an
d i
de
nti
fy 
all 

of 
the

 
ris
k t
he
n t
he
re 

is 
a r

isk
 th
at 
the

re 
co
uld

 be
 a 
bre

ac
h i
n s

ec
uri
ty 
an
d 

su
bs
eq
ue
nt 
fin
es
 fro

m 
the

 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

er

Dir
ec
tor

 
of 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

23/02/11

5
3

15
Re

du ce
Ca

rry
 ou

t s
elf
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
to 
en
su
re 

co
mp

lian
ce
 w
ith
 PC

I s
tan

da
rd

31
/03

/12
Am

be
r

IC
T 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Ma

na
ge
r 

Pa
ul 

W
oo
lco

ck

An
 au

dit
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
ha
s b

ee
n c

arr
ied

 ou
t to

 as
ce
rta

in 
a n

um
be
r o

f q
uic

k 
fix
es
 th
es
e w

ill b
e r

ela
ye
d t
o S

erv
ice

 M
an
ag
ers

. W
ork

sh
op
 ar

ran
ge
d f
or 

08
/04

/20
11
 to
 co

ns
ide

r s
elf
 as

se
ss
me

nt.
W
ork

sh
op
 re

vie
we

d s
elf
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
do
cu
me

nt 
an
d m

ee
tin
g h

as
 be

en
 

arr
an
ge
d w

ith
 ba

nk
 re

pre
se
nta

tiv
e 1

3th
 M
ay

11/05/11

16

Page 163



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

13
CR

4
0

If P
art

ne
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s a

re 
no
t 

su
ffic

ien
tly 

‘bo
ug
ht 
int
o’ 
the

 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 pr

oc
es
s t
he
n t
he
re 

is 
a r

isk
 th
at 
the

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

wo
rk 
wil
l b
e d

on
e i
n i
so
lat
ion

 an
d 

po
ten

tia
l s
av
ing

s a
nd
 ef
fec

tiv
e 

de
live

ry 
of 
ou
tco

me
s w

ill b
e 

red
uc
ed
.

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
v

e A
nd
rew

 
No

rth

28
th
 October 2010

4
3

12
Re

du ce
Eff

ec
tiv
e e

ng
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 th
e V

CS
 fo
rum

, 
plu

s o
the

r p
art

ne
rs 
thr

ou
gh
 C
SP

 an
d t
he
ma

tic
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s. 
Th

e o
bje

cti
ve
 of
 ‘p
lac

e b
as
ed
’ 

pro
jec

t is
 to
 en

ga
ge
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d c

rea
te 

alig
nm

en
t. E

ns
ure

 th
at 
joi
nt 
fun

din
g i
s s

ub
jec

t 
to 
us
e o

f p
rop

er 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 di
sc
ipli

ne
s. 

Co
nti
nu
ing

 to
 

Oc
tob

er 
20
12

Gr
ee
n

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s M
an
ag
er 

Ric
ha
rd 

Gi
bs
on

£1
0k
 pa

 ag
ree

d i
n b

ud
ge
t to

 ex
ten

d c
urr

en
t C

IG
 w
ith
 C
he
lt V

CA
. P

os
itiv

e 
me

eti
ng
s h

eld
 to
 ta
ke
 fo
rw
ard

 th
e p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pro

jec
t w

ith
 

Ins
titu

te 
for

 Vo
lun

tar
y A

cti
on
 R
es
ea
rch

 an
d p

rog
ram

me
 of
 3 
se
ss
ion

s 
co
mp

let
ed
. A

cti
on
 pl
an
 an

d n
ew

 st
ruc

tur
es
 pr

op
os
ed
 an

d w
ill b

e t
ak
en
 

for
wa

rd.
 

10/05/11

14
CR

2
7

Ice
lan

dic
 ba

nk
s -
 fin

an
cia

l e
xp
os
ure

 

If t
he
 gr

ou
p c

laim
 ag

ain
st 
Gl
itn
ir 

ba
nk
 fa
ils 

an
d t
he
 co

un
cil 

is 
no
t 

rec
og
nis

ed
 as

 a 
‘pr
ior
ity 

de
po
sit
or’
 

the
 co

un
cil’

s d
ep
os
its
  w

ou
ld 
be
 re

-
cla

ss
ifie

d a
s  
‘ge

ne
ral
 un

se
cu
red

 
cre

dit
ors

’ re
su
ltin

g i
n a

 lo
we

r 
rec

ov
ery

 ra
te 
an
d e

xp
os
ure

 to
 

de
fen

da
nts

 co
sts

.

Dir
ec
tor

 
of 

Re
so
urc

es Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on

09/04/10

4
3

12
Ac

ce
p

t
Co

un
cil 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 jo
in 
in 
gro

up
 ac

tio
n 

wit
h o

the
r c
ou
nc
ils 

to 
ma

ke
 ca

se
 fo
r p

rio
rity

 
de
po
sit
or 

sta
tus

.

Ca
pit
alis

ati
on
 di
rec

tio
n a

pp
rov

ed
 fo
r £

4.4
3m

 
allo

ws
 fo
r w

rite
 of
f o
f lo

ss
 ov

er 
20
 ye

ars
.

01
/03

/11
Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 of
 

Re
so
urc

es

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on

In 
Ap

ril 
20
11
, th

e I
ce
lan

dic
 D
ist
ric
t C

ou
rt j

ud
ge
d t
ha
t U

K l
oc
al 
au
tho

riti
es
 

de
po
sit
s a

re 
rec

og
nis

ed
 as

 ha
vin

g p
rio
rity

 st
atu

s o
ve
r o

the
r c
red

ito
rs’
 

cla
im
s a

nd
 w
ill b

e a
t th

e f
ron

t o
f th

e q
ue
ue
 w
he
n i
t c
om

es
 to
 ge

ttin
g t

he
ir 

mo
ne
y b

ac
k f
ollo

win
g t

he
 co

llap
se
 of
 th
e f
aile

d I
ce
lan

dic
 ba

nk
s. 
Ho

we
ve
r 

thi
s d

ec
isio

n h
as
 be

en
 ap

pe
ale

d a
nd
 w
ill n

ow
 be

 co
ns
ide

red
 by

 th
e 

Ice
lan

dic
 su

pre
me

 co
urt

 in
 th
e a

utu
mn

 of
 20

11
.

07/01/11

15
CR

2
0

If k
no
wle

dg
e a

nd
 sk

ills
 ab

ou
t 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 ar

e n
ot 
de
ve
lop

ed
 

wit
hin

 th
e o

rga
niz

ati
on
, th

ere
 is
 a 

ris
k t
ha
t s
erv

ice
s w

ill n
ot 
be
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 or

 de
live

red
 in
 th
e 

rig
ht 
wa

y w
hic

h m
ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 

fle
xib

ility
 an

d/o
r c
os
ts.
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 

Or
g D

ev
 

& 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

25/02/10

3
4

12
Re

du ce
Ide

nti
fy 
res

ou
rce

 to
 de

live
r k
no
wle

dg
e a

nd
 

sk
ills

 ne
ed
s (
i.e
. in

 ho
us
e a

s e
xte

rna
l fu

nd
ing

 
un
like

ly)

Kn
ow

led
ge
 pr

og
ram

me
 fo
r re

lev
an
t 

off
ice

rs/
me

mb
ers

, s
kill

s f
or 

bu
sin

es
s, 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pro

gra
mm

e, 
de
ve
lop

ed
 an

d 
de
live

red
 du

rin
g 2

01
1/1

2.

SM
s 

En
d o

f M
ay

me
mb

ers
En

d o
f J
un
e

Am
be
r

HR
 

Ma
na
ge
r 

Le
arn

ing
 

an
d O

rg.
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Ja
n 

Br
idg

es

Me
mb

er 
rol
es
 ha

ve
 be

en
 id
en
tifi
ed
 an

d a
 sk

ills
 ga

p a
na
lys

is 
ca
n t
ak
e 

pla
ce
 w
ith
 in
div

idu
al 
me

mb
ers

. 

Ca
pa
cit
y F

un
din

g b
id 
ha
s b

ee
n s

ub
mi
tte
d f
or 

£2
0k
 to
 bu

y in
 tra

inin
g 

pro
vis

ion
. T

he
re 

are
 ar

ea
s o

f c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 in
 w
hic

h w
e h

av
e n

o e
xp
ert

s 
an
d w

ill n
ee
d t
o b

uy
 it 
in.
 Al

so
 it 
is 
 un

like
ly t

ha
t in

-ho
us
e e

xp
ert

s c
an
 

res
ou
rce

 al
l th

e t
rai
nin

g r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
be
ing

 id
en
tifi
ed
 th
rou

gh
 sk

ills
 ga

p 
an
aly

sis
.

10/05/11

16
CR

3
2

If t
he
 co

un
cil 

is 
un
ab
le 
to 
rea

lise
 th
e 

ca
pit
al 
va
lue

 of
 so

me
 of
 its

 as
se
ts 
it 

wil
l b
e u

na
ble

 to
 pr

og
res

s t
he
 ci
vic

 
pri
de
 pr

op
os
als

Ex
ec
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Gr
ah
am

e 
Le
wis

23/08/10

4
3

12
Re

du ce
Re

vis
ed
 su

pp
lem

en
tar

y p
lan

nin
g d

oc
um

en
t 

co
ns
ult
ed
 on

 fo
r N

ort
h P

lac
e, 
su
bje

ct 
to 
Fu
ll 

Co
un
cil 

ap
pro

va
l. P

rop
ert

y a
dv
iso

rs 
ap
po
int
ed
 

wit
h a

im
 of
 m

ark
eti
ng
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
11
.

Co
un
cil 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
10

Ja
n 2

01
1

Am
be
r

Ex
ec
uti
ve
 

dir
ec
tor

 
SP

D 
for

ma
lly 

ad
op
ted

 on
 13

.12
.10

 (F
ull 

Co
un
cil)

.  O
JE

U 
No

tic
e i
ss
ue
d 

24
.1.
11
 as

 pe
r ta

rge
t.  

5 b
idd

ers
 sh

ort
 lis

ted
 in
 lin

e w
ith
 pr

og
ram

me
.  

Ot
he
r a

ss
et 
dis

po
sa
ls 
pro

gre
ss
ing

 as
 pl
an
ne
d. 
 

06 05 11

16

Page 164



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

17
CR

3
6

If c
ha
ng
es
 to
 co

ntr
ac
tua

l 
allo

wa
nc
es
 ar

e m
ad
e o

uts
ide

 th
e 

co
llec

tiv
e b

arg
ain

ing
 pr

oc
es
s, 
the

re 
ma

y b
e l
oc
al 
ind

us
tria

l a
cti
on
, 

mo
ral
e a

nd
 m

oti
va
tio
n m

ay
 be

 
im
pa
cte

d. 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 

Or
g D

ev
 

& 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

30/09/10

4
3

12
Re

du ce
Se

ek
 to
 co

ns
ult
 an

d n
eg
oti
ate

 vi
a c

olle
cti
ve
 

ba
rga

inin
g. 

 C
om

mu
nic

ate
 an

d e
ng
ag
e 

em
plo

ye
es
 im

pa
cte

d r
e r

ea
so
ns
 fo
r c
ha
ng
e. 

En
su
re 

fol
low

 co
llec

tiv
e c

on
su
lta
tio
n 

reg
ula

tio
ns
 an

d g
ive

 re
qu
ire
d c

on
tra

ctu
al 

no
tic
e.

En
d M

arc
h 

20
12

Gr
ee
n

HR
 

Ma
na
ge
r 

Op
era

tio
ns
 

Ju
lie 

Mc
Ca

rth
y. 

Co
mm

en
ce
d d

isc
us
sio

n w
ith
 Tu

s a
t in

for
ma

l J
LF

 22
 09

 20
10
. P

ote
nti
al 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n t
im
eta

ble
 de

ve
lop

ed
. O

ng
oin

g d
isc

us
sio

ns
 at
 tw

o-w
ee
kly

 
TU

 m
ee
tin
gs
. 

Ris
k s

co
re 

am
en
de
d 9

 N
ov
em

be
r –

 lik
elih

oo
d r

ed
uc
ed
 fro

m 
5 a

s u
nlik

ely
 

to 
mo

ve
 fro

m 
co
llec

tiv
e b

arg
ain

ing
 an

d w
ork

ing
 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 un

ion
s. 
No

 
cu
rre

nt 
iss

ue
s e

nv
isa

ge
d t
o r

eq
uir
e a

 m
ov
e o

uts
ide

 C
oll 

Ba
rga

inin
g. 

 
Le
tte
r re

ce
ive

d f
rom

 U
nis

on
 re

 pr
oc
es
s f
or 

co
llec

tiv
e b

arg
ain

ing
 an

d 
ou
tlin

ing
 ne

ed
 fo
r re

gio
na
l / 
na
tio
na
l s
ign

 of
f. C

BC
 ha

s r
es
po
nd
ed
.  W

ill 
co
nti
nu
e t
o m

on
ito
r th

e p
os
itio

n. 

10/05/11

18
CR

1
2

If m
em

be
rs,
 se

nio
r m

an
ag
ers

 an
d 

em
plo

ye
es
 do

 no
t re

co
gn
ise

 th
eir
 

ob
lig
ati
on
s a

nd
 re

sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 fo
r 

he
alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y t
he
n t
he
re 

is 
a 

ris
k t
o t
he
 pu

blic
, c
us
tom

ers
 an

d 
em

plo
ye
es
 of
 in
jur
y a

nd
 th
e c

ou
nc
il 

co
uld

 fa
ce
 pr

os
ec
uti
on

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 

Or
g D

ev
 

& 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

01/02/10

4
3

12
Re

du ce
Int
rod

uc
tio
n o

f h
ea
lth
 an

d s
afe

ty 
au
dit
s i
nc
. 

ad
dre

ss
ing

 is
su
es
 in
 th
e i
nte

rna
l a
ud
it a

cti
on
 

pla
n 

Cr
ea
tio
n o

f a
 H
ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
str
ate

gy
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
a H

&S
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 fo
r 2

01
0-1

1 
(to

 in
clu

de
 aw

are
ne
ss
 tra

inin
g f

or 
ma

na
ge
rs 

an
d s

up
erv

iso
rs 
du
rin
g 2

01
0-1

1)
Ro

ll o
ut 
Ha

rrie
t R

isk
 M
an
ag
em

en
t s
oft
wa

re

01
/03

/20
11

As
 pe

r th
e 

ac
tio
n p

lan
 

co
ns
ide

red
 

by
 au

dit
 

co
mm

itte
e

Gr
ee
n

HR
 

Op
era

tio
ns
 

Ma
na
ge
r  

Ju
lie 

Mc
Ca

rth
y

H&
S s

tra
teg

y a
nd
 w
ork

 pl
an
 in
 pl
ac
e. 
Co

ns
ide

rin
g H

&S
 ca

pa
cit
y, 
an
d 

res
ou
rce

 al
loc

ati
on
 gi
ve
n s

ha
red

 m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f d
ep
ot 
se
rvi
ce
s, 
an
d 

HS
E i

ns
pe
cti
on
 la
ter

 in
 20

11
. H

as
 be

en
 de

ter
mi
ne
d n

ot 
to 
re-

ne
w 
lice

nc
e 

for
 H
arr

iet
 so

ftw
are

, h
ow

ev
er 

ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
ts 
wil
l c
on
tin
ue
 to
 be

 ca
rrie

d 
ou
t m

an
ua
lly.

 

10/05/11

Ro
ll o

ut 
Ha

rrie
t R

isk
 M
an
ag
em

en
t s
oft
wa

re
co
mm

itte
e

Ma
r 2

01
1

19
CR

2
1

Ar
t G

alle
ry 
an
d M

us
eu
m 

If t
he
 Ar

t G
alle

ry 
an
d M

us
eu
m 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Tru

st 
fai
ls 
to 
de
live

r 
the

 fu
nd
rai
sin

g s
tra

teg
y, 
the

n t
he
 

AG
&M

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t S

ch
em

e i
s a

t 
ris
k o

f fa
ilin

g t
o b

e d
eliv

ere
d. 
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
W
ellb

ein
g &

 
Cu

ltu
re

01/06/07

3
4

12
Re

du ce
A f

un
dra

isin
g r

isk
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
ha
s b

ee
n 

inc
orp

ora
ted

 in
to 
all 

fun
din

g\g
ran

t a
pp
lica

tio
ns
 

su
bm

itte
d t
o d

ate
. A

n u
pd
ate

d f
un
dra

isin
g 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
wil
l b
e r

eq
uir
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

He
rita

ge
 Lo

tte
ry 
Fu
nd
 St

ag
e 2

 ap
plic

ati
on
.

01
\08

\12
Gr
ee
n

Mu
se
um

 
an
d A

rts
 

Ma
na
ge
r  

Ja
ne
 

Lill
ys
ton

e

Co
ntr

ac
tor

s a
re 

du
e o

n s
ite
 fro

m 
the

 be
gin

nin
g o

f J
uly

 20
11
. T

he
 

rem
ain

ing
 sh

ort
fal
l o
f £
91
9,5

87
 w
ill b

e r
ais

ed
 th
rou

gh
 fu
rth

er 
fun

dra
isin

g 
by
 th
e C

AG
&M

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t T

rus
t a
nd
 th
e F

rie
nd
s f
o C

AG
&M

 an
d t
he
 

lau
nc
h o

f a
 pu

blic
 fu
nd
rai
sin

g c
am

pa
ign

 - w
hic

h w
ill s

tar
t fr

om
 th
e e

nd
 of
 

Ma
y 2

01
1.A

 ne
w 
fun

dra
isin

g d
ea
dlin

e d
ate

 of
 Au

gu
st 
20
12
 ha

s b
ee
n s

et 
for

 th
e r

em
ain

ing
 £9

19
k s

ho
rtfa

ll. 
Th

e P
ha
se
 III

 Fu
nd
rai
sin

g S
tra

teg
y w

ill 
be
 la
un
ch
ed
 on

 25
 M
ay
 20

11
 w
ith
 th
e a

im
 to
 ha

ve
 ra

ise
d t
he
 £9

19
k 

sh
ort

fal
l b
y t
he
 en

d o
f th

e b
uild

 & 
co
ns
tru

cti
on
 st
ag
e o

f th
e p

roj
ec
t, p

rio
r to

 
the

 co
mm

en
ce
me

nt 
of 
fit 
ou
t.  

10\05\11

16

Page 165



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

20
CR

2
2 

Ar
t G

alle
ry 
& M

us
eu
m.

 If 
the

 AG
&M

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
Sc

he
me

 is
 no

t 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 pr
oje

ct 
ma

na
ge
d t
he
re 

is 
a r

isk
 of
 th
e s

ch
em

e f
aili

ng
 to
 be

 
de
live

red
 w
ith
in 
the

 ca
pit
al 
bu
dg
et.

It i
s a

lso
 vi
tal
 th
at 
the

 lo
ng
er 

ter
m 

rev
en
ue
 im

plic
ati
on
s r
ela

tin
g t

o 
ma

int
en
an
ce
 an

d r
un
nin

g c
os
ts 
are

 
rec

og
nis

ed
 w
ith
in 
the

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 

an
d s

ub
jec

t to
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 w
ith
in 
the

 M
TF

S.

Dir
ec
tor

 
W
ellb

ein
g &

 
Cu

ltu
re

01/06/07

3
4

12
Re

du ce
Pr
inc

e I
I p
roj
ec
t m

an
ag
em

en
t c
on
tro

ls 
to 
be
 

pu
t in

 pl
ac
e f
or 

bu
ildi

ng
 co

ns
tru

cti
on
 ph

as
e. 
 

Pr
ov
isio

n h
as
 be

en
 m

ad
e w

ith
 th
e 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Sc

he
me

s b
ud
ge
t fo

r 
ap
po
int
me

nt 
of 
a d

ed
ica

ted
 pr

oje
ct 
ma

na
ge
r 

for
 th
e s

ch
em

e, 
ba
se
d o

n s
im
ilar

 
ap
po
int
me

nts
 to
 pr

ev
iou

s c
ap
ita
l in

ve
stm

en
t 

bu
ild 

pro
jec

ts 
: R

ed
ev
elo

pm
en
t C

he
lte
nh
am

 
Re

cre
ati
on
 C
en
tre

 Le
isu

re@
 (2

00
4-6

) &
  

Le
isu

re@
 Fl
oo
d R

ein
sta

tem
en
t P

roj
ec
t (2

00
7-

8)

01
\09

\11
Gr
ee
n

Mu
se
um

 
an
d A

rts
 

Ma
na
ge
r  

Ja
ne
 

Lill
ys
ton

e

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
for

 th
e P

roj
ec
t M

an
ag
er 

wil
l n
ow

 co
inc

ide
 w
ith
 th
e 

su
bm

iss
ion

 of
 th
e H

LF
 St

ag
e I
I b
id 
in 
No

ve
mb

er 
an
d a

 re
vis

ed
 fu
nd
ing

 
str
ate

gy
. D

ea
dlin

e r
ev
ise

d t
o M

arc
h 2

01
1 f
ollo

win
g c

ab
ine

t a
pp
rov

al 
for

 
pro

jec
t m

an
ag
er.

 Fo
llow

ing
 th
e s

uc
ce
ss
ful
 H
LF

 ap
plic

ati
on
 te
nd
eri
ng
 fo
r 

the
 ap

po
int
me

nt 
of 
the

 bu
ildi

ng
 co

ntr
ac
tor

 co
mm

en
ce
d w

ith
 th
e 

ap
po
int
me

nt 
sc
he
du
led

 to
 be

 m
ad
e w

\c 
30
\5\
11
, w

hic
h w

ill c
oin

cid
e w

ith
 

the
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 
of 
a p

roj
ec
t m

an
ag
er 

an
d \
or 

cle
rk 
of 
wo

rks

10\05\11

21
CR

2
8

Ice
lan

dic
 ba

nk
s -
 fin

an
cia

l e
xp
os
ure

 

If t
he
 cu

rre
nt 
sta

tus
 as

 pr
ior
ity 

de
po
sit
s w

ith
 Ll
an
ds
ba
nk
i b
an
k i
s 

su
cc
es
sfu

lly 
ch
alle

ng
ed
, th

e 
co
un
cil’

s d
ep
os
its
 w
ou
ld 
be
 re

-

Dir
ec
tor

 
of 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

4
3

12
Ac

ce
p

t
Co

un
cil 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 jo
in 
in 
gro

up
 ac

tio
n 

wit
h o

the
r c
ou
nc
ils 

to 
de
fen

d c
urr

en
t p
rio
rity

 
de
po
sit
or 

sta
tus

.

01
/03

/11
Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 of
 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

In 
Ap

ril 
20
11
, th

e I
ce
lan

dic
 D
ist
ric
t C

ou
rt j

ud
ge
d t
ha
t U

K l
oc
al 
au
tho

riti
es
 

de
po
sit
s a

re 
rec

og
nis

ed
 as

 ha
vin

g p
rio
rity

 st
atu

s o
ve
r o

the
r c
red

ito
rs’
 

cla
im
s a

nd
 w
ill b

e a
t th

e f
ron

t o
f th

e q
ue
ue
 w
he
n i
t c
om

es
 to
 ge

ttin
g t

he
ir 

mo
ne
y b

ac
k f
ollo

win
g t

he
 co

llap
se
 of
 th
e f
aile

d I
ce
lan

dic
 ba

nk
s. 
Ho

we
ve
r 

thi
s d

ec
isio

n h
as
 be

en
 ap

pe
ale

d a
nd
 w
ill n

ow
 be

 co
ns
ide

red
 by

 th
e 

Ice
lan

dic
 su

pre
me

 co
urt

 in
 th
e a

utu
mn

 of
 20

11
.

co
un
cil’

s d
ep
os
its
 w
ou
ld 
be
 re

-
cla

ss
ifie

d a
s ‘
ge
ne
ral
 un

se
cu
red

 
cre

dit
ors

’ re
su
ltin

g i
n a

 lo
we

r 
rec

ov
ery

 ra
te 
an
d e

xp
os
ure

 to
 

cla
im
an
t c
os
ts 
an
d i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 

MT
FS

 ov
er 

tha
t a
lre
ad
y f
ac
tor

ed
 in
 

thr
ou
gh
 ca

pit
alis

ati
on
 of
 lo
ss
es
.

Sh
eld

on

09/04/10

Ice
lan

dic
 su

pre
me

 co
urt

 in
 th
e a

utu
mn

 of
 20

11
.

07/01/11

22
CR

3
If t

he
 co

un
cil 

is 
un
ab
le 
to 
co
me

 up
 

wit
h l
on
g t

erm
 so

lut
ion

s w
hic

h 
bri
dg
e t
he
 ga

p i
n t
he
 m

ed
ium

 te
rm

 
fin
an
cia

l s
tra

teg
y t
he
n i
t w

ill f
ind

 it 
inc

rea
sin

gly
 di
ffic

ult
 to
 pr

ep
are

 
bu
dg
ets

 ye
ar 

on
 ye

ar 
wit

ho
ut 

ma
kin

g u
np
lan

ne
d c

uts
 in
 se

rvi
ce
 

pro
vis

ion

Dir
ec
tor

 
of 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

26/01/10

3
4

12
Re

du ce
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
the

 Bt
G 
pro

gra
mm

e.
Es

tab
lish

me
nt 
of 
a c

ros
s p

art
y w

ork
ing

 gr
ou
p 

fol
low

ing
 th
e e

lec
tio
ns
 in
 M
ay
. R

ev
iew

 bu
dg
et 

sc
rut

iny
 pr

oc
es
s. 
Re

vie
w 
an
d r

olle
d o

ut 
rev

ise
d b

ud
ge
t c
on
su
lta
tio
n p

roc
es
s  
SL

T 
pre

se
nta

tio
n o

f n
ew

 id
ea
s t
o C

ab
ine

t le
ad
s.

01
/09

/10
Gr
ee
n

Ch
ief
 

Fin
an
ce
 

Of
fic
er 

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

93
 Bt

G 
pro

po
sa
ls 
/ w

ork
 st
rea

ms
 ad

dre
ss
ing

 th
e 2

01
1/1

2 b
ud
ge
t g

ap
 

we
re 

inc
lud

ed
 in
 th
e f
ina

l b
ud
ge
t a
pp
rov

ed
 by

 C
ab
ine

t o
n 8

/2/
11
 an

d 
Co

un
cil 

on
 11

/2/
11
. T

he
 Bt

G 
pro

gra
mm

e i
nc
lud

es
 th
e o

n-g
oin

g f
ina

nc
ial 

im
plic

ati
on
s o

n t
he
 M
TF

S i
.e.
 fu
tur

e y
ea
rs 
sa
vin

gs
 pl
us
 in
itia

tiv
es
 w
hic

h 
wil
l h
av
e t
ak
e e

ffe
ct 
in 
fut
ure

 ye
ars

.   
    

    
    

    
    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    
    

    
    

    
    

 
SL

T c
on
tin
ue
 to
 w
ork

 w
ith
 C
FO

 an
d m

em
be
rs 
to 
ad
dre

ss
 re

sid
ua
l g
ap
s f
or 

fut
ure

 ye
ars

 at
 m

on
thl
y B

tG
 m

ee
tin
g w

ith
 th
e C

ab
ine

t le
ad
. T

he
 fin

al 
bu
dg
et 
inc

lud
es
 th
e p

rop
os
al 
for

 cr
os
s p

art
y B

ud
ge
t W

ork
ing

 gr
ou
p t
o 

de
ve
lop

 bo
th 
the

 bu
dg
et 
pro

ce
ss
 an

d m
em

be
rs 
sc
rut

iny
 ro

les
. 

07/01/11

16

Page 166



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

23
CR

4
7

If t
he
 em

erg
ing

 ca
r p

ark
ing

 st
rat

eg
y 

wh
ich

 sp
ec
ific

ally
 re

lat
es
 to
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
sit
es
 is
 no

t p
rop

erl
y 

art
icu

lat
ed
 th
en
 it 
is 
like

ly t
ha
t a
ny
 

po
ten

tia
l re

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
co
uld

 be
 

mi
sin

ter
pre

ted
 an

d n
ot 
fav

ou
rab

ly 
rec

eiv
ed
.

AN
/JW

16 02 11

3
4

12
Re

du ce
Ne

ed
 to
 fin

alis
e c

ar 
pa
rki
ng
 st
rat

eg
y t
hro

ug
h 

pa
rki
ng
 bo

ard
  D

ev
elo

p  
a c

om
mu

nic
ati
on
s 

pla
n t
o t
ho
rou

gh
ly i

nv
olv

e s
tak

eh
old

ers
 as

 
ea
rly
 as

 po
ss
ible

.

To
 be

 
de
cid

ed
Gr
ee
n

Ow
en
 

Pa
rry

Int
rod

uc
tio
n o

f a
 se

rie
s o

f p
ark

ing
 de

ma
nd
 m

an
ag
em

en
t a
pp
lica

tio
ns
 

en
ab
ling

 da
ta 
co
llec

tio
n a

nd
 m

od
elli

ng
 of
 de

ma
nd
, li
nk
ed
 to
 th
e w

ork
 

un
de
rta

ke
n t
hro

ug
h t
he
 C
ivic

 Pr
ide

 tra
ffic

 m
od
elli

ng
 w
ill a

ss
ist
 in
 

for
mu

lat
ing

 th
e p

ark
ing

 st
rat

eg
y.

Fo
cu
s g

rou
ps
 ha

ve
 be

en
 es

tab
lish

ed
 an

d a
re 

inp
utt
ing

 in
to 
the

 
en
ga
ge
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
, th

e o
utc

om
e o

f w
hic

h w
ill b

e d
isc

us
se
d a

t th
e 

Pa
rki
ng
 Bo

ard
 be

ing
 he

ld 
on
 Th

urs
da
y 1

1th
 M
ay
 20

11
.

At 
thi
s m

ee
tin
g e

nd
ors

em
en
t w

ill b
e s

ou
gh
t to

 co
nti
nu
e w

ith
 th
e p

roc
es
s 

wit
h t
he
 ai
m 

be
ing

 to
 se

ek
 in
pu
t fr

om
 ke

y s
tak

eh
old

ers
 an

d o
the

r 
int
ere

ste
d p

art
ies

 in
 th
e e

sta
blis

hm
en
t o
f a
 Pa

rki
ng
 St

rat
eg
y p

roj
ec
t 

wo
rki
ng
 gr

ou
p, 
thi
s w

ill i
nc
lud

e a
pp
lica

tio
n t
o d

ev
elo

pm
en
t s
ite
s t
hu
s 

en
su
rin
g t

he
 st
rat

eg
y is

 pr
op
erl
y a

rtic
ula

ted
 so

 as
 an

y p
ote

nti
al 

red
ev
elo

pm
en
t c
ou
ld 
no
t b
e m

isin
ter

pre
ted

 an
d o

r n
ot 
fav

ou
rab

ly r
ec
eiv

ed
.

16 02 11

24
CR

5
0

if t
he
re 

is 
no
t s
uff
icie

nt 
tim

e f
or 

de
tai
led

 re
vie

w 
an
d a

pp
rov

al 
of 
the

 
So

lut
ion

 D
es
ign

 D
oc
um

en
ts 
(S
DD

s) 
for

 th
e G

O 
Pr
og
ram

me
 (A

gre
ss
o 

sy
ste

m)
, a
nd
 pr

ep
ara

tio
n f
or 

tha
t 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 

Or
g D

ev
 

& 
Ch

an
ge

08/03/11

4
3

12
Re

du ce
Mi
tig
ati
ng
 ac

tio
ns
 -  

Pr
og
ram

me
 Pl

an
 be

ing
 

pre
pa
red

. N
ee
d t
o e

ns
ure

 ad
eq
ua
te 
tim

e f
or 

pre
pa
rin
g a

nd
 co

nd
uc
tin
g G

ate
wa

y r
ev
iew

s o
f 

ke
y p

rog
ram

me
 do

cu
me

nta
tio
n. 
Lo
ca
lly,

 ne
ed
 

to 
en
su
re 

tim
e i
s s

et 
as
ide

 fo
r p

roc
es
s w

ork
 

05
/04

/11
Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 
Or
g 

De
v &

 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

En
su
red

 ke
y e

mp
loy

ee
s w

ere
 m

ad
e a

va
ilab

le 
for

 re
vie

w 
of 
pro

ce
ss
es
, a
nd
 

wo
rk 
pri
ori
tis
ed
 to
 he

lp 
thi
s -
 th
is 
is 
no
w 
co
mp

let
ed
. F

ina
l s
ign

 of
f to

ok
 

pla
ce
 (F

ina
nc
e a

nd
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt)

 18
th 
Ap

ril.
 E 

Re
cru

ite
r p

roc
es
s d

es
ign

 
to 
be
 ap

pro
ve
d e

lec
tro

nic
ally

 by
 17

th 
Ma

y, 
no
 re

so
urc

e i
ss
ue
s. 
Su

gg
es
t 

thi
s r
isk

 ca
n b

e c
om

ple
ted

 an
d c

los
ed
. 

10/05/11

sy
ste

m)
, a
nd
 pr

ep
ara

tio
n f
or 

tha
t 

rev
iew

 w
ith
in 
req

uir
ed
 tim

es
ca
les

, 
the

n t
he
 ev

en
tua

l s
olu

tio
n d

es
ign

 
ma

y n
ot 
be
 ro

bu
st.
 

Ch
an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

08/03/11

to 
en
su
re 

tim
e i
s s

et 
as
ide

 fo
r p

roc
es
s w

ork
 

(e.
g. 

via
 su

pe
r u

se
rs)

, a
nd
 Pr

og
ram

me
 Bo

ard
 

me
mb

ers
 to
 en

su
re 

rel
ev
an
t a
tte
nd
an
ce
 at
 

sig
n o

ff m
ee
tin
gs
 (M

arc
h/A

pri
l). 

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

thi
s r
isk

 ca
n b

e c
om

ple
ted

 an
d c

los
ed
. 

10/05/11

25
CR

5
5

If t
he
 co

un
cil 

is 
no
t a
ler
t to

 ne
w 

leg
isla

tio
n w

ith
 re

ga
rd 

to 
fix
ed
 te
rm

 
ten

an
cy
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 an

d s
oc
ial 

ren
ts 
the

n i
t m

ay
 fin

d t
ha
t th

ere
 ar

e 
iss

ue
s w

ith
 pe

op
le's

 ab
ility

 to
 

ac
ce
ss
 so

cia
l re

nte
d p

rop
ert

ies
 an

d 
the

 po
ten

tia
l d
isr
up
tio
n t
o 

co
mm

un
itie

s a
s p

eo
ple

 fa
ce
 fix

ed
 

ter
m 

ten
an
cy
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
.

Dir
ec
tor

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 - 
Ja
ne
 

Gr
iffi
ths

19th April

3
3

9
Re

du ce
Me

mb
er 

wo
rki
ng
 gr

ou
p t
o b

e e
sta

blis
he
d t
o 

un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 im

plic
ati
on
s.

Fo
llow

ing
 re

vie
w 
ten

an
cy
 st
rat

eg
y t
o b

e 
dra

fte
d i
n c

on
su
lta
tio
n w

ith
 C
BH

.
As

 pa
rt o

f th
e r

ev
iew

 co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 to
 be

 gi
ve
n 

as
 to
 ho

w 
the

 ch
an
ge
s w

ill i
mp

ac
t o
n h

ou
sin

g 
ad
vic

e a
nd
 ho

us
ing

 op
tio
ns
.

Re
vie

w 
to 
rep

ort
 ba

ck
 to
 ca

bin
et 
Oc

tob
er 

20
11

01
/10

/11
Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 
Co

mm
iss

io
nin

g -
 Ja

ne
 

Gr
iffi
ths

Ne
w 
ris
k

11/04/11

16

Page 167



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

26
CR

5
4

Th
e p

rop
os
ed
 w
elf
are

 re
for

ms
 an

d 
pa
ral
lel 

inc
rea

se
s t
o a

ffo
rda

ble
 

ren
ts 
ma

y le
ad
 to
 an

 in
cre

as
e i
n 

ho
us
ing

 re
nt 
arr

ea
rs 
ac
ros

s t
he
 

so
cia

l re
nte

d s
ec
tor

.

Dir
ec
tor

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 - 
Ja
ne
 

Gr
iffi
ths

04/04/11

3
3

9
Re

du ce
Ke

ep
 go

ve
rnm

en
t p
rop

os
als

 fo
r re

for
m 

un
de
r 

rev
iew

.
Ho

us
ing

 w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p t
o b

e e
sta

blis
he
d t
o 

un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 im

pa
cts

 an
d w

ha
t fu

rth
er 

ac
tio
n o

ur 
ho
us
ing

 be
ne
fit 
tea

ms
 ca

n 
un
de
rta

ke
 to
 m

itig
ate

 ag
ain

st 
the

 re
for

ms
.

01
/10

/11
Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 
Co

mm
iss

io
nin

g -
 Ja

ne
 

Gr
iffi
ths

Ne
w 
ris
k

11/05/11

27
CR

4
8

If k
ey
 em

plo
ye
es
 ar

e s
ud
de
nly

 
un
av
aila

ble
 th
en
 se

rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 
wil
l 

be
 se

ve
rel
y c

om
pro

mi
se
d.

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
v

e A
nd
rew

 
No

rth

16 02 11

3
3

9
Re

du ce
SL

T t
o a

gre
e a

 wo
rki

ng
 de

fin
itio

n o
f k

ey
 ro

le 
- 

alo
ng

 lin
es

 of
 "h

igh
ly t

ec
hn

ica
l, s

pe
cia

list
 

kn
ow

led
ge

 re
sid

ing
 in

 a 
sin

gle
 in

div
idu

al,
 th

at 
co

uld
 

no
t b

e e
as

ily 
pic

ke
d u

p o
r c

ov
ere

d b
y o

the
rs 

in 
the

 
ev

en
 of

 su
dd

en
 lo

ss
 of

 th
at 

ind
ivid

ua
l, t

he
 wo

rk 
ca

nn
ot 

wa
it (

is t
im

e d
riv

en
)". 

 SL
T t

o i
de

nti
fy 

wh
ich

 
rol

es
 in

 th
eir

 ar
ea

s w
ere

 "k
ey

" th
at 

wo
uld

 ca
us

e a
 

ma
jor

 se
rvi

ce
 di

sru
pti

on
 iss

ue
 if 

the
y w

ere
 

su
dd

en
ly u

na
va

ilab
le 

- e
.g.

 wh
at 

is t
he

 de
gre

e o
f 

ris
k  

- w
ha

t is
 in

 pl
ac

e t
ha

t c
ou

ld 
co

ve
r th

e l
os

s. 
SL

T t
o d

ete
rm

ine
 ac

tio
ns

 to
 ta

ke
 in

 th
e e

ve
nt 

of 
a 

su
dd

en
 lo

ss
 of

 th
e k

ey
 em

plo
ye

e/s
 - t

his
 m

ay
 va

ry 
ac

co
rdi

ng
 to

 th
e n

atu
re 

of 
the

 ro
le/

ke
y e

mp
loy

ee
/s.

 

31
/07

/11
Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 
Or
g 

De
v &

 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

SL
T d

isc
us
se
d w

ork
ing

 de
fin
itio

n 1
0th

 M
ay
 20

11
. A

 ke
y r
ole

 id
en
tifi
ed
 in
 

CD
TF

 - a
im
 to
 do

cu
me

nt 
ac
tiv
itie

s a
nd
 di
sc
us
sio

ns
 as

 fa
r a

s i
s p

rac
tic
ab
le 

an
d u

tilis
e T

as
k f
orc

e s
ub
 gr

ou
ps
. P

rov
ide

 ro
uti
ne
 br

ief
ing

s t
o G

L a
nd
 or

 
AN

 as
 ap

pro
pri
ate

.

10/05/11

ac
co

rdi
ng

 to
 th

e n
atu

re 
of 

the
 ro

le/
ke

y e
mp

loy
ee

/s.
 

SL
T t

o r
ev

iew
 fin

din
gs

 of
 ab

ov
e a

ctio
ns

. 

28
CR

1
3

If m
em

be
rs,
 se

nio
r m

an
ag
ers

 an
d 

em
plo

ye
es
 do

 no
t re

co
gn
ise

 th
eir
 

ob
lig
ati
on
s a

nd
 re

sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 fo
r 

eq
ua
litie

s t
he
n t
he
re 

is 
a r

isk
 th
at 

we
 co

uld
 be

 tre
ati
ng
 pe

op
le 
un
fai
rly
 

an
d t
he
 co

un
cil 

co
uld

 fa
ce
 

pro
se
cu
tio
n

Dir
ec
tor

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 - 
Ja
ne
 

Gr
iffi
ths

01/03/10

3
3

9
Re

du ce
Eq

ua
lity

 ac
tio
n p

lan
 to
 be

 pr
ep
are

d w
hic

h 
en
ab
les

 co
un
cil 

to 
be
 at
 ac

hie
vin

g l
ev
el 
for

 th
e 

eq
ua
lity

 fra
me

wo
rk 
for

 lo
ca
l g
ov
ern

me
nt

01
/03

/11
Am

be
r

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s M
an
ag
er 

 
Ric

ha
rd 

Gi
bs
on

Eq
ua
lity

 im
pa
ct 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
ha
s b

ee
n c

arr
ied

 ou
t o
n t
he
 bu

dg
et;
 eq

ua
lity

 
iss

ue
s h

as
 be

en
 in
clu

de
d i
n n

ew
 co

mm
un
ity 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
too

l to
 be

 us
ed
 

as
 pa

rt o
f c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 w
ork

. N
ee
d f
or 

SL
T t

o b
e b

rie
fed

 on
 th
e 

int
rod

uc
tio
n o

f th
e n

ew
 pu

blic
 se

cto
r e

qu
alit

y d
uty

 se
t o
ut 
in 
the

 Eq
ua
lity

 
Ac

t.

10/02/11

16

Page 168



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

29
CR

1
7

If m
em

be
rs,
 se

nio
r m

an
ag
ers

 an
d 

em
plo

ye
es
 do

 no
t re

co
gn
ise

 th
eir
 

ob
lig
ati
on
s a

nd
 re

sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 fo
r 

inf
orm

ati
on
 m

an
ag
em

en
t in

clu
din

g 
da
ta 
qu
alit

y a
nd
 in
for

ma
tio
n s

ec
uri
ty 

the
n i
t c
ou
ld 
res

ult
 in
 ill 

inf
orm

ed
 

de
cis

ion
s, 
un
rel
iab

le 
ou
tco

me
s, 

ine
ffe
cti
ve
 us

e o
f re

so
urc

es
 an

d 
los

s o
f a
ss
ets

, le
ad
ing

 to
 a 
red

uc
ed
 

pu
blic

 re
pu
tat
ion

 an
d a

 la
ck
 of
  

co
nfi
de
nc
e f
rom

 re
gu
lat
ors

Dir
ec
tor

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 - 
Ja
ne
 

Gr
iffi
ths

01/02/10

3
3

9
Re

du ce
An

nu
al 
da
ta 
au
dit
 un

de
rta

ke
n t
o i
de
nti
fy 

cla
ss
ific

ati
on
 of
 da

ta
Inf
orm

ati
on
 st
rat

eg
y t
o b

e d
ev
elo

pe
d j
oin

tly 
wit

h C
BH

rev
ise

d 
tar

ge
t d
ate

 
se
t - 

Ma
rch

 
20
12

Am
be
r

Dir
ec
tor

 of
 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

Inf
orm

ati
on
 st
rat

eg
y h

as
 be

en
 di
sc
us
se
d b

y o
ffic

er 
wo

rki
ng
. O

bje
cti
ve
s 

an
d w

ork
pla

n t
o b

e c
om

pile
d. 

Ad
mi
n s

up
po
rt i
de
nti
fie
d

10/05/11

30
CR

2
If c

ou
nc
illo

rs 
an
d o

ffic
ers

 do
 no

t 
“dr

aw
 a 
line

” u
nd
er 

the
 re

vie
w 
an
d 

mo
ve
 fo
rw
ard

 as
 re

co
mm

en
de
d b

y 
bo
th 
the

 ju
dg
e a

nd
 KP

MG
 th
ere

 is
 a 

rep
uta

tio
n r

isk
, a
s w

ell 
as
 a 
ris
k t
ha
t 

fur
the

r re
so
urc

e b
oth

 fin
an
cia

lly 
an
d 

tim
e c

ou
ld 
be
 in
cu
rre

d

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
v

e A
nd
rew

 
No

rth

10/03/10

3
3

9
Re

du ce
CE

X h
as
 di
sc
us
se
d t
his

 m
att
er 

wit
h g

rou
p 

lea
de
rs

Le
tte
r o

f a
po
log

y s
ign

ed
 by

 C
EX

 an
d G

rou
p 

lea
de
rs

Cle
ar 

ac
tio
n p

lan
 de

ve
lop

ed
 on

 le
ss
on
s l
ea
rnt

.
CE

X t
o d

isc
us
s w

ith
 gr

ou
p l
ea
de
rs 
sh
ou
ld 
an
y 

fur
the

r is
su
es
 ar

ise
.

01
/09

/11
Gr
ee
n

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
  

An
dre

w 
No

rth

It w
ou
ld 
ap
pe
ar 

tha
t c
ou
nc
illo

rs 
ha
ve
 re

sp
on
de
d c

on
str
uc
tiv
ely

 in
 le
arn

ing
 

les
so
ns
 fro

m 
the

 re
vie

w 
wit

ho
ut 
bla

me
. H

ow
ev
er,

 po
int
s o

f te
ns
ion

 m
ay
 

sti
ll a

ris
e a

nd
 co

nti
nu
ed
 vi
gil
an
ce
 is
 re

qu
ire
d

Th
is 
wil
l b
e r

ev
iew

ed
 fo
llow

ing
 th
e f
ina

l c
on
sid

era
tio
n b

y t
he
 Au

dit
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

arc
h 2

01
1. 
rec

om
me

nd
 cl
os
ure

08/04/11

31
CR

2
9

If t
he
 co

un
cil 

do
es
 no

t im
ple

me
nt 

the
 ac

tio
ns
 id
en
tifi
ed
 in
 th
e c

lim
ate

 
ch
an
ge
 ad

ap
tat
ion

 ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
t 

the
re 

is 
a r

isk
 th
at 
res

ou
rce

s w
ill n

ot 
be
 us

ed
 to
 be

st 
eff
ec
t w

hic
h c

ou
ld 

im
pa
ct 
on
 fin

an
cia

l, e
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 

an
d s

erv
ice

 de
cis

ion
s a

nd
 af
fec

t 
se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry.

Dir
ec
tor

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 - 
Ja
ne
 

Gr
iffi
ths

06/05/10

4
2

8
Re

du ce
Se

rvi
ce
s a

re 
req

uir
ed
 to
 id
en
tify

 th
e a

cti
on
s 

the
y w

ill b
e t
ak
ing

 to
 re

sp
on
d t
o c

lim
ate

 
ch
an
ge
 (b

oth
 ad

ap
tat
ion

 an
d m

itig
ati
on
) in

 
20
11
/12

 se
rvi
ce
 pl
an
s. 
Int
ern

al 
au
dit
 ha

s a
 

tra
ine

d o
ffic

er 
in 
en
vir
on
me

nta
l a
ud
itin

g w
ho
 

wil
l b
e a

ss
es
sin

g p
rog

res
s a

ga
ins

t th
e 

ad
ap
tat
ion

 ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
t.

01
/06

/20
10

Ta
rge

t d
ate

 
ch
an
ge
d t
o 

Ju
ne
 20

11

01
/03

/20
11

Gr
ee
n

All
 

Dir
ec
tor

s

Au
dit
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Ma

na
ge
r

Ric
ha
rd 

Gi
bs
on
, 

po
licy

 an
d 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s m
an
ag
er

Gi
ve
n t
he
 ne

w 
div

isio
ns
 fo
llow

ing
 th
e s

4 r
ep
ort

s n
ew

 se
rvi
ce
 pl
an
s w

ill 
ne
ed
 to
 be

 de
ve
lop

ed
 an

d t
his

 w
ill b

e a
n i
de
al 
tim

e t
o i
nc
orp

ora
te 

ad
ap
tat
ion

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it n

ow
 ha

s a
 tra

ine
d e

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 

au
dit
ing

 of
fic
er.

 Th
is 
off
ice

r h
as
 co

mp
let
ed
 a 
Su

sta
ina

bili
ty 
& 

En
vir
on
me

nta
l M

an
ag
em

en
t R

ev
iew

 du
e t
o b

e d
isc

us
se
d a

t A
ud
it 

Co
mm

itte
e o

n t
he
 12

th 
Ja
nu
ary

 20
11

An
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
too

l w
as
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y t
he
 pr

og
ram

me
 bo

ard
 in
 N
ov
em

be
r 

an
d w

ill b
e u

se
d i
n t
he
 in
itia

l re
vie

w 
of 
leis

ure
 an

d c
ult
ure

 to
 te
st 
its
 us

e 
an
d r

ev
ise

d a
cc
ord

ing
ly

SL
T h

av
e r

ev
iew

ed
 th
e p

lan
ne
d c

lim
ate

 ch
an
ge
 ad

ap
tat
ion

s a
nd
 ha

ve
 as

k 
div

isio
ns
 to
 id
en
tify

 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
 ch

am
pio

ns
; th

is 
ch
am

pio
ns
 gr

ou
p w

ill 
be
 es

tab
lish

ed
 on

ce
 re

str
uc
tur

ing
 ha

s b
ee
n c

om
ple

ted
 an

d r
isk

 
as
se
ss
me

nts
 re

vis
ed
 to
 re

fle
ct 
ne
w 
str
uc
tur

es
.  R

isk
 re

ma
ins

 am
be
r b

ut 
like

liho
od
 ha

s b
ee
n r

ed
uc
ed
 to
 re

fle
ct 
co
mp

let
ed
 an

d p
lan

ne
d a

cti
on
s

08/02/11

16

Page 169



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

32
CR

5
1

Air
po
rt P

roj
ec
t

If t
he
 ai
rpo

rt p
roj
ec
t c
an
no
t b
e 

de
live

red
 w
ith
in 
the

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 

pa
ram

ete
rs,
 (in

clu
din

g b
orr

ow
ing

 
lim

its
) a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 C
he
lte
nh
am

 an
d 

Gl
ou
ce
ste

r c
ity 

co
un
cils

, th
en
 th
e 

bo
rro

win
g c

os
ts 
ma

y f
all 

on
 th
e 

co
un
cils

Dir
ec
tor

 
of 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

09/03/11

2
4

8
Re

du ce
Th

e p
roj
ec
t te

am
 m

us
t e
ns
ure

 th
at 
the

 pr
oje

ct 
is 
de
live

red
 to
 th
e a

gre
ed
 co

sts
 an

d t
im
es
ca
le

01
/04

/11
Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 of
 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
fun

din
g a

gre
em

en
t in

 pl
ac
e t
o p

rot
ec
t c
ou
nc
il in

ter
es
ts.

Pr
oje

ct 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
in 
pla

ce
 an

d e
xp
ert

 pr
oje

ct 
as
su
ran

ce
 ro

le 
be
ing

 
pro

vid
ed
 fo
r s
tak

eh
old

ers
 to
 m

on
ito
r c
os
ts 
in 
line

 w
ith
 bu

sin
es
s c

as
e.

Ne
w 
Ris

k

009/03/2011

33
CR

4
9

If C
ou
nty

 LE
P d

oe
s n

ot 
pro

gre
ss
 

the
n i
t m

ay
 da

ma
ge
 th
e a

bili
ty 
of 

the
 Ta

sk
 fo
rce

 to
 de

live
r w

ide
r 

vis
ion

 th
rou

gh
 in
ab
ility

 to
 ac

ce
ss
 

po
ten

tia
l fu

nd
ing

 an
d t
ec
hn
ica

l 
res

ou
rce

s

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
v

e A
nd
rew

 
No

rth

21 07 10

2
4

8
En

ga
ge
 w
ith
 C
ou
nty

 an
d o

the
r s
tak

eh
old

ers
 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t d
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 bi
dd
ing

 st
ag
e o

f 
LE

P p
roc

es
s

On
 go

ing
Am

be
r

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
 

An
dre

w 
No

rth

LE
P p

rop
os
al 
dis

cu
ss
ed
 w
ith
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
 an

d s
ub
mi
tte
d t
o D

ep
t. C

LG
 

an
d B

IS

08/04/11

34
CR

1
0

If t
he
 co

un
cil 

is 
un
ab
le 
to 
ap
pro

ve
 

lon
g t

erm
 so

lut
ion

s f
or 

its
 w
as
te 
an
d 

rec
yc
ling

 se
rvi
ce
s t
he
n c

os
ts 
wil
l 

co
nti
nu
e t
o i
nc
rea

se
 an

d t
he
 co

un
cil 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Op

era
tio

ns
  R

ob
 

Be
ll

3
2

6
Re

du ce
Op

tio
ns
 ap

pra
isa

l c
om

ple
te 
an
d b

ein
g 

pre
se
nte

d t
o E

nv
iro
nm

en
t O

ve
rvi
ew

 an
d 

Sc
rut

iny
.  C

ou
nty

 re
sid

ua
l w

as
te 
str
ate

gy
 

be
ing

 de
ve
lop

ed
. R

ep
ort

 to
 ca

bin
et 
on
 fu
tur

e 

01
/03

/11
Gr
ee
n

W
as
te 
an
d 

Re
cy
clin

g 
Ma

na
ge
r  

Be
th 

Ca
bin

et 
ap
pro

ve
d n

ew
 w
as
te 
an
d r

ec
yc
ling

 ch
an
ge
 pr

og
ram

me
 on

 27
th

 

Ju
ly 2

01
0. 
 Pr

oje
ct 
un
de
rw
ay
 to
 de

live
r th

es
e c

ha
ng
es
 an

d i
s c

urr
en
tly 

on
 

tra
ck
.  C

ou
nty

 re
sid

ua
l w

as
te 
str
ate

gy
 st
ill i
n d

ev
elo

pm
en
t   

 R
isk

 ra
tin
g t

o 
rem

ain
 at
 6.

co
nti
nu
e t
o i
nc
rea

se
 an

d t
he
 co

un
cil 

wil
l fa

il t
o m

ee
t it
s s

tra
teg

ic 
en
vir
on
me

nta
l ta

rge
ts

Be
ll

01/02/10

be
ing

 de
ve
lop

ed
. R

ep
ort

 to
 ca

bin
et 
on
 fu
tur

e 
op
tio
ns
 sc

he
du
led

 fo
r 2

7th
 Ju

ly 2
01
0. 
If 

ap
pro

ve
d, 
ris
k r
ati
ng
 w
ill s

ign
ific

an
tly 

red
uc
e.

Be
th 

Bo
ug
hto

n
rem

ain
 at
 6.

07/01/10

35
CR

3
9

Re
qu
ire
me

nt 
to 
fun

d p
roj
ec
ted

 
ov
ers

pe
nd
 fro

m 
Ge

ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
s 

wo
uld

 re
su
lt i
n G

en
era

l B
ala

nc
es
 

fal
ling

 be
low

 th
e m

inim
um

 ra
ng
e o

f 
£1
.5m

 to
 £2

m 
se
t b
y t
he
 C
hie

f 
Fin

an
ce
 O
ffic

er.

Ca
bin

et

01/06/10

3
2

6
Re

du ce
In 
pre

pa
rin
g t

he
 re

vis
ed
 bu

dg
et 
for

 20
10
/11

, 
an
 ex

erc
ise

 to
 re

alig
n e

arm
ark

ed
 re

se
rve

s w
ill 

be
 un

de
rta

ke
n i
n o

rde
r to

 st
ren

gth
en
 th
e l
ev
el 

of 
Ge

ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
s.

01
/12

/20
10

30
/06

/20
11

Gr
ee
n

Dir
ec
tor

 of
 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

SL
T h

av
e a

gre
ed
 a 
rec

rui
tm

en
t  f

ree
ze
 an

d r
ev
iew

ed
 su

pp
lies

 an
d 

se
rvi
ce
s b

ud
ge
t re

su
ltin

g i
n a

 re
vis

ed
 pr

oje
cti
on
 th
at 
the

 £8
00
k p

roj
ec
ted

 
ov
ers

pe
nd
 w
ill b

e m
an
ag
ed
 to
 ze

ro 
in 
20
10
/11

.

De
ad
line

 ha
s b

ee
n r

ev
ise

d t
o r

efl
ec
t y
ea
r e

nd
 ou

t tu
rn 

po
sit
ion

 w
hic

h w
ill 

de
ter

mi
ne
 if 
mi
tig
ati
ng
 ac

tio
ns
 ha

ve
 be

en
 su

cc
es
sfu

l.

07/01/11

16

Page 170



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

36
CR

8
If t

he
 co

un
cil 

do
es
 no

t m
an
ag
e i
ts 

am
bit
iou

s c
ha
ng
e m

an
ag
em

en
t 

pro
gra

mm
e e

ffe
cti
ve
ly i

t w
ill p

ut 
pre

ss
ure

 on
to 
em

plo
ye
e r

es
ou
rce

s 
an
d m

ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e d

eliv
ery

 of
 

se
rvi
ce
s 

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
v

e A
nd
rew

 
No

rth

01/02/10

Clo
se

Th
e o

pe
rat

ion
al 
pro

gra
mm

e b
oa
rd 

ha
s a

n 
ov
ers

igh
t o
f th

e k
ey
 ch

an
ge
 pr

og
ram

me
s 

wh
ich

 ar
e r

un
 us

ing
 th
e M

an
ag
ing

 Su
cc
es
sfu

l 
Pr
og
ram

me
s a

nd
 PR

IN
CE

2 m
eth

od
olo

gie
s. 

Th
e c

ou
nc
ils 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o p

ort
fol
io 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
to 
be
 ag

ree
d. 
Ap

pro
ac
h t
o b

e 
rev

iew
ed
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

es
e m

eth
od
olo

gie
s 

are
 ap

plie
d c

on
sis

ten
tly

01
/03

/11
Bu

sin
es
s 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Ma

na
ge
r  

Ke
n D

ale

Re
so
urc

e i
ss
ue
s a

re 
be
ing

 m
ore

 ex
plic

itly
 an

aly
se
d a

nd
 ad

dre
ss
ed
 w
ith
in 

the
 ch

an
ge
 pr

og
ram

me
 (a

lso
 be

ari
ng
 in
 m

ind
 ‘b
us
ine

ss
 as

 us
ua
l’) 
an
d 

ad
jus

tm
en
ts 
ha
ve
 be

en
 m

ad
e t
o p

rog
ram

me
s i
n c

on
se
qu
en
ce
.  T

he
 

rec
rui
tm

en
t fr

ee
ze
 pu

t in
 pl
ac
e O

ct.
 20

10
 to
 re

du
ce
 th
e b

ud
ge
t m

ay
 ha

ve
 

an
 im

pa
ct 
on
 re

so
urc

es
 an

d w
ill n

ee
d t
o b

e a
na
lys

ed
 in
 Ap

ril 
20
11
.   

SL
T 

on
 9 
No

ve
mb

er 
ag
ree

d t
ha
t th

e l
ike

liho
od
 sc

ore
 sh

ou
ld 
inc

rea
se
 fro

m 
3 

du
e t
o i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 of
 th
e r

ec
rui
tm

en
t fr

ee
ze
. T

he
 co

un
cil'
s a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 

res
ou
rce

 m
an
ag
em

en
t fo

r m
ajo

r c
ha
ng
e p

rog
ram

me
s a

nd
 pr

oje
cts

 is
 no

w 
lar
ge
ly a

gre
ed
. S

LT
 re

gu
lar
ly c

on
sid

ers
 re

so
urc

e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
an
d t
he
 

pro
ce
ss
 of
 es

tab
lish

ing
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 an

d a
dd
res

sin
g i
ss
ue
s w

hic
h a

ris
e i
s 

ma
tur

ing
.  A

N 
rec

om
me

nd
s t
ha
t r
isk

 sh
ou

ld 
be
 cl
os
ed
 as

 it 
ha
s b

ee
n 

rep
lac

e b
y C

R4
1 a

gr
ee
d S

LT
 10

-05
-20

11

08\04/2011

37
CR

1
If t

he
 co

un
cil 

do
es
 no

t im
ple

me
nt 

the
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 an

d a
cti
on
 

pla
n a

ris
ing

 fro
m 

the
 pu

blic
 in
ter

es
t 

rep
ort

 an
d w

ork
ing

 gr
ou
p r

ep
ort

 an
d 

pu
t in

 pl
ac
e p

rev
en
tat
ive

 m
ea
su
res

 

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
v

e A
nd
rew

 
No

rth

Clo
se

All
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 ag

ree
d b

y c
ou
nc
il.

Ac
tio
n p

lan
 ha

s b
ee
n d

ev
elo

pe
d f
ollo

win
g 

dis
cu
ss
ion

s w
ith
 of
fic
ers

 an
d h

as
 be

en
 

inc
orp

ora
ted

 w
ith
in 
the

 co
un
cil’

s c
orp

ora
te 

De
ad
line

s a
s 

pe
r th

e 
ac
tio
n p

lan
. 

Fir
st 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Co

mm
iss

io
nin

g -
 Ja

ne
 

Gr
iffi
ths

Th
ird
 m

on
ito
rin
g r

ep
ort

 ha
s b

ee
n d

raf
ted

 fo
r a

ud
it c

om
mi
tte
e a

nd
 ac

tio
ns
 

are
 on

 tra
ck
 fo
r c
om

ple
tio
n. 
 In
ter

na
l a
ud
it h

av
e u

nd
ert

ak
en
 a 
rev

iew
 of
 th
e 

ac
tio
n p

lan
.  S

ug
ge
st 
tha

t th
is 
ris

k i
s  
clo

se
d f

oll
ow

ing
 th

e f
ina

l 
up

da
te 
rep

or
t to

 au
dit

 co
mm

itte
e o

n t
he
 23

rd
 M
arc

h 2
01
1.

Th
is 
sh
ou

ld 
be
 cl
os
ed
 

pu
t in

 pl
ac
e p

rev
en
tat
ive

 m
ea
su
res

 
ba
se
d o

n l
es
so
ns
 le
arn

t th
en
 th
ere

 
is 
a p

ote
nti
al 
loc

al 
an
d n

ati
on
al 

rep
uta

tio
n r

isk
 an

d p
ote

nti
al 

ad
ve
rse

 au
dit
 as

se
ss
me

nt.

22/03/10

inc
orp

ora
ted

 w
ith
in 
the

 co
un
cil’

s c
orp

ora
te 

str
ate

gy
 an

d w
ill b

e r
ep
ort

ed
 th
rou

gh
 th
e 

co
rpo

rat
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m

an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
tem

. 
Mo

nit
ori
ng
 of
 th
e a

cti
on
 pl
an
 is
 to
 be

 
un
de
rta

ke
n b

y t
he
 au

dit
 co

mm
itte

e o
n a

 
qu
art

erl
y b

as
is.
  In

ter
na
l a
ud
it h

av
e s

et 
tim

e 
as
ide

 in
 th
eir
 au

dit
 pl
an
. 

 KP
MG

 w
ill r

ev
iew

 pr
og
res

s a
s p

art
 of
 th
e 

an
nu
al 
au
dit
 of
 ac

co
un
ts.

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

rep
ort

 Ju
ne
 

20
10
. A

ud
it 

co
mm

itte
e 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
, 

Ja
nu
ary

 an
d 

Ma
rch

 20
11

  

01
/03

/20
11

Th
is 
sh
ou

ld 
be
 cl
os
ed
 

08/04/11

38
CR

 
37

If t
he
re 

is 
na
tio
na
l s
trik

e a
cti
on
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of
 th
e r

ec
en
t T

UC
 m

oti
on
 to
 

pro
tes

t a
ga
ins

t th
e t
raj
ec
tor

y o
f 

go
ve
rnm

en
t b
ud
ge
t re

du
cti
on
s, 

se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 
is 
like

ly t
o b

e 
dis

rup
ted

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 

Or
g D

ev
 

& 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

14/09/10

Clo
se

Mo
nit
or 

like
liho

od
, c
om

mu
nic

ate
 C
ou
nc
il c

as
e 

to 
em

plo
ye
es
, c
on
su
lt l
oc
ally

 w
ith
 un

ion
s, 

pu
blis

h g
uid

an
ce
 to
 m

an
ag
ers

. In
tra

ne
t 

up
da
tes

 re
 pa

y o
ffe
r p

os
ted

 ou
t to

 em
plo

ye
es
 

(do
ne
 18

 02
 20

11
); S

LT
 an

d C
ab
ine

t le
ad
 ke

pt 
inf
orm

ed
.

01
/03

/11
HR

 
Op

era
tio
ns
 

Ma
na
ge
r  

Ju
lie 

Mc
Ca

rth
y

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 si
tua

tio
n. 
 Em

plo
ye
rs 
org

an
isa

tio
n i
nd
ica

te 
str
ike

 ac
tio
n o

ve
r 

pa
y, 
an
d b

ud
ge
t s
itu
ati
on
 is
 un

like
ly, 

ac
tio
n o

ve
r a

ny
 pr

op
os
ed
 pe

ns
ion

s 
ch
an
ge
s i
s m

ore
 lik

ely
. R

ec
en
t le

tte
r to

 ch
ief
 ex

ec
s r
ec
eiv

ed
 fro

m 
reg

ion
al 

se
cre

tar
y U

nis
on
 SW

 to
 cl
ari
fy 
un
ion

 po
sit
ion

 on
 ch

an
ge
s t
o t
erm

s a
nd
 

co
nd
itio

ns
. S

ug
ge
st 
thi

s c
an
 be

 no
ted

 an
d c

los
ed
 as

 a 
ris

k. 
   

19/04/11

16

Page 171



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

39
CR

4
3 

If C
SR

 se
ttle

me
nt 
im
pa
cts

 re
su
lt i
n 

req
uir
ed
 G
O 
Pr
og
ram

me
 re

so
urc

e 
be
ing

 co
ns
um

ed
, th

en
 pr

og
ram

me
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n a

nd
 re

su
ltin

g 
sa
vin

gs
 an

d e
ffic

ien
cy
 re

alis
ati
on
, 

wil
l b
e p

ut 
at 
ris
k. 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
/

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

##
##

0
Clo

se
As

se
ss
 im

pa
ct 
of 
CS

R 
20
10
. E

ns
ure

 G
O 

Pr
og
ram

me
 re

so
urc

es
 re

ma
in 
de
dic

ate
d t
o 

the
 Pr

og
ram

me
. 

En
d M

arc
h

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pe

op
le 
Or
g 

De
v &

 
Ch

an
ge

Am
an
da
 

Att
fie
ld

Th
is 
ris
k w

as
 ra

ise
d b

y t
he
 G
o P

rog
ram

me
 Bo

ard
 an

d s
co
red

 as
 a 
hig

h 
(re

d) 
ris
k, 
sta

yin
g h

igh
 (re

d) 
ev
en
 af
ter

 m
itig

ati
ng
 ac

tio
ns
 (N

B t
he
 G
O 

Pr
og
ram

me
 us

es
 di
ffe
ren

t a
 ris

k s
co
rin
g m

atr
ix 
an
d a

pp
roa

ch
). 

Pr
og
ram

me
 Bo

ard
 M
em

be
rs 
ag
ree

d t
ha
t a
ny
 ris

ks
 fa
llin

g i
nto

 th
is 

ca
teg

ory
 (re

d/r
ed
) b

e c
on
sid

ere
d b

y e
ac
h p

art
ne
r c
ou
nc
il f
or 

the
ir o

wn
 

co
rpo

rat
e r

isk
 re

gis
ter

s a
nd
 lo
ca
l a
cti
on
. T

he
 C
SR

 im
pa
ct 
ha
s b

ee
n 

as
se
ss
ed
 fo
r C

BC
, a
nd
 as

ide
 fro

m 
the

 w
ide

r c
ap
ac
ity 

iss
ue
 ris

k a
lre
ad
y 

ide
nti
fie
d a

s a
 se

pa
rat

e r
isk

, n
o f
urt

he
r m

itig
ati
ng
 ac

tio
n n

ee
ds
 to
 be

 ta
ke
n 

by
 C
BC

 as
 G
O 
Pr
og
ram

me
 re

so
urc

es
 ar

e n
ot 
im
pa
cte

d b
y C

SR
 20

10
. 

Dis
cu
ss
ed
 at
 SL

T o
n 1

st 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
11
,  r

isk
 is
 no

ted
 an

d c
los

ed
 at
 sl
t 

10
05
20
11
. 

40
65
1

40
CR

2
6

Air
po
rt 

If t
he
 ai
rpo

rt p
roj
ec
t c
an
no
t b
e 

de
live

red
 w
ith
in 
the

 pa
ram

ete
rs,
 

(in
clu

din
g b

orr
ow

ing
 lim

its
) 

ap
pro

ve
d b

y C
he
lte
nh
am

 an
d 

Gl
ou
ce
ste

r c
ity 

co
un
cils

, th
e f
utu

re 
via

bili
ty 
of 
the

 ai
rpo

rt a
nd
 im

pro
ve
d 

ret
urn

s t
o s

ha
reh

old
ers

 co
uld

 be
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
of 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

01/04/10

Clo
se

W
ork

 w
ith
 ai
rpo

rt c
om

pa
ny
 to
 de

ter
mi
ne
 an

 
ap
pro

ac
h t
o d

eliv
ery

 of
 co

re 
as
pe
cts

 of
 th
e 

run
wa

y s
afe

ty 
pro

jec
t w

hic
h a

re 
req

uir
ed
 to
 

im
pro

ve
 ai
rpo

rt p
rof

ita
bili

ty 
an
d s

ec
ure

 th
e 

air
po
rts
 fu
tur

e. 
Po

ten
tia
l fo

r a
 fu
rth

er 
rep

ort
 to
 

Co
un
cil 

fol
low

ing
 th
e a

na
lys

is 
of 
ten

de
rs 
for

 
the

 de
live

ry 
of 
the

 pr
oje

ct.

01
/09

/20
10

01
/04

/20
11

Ch
ief
 

Fin
an
ce
 

Of
fic
er 

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

Co
un
cil 

ap
pro

ve
d a

dd
itio

na
l b
orr

ow
ing

 fa
cili

ty 
to 
su
pp
ort

 th
e d

eliv
ery

 of
 th
e 

rev
ise

d b
us
ine

ss
ma

n p
lan

 re
fle
cti
ng
 po

st 
ten

de
r e

va
lua

tio
ns
. A

ll le
ga
l 

do
cu
me

nta
tio
n a

nd
 pr

oc
ed
ure

 fo
r lo

an
 m

ec
ha
nis

m 
no
w 
in 
pla

ce
. 

Ne
go
tia
tio
ns
 ov

er 
Ble

nh
eim

 ho
us
e r

em
ain

 un
res

olv
ed
.

De
ad
line

 ha
s b

ee
n r

ev
ise

d t
o r

efl
ec
t o
ng
oin

g n
eg
oti
ati
on
s i
n r

ela
tio
n t
o 

Ble
nh
eim

 ho
us
e 

Ris
k C

los
ed
 as

 pe
r S

LT
1s
t M

arc
h (

ne
w 
Air

po
rt R

isk
 cr
ea
ted

)

07/01/11

ret
urn

s t
o s

ha
reh

old
ers

 co
uld

 be
 

jeo
pa
rdi
se
d.

41
CR

1
6

Fe
sti
va
ls 
– p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
rel
ati
on
sh
ips

. C
F i
s a

n i
mp

ort
an
t 

de
live

ry 
pa
rtn

er 
an
d i
f re

lat
ion

sh
ips

 
wit

h C
F a

re 
no
t e
ffe
cti
ve
 th
en
 th
e 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
  b
ec
om

e 
un
ten

ab
le 
wh

ich
 w
ill r

es
ult
 in
 

co
un
cils

 im
ag
e a

nd
 re

pu
tat
ion

 be
ing

 
pu
t a
t ri
sk
. 

CE
X\ 

Dir
 

W
ellb

ein
g &

 
Cu

ltu
re

01/03/10

Clo
se

CE
X d

ev
elo

pin
g r

ela
tio
ns
hip

 w
ith
 C
F B

oa
rd 

me
mb

ers
 to
 co

nti
nu
e t
o b

uild
 po

sit
ive

 
rel
ati
on
sh
ips

.

On
go
ing

CE
X\A

D 
W
ellb

ein
g 

& C
ult
ure

Qu
art

erl
y m

ee
tin
gs
  n
ow

 in
 pl
ac
e w

ith
 C
F b

oa
rd 

me
mb

ers
, C

BC
 m

em
be
rs 

& k
ey
 m

em
be
rs 
of 
SL

T. 
Ris

k c
los

ed
 SL

T 0
4-0

1-2
01
1

05/01/11

16

Page 172



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

42
CR

4
Th

ere
 is
 a 
rel
ian

ce
 on

 sh
are

d 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 so

urc
ing

 st
rat

eg
y 

de
live

rin
g s

av
ing

s. 
 If 

the
se
 sa

vin
gs
 

do
 no

t m
ate

ria
lise

 or
 sh

are
d 

se
rvi
ce
s d

o n
ot 
pro

ce
ed
 as

 
an
tic
ipa

ted
 th
en
 ot
he
r s
av
ing

s w
ill 

ne
ed
 to
 be

 fo
un
d t
o m

ee
t th

e M
TF

S 
pro

jec
tio
ns

Dir
ec
tor

 
of 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

01/12/10

Clo
se

All
 sh

are
d s

erv
ice

 pr
oje

cts
 an

d s
ou
rci
ng
 

str
ate

gy
 ar

e o
pe
rat

ed
 un

de
r P

rin
ce
 2 

pri
nc
iple

s, 
wit

h c
lea

r b
us
ine

ss
 ca

se
s a

nd
 ris

ks
 

log
s. 
 

As
 pe

r 
ag
ree

d 
pro

gra
mm

e 
tim

eta
ble

s

Str
ate

gic
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
Pa

t P
rat

ley

GO
 Sh

are
d S

erv
ice

 Pr
og
ram

me
 no

w 
in 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n I
CT

 sy
ste

ms
 

thi
nk
ing

 on
 tra

ck
 to
 de

live
r, I

CT
 an

d R
ev
s a

nd
 Be

ns
 re

str
uc
tur

es
 ne

ed
s t
o 

be
 m

ov
ed
 fo
rw
ard

 to
 be

 ab
le 
to 
rea

lise
 sa

vin
gs
 w
ith
in 
pla

nn
ed
 tim

es
ca
les

. 
So

urc
ing

 St
rat

eg
y w

ill c
ea
se
 as

 a 
pro

gra
mm

e i
n J

an
 20

11
. P

ro
gr
am

me
 

no
w 
clo

se
d a

nd
 co

ns
um

ed
 in
 B
rid

gin
g t

he
 G
ap
 pr

og
ram

. S
ug

ge
st 

tha
t th

is 
ris

k c
los

ed
 an

d c
ov
ere

d b
y c

or
po

rat
e r

isk
 C
R3

06/01/10

43
CR

1
5

Fe
sti
va
ls 
– f
utu

re 
fun

din
g. 

If C
F f

ail 
to 
ac
hie

ve
 20

10
 bu

dg
et 
for

ec
as
ts 

the
re 

is 
a r

isk
 of
 th
e c

om
pa
ny
 

req
uir
ing

 fu
rth

er 
CB

C 
fin
an
cia

l 
su
pp
ort

 fo
r w

hic
h t
he
re 

is 
no
 

pro
vis

ion
 w
ith
in 
the

 M
TF

S a
nd
 a 

po
ten

tia
l im

pa
ct 
on
 C
Fs
 lo
ng
 te
rm

 
fin
an
cia

l s
us
tai
na
bili

ty.

Dir
ec
tor

 
W
ellb

ein
g &

 
Cu

ltu
re

01/03/10

Clo
se

Fin
an
cia

l m
on
ito
rin
g  

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 in
 pl
ac
e 

thr
ou
gh
 C
IG
. 

CB
C 
rep

res
en
ted

 by
 2 
me

mb
er 

ob
se
rve

rs 
on
 

CF
 Bo

ard
. 

Jo
int
 O
&S

 W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p a
ss
es
sin

g l
on
g-

ter
m 

fin
an
cia

l s
us
tai
na
bili

ty.

Co
mm

en
ce
me

nt 
of 
mo

nth
ly i

nte
rna

l m
ee
tin
gs
 

by
 C
EX

 M
an
ag
ing

 C
F.,

 w
ith
 C
ab
ine

t 
me

mb
er\

lea
de
r in

 at
ten

da
nc
e 

CI
G 
 R
ev
iew

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
10

AD
 

W
ellb

ein
g 

& C
ult
ure

 \ 
CI
G 

Re
vie

w 
Gr
ou
p

CF
’s 
Fin

an
cia

l p
erf

orm
an
ce
 & 

lon
g-t

erm
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
 w
ere

 di
sc
us
se
d 

an
d  
 sc

rut
inis

ed
 by

   t
he
  O

&S
 Jo

int
  R

ev
iew

 gr
ou
p a

t a
 m

ee
tin
g h

eld
 w
ith
 

CF
. T

he
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 of
 th
e r

ev
iew

 gr
ou
p a

re 
be
ing

 pr
es
en
ted

 to
 th
e 

So
cia

l &
 co

mm
un
ity 

& E
B&

I O
&S

 C
om

mi
tte
es
 in
 N
ov
em

be
r p

rio
r to

 a 
 

rep
ort

 go
ing

 to
 C
ab
ine

t o
n 7

th
 D
ec
em

be
r R

isk
 cl
os
ed
 SL

T 0
4-0

1-2
01
1

05/01/11

44
CR

4
2

Un
ab
le 
to 
tak

e c
orr

ec
tiv
e a

cti
on
 in
 

res
pe
ct 
of 
red

uc
ed
 in
co
me

 st
rea

ms
 

in 
20
10
/11

.

Ca
bin

et

01/06/10

Clo
se

In 
pre

pa
rin
g t

he
 re

vis
ed
 bu

dg
et 
for

 20
10
/11

, 
SL

T t
o c

on
sid

er 
the

 op
tio
ns
 fo
r o

ffs
ett
ing

 
red

uc
ed
 in
co
me

 st
rea

ms
 by

 an
aly

sin
g a

nd
 

red
uc
ing

 th
e l
ev
el 
of 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

ac
ros

s t
he
 

Co
un
cil.

01
/12

/10
SL

T
SL

T h
av
e a

gre
ed
 a 
rec

rui
tm

en
t fr

ee
ze
 an

d h
av
e  
rev

iew
ed
 al
l u
ns
pe
nt 

su
pp
lies

 an
d s

erv
ice

s b
ud
ge
ts 
to 
off
se
t th

e p
roj
ec
tio
n i
nc
om

e s
ho
rtfa

ll. 
Ris

k c
los

ed
 SL

T 0
4-0

1-2
01
1

05/01/11

45
CR

1
8

If t
he
 re

ce
ss
ion

 co
nti
nu
es
 or

 
rec

ov
ery

 is
 no

t a
s a

nti
cip

ate
d t
he
n i
t 

wil
l im

pa
ct 
up
on
 th
e i
nc
om

e t
arg

ets
 

as
 se

t o
ut 
in 
the

 M
TF

S.

Dir
ec
tor

 
of 

Re
so
urc

es
    

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

01/12/09

Clo
se

On
go
ing

 bu
dg
et 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 of
 in
co
me

 ta
rge

ts 
wil
l h
igh

lig
ht 
iss

ue
s a

nd
 co

rre
cti
ve
 ac

tio
n 

wh
ich

 ne
ed
s t
o b

e t
ak
en
, a
nd
 w
ill b

e r
ep
ort

ed
 

thr
ou
gh
 th
e b

ud
ge
t m

on
ito
rin
g r

ep
ort

s a
nd
 

ref
lec

ted
 in
 up

da
ted

 M
TF

S p
roj
ec
tio
ns
.

Ac
tio
n i
s b

ein
g t

ak
en
 to
 re

du
ce
 op

era
tin
g 

co
sts

 to
 co

mp
en
sa
te 
for

 po
ten

tia
l s
us
tai
ne
d 

red
uc
tio
n i
n i
nc
om

e l
ev
els

.

Se
pte

mb
er 

 
20
10
  b
ud
ge
t 

str
ate

gy
 

rep
ort

Ch
ief
 

Fin
an
ce
 

Of
fic
er 

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

Th
e d

raf
t b
ud
ge
t p
roj
ec
tio
ns
  fo

r 2
01
1/1

2 (
ap
pro

ve
d b

y C
ab
ine

t in
 D
ec
 

20
10
)  t

ak
e i
nto

 ac
co
un
t th

e i
mp

ac
t o
f th

e c
on
tin
ue
d r

ec
es
sio

n o
n c

ar 
pa
rki
ng
, d
ev
elo

pm
en
t c
on
tro

l a
nd
 in
ve
stm

en
t in

co
me

. R
isk

 cl
os
ed
 SL

T 0
4-

01
-20

11

05/01/11

16

Page 173



row number
Risk Ref.

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n

Ri
sk
 

ow
ne
r

Date raised
Impact

Likelihood

Sc
or
e

>1
6 R

ed
7 t
o 1

5 
Am

be
r

3 t
o 6

 
Gr
ee
n

Control

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
cti

on
De

ad
lin

e
On

 
Ta
rg
et 

for
 

de
ad
lin

e?

Re
sp
on

sib
le 
off

ice
r

Date of current/
last update

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il R

isk
 R
eg

ist
er

 SL
T 1

0-0
5-2

01
1

Ve
rsi

on
 1

Ri
sk
 sc

or
e

Im
pa

ct 
an

d 
lik
eli
ho

od

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
Mi
tig

ati
ng

 ac
tio

n t
ak
en

(if 
yo

u a
re 

no
t g

oin
g t

o m
ee
t th

e d
ea
dli

ne
 ex

pla
in 

wh
y, 

wh
at 

ac
tio

n i
s b

ein
g t

o m
itig

ate
 th

e r
isk

 an
d w

ha
t n

ew
 

de
ad

lin
e y

ou
 pr

op
os

e.)

46
CR

1
4

Th
e o

ve
ral
l p
roj
ec
t s
ign

ific
an
ce
 of
 

the
 C
BH

 ne
w 
bu
ild 

pro
po
sa
ls 
wh

ich
 

are
 an

 in
no
va
tiv
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

 
inc

lud
ing

 pr
ud
en
tia
l b
orr

ow
ing

 
fun

de
d f
rom

 re
nta

l in
co
me

 us
ing

 a 
un
iqu

e a
pp
roa

ch
 to
 de

live
ry 
in 
a 

hig
h p

rof
ile 

an
d s

en
sit
ive

 ar
ea
 of
 

the
 to
wn

, re
qu
ire
 bo

th 
pa
rtie

s t
o 

en
su
re 

tha
t th

ere
 ar

e e
ffe
cti
ve
 

pro
gra

mm
e a

nd
 pr

oje
ct 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
.

AD
 

Co
mm

un
i

ty 
Se

rvi
ce
s  

Pe
ter

 
W
oo
ley

29/03/10

Clo
se

Th
e d

eliv
ery

 pa
rtn

er,
 C
BH

, is
 a 
hig

h 
pe
rfo

rm
ing

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
 w
ith
 a 
so
un
d t
rac

k 
rec

ord
 on

 de
live

ry 
e.g

. th
e d

ec
en
t h
om

es
 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

Su
pp
ort

 fro
m 

the
 H
CA

 de
mo

ns
tra

tes
 

co
nfi
de
nc
e i
n p

roc
es
s /
 de

live
ry 
mo

de
l. 

Ex
ter

na
l m

od
elli

ng
 us

ing
 in
du
str
y s

tan
da
rd 

of 
fin
an
cia

ls 
pro

vid
es
 as

su
ran

ce
. 

CB
H 
ha
s u

nd
ert

ak
en
 si
gn
ific

an
t c
on
su
lta
tio
n 

wit
h r

es
ide

nts
 to
 en

su
re 

bu
y in

 to
 pr

op
os
als

.

CB
H 
is 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 ap

po
int
ed
 co

st 
co
ns
ult
an
ts 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t c
on
tra

ct 
su
ms

 ar
e 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e a
t th

e t
im
e o

f c
om

mi
tm

en
t to

 
co
ntr

ac
t a
nd
 th
at 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 co
nti
ng
en
cie

s 

On
-go

ing
As

sis
tan

t 
CE

X a
t 

CB
H 
Pa

ul 
Ste

ph
en
so

n

All
 ag

ree
me

nts
 no

w 
sig

ne
d, 
co
ntr

ac
tin
g u

nd
erw

ay
.

CB
H 
ha
s s

uc
ce
ss
ful
ly p

rog
res

se
d t
o d

ev
elo

pm
en
t s
tag

e a
t S

t P
au
ls 
& 

Br
igh

ton
 R
oa
d. 
HC

A f
un
din

g h
as
 be

en
 se

cu
red

, o
the

r fu
nd
ing

 st
rea

ms
 ar

e 
be
ing

 pu
t in

 pl
ac
e a

nd
 th
e c

on
tra

cti
ng
 pr

oc
es
s h

as
 be

gu
n. 
Fin

an
ce
 an

d 
On

e L
eg
al 
are

 w
ork

ing
 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 th
e H

ou
sin

g C
lien

t a
nd
 Tr

ow
ers

 to
 

en
su
re 

pro
bit
y a

nd
 be

st 
pra

cti
ce
 in
 th
is 
inn

ov
ati
ve
 pr

oje
ct.
 R
isk

 cl
os
ed
 

SL
T 0

4-0
1-2

01
1

05/01/11

16

Page 174



Co
rp

or
ate

 R
isk

 R
eg

ist
er 

– R
ev

iew
, u

pd
ate

 an
d r

ep
or

tin
g c

yc
le 

– 2
01

1/1
2 

  

SL
T r
ev
iew

 da
te 

Inf
or
ma

l c
op
y  
to 

Ca
bin

et 
Re
po
rt 
to 
EB

I,O
&S

  I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 

co
py
 to
 A
ud
it 

Co
m 

Re
po
rt 
to 
Ca
bin

et 
Ve
rsi
on
 

nu
mb

er 
10

th
 M
ay
 

20
11
 
12

th
 M
ay
 

23
rd
 M
ay
 

22
nd
 Ju
ne
 

21
st
 Ju
ne
 

Ve
rsi
on
 1 

21
st
 Ju
ne
 

20
11
 
24

th
 Ju
ne
 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 2 

19
th
 Ju
ly 

20
11
 
21
 Ju
ly 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 3 

16
th
 Au
gu
st 

20
11
 
18

th
 Au
gu
st 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 4 

13
th
 Se
pte
mb
er 

20
11
 
 

19
th
 Se
pte
mb
er 

21
st
 Se
pte
mb
er 

27
th
 Se
pte
mb
er 

Ve
rsi
on
 5 

11
th
 O
cto
be
r 

20
11
 
13

th
 O
cto
be
r 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 6 

8th
 N
ov
em
be
r 

20
11
 
10

th
 N
ov
em
be
r 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 7 

6th
 D
ec
em
be
r 

20
11
 
8th
 D
ec
em
be
r 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 8 

3rd
 Ja
nu
ary
 

20
12
 
 

23
rd
 Ja
nu
ary
  

11
th
 Ja
nu
ary
 

7th
 Fe
bru
ary
  

Ve
rsi
on
 9 

31
st
 Ja
nu
ary
 

20
12
 
 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 10

 
28

th
 Fe
bru
ary
 

20
12
 
1st
 M
arc
h 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 11

 
27

th
 M
arc
h 

20
12
 
29

th
 M
arc
h 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 12

 
24

th
 Ap
ril 

20
12
 
26

th
 Ap
ril 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 13

 
22

nd
 M
ay
    
    
    

20
12
 
 

 11
th
 Ju
ne
  

20
th
 Ju
ne
 

19
th
 Ju
ne
  

Ve
rsi
on
 14

 
19

th
 Ju
ne
 

20
12
 
21

st
 Ju
ne
 

 
 

 
Ve
rsi
on
 15
 Page 175



Page 176
This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Briefing 
Notes 
 

 
Committee name:  Audit Committee 
 
Date 22nd June 2011 
 
Responsible officer:  Bryan Parsons 

 
Corporate Governance Group  

This briefing paper contains information to keep Members informed of matters relating to the work 
of the Committee, no decisions are required but members can make comments on the work of the 
group or suggestions for additional action. 
1. Why has this come to Audit Committee? 
1.1 To update the Committee on the work of the Corporate Governance Group (CGG).  

2. Summary 

2.1 The council has a statutory duty to prepare an annual governance statement (AGS) to be 
approved as part of the annual statement of accounts. The AGS includes a Significant 
Issues Action Plan (SIAP); this is approved by the Audit Committee and indicates how the 
council is complying with the code of corporate governance including internal control 
arrangements. The audit committee need to satisfy itself that the AGS fairly reflects the 
arrangements within the council.  

2.2 The CGG which is chaired by the Chief Executive and routinely meets to;  
- monitor and challenge the internal controls (Annual Certificates of Assurance checklist), 
- monitor progress against any recommendations that arise from external audit assessments, 
- consider progress against the SIAP; and 
- monitor the risk management procedures. 

 
The minutes of the CGG since the last the last Audit Committee are being provided to the 
Audit Committee so that they will have a more informed view of the issues when the AGS is 
presented to it for approval.  

3. Conclusion 
The CGG have agreed terms of reference and considers information from a range of 
internal control sources and assurance checks. These issues and the outcomes from the 
checks are placed within appropriate action plans, discussed and monitored. The CGG 
would welcome any comment or input from the audit committee on progress against the 
action plan or items recorded within the CGG minutes.  

4. Summary of supporting information 
- Appendix 1 minutes of the Corporate Governance Group meetings on the  23rd March 2011, 

21st April 2011 and the 31st May 2011. 
5. Further information 

5.1 If you require any further information on any of these issues please contact                  
Bryan Parsons - Policy officer - governance on 01242 264189 or 
bryan.parsons@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Page 177



Page 178
This page is intentionally left blank



 

\\mudata\mgdataroot\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\2\AI00002220\$wxh1aguq.doc 
Corporate Governance Group 
Version 1   
16/05/2008 
 

 Corporate Governance Group 
Minutes 

3rd March 2011 
2.00 pm Sherbourne Room 

 
 

Item 
 

Subject 
 

 
Lead Officer 

1 
 
Apologies;   
 

Amanda Attfield,  Julie McCarthy deputised. 
Rob Milford, Olivia Hazell deputised  

2 
 
Minutes of the last 
meeting 3rd February 
2011  

Minutes accepted but the following was carried forward 
 
JG said that MS was now the councils rep on the Audit Partnership board 
and that she had been asked how the portfolio member could become 
more engaged in what was taking place. MS said that he would discus 
that matter with the councillor Hay to see the request and involvement. 

3 
 
Revised Risk 
Management Policy 
 

Risk Management Policy was discussed and AN made a suggestion in 
relation to the definition of risk so that it reflected positive risks and how 
risk could be used to the benefit of the organisation. BP to amend policy 

4 
 
Significant Issues Action 
Plan 
 

 
SIAP discussed and it was agreed that the payroll issue would be 
reported within the annual governance statement SIAP. BP to amend. 

5 
 
Annual Governance 
Statement 

MS and Jane updated the group on the 2010-11 AGS and MS confirmed 
that it would now be within his area of responsibility. BP would produce 
first draft. 

6 
 
Policy review 
- Anti Fraud 
Corruption Policy 
- Bribery and 
Corruption 
- Proceeds of 
Crime and Money 
Laundering 
- Whistle Blowing 

 
OH presented a paper produced by RM. The paper was discussed and it 
was noted and agreed that CBC needs to ensure that policies outlined in 
the paper are kept up to date. It was also agreed that the audit section 
should consider the need for an anti Theft policy and if the policies should 
be combined. It was suggested that the audit manager undertake a 
review of the policies and bring to the group recommendations. RM   

7 
 
PIR final review of action 
plan 

SF outlined the work that had been carried out to complete the 
recommendations and the audit committee report. There were two main 
issues to be resolved, the monitoring of decisions and the review. of the 
constitution.   

8 
Constitution  

- On going 
updates 

- Review 
- Aide 
memoir / 
guidance 

 
As above. 

9 
 
AOB 

None 

10 
 
Date of next meeting 21st 
April 2011, Montpellier 

 

 

Corporate Governance Group 

Page 179



 

\\mudata\mgdataroot\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\2\AI00002220\$wxh1aguq.doc 
Corporate Governance Group 
Version 1   
16/05/2008 
 

Minutes 
21st April 2011 

11.00am Montpellier Room 
 

 
Item 

 
Subject 

 

 
Lead Officer 

1 
 
Apologies;   
 

Amanda Attfield. Sonia Phillips. 

2 
 
Minutes of the last meeting 3rd 
March 2011  

 
Accepted 

3 
 
Revised Risk Management Policy 

- Cabinet report 
- Intranet 
- Training package 

 

 
Risk management Policy had been 
approved by cabinet and an intranet 
update was being prepared to coincide 
with the release of the e-learning 
package.  The requirement to undertake 
this training will be linked to job 
descriptions and appraisals. A number 
of members have requested 1-2-1 
training. 

4 
 
Annual Governance Statement 

- Significant Issues Action 
Plan 

- PIR recs outstanding 
- timetable 

 
 

 
The annual governance statement had 
been drafted and a copy had been 
circulated to DR, DC and One legal. 
Timetable was noted and accepted to 
deliver AGS to Audit on the 21st June 
and to full council with the accounts in 
September.  

5 
 

- Value for Money 
assessment 

 
KPMG had reported that they had 
completed all their work on the Value for 
Money exercise and that there were no 
issues for concern. They also reported 
that there auditor was leaving and would 
be replaced by someone from the Audit 
Commission. 

7 
Constitution  
- progress report 

 
The review of the constitution was 
ongoing and would be ready for full 
council in July. MS to discus financial 
regs. with PL at One Legal 

8 
CGG  
Consider if membership needs to 
be revised following restructure 
 

 
The group considered that the current 
members of the group were still required 
but that Sonia could attend when she 
felt it necessary. Membership would be 
reviewed again in 12 months time. 

Page 180



 

\\mudata\mgdataroot\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\2\AI00002220\$wxh1aguq.doc 
Corporate Governance Group 
Version 1   
16/05/2008 
 

9 
 
Transparency 
- publication of Contracts 
- what should our approach be? 

 
Spending reports had been reported on 
a monthly basis in line DCLG guidelines. 
Senior officer salaries had not been 
reported upon but the report was being 
compiled and should be reported soon.. 
The Local Government group has 
published the specification for the 
publication of contracts and tenders. A 
meeting was being arranged with AC 
and SH to consider what and when 
information should be published.    

10 
DCLG consultation  
Future of Local public audit 

- Workshop to consider the 
approach to completing 
the consultation and to 
draft initial responses 

 
Officers considered the questions in the 
consultation document and RM would 
be preparing a report for Audit 
Committee on the 22nd June. 

11 
 
AOB 

It was agreed that current policies and 
codes of practice should be reviewed by 
Audit and One legal and revised to 
ensure that guidance covers the 
requirements of the new Bribery Act. F 

12 
 
Date of next meeting 31st May, 
Montpellier room. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 181



 

\\mudata\mgdataroot\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\2\AI00002220\$wxh1aguq.doc 
Corporate Governance Group 
Version 1   
16/05/2008 
 

Corporate Governance Group 
Meeting notes 
31st May 2011 

11.00am Montpellier Room 
 

 
Item 

 
Subject 

 

 
Lead Officer 

1 
 
Apologies;   
 

Rob Milford Sonia Phillips, Jane 
Griffiths 

 
Present Andrew North, Bryan Parsons, Mark 

Sheldon, Julie McCarthy, Ian Watkins 

2 
 
Minutes of the last meeting 21st 
April 2011  

 
Agreed 

3 
 
DCLG consultation regarding 
external audit 
 

 
IW explained that the DCLG 
consultation had been drafted by RM 
and it would be circulated upon his 
return from sick leave. 

4 
 
Annual Governance Statement 

- Draft for comment 
- Commissioning, 
assurance and the 
governance 
framework - 2012 

- Information 
Management 

- Internal audit 
report 

 

 
AGS statement had been circulated to 
the group and it was agreed that it 
should be sent to Audit Committee for 
approval. 
 
Constitution and financial rules were 
being revised MS and BP would be 
meeting One legal in the following 
week to consider changes. These 
should take into account 
Commissioning and the objectives of 
the Freedom and Flexibilities project. 
 
The group noted the contents of the 
informal audit report on assurance and 
were pleased to note that it reflected 
the findings of the annual assurance 
work undertaken by the Directors. 
 

11 
 
AOB 

 
None 

12 
 
Date of next meeting 16th June, 
Montpellier room. 

 
 

 

Page 182



 
 

Briefing 
Notes 
 

 
Audit Committee 
 
Date of meeting 22 June 2011 
 
Responsible Officer Mark Sheldon 

 
 
This note contains information to keep Members informed of matters relating to the work of the 
Cabinet but where no decisions from Members are needed.   
 
If Members have questions relating to matters shown, they are asked to contact the Officer 
indicated. 
 
GO Shared Services – Programme Update  
  
The GO Shared Service Programme is a partnership of Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold 
District Council, Forest of Dean District Council, West Oxfordshire District Council. The GO 
Programme aims to develop a shared service for Finance, Procurement, Human Resources and 
Payroll, based on the creation of a shared IT platform, to deliver savings and improvements in 
service delivery.  
 
The Programme is being managed along Prince 2 lines, has full programme governance structure, 
the top level being a Strategic Programme Management Board made up of the chief executives 
and elected members of the partner councils, with a Programme Board reporting to it (see 
attached), with thirteen separate projects reporting into the Programme Board.   
 
Since its formal approval by Cabinet and Council in 2010, Cheltenham Borough Homes Ltd has 
agreed to be part of the GO Programme under Cheltenham Borough Council’s membership. The 
services scope is now planned to encompass professional and advisory services as well as 
transactional (administrative) processes which is anticipated to deliver additional savings for 
partner councils.  
Overall, the gross programme savings are estimated to be £5.2m with savings, net of the 
investment, of £3.8m across all 4 partner councils over a 10 year period. This compares to the 
original Business Case that provided for gross programme savings estimated to be £3.4m with 
savings, net of the investment, of £2.0m. The investment payback period is estimated to be just 
over 4 years. Figures for CBC are investment = £442k to generate annual savings of £269k from 
2013/14. Net savings over the 10 year period are £1.6million.  
 
Key governance structures that were approved as part of the business case have been revised 
and updated to reflect the above changes (see attached). These governance structures continue 
to reflect the three phases of the Programme – the period up to the first two councils going live 
(Stage A - up to November 2011), all organisations going live (Stage B - up to April 212), and post 
go-live (Stage C - April  2012 onwards).  
 
A programme of this scale and nature will carry a number of significant risks and a comprehensive 
risk register is in place, along with accompanying risk strategy. These documents have been 
developed in compliance with a standard Risk management approach (PRINCE2 / Managing 
Successful Programmes (MSP)) for assessing and managing risk. There are two main types of 
risk faced by the implementation of this programme: 

(a) risk involving the development and implementation of the GO partnership, and 
(b) risk of the subsequent failure of the GO partnership 

Page 183



In compiling the programme risk strategy there are some fundamental questions that have been 
addressed, including: 

(c) what risks are to be managed 
(d) how much risk is acceptable 
(e) who is responsible for the risk management activities 
(f) what relative significance time, cost, benefits, quality, stakeholders have in the 

management of risks 
Possible risks to the success of the programme in meeting its time, cost and scope targets will be 
identified, assessed and managed. A risk log has been generated to register and track the 
programme risks in a simple and pragmatic way. Any high risks that carry a high residual risk 
rating are also reflected in GO partner council local risk registers.  
The benefits realisation plan is indicative at this stage however, it will be compiled in order to track 
the realisation of benefits across the GO Programme as part of the implementation following the 
approval of the revised Business Case by Cabinet in July 2011. Key benefits are as outlined in the 
business case, and are envisaged as: 

Cashable savings – All GO organisations have within their strategic aims and ambitions, the need to 
find solutions to budgetary pressures 
Staff retention and opportunities – It is essential to retain good staff in local government to meet 
the challenges currently being faced by councils 
Service efficiencies – All councils undertake similar work, thus creating duplication of effort and 
resources. Joint training, single sourcing and standardised documentation also provide opportunities 
for service efficiencies 
Service resilience – All councils lack capacity and resilience to respond to peaks in demand or 
absence of staff. The lack of capacity also leads to buying in external expertise which can be 
expensive 
Enhanced reputation – At a strategic level, the implementation of a shared ERP application and 
service across Gloucestershire and West Oxfordshire may provide a catalyst for future shared 
services. If the approach can deliver successful outcomes then it may well serve as a proof of 
concept that other potential shared services could adopt 

 
The Benefits Realisation Plan will clearly show what will happen, where and when the benefits will 
occur and who will be responsible for their delivery. Benefits will be tracked and monitored via the 
governance arrangements. 
 
See the below link to access the GO Shared Services website for more information, including the 
lateset GO Shared Services newsletter.  
 
http://gosharedservices.files.wordpress.com/2011/05/all-systems-go-may-20112.pdf 
 
http://gosharedservices.wordpress.com/ 
 
Contact Officers:  
 
Paul Jones  Head of Financial Services 01242 775954 paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Amanda Attfield Director People, Organisational Development and Change 01242 264186 
amanda.attfield@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 
  
 

Page 184



 

B a c k g ro u n d  – so m e  o f  th e  k e y  p e o p le  in v o lv e d
S tra te g ic  P ro g ra m m e  M a n a g e m e n t  

B o a rd  (S P M B )M e m b e rsh ip

C h ie f  E x e cu t iv e s

C B C  A n d rew  N o r th
C D C  – D a v id  N eu d eg g
FO D  – S u e  P a n g b o u rn e
W O  – D a v id  N e u d e g g

C o u n c illo r s

C B C  C o lin  H a y  (C h a ir )
C D C  B a rry  D a re

FO D  B r ia n  R o b in s o n  
W O  M a rk  B o o ty

B ackground – som e of the key peop le  invo lved
GO Shared Services Program m e Board M em bersh ip
Pat Pratley – Senior Responsib le  O fficer
Rob W ood – Programme Manager
Chris Cox – Project Manager
CBC - Amanda Attfie ld/Pau l Jones
CDC & WO - Jenny Poo le/Sara Mullen/Pau l S tuart
FoD - Karen Gane/Su W alker
Audit - Rob M ilford
Communications – Bob M cNally
And … . across the partnersh ip  – “Super Users”, Process Leads and others are a lso w ork ing together to  he lp  m ake it a success. 

Page 185



Programme structure up to first two councils “go live”  
November 2011  

ERP
Supplier

Relationship
GO

Workstream
Project

A

GO ERP Shared Services Programme (Phase 1)
Proposed Programme Structure
Implementation Period (Stage A)
(1st Nov 2010 – Up to 1st authority live)

Membership
3 x Chief Executives
4 x Members (preferably Cabinet Member)
SRO (non-voting)
Programme Manager (non-voting)

Membership
SRO (non voting)
4 x Finance / Procurement leads (151 or deputy 151)
4 x HR / Payroll Leads (Head of service / senior officer)
1 x Officer with audit portfolio (non voting)
PMO (non-voting)
Others as required by specific agenda items (non-voting)

Elected Members – Cheltenham Borough Council

Elected Members – West Oxfordshire District Council

Elected Members – Cotswold District Council

Elected Members – Forest of Dean District Council

Formal

Decisions

Formal Progress Reporting
Strategic Guidance

Member

Reporting

Support &
Hosting
Centre of
Excellence

GO Strategic
Partnership Management

Board
(SPMB)

GO Programme Board
(PB)

Programme Management
Office
(PMO)

GO
Workstream
Project
 X

GO
Workstream
Project

B
● ● ● ●

Page 186



Programme structure up to all councils “go live”  
April 2012  

GO
Workstream

Project
 X

ERP
Supplier

Relationship
GO

Workstream
Project

B

GO
Workstream

Project
A

GO ERP Shared Services Programme (Phase 1)
Proposed Programme Structure
Implementation Period (Stage B)
(1st authority live to last authority live)

Membership
3 x Chief Executives
4 x Members (preferably Cabinet Member)
SRO (non-voting)
Programme Manager (non-voting)

Elected Members – Cheltenham Borough Council

Elected Members – West Oxfordshire District Council

Elected Members – Cotswold District Council

Elected Members – Forest of Dean District Council

Formal

Decisions

Formal Progress Reporting
Strategic Guidance

Member

Reporting

Support &
Hosting

Centre of
Excellence

GO Strategic
Partnership Management

Board
(SPMB)

GO Programme Board
(PB)

Programme Management
Office
(PMO)

● ● ● ●

Membership
SRO (non-voting)
4 x Finance / Procurement leads (S151 or deputy S151)
4 x HR / Payroll Leads (Head of service / senior officer)
1 x Officer with audit portfolio (non-voting)
PMO (non-voting)
Head of Support & Hosting CoE (non-voting)
Others as required by specific agenda items (non-voting)

Page 187



Programme structure post April 2012 

 

Page 188


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Annual governance statement
	2011_06_22_Audit_8_Appendix_1

	6 The Bribery Act 2010
	7 Annual Internal Audit Report
	2011_06_22_Audit_8_Appendix_A_Annual_Report_2010-11

	8 Interim Audit Report 2011/12
	9 Audit fee letter 2011-2012
	10 DCLG consultation
	2011_06_22_Audit_11_Appendix_A_Future_of_Local_Audit_consultation_document
	2011_06_22_Audit_11_Appendix_B_consultation_on_the_future_of_local_public_audit

	11 Commissioning - update on current commissioning exercises
	2011_06_22_Audit_5_Appendix_1_Delivery_models_assessment

	12 Work Programme
	Briefing Notes (for information only)
	2011_06_22_Audit_Briefing_Note_1_Appendix_1
	2011_06_22_Audit_Briefing_Note_1_Appendix_2
	2011_06_22_Audit_Briefing_Note_2_Corporate_Governance_Group
	2011_06_22_Audit_Briefing_Note_2_Appendix_1
	2011_06_22_Audit_Briefing_Note_3_GO_shared_services


